
REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Thursday, October 15, 2020 

RDOS Boardroom – 101 Martin Street, Penticton 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

9:00 am - 9:15 am Public Hearing – 2390 Coalmont Road 

9:15 am - 10:00 am Planning and Development Services Committee 

10:00 am - 10:15 am Protective Services Committee 

10:15 am - 10:30 am Break 

10:30 am - 10:45 am Community Services Committee 

10:45 am - 11:15 am Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

11:15 am - 12:00 pm Corporate Services Committee 

12:00 pm - 12:15 pm Break 

12:15 pm - 2:15 pm RDOS Board 

2020 Notice of Meetings 

November 5 RDOS Board 
Inaugural 

OSRHD Board 
Inaugural 

November 19 RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

December 3 RDOS Board Committee Meetings 

December 17 RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

“Karla Kozakevich” 

Karla Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair 



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Amendment of Electoral Area “H”  
Zoning Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2012 

(2390 Coalmont Road) 
Notice is hereby given by the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) that all persons who 
believe that their interest in property is affected by the Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
2498.22, 2020, will be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written submissions 
respecting matters contained in the proposed bylaws at a delegated public hearing to be held on: 

Date:  Thursday, October 15, 2020 
Time:   9:00 a.m.  
Location:    https://rdos.webex.com (Meeting number: 146 087 3827 / password: RD@S) 

To participate in the electronic public hearing, please enter the text provided under “Location” (above) 
into the address bar of an internet browser (e.g. Chrome, Firefox, Safari, Edge). Interested individuals may 
also participate in the public hearing by calling 250-490-4217 or Toll Free at 1-877-610-3737. 

The Regional District is utilizing Cisco’s Webex videoconferencing services and individuals interested in 
participating in the public hearing are encouraged to test this service on their computer or mobile device 
prior to the date of the hearing. Additional instructions on how to participate in an electronic public 
hearing are available on the Regional District’s website: www.rdos.bc.ca (Departments → Development 
Services → Planning → Current Applications →Electoral Area “H” →H2020.007-ZONE). 

Anyone who considers themselves affected by the amendment bylaws can present written information to 
the Regional District prior to or during the public hearing and may also speak at the public hearing. No 
letter, report or representation from the public will be received after the conclusion of the public hearing. 

PURPOSE OF THE BYLAW(S): 

The purpose of the proposed amendments is to change the zoning designation of the property to facilitate 
subdivision into two lots. More specifically: 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, proposes the following amendments to the Electoral Area “H” 
Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2012: 

• amend Schedule ‘1’ (Zoning Map) by changing the land use designation of the subject property 
from Large Holdings Two (LH2) to Large Holdings One (LH1). 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION:  

For further information about the content of Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, and the land affected 
by them, persons are encouraged to inspect a copy of the proposed Bylaws at the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen office at 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, on weekdays (excluding statutory 
holidays) between the hours of 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.  

Basic information related to this proposal is also available at:  www.rdos.bc.ca (Departments → 

TULAMEEN 

NN

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2012: 
from:  Large Holdings Two (LH2) 
to:  Large Holdings One (LH1) 

 (BLACK HATCHED AREA) 

 

https://rdos.webex.com/
http://www.rdos.bc.ca/


 

2 

Development Services → Planning → Current plications →Electoral Area “H” →H2020.007-ZONE).   

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACT ACT 

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes 
seriously.  Our practices have been designed to ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) (“FIPPA”).  Any personal or proprietary information you 
provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. 
 

 
Postal: 101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 | Tel: 250-490-4101 | Fax: 250-492-0063 | Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Planning and Development Committee 

Thursday, October 15, 2020 
9:15 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Planning and Development Committee Meeting of October 15, 2020 be 
adopted. 

 
 

B. Q3 ACTIVITY REPORT – For Information Only 
 

 
C. DEVELOPMENT PROCEDURES BYLAW – PARKLAND DEDICATION AMENDMENT 

1. Draft Bylaw No. 2500.16 
 
RECOMMENDATION 2  
THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Development 
Procedures Bylaw Updated, be initiated. 

 
 

D. ESDP AREA UPDATE 
1. Draft Bylaw No. 2500.17 
2. Draft Bylaw No. 2912 (OCP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3  
THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Environmentally 
Sensitive Development Permit Area Update Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw be initiated; 
 
AND THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.17, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw be initiated. 

 
 
E. ALR EXCLUSION POLICIES 

1. Bylaw No. 2913 
 

RECOMMENDATION 4  
THAT the Board of Directors initiate Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2913, 2020. 

 
  



Planning and Development 
Services Committee 2 

 
October 15, 2020 

 
 
 
F. SECONDARY SUITES & ACCESSORY DWELLINGS – MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA ALLOWANCES 

 
RECOMMENDATION 5  
THAT the maximum floor area of a secondary suite and accessory dwelling be set at 125.0 m2 in the 
Draft South Okanagan Electoral Area Zoning Bylaw No. 2800. 

 
 

G. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 



 
   
 

Q2 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 1 of 9 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Planning & Development Committee 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 15, 2020 
 
RE: Q3 Activity Report – Development Services  
 For Information Only 
 

Overview:  
The Development Services Report comprises the functional areas of Planning, Building Inspection, 
Bylaw Enforcement, Heritage, Development Engineering and Economic Development. 
 
PLANNING: 

Q3 Activities 

Regional Growth Strategy:  

• Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) Review: 

 Contract awarded at August 6, 2020, Board meeting; and 

 Project initiation meeting with staff and consulting team occurred on September 14th. 

• Regional Housing Needs Assessment Report: 

 On-going work related to data collection phase. 

Electoral Area Planning: 

• A summary of Applications and Referrals processed in Q3 is presented at Attachment No. 2. 

• The following reports were prepared for consideration by the Board (including in Committee): 

 Land Use Contract LU-6-D (St Andrews) and Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory. 

• South Okanagan Zoning Bylaw Consolidation (Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F” & “I”): 

 Apex Zone Update amendment bylaw adoption. 

 Micro Cannabis amendment bylaw adoption. 

 Consultation on Phase 3 of Residential Zone Update (CD Zone) 

• Electoral Area “A” OCP Bylaw Review: 

 Completion of 1st Community Survey; 

 Release of Draft OCP Bylaw and Schedules; 

 In-person Open House at the Sonora Centre on September 21st  

 On-going APC meetings. 

• Electoral Area “G” OCP Bylaw Project: 

 Completion of Request for Proposals (RFP) on June 8, 2020. 



  
 

Q3 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 2 of 9 

 Background work on Community Profile and Map Schedules. 

 Preparation of a revised RFP for re-release. 

• Wildfire Hazard DP Area Project (Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, “H” & “I”): 

 Presentation to the Board on August 6th. 

 On-going work related to preparation of Draft Guidelines and Mapping.  

• Dock Regulations (Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F” & “I”): 

 1st reading on September 17th. 

• Provision of Planning Services to the Village of Keremeos: 

 OCP & Zoning Bylaw Review: 

 Release of Draft OCP & Zoning Bylaws. 

 Public Notification of Project. 

• Provision of Planning Services to the Town of Princeton. 
 
Planned Activities for Q4 (2020): 

Regional Growth Strategy:  

• Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) Review: 

 Initiate review and analysis phase with staff, RGS Technical Advisory Committee; and 

 Project presentation to Planning & Development Committee on December 3rd.  

• Regional Housing Needs Assessment Report: 

 Complete data collection and initiate data analysis phase; and 

 Capacity building workshop with project partners. 

Electoral Area Planning: 

• South Okanagan Zoning Bylaw Consolidation (Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F” & “I”): 

 Complete Phase 3 of the Residential Zone Review (CD Zone Update);  

 Initiate Phase 4 of the Residential Zone Review (RS & SH Zones); and  

 Bring forward Draft Zoning Bylaw No. 2800 to Committee for review. 

• Electoral Area “A” OCP Bylaw Review: 

 Finalise public consultation processes; 

 Finalise OCP Bylaw & Schedules. 

• Electoral Area “G” OCP Bylaw Project: 

 Re-release of Request for Proposals (RFP); 

 Bring forward report to the Board to award contract; 

 Schedule a kick-off meeting with successful consultant firm; 



  
 

Q3 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 3 of 9 

 Initiation of background research and determination of a consultation program. 

• Wildfire Hazard DP Area Project (Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, “H” & “I”): 

 Finalise mapping and prepare draft guidelines; 

 Initiate public consultation process. 

• Dock Regulations (Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F” & “I”): 

 Schedule Public Hearing for November and consideration of 3rd (and adoption) before year 
end. 

• Review of ESDP Area Designation (Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F” & “I”): 

 Seek direction from Board on amendment bylaws at October 15th meeting 

• Solar Energy Devices (Electoral Area “D”, “E”, “F” & “I”) 

 Public Consultation (i.e. External & Internal Agency Referrals, APCs); and 

 Schedule 1st Reading December 17th (tentative). 

• Continue working on implementation of new software application (BasicGov). 

• Provision of Planning Services to the Village of Keremeos: 

 OCP & Zoning Bylaw Review: 

 present draft bylaws and map schedules to Council; and  

 initiate public consultation. 

• Provision of Planning Services to the Town of Princeton on an “as needed” basis. 
 
BUILDING INSPECTION: 

Q3 Activities   

• 399 Permits have been issued to September 30, 2020 compared to 405 for the same date in 2019 
(see Attachment No. 3 for the summary of issued Building Permits).  

• Average timeline from application date to permit issuance is currently at approximately 38 days.  

• Provision of inspection services to the Village of Keremeos continues.   

• Continued with development of BasicGov software which was to be introduced for Development 
Services in 2020.  This target date will likely be Q1 of 2021 due to considerable delays with the 
pandemic and then the attempted ransomware attack. 

 
Planned Activities for Q4  

• Continued work for implementation of BasicGov software for Building inspection modules. 

• Building Bylaw amendments – various housekeeping amendments plus revisions required for 
implementation of new BasicGov software 

• Drafting of various procedures and policies 

• Continued research with Step Code incentive 



  
 

Q3 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 4 of 9 

• Continued building enforcement 
 

BYLAW ENFORCEMENT: 

Q3 Activities   

• Ongoing processing of complaints – 32 new complaints received and 8 enforcement files closed 

• Positive result:  file closure/site clean up – Electoral Area H – 2619 Nicola Avenue  

(see Attachment No. 4 for Summary of Bylaw Enforcement Complaints) 
 
Planned Activities for Q4 

• Work on development of BasicGov software to be introduced for Development Services in July 
2020 (delayed due to ransomware attack and pandemic/staffing issues) . 

• Work with Legislative Services to develop processes for board hearings. 

• Initiation of consolidation of Untidy/Unsightly regulatory bylaws. 

• Preparation of amendment bylaws for annual dog licensing – for yearly renewal of lifetime dog 
licenses.  

• Outstanding legal action for 5 properties (3 unsightly, 2 non-conforming uses) 

 
DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING: 

Q3 Activities 

• Subdivision and Development Services Bylaw Update (Electoral Areas “A”, “B”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, 
“G”, “H” & “I”):  

 On-going review of draft Schedules and Standard Drawings. 

• Electoral Area “F” (Greater West Bench) Geotechnical Review: 

 Review of draft report and provision of preliminary feedback to consultant team. 

• Ongoing Works and Services consultations for Subdivisions: 

 Twin Lake Golf Course Resort (“I”): review of Works and Services Agreement is on-going. 
Agreement on domestic water and sewer systems design is pending. 

 Grace Estates (“E”): water system design submitted and under review. 

 Naramata Benchlands (“E”): reviewing concept water design  

 Kettle Ridge – Phase 3A (“E”): Letter of Compliance issued. Warranty Agreement ongoing 

 Patterson & Hayman Roads (“E”): construction of water infrastructure complete, pending 
Warranty Agreement 

 Mill Road Partners (“E”): Works and Services Agreement complete, Letter of Compliance 
issued. 

• Provision of Development Engineering Services to the Village of Keremeos. 
 



  
 

Q3 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 5 of 9 

Planned Activities for Q4   

• Subdivision and Development Services Bylaw Update (Electoral Areas “A”, “B”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, 
“G”, “H” & “I”):  

 Finalize Draft Bylaw and present at a Planning & Development Committee meeting. 

• Electoral Area “F” (Greater West Bench) Geotechnical Review: 

 Finalise draft report and present to Planning and Development Committee; and 

 Initiate consultation. 

• Provision of Development Engineering Services to the Village of Keremeos. 

• Provision of Development Engineering Services to the Town of Princeton “as needed”. 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT: 

Q3 Activities 

• Okanagan Falls 2020 Economic Development and Recovery Plan. 

• Completed a community survey for grocery needs, including ongoing research and conversation 
with grocery corps, co-ops and landlord. 

 
Planned Activities for Q4   

• Commence implementation of Economic Development and Recovery Plan. 

• Ongoing business outreach and support (retention and expansion). 

• Support the Okanagan Falls Community Assocation on branding and signage installation. 

• Undertake a grant application to develop a downtown façade improvement or mural program. 

• Colloborate on the development of a community public art project. 

• Support the visitor center operation. 

• Continued participation in the Visit South Okanagan program 

• Ongoing promotion of our area for tourism. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
 
_________________________  ____________________________    
C. Garrish, Planning Manager L. Miller, Building & Enforcement Services Manager 
 
Attachments:  No. 1 – Development Applications by Electoral Area & Year to Date (2020) 

No. 2 – Summary of Application Activities 
No. 3 – Summary of Building Permits (3rd Quarter) 
No. 4 – Summary of Bylaw Enforcement Complaints (3rd Quarter) 
 



  
 

Q3 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 6 of 9 

Attachment No. 1 - Development Applications by Electoral Area & Year to Date (2020) 

 

 

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

KER

PRI

Development Applications - Electoral Areas/Member 
municipalities

A B C D E F G H I KER PRI

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

YTD 2016 YTD 2017 YTD 2018 YTD 2019 YTD 2020

2020 Year-to-date Applications & Referrals

Applications Referrals



  
 

Q3 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 7 of 9 

Attachment No. 2 – Summary of Application Activities 

Board Reports – Q3 Land Use Applications 

  “A” “B” “C” “D” “E” “F” “G” “H” “I” MULTI Total 
Board Reports – Land Use Applications            

Land Use Bylaw Amendments (OCP and/or Zoning)   1       2 3 
Development Variance Permits 1   1     3  5 
Temporary Use Permits        2   2 
Agricultural Land Commission Referrals 1   1 1      3 
Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch Referrals    2 1      3 
Floodplain Exemptions            

Yearly Total (2020) 4  6 8 10 4  11 7 2 52 

Public Consultation – Q3 Land Use Applications / Projects 

  “A” “B” “C” “D” “E” “F” “G” “H” “I” MULTI Total 
Public Consultation Forum            

Advisory Planning Commission (APC) Meetings / Info Mailouts   4 2 2   4 2   
Public Information Meeting   1  2   2 1 3 9 
Public Hearing      1     1 

Yearly Total (2020) 2  8 3 8 1  8 5 8 43 

Delegated Development Permits & MoTI Referrals Processed 

  “A” “B” “C” “D” “E” “F” “G” “H” “I” Total 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permits           

Development, Land Alteration & Subdivision 2   2 1 2  1  8 
Yearly Total (2020) 7  1 6 6 2  3 1 26 

Watercourse Development Permits           
Development, Land Alteration & Subdivision 2        1 3 

Yearly Total (2020) 4  1  1 1  1 3 11 
MoTI Subdivisions Referrals           

Fee Simple, Strata, Road Closure, etc.   1 1     1 3 
Yearly Total (2020)   2 1 2 3  2 5 15 



  
 

Q3 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 8 of 9 

Attachment No. 3 – Summary of Building Permits Issued, 3rd Quarter

 

 

NUMBER OF PERMITS ISSUED
DESCRIPTION A C D E F H I TOTAL 2020 2019

RENEWAL/DEFICIENCY 0 20 25
S.F.D. 1 1 4 3 1 1 1 12 69 58
MOBILE/MANU HOMES 1 1 1 1 4 20 28
CABINS/REC 0 3 12

DEMOLITION / MOVE 2 1 3 1 7 23 23
ACCESSORY USES 2 1 2 4 4 6 5 24 110 110

COMMERCIAL 0 20 14
INDUSTRIAL 0 2 1

INSTITUTIONAL 1 1 6 1
SOLID FUEL APPLIANCE 0 0 18
MONTHLY TOTAL 5 8 16 11 8 12 9 69 399 405
YEAR TO DATE 2020 49 69 70 58 38 72 43 399
SAME MONTH 2019 3 2 6 4 1 5 5 26
YEAR TO DATE 2019 41 62 42 59 21 97 83 405

DOLLAR VALUE OF PERMITS  
DESCRIPTION A C D E F H I TOTAL TOTAL YTD

RENEWAL/DEFICIENCY $0 $287,500
S.F.D. $289,660 $367,115 $1,088,770 $1,037,735 $340,815 $152,640 $176,420 $3,453,155 $25,486,547
MOBILE/MANU HOMES $182,250 $133,245 $147,705 $221,434 $684,634 $3,622,688
CABINS/REC $0 $40,500

DEMOLITION / MOVE $2,000 $1,000 $3,000 $1,000 $7,000 $23,000
ACCESSORY USES $148,750 $32,160 $95,880 $105,720 $134,549 $149,890 $135,520 $802,469 $4,141,396

COMMERCIAL $0 $1,543,989
INDUSTRIAL $0 $183,360

INSTITUTIONAL $95,000 $95,000 $1,879,925
SOLID FUEL APPLIANCE $0 $0
MONTHLY TOTAL $692,210 $1,410,970 $1,698,860 $1,176,175 $510,753 $325,530 $834,374 $6,648,872 $41,885,178
YEAR TO DATE 2020 $9,454,280 $6,366,310 $7,065,380 $6,261,637 $2,895,421 $4,976,625 $4,865,525 $41,885,178
SAME MONTH 2019 $49,400 $1,000 $472,700 $618,864 $193,853 $229,420 $1,042,255 $2,607,492
YEAR TO DATE 2019 $3,480,860 $7,071,684 $6,021,591 $5,575,605 $956,787 $6,454,360 $7,820,799 $37,381,686

BUILDING INSPECTION REVENUE
MONTH 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

JANUARY $8,965.60 $17,905.98 $38,090.55 $39,602.01 $55,887.27 $30,704.46 $47,538.46
FEBRUARY $25,842.00 $19,575.32 $29,419.02 $44,897.41 $37,396.10 $86,493.92 $17,592.98
MARCH $30,397.81 $32,251.07 $41,406.24 $62,053.58 $72,804.20 $51,199.20 $60,721.58
APRIL $28,055.24 $47,883.66 $15,209.80 $35,550.35 $41,018.96 $42,268.02 $41,620.45
MAY $47,678.54 $34,819.01 $88,336.89 $335,459.36 $61,771.86 $47,130.81 $52,842.35
JUNE $78,964.49 $62,473.80 $105,215.54 $66,954.09 $70,972.42 $46,253.49 $75,271.11
JULY $48,610.54 $93,218.43 $70,891.24 $95,394.43 $71,463.33 $70,064.71 $57,104.01
AUGUST $41,182.51 $59,620.80 $73,568.01 $47,165.53 $42,822.93 $25,798.34 $42,437.50
SEPTEMBER $68,044.72 $121,384.59 $102,226.37 $90,566.53 $45,924.16 $30,728.49 $77,667.72
OCTOBER $36,694.11 $39,069.81 $44,894.56 $43,695.30 $84,294.81 $55,999.70
NOVEMBER $40,766.83 $58,845.97 $32,663.33 $58,442.60 $43,348.80 $51,766.51
DECEMBER $39,792.14 $40,132.41 $29,147.95 $41,432.10 $32,698.12 $20,458.33
TOTAL $494,994.53 $627,180.85 $671,069.50 $961,213.29 $660,402.96 $558,865.98 $472,796.16

$35,389

1

$300,000$31,720$876,450

SEMI-DETACHED, DUPLEX, 
MULTI FAMILY

ADDITIONS / REPAIRS / 
PLUMBING

ADDITIONS / REPAIRS / 
PLUMBING

FARM BUILDINGS

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN
SUMMARY OF BUILDING PERMITS TO THE END OF SEPTEMBER 2020

$20,000

$71,550 $271,505

SEMI-DETACHED, DUPLEX, 
MULTI $0

2

1 3 8 3 3

FARM BUILDINGS

1

85

29

$20,000

$0

$4,150,023

$526,250

0 0

19

$1,586,614

2

101

25



  
 

Q3 Activity Report - Development Services Department 
Page 9 of 9 

Attachment No. 4 – Summary of Bylaw Enforcement Complaints, 3rd Quarter

 



 
 

Project No. X2020.002-DPB 
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO:  Planning & Development Committee 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  October 15, 2020 
 
RE: Development Procedures Bylaw Updated – Park Land Dedication Proposals 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 
THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Development Procedures Bylaw Updated, be initiated. 
 

Purpose: 
The purpose of Amendment Bylaw 2500.16 is to introduce requirements and processing procedures 
related to Park Land Dedication proposals submitted to the Regional District in accordance with 
Section 510 of the Local Government Act. 
 
Background: 
Under Section 510 of the Local Government Act, an owner of land being subdivided to create three (3) 
or more parcels must, at the owner's option: 

a) provide, without compensation, park land of an amount and in a location acceptable to the local 
government, or 

b) pay to the municipality or regional district an amount that equals the market value of the land 
that may be required for park land purposes ... 

Importantly, under Section 510(2)(b) of the Act, if an official community plan (OCP) bylaw contains 
policies and designations respecting the location and type of future parks, the local government may 
determine whether the owner must provide land or money. 

All of the Electoral Area Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaws are seen to comprise policies 
respecting the location and type of future parks. 
 
Analysis:  
The purpose of the proposed amendments to the Development Procedures Bylaw are to establish 
clear and identifiable requirements that will facilitate the assessment of Park Land Dedication 
proposals submitted to the Regional District for consideration by the Board. 

This would include, amongst other things, requiring basic information such as a site plan and an 
outline explaining why the land is being proposed for dedication instead of a payment.  When a cash 
in lieu payment is being proposed, that this be accompanied by a “Full Narrative Appraisal” completed 
by an accredited appraiser in accordance with the Regional District Board’s “Park Land Dedication 
Policy” (2019). 

It is further proposed that prior to Board consideration, a Park Land Dedication proposal be 
considered by the applicable Electoral Area Parks & Recreation Commission or, if there is no Parks & 



  
 

Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.11, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

Recreation Commission established, that the applicable Electoral Area Advisory Planning Commission 
(APC) review the proposal and provide a recommendation. 

Administration notes that the way in which the Regional District processes Park Land Dedication 
proposals was raised in recent legal proceedings initiated against the Regional District (0956375 B.C. 
Ltd. v. Okanagan-Similkameen (Regional District), 2020 BCSC 743), with the suggestion being that 
existing processes and requirements were not clear to applicants. 

In addition, the pending introduction of BasicGov software to manage applications received by the 
Development Services Department requires the formalization of procedures for dealing with Park 
Land Dedication proposals. 
 
Alternatives:  

.1 THAT Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Development 
Procedures Bylaw Updated, not be initiated; or 

.2 THAT consideration of Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Development Procedures Bylaw Updated, be deferred pending: 

i) TBD 

 
Respectfully submitted:   
 
_________________________________   
C. Garrish, Planning Manager   
 



 

Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020 
(X2020.002-DPB) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 1 of 4 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2500.16 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2500.16, 2020 
 
 

 
A Bylaw to amend the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen  

Development Procedures Bylaw 2500, 2011 
 
 
The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020.” 

 
2. The "Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Development Procedures Bylaw No. 2500, 

2011” is amended by: 

(i) adding a new Section 1.2.8 under Section 1.0 (Title and Scope) to read as follows: 

.8 a Park Land Dedication proposal under s. 510 of the Local Government Act. 
 

(ii) adding a new Section 3.2.10 under Section 3.0 (General Regulations) to read as 
follows: 

.10 The submission of a Park Land Dedication proposal shall be made and processed 
substantially as outlined in Schedule ‘11’ of the bylaw. 

 
(iii) adding a new Schedule 11 (Park Land Dedication Proposal) following Schedule 10 

(Referral of a Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure Subdivision Application) to 
read as follows: 

 

SC
HE

DU
LE

 

11 
PARK LAND DEDICATION PROPOSALS 

 
This information is meant as a general guide only and is not regarded as the right to 
Board acceptance of a Park Land Dedication approval if the steps indicated are 
followed. 



 

Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020 
(X2020.002-DPB) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 2 of 4 

 

1. Submission Requirements – All Types of Proposals 

.1 Authorisation 

(a) A Park Land Dedication proposal shall be made to the Chief Administrative 
Officer in writing and on the appropriate form, and shall be: 

(i) made by the owner(s) of the land involved or by a person authorized 
by all property owner(s);  

(ii) if a numbered company holds the property, a corporate search shall 
accompany the application illustrating the company directors.  The 
signatory on the application form shall be a company director; and 

(iii) made on the appropriate form designated by the CAO.  

.2 State of Title Certificate 

(a) a copy of the Land Title Office search print, issued not more than thirty 
(30) calendar days prior to the submission date for any parcel of land 
subject to the Park Land Dedication proposal; and 

(b) a copy of all non-financial charges (i.e. covenants, easements and rights-
of-way, etc.) registered on the subject property(s). 

 
2. Submission Requirements – Land Dedication Proposals 

In addition to the requirements of Section 1, a proposal that involves the 
dedication of land shall provide the following: 

.1 Proposed Subdivision Plan 

(a) a proposed subdivision plan prepared by a BC Land Surveyor and drawn 
to scale shall be submitted to the Regional District and include the 
following (as applicable): 

(i) north arrow and scale; 

(ii) dimensions, boundaries and land area of park land dedication area; 

(iii) dimensions, boundaries and land areas of all proposed parcels; 

(iv) location and dimensions of all existing structures; 

(v) location of all existing infrastructure (i.e. water lines, wells, septic 
fields, sanitary sewer & storm drain facilities, etc.);  

(vi) location of existing road accesses; 

(vii) existing covenant areas, easements and right-of-ways (if 
applicable); and 

(viii) all future subdivision phases (if applicable). 

.2 Proposal Summary 

(a) An outline of the lands being proposed for dedication, including: 



 

Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020 
(X2020.002-DPB) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 3 of 4 

(i) an explanation of why the land is being proposed for dedication 
instead of a payment; 

(ii) an explanation of the benefits to the community of the Regional 
District acquiring the land for park land; and 

(iii) an overview of an any previous park land dedication or future 
subdivision phases that may require park land dedication. 

.3 Digital Files  

(a) a digital file of the proposed subdivision plan prepared by a BC Land 
Surveyor shall be submitted to the Regional District in the form of a 
“shape”, “.dwg” or similar Computer-Aided Design (CAD) format. 

 
3. Submission Requirements – Payment (Cash In-lieu) Proposals 

In addition to the requirements of Section 1, a proposal that involves the payment 
of cash in-lieu of land shall provide the following prior to Regional District Board 
consideration: 

.1 Full Narrative Appraisal 

(a) to be completed by an accredited appraiser in accordance with the 
Regional District Board’s “Park Land Dedication Policy” (2019). 

 
4. Processing Procedure 

A Park Land Dedication proposal submitted to the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen (RDOS) will be processed as follows: 

.1 Upon receipt of a proposal, the Regional District will open a file and 
Development Services staff will review the proposal to determine whether it 
is complete and, if incomplete, will request the required information from 
the proponent. 

.2 Development Services staff will evaluate the proposal for compliance with 
relevant Regional District bylaws and policies. Staff may conduct a site visit 
to view the property as part of the evaluation process. 

.3 Development Services staff will refer the proposal to all applicable Regional 
District departments for comment. 

.4 Development Services staff will notify the relevant Area Director(s) of the 
proposal. 

.5 The File Manager will be prepare a technical report to be forwarded for 
consideration to either: 

i) the applicable Electoral Area Parks & Recreation Commission; or 

ii) if there is no Parks & Recreation Commission service area established 
for the lands being subdivided, the applicable Electoral Area Advisory 
Planning Commission (APC). 



 

Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.16, 2020 
(X2020.002-DPB) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 4 of 4 

.6 The proponent will be included as a delegation on the Agenda of the 
applicable commission meeting at which the proposal will be considered and 
will be invited to attend the meeting in order to present their proposal and 
answer any questions from Commission members. 

.7 If a cash-in-lieu payment is recommended by the Commission, 
Administration will require a Full Narrative Appraisal to be submitted for the 
application to proceed. 

.8 The File Manager will then incorporate all referral comments and the Full 
Narrative Appraisal (if applicable) into a technical report to the Board.  

.9 The applicant is invited to attend the Board meeting at which the Park Land 
Dedication Proposal will be considered. 

.10 The Board will consider the technical report and may accept the Park Land 
Dedication Proposal, or may table or refuse the Park Land Dedication 
Proposal. 

.11 Once the Board minutes have been prepared, the applicant will be notified 
in writing of the outcome. 

 

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME on the __ day of ____, 2020. 

ADOPTED on the __ day of ____, 2020. 

 
 
________________________               _______________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



 
 

File No. X2015.100-ZONE 
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO:  Planning and Development Committee 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  October 15, 2020 
 
RE:  Amendment of Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Areas 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area Update Official Community Plan Amendment 
Bylaw be initiated; 

AND THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.17, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw be initiated. 
 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to seek direction from the Board in relation to proposed amendments to 
the Electoral Area Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaws as they relate to Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit (ESDP) Areas. 
 
Background: 
At its meeting of August 6, 2020, the following Director’s Motion was carried by the Regional District 
Board: 

THAT the RDOS Board apply Environmentally sensitive development permits (ESDPs) to only 
Subdivisions and rezonings; and further,  

THAT Staff report back to the Board on the options to make ESDPs more effective at Subdivisions and 
rezonings; and further,  

THAT ESDPs should in no way prevent or discourage residents from firesmarting their properties 
according to the firesmart principles. 

At its meeting of September 3, 2020, the August 6, 2020, Motion was debated and carried by the 
Regional District Board. 
 
Analysis:  
In response to the direction provided by the Board at its meeting of September 3, 2020, draft 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2912 proposes the following amendments to the Electoral Area Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaws: 

• revised policy statements that speak to environmentally sensitive development permits being 
implemented only in relation to subdivision; 

• the introduction of a new guideline related specifically to subdivision design in ESDP Areas; 

• the deletion of “construction of, addition to or alteration of a building or other structure” and the 
“alteration of the land, including grading, removal of vegetation, deposit or moving of soil, 



  
 

File No. X2015.100-ZONE 
Page 2 of 2 

paving, installation of drainage or underground services” as triggers for an environmentally 
sensitive development permit; and 

• the deletion of all non-subdivision related exemptions for environmentally sensitive development 
permits. 

In support of these OCP amendments, it is further proposed to amend the Development Procedures 
Bylaw No. 2500, 2011, in order to remove existing requirements for “Rapid Environmental 
Assessments” (REA) as an application type.  This is due to REA’s being primarily issued in relation to 
building permit applications. 

Finally, it will be proposed at first reading that the Board adopt a new policy that will defer 
enforcement of specific ESDP Area requirements during the transition to the new development 
permit area guidelines.  

Administration is concerned about requiring property owners to submit applications that will be made 
redundant as a result of the proposed amendments contained in Bylaw No. 2912, as well as 
expending resources on enforcement actions in support of guidelines that are to be repealed. 

Administration does not consider that any amendments to the existing ESDP Area Maps schedules to 
the OCP Bylaws is required in order to implement the Board’s direction. 

With regard to the Board direction that “ESDPs should in no way prevent or discourage residents from 
firesmarting their properties according to the firesmart principles”, Administration considers that this 
will be addressed by refocusing ESDPs to apply to subdivisions only. 

Finally, Administration notes that the Electoral Area OCP Bylaws already contain very strong language 
regarding the rezoning of environmentally sensitive lands, specifically, that the Board:  

Will not support the re-designation of land under the OCP or the re-zoning of land under the 
Zoning Bylaw where it is determined that the proposed development is contrary to the ESDP Area 
Guidelines of this Plan and the impact cannot be mitigated to a level acceptable to the Regional 
Board. 

On this basis, Administration considers that policies already exist that elevate the importance of 
ESDPs as a Board consideration at the rezoning stage. 
 
Alternatives: 

.1 THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020, Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.17, 2020, not be initiated. 

.2 THAT initiation of Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020, Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.17, 2020, be 
deferred pending: 

i) TBD 
 
Respectfully submitted:  

____________________________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
 
Attachments:  No. 1 – Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 (annotated) 

No. 2 – Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.17, 2020 (annotated) 



 

Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.17, 2020 
(Project No. X2020.009-ZONE) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 1 of 1 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2500.17 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2500.17, 2020 
 
 

 
A Bylaw to amend the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen  

Development Procedures Bylaw 2500, 2011 
 
 
The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Development Procedures Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.17, 2020.” 

 
2. The "Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Development Procedures Bylaw No. 2500, 

2011” is amended by: 

(i) replacing sub-section 1(c)(1)(b) (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 
Application Requirements) under Schedule 3 (Application for a Development Permit) in 
its entirety with the following: 

b) deleted. 

(ii) replacing sub-section 1(c)(5) (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 
Application Requirements) under Schedule 3 (Application for a Development Permit) in 
its entirety with the following: 

.5 deleted. 
 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 

Commented [CG1]: Proposes to delete reference to “a Rapid 
Environmental Assessment (REA) Report” 

Commented [CG2]: To delete section that address Rapid 
Environmental Assessments, as these relate to building permit 
applications. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 1 of 34 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2912 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2912, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, “H” & “I”  
Official Community Plan Bylaws 

 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area Update Official Community Plan 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020.” 

 
Electoral Area “A” 

2. The “Electoral Area “A” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2450, 2008” is amended by: 

i) replacing sub-section 13.1.2.3 (Policies – General) under Section 13.0 (Natural 
Environment and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.3 Requires that, where a proposed subdivision affects land subject to an 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area, an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) be prepared by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) in 
accordance with the policies outlined at Section 18.2 as well as relevant federal 
and provincial best management guidelines. 

ii) replacing sub-section 13.3.2.2 (Policies) under Section 13.0 (Natural Environment 
and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.2 Requires that land designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area shall be retained in a natural state and not subdivided prior to the 
issuance of an Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) in 
accordance with the guidelines outlined at Section 18.2 of this Plan unless an 
exemption applies. 

iii) replacing sub-section 13.3.2.6 (Policies) under Section 13.0 (Natural Environment 
and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

Commented [CG1]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 

Commented [CG2]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 2 of 34 

.6 Encourages development that avoids impacting important native species, 
habitats, ecosystems or sensitive areas and to retain important ecosystem 
features and functions. Responsiveness to this policy will be a very important 
consideration in the approval of an amendment bylaw application. 

iv) replacing a new sub-section 18.2 (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 
(ESDP) Area) under Section 18.0 (Development Permit Areas) in its entirety with the 
following: 

18.2 Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 

.1 Category 

The Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area is 
designated pursuant to Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act for 
the protection of the natural environment, its ecosystems and biological 
diversity. 

 
.2 Area 

The lands shown as Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area on 
Schedule ‘C’ are designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area. 

 
.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within environmentally sensitive areas 
in order to protect important sensitive ecosystems and biological diversity 
including valuable habitat for endangered species of native, rare vegetation 
or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and secondary habitat.  

 
.4 Background 

The natural environment provides essential habitat and corridors for 
plants, fish, birds and other organisms. It also acts as a natural water 
storage, drainage and purifying system, which can help to protect private 
property from flooding or land loss due to watercourse erosion. 
Furthermore, as concerns over climate change grow, it should be 
recognized that functioning ecosystems are more efficient at consuming 
carbon dioxide as well as carbon storage. Vegetation adjacent to 
watercourses needs to remain in a largely undisturbed state in order to 
maintain a healthy environment and clean water. 

The south Okanagan-Similkameen area is considered one of the most 
ecologically diverse in British Columbia and Canada, and includes sensitive 
ecosystems which support a number of provincially Red and Blue-listed 
species (extirpated, endangered, threatened, and vulnerable) and federally 
listed Species at Risk. The ESDP Area is intended to protect habitat for 

Commented [CG3]: New wording. 

Commented [CG4]: Option for an “Expedited Development 
Permit” has been removed as it is primarily related to building 
permits (was Section 18.2.7). 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 3 of 34 

endangered species of native, rare vegetation or wildlife, and provide 
wildlife corridors and secondary habitat within the Plan Area. 

The ESDP Area is comprised of important habitat areas for wildlife and 
plant communities. Sensitive ecosystems in the area include grasslands, 
riparian areas, old forest, shrub-steppe, broadleaf woodland, coniferous 
woodland, wetlands, shallow soiled rock outcrops and ridges. Specifically, 
BC’s pocket desert, Kruger Mountain, Osoyoos Lake, the oxbows and 
wetlands of Okanagan River, Richter Pass with the natural ridgeline views 
between Highway 3 and Osoyoos Lake. It is the close proximity of these 
diverse habitats that contribute to a wide variety of species, both common 
and rare, that are found in this Electoral Area.  

 
.5 Development requiring a permit 

.1 A development permit is required, except where exempt under Section 
18.2.7 (Exemptions), for development on lands within the ESDP area.  
Where not exempted, development requiring a development permit 
includes: 

a) subdivision. 
 

.6 Guidelines 

.1 A Development Permit is required for development within an ESDP 
Area, and shall be in accordance with the following guidelines: 

a) An Environmental Assessment (EA) Report, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Regional District’s 
Development Procedures Bylaw, must be submitted to the 
Regional District in respect of the proposed development by a 
qualified environmental professional (QEP) that is a Registered 
Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) or team that shall 
include a RPBio under contract to the development applicant, and 
shall include: 

i) An Ecological Assessment Phase including: 

.1 background information;  

.2 an ecological assessment; 

.3 listing of rare and endangered species; and 

.4 stratification and rating of Environmentally Sensitive 
Areas (ESAs). 

ii) An Impact Assessment and Mitigation Phase including: 

.1 description of proposed development;  

.2 assessment of potential impacts; 

Commented [CG5]: The following references have been 
removed: 

b) the construction of, addition to or alteration of a building or 
other structure; and 
c) alteration of the land, including grading, removal of vegetation, 
deposit or moving of soil, paving, installation of drainage or 
underground services  



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 4 of 34 

.3 short and long term impacts; 

.4 cumulative and residual impacts; 

.5 avoidance of ESAs; 

.6 mitigation and compensation; 

.7 security requirements; 

.8 monitoring reports; 

.9 accountability; and 

.10 monitoring plan. 

b) Subdivision should be planned, designed and implemented to 
protect environmentally sensitive areas. Habitats that provide for 
at-risk species, at-risk ecological communities and keystone 
species should be given priority for protection. 

c) Development should be planned away from native trees and trees 
containing active nest sites or cavities. If removal of native trees 
cannot be avoided, mitigation should include restoration and 
replanting with equivalent native trees. 

d) Habitat connectivity and the retention of connectivity corridors 
between sensitive ecosystems should be preserved. Wildlife 
crossings should be designed to protect continuity of wildlife 
corridors where these are interrupted by roadways. 

e) Monitoring reports may be required to be submitted to the 
Regional District following the completion of a development in 
order to confirm the conditions of a development permit have 
been met. 

f) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures 
identified in an EA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect 
of development as terms and conditions of the development 
permit. 

.2 If an area of land is subject to additional Development Permit Area 
designations under Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, the 
Regional District requires that a single development permit application 
that combines the requirements of each Development Permit Area be 
submitted. The application will be assessed in accordance with the 
individual development permit guidelines for each applicable 
Development Permit Area under this bylaw and, if approved, issued 
under a combined development permit. 

 

Commented [CG6]: New Guideline specific to subdivision 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 5 of 34 

.7 Exemptions 

A development permit is not required for development within land in the 
ESDP area for: 

.1 subdivisions that propose to: 

a) consolidate existing parcels, including the consolidation of parts of 
a closed road to an existing parcel; or 

b) alter parcel lines between two or more parcels where no 
additional parcels are created upon completion of the alteration. 

 
Electoral Area “C” 

3. The “Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008” is amended by: 

i) replacing sub-section 16.1.2.3 (Policies – General) under Section 16.0 (Natural 
Environment and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.3 Requires that, where a proposed subdivision affects land subject to an 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area, an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) be prepared by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) in 
accordance with the policies outlined at Section 21.2 as well as relevant federal 
and provincial best management guidelines. 

 
ii) replacing sub-section 16.3.2.2 (Policies) under Section 16.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.2 Requires that land designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area shall be retained in a natural state and not subdivided prior to the 
issuance of an Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) in 
accordance with the guidelines outlined at Section 21.2 of this Plan unless an 
exemption applies. 

 
iii) replacing sub-section 16.3.2.6 (Policies) under Section 16.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.6 Encourages development that avoids impacting important native species, 
habitats, ecosystems or sensitive areas and to retain important ecosystem 
features and functions. Responsiveness to this policy will be a very important 
consideration in the approval of an amendment bylaw application. 

 
iv) replacing a new sub-section 21.2 (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 

(ESDP) Area) under Section 21.0 (Development Permit Areas) in its entirety with the 
following: 

Commented [CG7]: All non-subdivision related exemptions have 
been removed. 

Commented [CG8]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 

Commented [CG9]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 

Commented [CG10]: New wording. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 6 of 34 

21.2 Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 

.1 Category 

The Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area is 
designated pursuant to Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act for 
the protection of the natural environment, its ecosystems and biological 
diversity. 

 
.2 Area 

The lands shown as Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area on 
Schedule ‘C’ are designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area. 

 
.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within environmentally sensitive areas 
in order to protect important sensitive ecosystems and biological diversity 
including valuable habitat for endangered species of native, rare vegetation 
or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and secondary habitat.  

 
.4 Background 

The natural environment provides essential habitat and corridors for 
plants, fish, birds and other organisms. It also acts as a natural water 
storage, drainage and purifying system, which can help to protect private 
property from flooding or land loss due to watercourse erosion. 
Furthermore, as concerns over climate change grow, it should be 
recognized that functioning ecosystems are more efficient at consuming 
carbon dioxide as well as carbon storage. Vegetation adjacent to 
watercourses needs to remain in a largely undisturbed state in order to 
maintain a healthy environment and clean water. 

The south Okanagan-Similkameen area is considered one of the most 
ecologically diverse in British Columbia and Canada, and includes sensitive 
ecosystems which support a number of provincially Red and Blue-listed 
species (extirpated, endangered, threatened, and vulnerable) and federally 
listed Species at Risk. The ESDP Area is intended to protect habitat for 
endangered species of native, rare vegetation or wildlife, and provide 
wildlife corridors and secondary habitat within the Plan Area. 

The ESDP Area is comprised of important habitat areas for wildlife and 
plant communities. Sensitive ecosystems in the area include grasslands, 
riparian areas, old forest, shrub-steppe, broadleaf woodland, coniferous 
woodland, wetlands, shallow soiled rock outcrops and ridges. It is the close 
proximity of these diverse habitats that contribute to a wide variety of 
species, both common and rare, that are found in this Electoral Area.  

Commented [CG11]: Option for an “Expedited Development 
Permit” has been removed as it is primarily related to building 
permits (was Section 21.2.7). 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 7 of 34 

 
.5 Development requiring a permit 

.1 A development permit is required, except where exempt under Section 
21.2.7 (Exemptions), for development on lands within the ESDP area.  
Where not exempted, development requiring a development permit 
includes: 

a) subdivision. 
 

.6 Guidelines 

.1 A Development Permit is required for development within an ESDP 
Area, and shall be in accordance with the following guidelines: 

a) An Environmental Assessment (EA) Report, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Regional District’s 
Development Procedures Bylaw, must be submitted to the 
Regional District in respect of the proposed development by a 
qualified environmental professional (QEP) that is a Registered 
Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) or team that shall 
include a RPBio under contract to the development applicant, and 
shall include: 

i)  An Ecological Assessment Phase including: 

.1 background information;  

.2 an ecological assessment; 

.3 listing of rare and endangered species; and 

.4 stratification and rating of Environmentally Sensitive 
Areas (ESAs). 

ii)  An Impact Assessment and Mitigation Phase including: 

.1 description of proposed development;  

.2 assessment of potential impacts; 

.3 short and long term impacts; 

.4 cumulative and residual impacts; 

.5 avoidance of ESAs; 

.6 mitigation and compensation; 

.7 security requirements; 

.8 monitoring reports; 

.9 accountability; and 

.10 monitoring plan. 

Commented [CG12]: The following references have been 
removed: 

b) the construction of, addition to or alteration of a building or 
other structure; and 

c) alteration of the land, including grading, removal of 
vegetation, deposit or moving of soil, paving, installation of 
drainage or underground services. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 8 of 34 

b) Subdivision should be planned, designed and implemented to 
protect environmentally sensitive areas. Habitats that provide for 
at-risk species, at-risk ecological communities and keystone 
species should be given priority for protection. 

c) Development should be planned away from native trees and trees 
containing active nest sites or cavities. If removal of native trees 
cannot be avoided, mitigation should include restoration and 
replanting with equivalent native trees. 

d) Habitat connectivity and the retention of connectivity corridors 
between sensitive ecosystems should be preserved. Wildlife 
crossings should be designed to protect continuity of wildlife 
corridors where these are interrupted by roadways. 

e) Monitoring reports may be required to be submitted to the 
Regional District following the completion of a development in 
order to confirm the conditions of a development permit have 
been met. 

f) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures 
identified in an EA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect 
of development as terms and conditions of the development 
permit. 

.3 If an area of land is subject to additional Development Permit Area 
designations under Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, the 
Regional District requires that a single development permit application 
that combines the requirements of each Development Permit Area be 
submitted. The application will be assessed in accordance with the 
individual development permit guidelines for each applicable 
Development Permit Area under this bylaw and, if approved, issued 
under a combined development permit. 

 
.7 Exemptions 

A development permit is not required for development within land in the 
ESDP area for: 

.1 subdivisions that propose to: 

a) consolidate existing parcels, including the consolidation of parts of 
a closed road to an existing parcel; or 

b) alter parcel lines between two or more parcels where no 
additional parcels are created upon completion of the alteration. 

 
Electoral Area “D” 

4. The “Electoral Area “D” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2603, 2013” is amended by: 

Commented [CG13]: New Guideline specific to subdivision. 

Commented [CG14]: All non-subdivision related exemptions 
have been removed. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 9 of 34 

i) replacing sub-section 17.1.2.3 (Policies – General) under Section 17.0 (Natural 
Environment and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.3 Requires that, where a proposed subdivision affects land subject to an 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area, an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) be prepared by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) in 
accordance with the policies outlined at Section 24.2 as well as relevant federal 
and provincial best management guidelines. 

 
ii) replacing sub-section 17.3.2.2 (Policies) under Section 17.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.2 Requires that land designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area shall be retained in a natural state and not subdivided prior to the 
issuance of an Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) in 
accordance with the guidelines outlined at Section 24.2 of this Plan unless an 
exemption applies. 

 
iii) replacing sub-section 17.3.2.6 (Policies) under Section 17.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.6 Encourages development that avoids impacting important native species, 
habitats, ecosystems or sensitive areas and to retain important ecosystem 
features and functions. Responsiveness to this policy will be a very important 
consideration in the approval of an amendment bylaw application. 

 
v) replacing a new sub-section 24.2 (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 

(ESDP) Area) under Section 24.0 (Development Permit Areas) in its entirety with the 
following: 

24.2 Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 

.1 Category 

The Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area is 
designated pursuant to Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act for 
the protection of the natural environment, its ecosystems and biological 
diversity. 

 
.2 Area 

The lands shown as Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area on 
Schedule ‘C’ are designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area. 

 
.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within environmentally sensitive areas 
in order to protect important sensitive ecosystems and biological diversity 

Commented [CG15]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 

Commented [CG16]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 

Commented [CG17]: New wording. 

Commented [CG18]: Option for an “Expedited Development 
Permit” has been removed as it is primarily related to building 
permits (was Section 21.2.7). 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 10 of 34 

including valuable habitat for endangered species of native, rare vegetation 
or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and secondary habitat.  

 
.4 Background 

The natural environment provides essential habitat and corridors for 
plants, fish, birds and other organisms. It also acts as a natural water 
storage, drainage and purifying system, which can help to protect private 
property from flooding or land loss due to watercourse erosion. 
Furthermore, as concerns over climate change grow, it should be 
recognized that functioning ecosystems are more efficient at consuming 
carbon dioxide as well as carbon storage. Vegetation adjacent to 
watercourses needs to remain in a largely undisturbed state in order to 
maintain a healthy environment and clean water. 

The south Okanagan-Similkameen area is considered one of the most 
ecologically diverse in British Columbia and Canada, and includes sensitive 
ecosystems which support a number of provincially Red and Blue-listed 
species (extirpated, endangered, threatened, and vulnerable) and federally 
listed Species at Risk. The ESDP Area is intended to protect habitat for 
endangered species of native, rare vegetation or wildlife, and provide 
wildlife corridors and secondary habitat within the Plan Area. 

The ESDP Area is comprised of important habitat areas for wildlife and 
plant communities. Sensitive ecosystems in the area include grasslands, 
riparian areas, old forest, shrub-steppe, broadleaf woodland, coniferous 
woodland, wetlands, shallow soiled rock outcrops and ridges. It is the close 
proximity of these diverse habitats that contribute to a wide variety of 
species, both common and rare, that are found in this Electoral Area.  

 
.5 Development requiring a permit 

.1 A development permit is required, except where exempt under Section 
24.2.7 (Exemptions), for development on lands within the ESDP area.  
Where not exempted, development requiring a development permit 
includes: 

a) subdivision. 
 

.6 Guidelines 

.1 A Development Permit is required for development within an ESDP 
Area, and shall be in accordance with the following guidelines: 

a) An Environmental Assessment (EA) Report, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Regional District’s 
Development Procedures Bylaw, must be submitted to the 
Regional District in respect of the proposed development by a 

Commented [CG19]: The following references have been 
removed: 

d) the construction of, addition to or alteration of a building or 
other structure; and 

e) alteration of the land, including grading, removal of 
vegetation, deposit or moving of soil, paving, installation of 
drainage or underground services. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 11 of 34 

qualified environmental professional (QEP) that is a Registered 
Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) or team that shall 
include a RPBio under contract to the development applicant, and 
shall include: 

i) An Ecological Assessment Phase including: 

.1 background information;  

.2 an ecological assessment; 

.3 listing of rare and endangered species; and 

.4 stratification and rating of Environmentally Sensitive 
Areas (ESAs). 

ii) An Impact Assessment and Mitigation Phase including: 

.1 description of proposed development;  

.2 assessment of potential impacts; 

.3 short and long term impacts; 

.4 cumulative and residual impacts; 

.5 avoidance of ESAs; 

.6 mitigation and compensation; 

.7 security requirements; 

.8 monitoring reports; 

.9 accountability; and 

.10 monitoring plan. 

b) Subdivision should be planned, designed and implemented to 
protect environmentally sensitive areas. Habitats that provide for 
at-risk species, at-risk ecological communities and keystone 
species should be given priority for protection. 

c) Development should be planned away from native trees and trees 
containing active nest sites or cavities. If removal of native trees 
cannot be avoided, mitigation should include restoration and 
replanting with equivalent native trees. 

d) Habitat connectivity and the retention of connectivity corridors 
between sensitive ecosystems should be preserved. Wildlife 
crossings should be designed to protect continuity of wildlife 
corridors where these are interrupted by roadways. 

e) Monitoring reports may be required to be submitted to the 
Regional District following the completion of a development in 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 12 of 34 

order to confirm the conditions of a development permit have 
been met. 

f) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures 
identified in an EA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect 
of development as terms and conditions of the development 
permit. 

.4 If an area of land is subject to additional Development Permit Area 
designations under Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, the 
Regional District requires that a single development permit application 
that combines the requirements of each Development Permit Area be 
submitted. The application will be assessed in accordance with the 
individual development permit guidelines for each applicable 
Development Permit Area under this bylaw and, if approved, issued 
under a combined development permit. 

 
.7 Exemptions 

A development permit is not required for development within land in the 
ESDP area for: 

.1 subdivisions that propose to: 

a) consolidate existing parcels, including the consolidation of parts of 
a closed road to an existing parcel; or 

b) alter parcel lines between two or more parcels where no 
additional parcels are created upon completion of the alteration. 

 
Electoral Area “E” 

5. The “Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2458, 2008” is amended by: 

i) replacing sub-section 18.1.2.3 (Policies – General) under Section 18.0 (Natural 
Environment and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.3 Requires that, where a proposed subdivision affects land subject to an 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area, an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) be prepared by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) in 
accordance with the policies outlined at Section 23.2 as well as relevant federal 
and provincial best management guidelines. 

 
iv) replacing sub-section 18.3.2.2 (Policies) under Section 18.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.2 Requires that land designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area shall be retained in a natural state and not subdivided prior to the 
issuance of an Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) in 

Commented [20]:  

Commented [CG21]: All non-subdivision related exemptions 
have been removed. 

Commented [CG22]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 13 of 34 

accordance with the guidelines outlined at Section 23.2 of this Plan unless an 
exemption applies. 

 
v) replacing sub-section 18.3.2.6 (Policies) under Section 18.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.6 Encourages development that avoids impacting important native species, 
habitats, ecosystems or sensitive areas and to retain important ecosystem 
features and functions. Responsiveness to this policy will be a very important 
consideration in the approval of an amendment bylaw application. 

 
vi) replacing a new sub-section 23.2 (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 

(ESDP) Area) under Section 23.0 (Development Permit Areas) in its entirety with the 
following: 

23.2 Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 

.1 Category 

The Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area is 
designated pursuant to Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act for 
the protection of the natural environment, its ecosystems and biological 
diversity. 

 
.2 Area 

The lands shown as Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area on 
Schedule ‘C’ are designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area. 

 
.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within environmentally sensitive areas 
in order to protect important sensitive ecosystems and biological diversity 
including valuable habitat for endangered species of native, rare vegetation 
or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and secondary habitat.  

 
.4 Background 

The natural environment provides essential habitat and corridors for 
plants, fish, birds and other organisms. It also acts as a natural water 
storage, drainage and purifying system, which can help to protect private 
property from flooding or land loss due to watercourse erosion. 
Furthermore, as concerns over climate change grow, it should be 
recognized that functioning ecosystems are more efficient at consuming 
carbon dioxide as well as carbon storage. Vegetation adjacent to 
watercourses needs to remain in a largely undisturbed state in order to 
maintain a healthy environment and clean water. 

Commented [CG23]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 

Commented [CG24]: New wording. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 14 of 34 

The south Okanagan-Similkameen area is considered one of the most 
ecologically diverse in British Columbia and Canada, and includes sensitive 
ecosystems which support a number of provincially Red and Blue-listed 
species (extirpated, endangered, threatened, and vulnerable) and federally 
listed Species at Risk. The ESDP Area is intended to protect habitat for 
endangered species of native, rare vegetation or wildlife, and provide 
wildlife corridors and secondary habitat within the Plan Area. 

The ESDP Area is comprised of important habitat areas for wildlife and 
plant communities. Sensitive ecosystems in the area include grasslands, 
riparian areas, old forest, shrub-steppe, broadleaf woodland, coniferous 
woodland, wetlands, shallow soiled rock outcrops and ridges. It is the close 
proximity of these diverse habitats that contribute to a wide variety of 
species, both common and rare, that are found in this Electoral Area.  

 
.5 Development requiring a permit 

.1 A development permit is required, except where exempt under Section 
23.2.7 (Exemptions), for development on lands within the ESDP area.  
Where not exempted, development requiring a development permit 
includes: 

a) subdivision. 
 

.6 Guidelines 

.1 A Development Permit is required for development within an ESDP 
Area, and shall be in accordance with the following guidelines: 

a) An Environmental Assessment (EA) Report, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Regional District’s 
Development Procedures Bylaw, must be submitted to the 
Regional District in respect of the proposed development by a 
qualified environmental professional (QEP) that is a Registered 
Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) or team that shall 
include a RPBio under contract to the development applicant, and 
shall include: 

i) An Ecological Assessment Phase including: 

.1 background information;  

.2 an ecological assessment; 

.3 listing of rare and endangered species; and 

.4 stratification and rating of Environmentally Sensitive 
Areas (ESAs). 

ii) An Impact Assessment and Mitigation Phase including: 

Commented [CG25]: Option for an “Expedited Development 
Permit” has been removed as it is primarily related to building 
permits (was Section 21.2.7). 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 15 of 34 

.1 description of proposed development;  

.2 assessment of potential impacts; 

.3 short and long term impacts; 

.4 cumulative and residual impacts; 

.5 avoidance of ESAs; 

.6 mitigation and compensation; 

.7 security requirements; 

.8 monitoring reports; 

.9 accountability; and 

.10 monitoring plan. 

b) Subdivision should be planned, designed and implemented to 
protect environmentally sensitive areas. Habitats that provide for 
at-risk species, at-risk ecological communities and keystone 
species should be given priority for protection. 

c) Development should be planned away from native trees and trees 
containing active nest sites or cavities. If removal of native trees 
cannot be avoided, mitigation should include restoration and 
replanting with equivalent native trees. 

d) Habitat connectivity and the retention of connectivity corridors 
between sensitive ecosystems should be preserved. Wildlife 
crossings should be designed to protect continuity of wildlife 
corridors where these are interrupted by roadways. 

e) Monitoring reports may be required to be submitted to the 
Regional District following the completion of a development in 
order to confirm the conditions of a development permit have 
been met. 

f) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures 
identified in an EA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect 
of development as terms and conditions of the development 
permit. 

.5 If an area of land is subject to additional Development Permit Area 
designations under Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, the 
Regional District requires that a single development permit application 
that combines the requirements of each Development Permit Area be 
submitted. The application will be assessed in accordance with the 
individual development permit guidelines for each applicable 
Development Permit Area under this bylaw and, if approved, issued 
under a combined development permit. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 16 of 34 

 
.7 Exemptions 

A development permit is not required for development within land in the 
ESDP area for: 

.1 subdivisions that propose to: 

a) consolidate existing parcels, including the consolidation of parts of 
a closed road to an existing parcel; or 

b) alter parcel lines between two or more parcels where no 
additional parcels are created upon completion of the alteration. 

 
Electoral Area “F” 

6. The “Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2790, 2018” is amended by: 

i) replacing sub-section 16.1.2.3 (Policies – General) under Section 16.0 (Natural 
Environment and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.3 Requires that, where a proposed subdivision affects land subject to an 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area, an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) be prepared by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) in 
accordance with the policies outlined at Section 23.2 as well as relevant federal 
and provincial best management guidelines. 

 
ii) replacing sub-section 16.3.2.2 (Policies) under Section 16.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.2 Requires that land designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area shall be retained in a natural state and not subdivided prior to the 
issuance of an Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) in 
accordance with the guidelines outlined at Section 23.2 of this Plan unless an 
exemption applies. 

 
iii) replacing sub-section 16.3.2.6 (Policies) under Section 16.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.6 Encourages development that avoids impacting important native species, 
habitats, ecosystems or sensitive areas and to retain important ecosystem 
features and functions. Responsiveness to this policy will be a very important 
consideration in the approval of an amendment bylaw application. 

 
iv) replacing a new sub-section 23.2 (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 

(ESDP) Area) under Section 23.0 (Development Permit Areas) in its entirety with the 
following: 

Commented [CG26]: The following references have been 
removed: 

f) the construction of, addition to or alteration of a building or 
other structure; and 

g) alteration of the land, including grading, removal of 
vegetation, deposit or moving of soil, paving, installation of 
drainage or underground services. 

Commented [27]:  

Commented [CG28]: All non-subdivision related exemptions 
have been removed. 

Commented [CG29]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 17 of 34 

23.2 Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 

.1 Category 

The Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area is 
designated pursuant to Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act for 
the protection of the natural environment, its ecosystems and biological 
diversity. 

 
.2 Area 

The lands shown as Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area on 
Schedule ‘H’ are designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area. 

 
.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within environmentally sensitive areas 
in order to protect important sensitive ecosystems and biological diversity 
including valuable habitat for endangered species of native, rare vegetation 
or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and secondary habitat.  

 
.4 Background 

The natural environment provides essential habitat and corridors for 
plants, fish, birds and other organisms. It also acts as a natural water 
storage, drainage and purifying system, which can help to protect private 
property from flooding or land loss due to watercourse erosion. 
Furthermore, as concerns over climate change grow, it should be 
recognized that functioning ecosystems are more efficient at consuming 
carbon dioxide as well as carbon storage. Vegetation adjacent to 
watercourses needs to remain in a largely undisturbed state in order to 
maintain a healthy environment and clean water. 

The south Okanagan-Similkameen area is considered one of the most 
ecologically diverse in British Columbia and Canada, and includes sensitive 
ecosystems which support a number of provincially Red and Blue-listed 
species (extirpated, endangered, threatened, and vulnerable) and federally 
listed Species at Risk. The ESDP Area is intended to protect habitat for 
endangered species of native, rare vegetation or wildlife, and provide 
wildlife corridors and secondary habitat within the Plan Area. 

The ESDP Area is comprised of important habitat areas for wildlife and 
plant communities. Sensitive ecosystems in the area include grasslands, 
riparian areas, old forest, shrub-steppe, broadleaf woodland, coniferous 
woodland, wetlands, shallow soiled rock outcrops and ridges. It is the close 
proximity of these diverse habitats that contribute to a wide variety of 
species, both common and rare, that are found in this Electoral Area.  

Commented [CG30]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 18 of 34 

 
.5 Development requiring a permit 

.1 A development permit is required, except where exempt under Section 
23.2.7 (Exemptions), for development on lands within the ESDP area.  
Where not exempted, development requiring a development permit 
includes: 

b) subdivision. 
 

.6 Guidelines 

.1 A Development Permit is required for development within an ESDP 
Area, and shall be in accordance with the following guidelines: 

a) An Environmental Assessment (EA) Report, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Regional District’s 
Development Procedures Bylaw, must be submitted to the 
Regional District in respect of the proposed development by a 
qualified environmental professional (QEP) that is a Registered 
Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) or team that shall 
include a RPBio under contract to the development applicant, and 
shall include: 

i)  An Ecological Assessment Phase including: 

.1 background information;  

.2 an ecological assessment; 

.3 listing of rare and endangered species; and 

.4 stratification and rating of Environmentally Sensitive 
Areas (ESAs). 

ii)  An Impact Assessment and Mitigation Phase including: 

.1 description of proposed development;  

.2 assessment of potential impacts; 

.3 short and long term impacts; 

.4 cumulative and residual impacts; 

.5 avoidance of ESAs; 

.6 mitigation and compensation; 

.7 security requirements; 

.8 monitoring reports; 

.9 accountability; and 

.10 monitoring plan. 

Commented [CG31]: New wording. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 19 of 34 

b) Subdivision should be planned, designed and implemented to 
protect environmentally sensitive areas. Habitats that provide for 
at-risk species, at-risk ecological communities and keystone 
species should be given priority for protection. 

c) Development should be planned away from native trees and trees 
containing active nest sites or cavities. If removal of native trees 
cannot be avoided, mitigation should include restoration and 
replanting with equivalent native trees. 

d) Habitat connectivity and the retention of connectivity corridors 
between sensitive ecosystems should be preserved. Wildlife 
crossings should be designed to protect continuity of wildlife 
corridors where these are interrupted by roadways. 

e) Monitoring reports may be required to be submitted to the 
Regional District following the completion of a development in 
order to confirm the conditions of a development permit have 
been met. 

f) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures 
identified in an EA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect 
of development as terms and conditions of the development 
permit. 

.6 If an area of land is subject to additional Development Permit Area 
designations under Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, the 
Regional District requires that a single development permit application 
that combines the requirements of each Development Permit Area be 
submitted. The application will be assessed in accordance with the 
individual development permit guidelines for each applicable 
Development Permit Area under this bylaw and, if approved, issued 
under a combined development permit. 

 
.7 Exemptions 

A development permit is not required for development within land in the 
ESDP area for: 

.1 subdivisions that propose to: 

a) consolidate existing parcels, including the consolidation of parts of 
a closed road to an existing parcel; or 

b) alter parcel lines between two or more parcels where no 
additional parcels are created upon completion of the alteration. 

 
Electoral Area “H” 

7. The “Electoral Area “H” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2497, 2012” is amended by: 

Commented [CG32]: Option for an “Expedited Development 
Permit” has been removed as it is primarily related to building 
permits (was Section 21.2.7). 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 20 of 34 

i) replacing Section 17.0 (Environment & Conservation) in its entirety with the 
following: 

17.0 ENVIRONMENT & CONSERVATION 

17.1 Background 

Environmental quality is an important component of the community vision, 
and is tied to the quality of life and lifestyle options valued by local 
residents, property owners and visitors.  The natural attributes of the Plan 
area, however, are seen to extend beyond the boundaries of Electoral Area 
“H”, and the Regional District considers that environmental issues in the 
Similkameen Valley should be addressed from a broad regional 
perspective.  

The Similkameen Valley is situated in the rain shadow of the Coast and 
Cascade Mountains, with the western part of the valley (which is seen to 
include Electoral Area “H”) possessing a cooler, moister climate from that 
found in the dry south-eastern part of the valley.  The whole of the Valley is 
seen to belong to the Southern Interior “Ecoprovince”, which has the 
greatest diversity of birds in the interior of British Columbia and the most 
breeding species of all the Ecoprovinces in the province.  The low elevation 
areas of the Similkameen Valley are also home to the Bunchgrass (BG), 
Ponderosa Pine (PP), and, Interior Douglas Fir (IDF) zones.  These three 
zones are comparatively rare within the province, and have been identified 
as areas of conservation concern. 

While the Bunchgrass zone is predominantly in the valley bottom from 
Keremeos southward, the Interior Douglas Fir (very dry hot) zone follows 
the major low elevation drainages including the Tulameen and the 
Similkameen rivers.  A substantial proportion of the Ponderosa Pine zone 
falls in the area around the Town of Princeton. 

Many of the Valley’s ecosystems are sensitive to human disturbance, and 
high proportions are designated by the Provincial and or Federal 
governments as being “at risk”.  Alteration and the loss of ecosystems have 
historically occurred due to a variety of activities such as livestock farming, 
commercial orchard and field crop development, and more recently the 
focus has been on vineyard/winery and rural ranchette or larger parcel 
home developments. 

The Similkameen River as a whole system continues to support many intact 
remaining natural attributes such as riparian deciduous forests, dense 
thickets, meadows and wetlands associated with its floodplain. The 
cottonwood forests on the valley floor are a notable feature of the 
landscape. Equally significant are the high mountains with deep dry valleys, 
the surrounding sensitive upland ecosystems of sagebrush grasslands, 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 21 of 34 

rugged slopes, old growth open Ponderosa Pine and Interior Douglas Fir 
forests. 

For the purpose of protecting environmentally sensitive areas (ESAs), which 
include not only riparian areas, but shrub-steppe, forested lands, rugged 
terrain and aquatic areas, the Regional District undertook Sensitive 
Ecosystem Inventory (SEI) mapping around the communities of Eastgate, 
Otter Lake and Chain Lakes. 

As a local government listed under Section 3 of the Riparian Areas 
Protection Regulation, the Regional District has implemented a 
Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area designation in order to 
protect riparian areas; being lands within 30 metres of the high water mark 
of streams and ravines including lakes, watercourses and wetlands, and as 
described further at Section 22.3 of this bylaw. 

For maps of development permit areas and other environmentally sensitive 
areas in the Plan Area see Schedule ‘G’ (Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit Area and Other Important Ecosystem Area) and 
Schedule ‘H’ (Watercourse Development Permit Area). 

 
17.1.1 Objectives - General 

.1 Maintain and sustain a healthy environment by encouraging the 
enhancement of ecological systems and by protecting biodiversity. 

.2 Integrate measures to sustain environmental quality and consider 
impacts on the environment in future land use decisions. 

.3 Work with property owners and agents to inform and guide the design 
of development in a way that is sensitive to important landscape 
features such as watercourses, hillsides and sensitive ecosystems. 

.4 Support efforts to protect source water quality and quality today and 
for future generations. 

 
17.1.2 Policies - General 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Recognizes the importance of containing and controlling noxious 
weeds through the continued endorsement of weed prevention and 
control initiatives. 

.2 Recognizes and encourages the educational and eco-tourism 
contribution toward protection of the community’s natural 
environment made by environmental organizations, and supports 
accommodating these uses with the necessary changes to the land use 
designations so long as the general intent of policies in this Plan are 
met.  



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 22 of 34 

.3 Requires that, where a proposed subdivision affects land subject to an 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area, an 
Environmental Assessment (EA) be prepared by a Qualified 
Environmental Professional (QEP) in accordance with the policies 
outlined at Section 22.2 as well as relevant federal and provincial best 
management guidelines. 

.4 Requires that EA reports prepared by QEPs be undertaken in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Development Procedures 
Bylaw. 

.5 Supports the incorporation of traditional ecological knowledge in the 
stewardship of important foreshore, riparian, and terrestrial 
ecosystems, and will seek to work with the Upper Similkameen Indian 
Band and Lower Similkameen Indian Band to incorporate it where 
feasible, practical and appropriate. 

 
17.2 Riparian and Foreshore Areas 

Riparian areas are places under the influence of water. They surround and 
contain wetlands, ponds, permanent and intermittent creeks, springs, wet 
meadows, etc.  The Plan Area includes several lakes such as Missezula, 
Alison, Chain, Link, Osprey and Thirsk Lakes and numerous smaller lakes. 
The Plan Area also includes the Similkameen River and various smaller 
streams. 

Activities in riparian areas have potential to impact water quality, affect 
erosion, damage fish habitat and impact habitat for species at risk. 
Agriculture impacts are significant and range from infilling to cultivation 
and livestock use.  

Because riparian and foreshore areas are so strongly connected to both 
habitats for species at risk and water quality through groundwater/surface 
water, it is vital that land use practices protect riparian areas by retaining 
and restoring native species, and ecosystems. Natural riparian areas 
provide significant ecosystems benefits that costly water treatment and 
recovery planning for species at risk cannot replace. 

Generally land above the high water mark (natural boundary) is privately 
held and land below the high water mark belongs to the Crown and forms 
part of the water resource in the province. Land within 30.0 metres of the 
high water mark of a stream or a ravine is identified as being within a 
Watercourse Development Permit Area and any development within this 
area may require a Development Permit (see Section 22.3). Other activities 
that are subject to regulation include dock construction and modification, 
mooring buoy installation, and shoreline modifications (including sand, soil, 
vegetation removal, disturbance, and addition). 

 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 23 of 34 

17.2.1 Objectives 

.1 Foster community awareness of the importance and sensitivity of the 
riparian and foreshore environments in the Plan Area. 

.2 Protect aquatic habitat areas and associated environmentally 
sensitive areas from negative impacts of development as identified in 
Schedule ‘G’ (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area 
and Other Important Ecosystem Area) and Schedule ‘H’ (Watercourse 
Development Permit Area).  

.3 Improve and better manage waterfront public access along major 
lake shorelines, while limiting the overall number of public access 
points. 

.4 Minimize and avoid development in high hazard soil instability areas 
along lake foreshore and riparian areas. 

.5 Encourage high quality lakeshore development that maintains the 
natural character of all lakes and sustains the sensitive riparian and 
foreshore ecosystems. 

.6 Conserve, protect and enhance surface, ground and aquifer water 
sources in cooperation with provincial ministries, local water purveyors 
and landowners. 

.7 Identify, manage and protect significant watercourses to maintain their 
natural habitat and environmental quality. 

 
17.2.2 Policies 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Recognises riparian values and, in accordance with the provincial 
Riparian Areas Protection Regulation, has designated land within 30.0 
metres of the high water mark of a stream or a ravine as a 
development permit area.  Land designated as a Watercourse 
Development Permit Area shall be developed according to the 
guidelines outlined in Section 22.3 (Watercourse Development 
Permit Area) of this Plan unless an exemption applies.  The 
Watercourse Development Permit Area includes the lands within 
30.0 metres of the high water mark of a stream or ravine identified 
on Schedule ‘H’. 

.2 Encourages provincial and federal water and resource managers to 
protect and enhance water quality, base flows, natural drainage 
patterns, and continuous riparian corridors of sufficient width to 
accommodate the dynamic nature of the hydrologic system, to avoid 
and reduce flood damage, to avoid the need for channel stabilization, 
to avoid underground drainage systems, to avoid groundwater 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 24 of 34 

interruption, and to protect and sustain aquatic biota, important fish 
populations and habitats. 

.3 Supports efforts that maintain appropriate riparian buffers, 
determined by qualified professionals that take into account 
processes of natural erosion, deposition and movement of natural 
stream boundaries, floodplain provisions and sensitive terrestrial 
habitats 

.4 Encourages and supports the analysis of ground water hydrology in 
areas with identified aquifers, and requires environmental 
assessments in advance of considering zoning amendments for uses 
such as heavy industrial, mining, fuel storage and/or sewage or waste 
containment. 

.5 Discourages development that will have a negative environmental 
impact on lake riparian and foreshore areas. 

.6 Encourages the subdivision approving officer to ensure that public 
access to lakes is provided pursuant to Section 75 of the Land Title 
Act. 

.7 Supports the use of Section 86 of the Land Title Act and Section 56 of the 
Community Charter to regulate development in a floodplain and provide 
for the safe use of the land for the intended purpose. 

 
17.3 Terrestrial Areas  

Terrestrial areas are simply described as the areas upland or beyond water. 
They include areas with grassland and shrub-steppe, sparsely vegetated, 
broadleaf woodlands, coniferous woodlands and old forest ecosystems. 
Many at risk species are found in terrestrial ecosystems in the Plan Area. 

Like foreshore and riparian areas, terrestrial areas also contain areas 
sensitive to development and land use. Of the various ecosystem types, the 
grassland and shrub-steppe ecosystems are particularly sensitive to 
disturbance and subject to habitat loss through development, agriculture 
conversion, impacts from invasive plants, and habitat loss resulting from 
recreation use. 

Significant proportions of sensitive terrestrial habitat have been provincially 
recognized and protected in the Plan Area. 

 
17.3.1 Objectives 

.1 Protect and steward sensitive and important terrestrial ecosystem areas as 
identified in Schedule ‘G’ (Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area Areas). 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 25 of 34 

.2 Encourage provincial and federal governments, private organizations and 
private landowners to protect, enhance and manage critical habitat areas 
for species at risk in the Plan Area. 

.3 Work cooperatively with regional partners and support rehabilitation, 
restoration and enhancement of wildlife habitats and environmentally 
sensitive areas that have been subject to negative impacts in the past.  

.4 Encourage and facilitate linkages of protected habitat areas.  
 

17.3.2 Policies 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Recognizes the values of environmentally sensitive lands and has on 
Schedule ‘G’: 

a) Designated these lands as an Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit Area pursuant to Section 488(1)(a) of the 
Local Government Act; or 

b) Identified these lands as “Potential Sensitive Ecosystems”. 

.2 Requires that land designated as an Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit Area shall be retained in a natural state and not 
subdivided prior to the issuance of an Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit (ESDP) in accordance with the guidelines outlined 
at Section 22.2 of this Plan unless an exemption applies. 

.3 Considers that land identified as “Potential Sensitive Ecosystems” 
should generally be retained in a natural state and, if a re-designation 
of the land under the OCP or a re-zoning of the land under the Zoning 
Bylaw is proposed, that these lands be considered for inclusion in the 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area in Schedule ‘G’. 

.4 Encourages the parcel sizes of land designated as an Environmentally 
Sensitive Development Permit Area or identified as “Potential Sensitive 
Ecosystems” on Schedule ‘G’ to remain as large as possible to protect 
these habitat areas. 

.5 Will not support the re-designation of land under the OCP or the re-
zoning of land under the Zoning Bylaw where it is determined that the 
proposed development is contrary to the ESDP Area Guidelines of this 
Plan and the impact cannot be mitigated to a level acceptable to the 
Regional Board. 

.6 Encourages development that avoids impacting important native 
species, habitats, ecosystems or sensitive areas and to retain 
important ecosystem features and functions. Responsiveness to this 
policy will be a very important consideration in the approval of an 
application. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 26 of 34 

.7 Encourage the protection, preservation, enhancement and 
management of sensitive ecosystems or land contiguous to sensitive 
ecosystems of private lands through the following methods: 

a) donation of areas to the Regional District or provincial 
government; 

b) donation of areas to a land trust or conservation organization; 

c) introduction of conservation area designation and zoning; 

d) creation of conservation covenants in favour of municipal, 
provincial government, private conservation organizations; 

e) establishment of statutory right of ways under the Land Title Act 
for affected areas; 

f) establishment of long-term leases for sensitive areas; 

g) land stewardship and participation in conservation initiatives by 
the private landowner; or 

h) consideration of alternative development standards. 

.8 Supports conserving, enhancing and promoting the protection of 
wildlife corridors and ecosystem connectivity with interfacing Crown 
lands. 

.9 Encourages the use of native vegetation to restore disturbed sites. 
 

17.4 Conservation Areas 

For the purpose of protecting environmentally sensitive areas (ESAs), the 
Regional District may designate lands as Conservation Area (CA).  The 
Conservation Area designation is applied to land that is preserved and 
protected for its unique natural value, land left in a natural or semi-natural 
state for the purpose of conserving plant life and providing habitat for 
wildlife or fish.  

Conservation Area lands may include Crown land designated as an 
Ecological Reserve or Wildlife Management Areas, but is generally applied 
to private lands that have been acquired or donated for conservation 
purposes and which are held by an individual or an organisation, such as 
The Nature Trust of British Columbia or the Nature Conservancy of Canada.  

For a map of Conservation Areas in the Plan Area see Schedule ‘B’ (Official 
Community Plan Map). 

 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 27 of 34 

17.4.1 Objectives 

.1 Protect and steward designated Conservation Areas in their natural or 
semi-natural state for the purpose of conserving plant life and 
providing habitat for wildlife or fish. 

.2 Work with agencies and partners, including local First Nations to 
enhance, protect and interpret ecological systems and biodiversity in 
Conservation Areas. 

.3 Work with property owners and agents to inform and guide the design 
of development in a way that is sensitive to adjacent or abutting 
Conservation Areas.  

 
17.4.2 Policies 

The Regional Board:  

.1 Recognizes and encourages the educational and eco-tourism 
contributions toward protection of Conservation Areas made by 
environmental organizations, and supports accommodating these uses 
where they do not conflict with Conservation Area objectives.  

.2 Supports the incorporation of traditional ecological knowledge in the 
stewardship of Conservation Areas, and will seek to work with local 
First Nations to incorporate it where feasible, practical and 
appropriate. 

 
ii) replacing a new sub-section 22.2 (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 

(ESDP) Area) under Section 22.0 (Development Permit Areas) in its entirety with the 
following: 

22.2 Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 

.1 Category 

The Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area is 
designated pursuant to Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act for 
the protection of the natural environment, its ecosystems and biological 
diversity. 

 
.2 Area 

The lands shown as Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area on 
Schedule ‘G’ are designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area. 

 
.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within environmentally sensitive areas 
in order to protect important sensitive ecosystems and biological diversity 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 28 of 34 

including valuable habitat for endangered species of native, rare vegetation 
or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and secondary habitat.  

 
.4 Background 

The natural environment provides essential habitat and corridors for 
plants, fish, birds and other organisms. It also acts as a natural water 
storage, drainage and purifying system, which can help to protect private 
property from flooding or land loss due to watercourse erosion. 
Furthermore, as concerns over climate change grow, it should be 
recognized that functioning ecosystems are more efficient at consuming 
carbon dioxide as well as carbon storage. Vegetation adjacent to 
watercourses needs to remain in a largely undisturbed state in order to 
maintain a healthy environment and clean water. 

The Similkameen area is considered one of the most ecologically diverse in 
British Columbia and Canada, and includes sensitive ecosystems which 
support a number of provincially Red and Blue-listed species (extirpated, 
endangered, threatened, and vulnerable) and federally listed Species at 
Risk. The ESDP Area is intended to protect habitat for endangered species 
of native, rare vegetation or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and 
secondary habitat within the Plan Area. 

The ESDP Area is comprised of important habitat areas for wildlife and 
plant communities. Sensitive ecosystems in the area include grasslands, 
riparian areas, old forest, shrub-steppe, broadleaf woodland, coniferous 
woodland, wetlands, shallow soiled rock outcrops and ridges. It is the close 
proximity of these diverse habitats that contribute to a wide variety of 
species, both common and rare, that are found in this Electoral Area.  

 
.5 Development requiring a permit 

.1 A development permit is required, except where exempt under Section 
22.2.7 (Exemptions), for development on lands within the ESDP area.  
Where not exempted, development requiring a development permit 
includes: 

a) subdivision. 
 

.6 Guidelines 

.1 A Development Permit is required for development within an ESDP 
Area, and shall be in accordance with the following guidelines: 

a) An Environmental Assessment (EA) Report, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Regional District’s 
Development Procedures Bylaw, must be submitted to the 
Regional District in respect of the proposed development by a 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 29 of 34 

qualified environmental professional (QEP) that is a Registered 
Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) or team that shall 
include a RPBio under contract to the development applicant, and 
shall include: 

i)  An Ecological Assessment Phase including: 

.1 background information;  

.2 an ecological assessment; 

.3 listing of rare and endangered species; and 

.4 stratification and rating of Environmentally Sensitive 
Areas (ESAs). 

ii)  An Impact Assessment and Mitigation Phase including: 

.1 description of proposed development;  

.2 assessment of potential impacts; 

.3 short and long term impacts; 

.4 cumulative and residual impacts; 

.5 avoidance of ESAs; 

.6 mitigation and compensation; 

.7 security requirements; 

.8 monitoring reports; 

.9 accountability; and 

.10 monitoring plan. 

b) Subdivision should be planned, designed and implemented to 
protect environmentally sensitive areas. Habitats that provide for 
at-risk species, at-risk ecological communities and keystone 
species should be given priority for protection. 

c) Development should be planned away from native trees and trees 
containing active nest sites or cavities. If removal of native trees 
cannot be avoided, mitigation should include restoration and 
replanting with equivalent native trees. 

d) Habitat connectivity and the retention of connectivity corridors 
between sensitive ecosystems should be preserved. Wildlife 
crossings should be designed to protect continuity of wildlife 
corridors where these are interrupted by roadways. 

e) Monitoring reports may be required to be submitted to the 
Regional District following the completion of a development in 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 30 of 34 

order to confirm the conditions of a development permit have 
been met. 

f) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures 
identified in an EA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect 
of development as terms and conditions of the development 
permit. 

.7 If an area of land is subject to additional Development Permit Area 
designations under Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, the 
Regional District requires that a single development permit application 
that combines the requirements of each Development Permit Area be 
submitted. The application will be assessed in accordance with the 
individual development permit guidelines for each applicable 
Development Permit Area under this bylaw and, if approved, issued 
under a combined development permit. 

 
.7 Exemptions 

A development permit is not required for development within land in the 
ESDP area for: 

.1 subdivisions that propose to: 

a) consolidate existing parcels, including the consolidation of parts of 
a closed road to an existing parcel; or 

b) alter parcel lines between two or more parcels where no 
additional parcels are created upon completion of the alteration. 

 
 
 
 
Electoral Area “I” 

8. The “Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2008” is amended by: 

i) replacing sub-section 17.1.2.3 (Policies – General) under Section 17.0 (Natural 
Environment and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.3 Requires that, where a proposed subdivision affects land subject to an 
Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area, an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) be prepared by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) in 
accordance with the policies outlined at Section 23.2 as well as relevant federal 
and provincial best management guidelines. 

 
ii) replacing sub-section 17.3.2.2 (Policies) under Section 17.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

Commented [CG33]: The following references have been 
removed: 

b)the construction of, addition to or alteration of a building or 
other structure; and 

 
c)alteration of the land, including grading, removal of vegetation, 
deposit or moving of soil, paving, installation of drainage or 
underground services. 

Commented [34]:  



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 31 of 34 

.2 Requires that land designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area shall be retained in a natural state and not subdivided prior to the 
issuance of an Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) in 
accordance with the guidelines outlined at Section 23.2 of this Plan unless an 
exemption applies. 

 
iii) replacing sub-section 17.3.2.6 (Policies) under Section 17.0 (Natural Environment 

and Conservation) in its entirety with the following: 

.6 Encourages development that avoids impacting important native species, 
habitats, ecosystems or sensitive areas and to retain important ecosystem 
features and functions. Responsiveness to this policy will be a very important 
consideration in the approval of an amendment bylaw application. 

 
iv) replacing a new sub-section 24.2 (Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 

(ESDP) Area) under Section 24.0 (Development Permit Areas) in its entirety with the 
following: 

24.2 Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area 

.1 Category 

The Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area is 
designated pursuant to Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act for 
the protection of the natural environment, its ecosystems and biological 
diversity. 

 
.2 Area 

The lands shown as Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit Area on 
Schedule ‘I’ are designated as an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit Area. 

 
.3 Justification 

To regulate development activities within environmentally sensitive areas 
in order to protect important sensitive ecosystems and biological diversity 
including valuable habitat for endangered species of native, rare vegetation 
or wildlife, and provide wildlife corridors and secondary habitat.  

 
.4 Background 

The natural environment provides essential habitat and corridors for 
plants, fish, birds and other organisms. It also acts as a natural water 
storage, drainage and purifying system, which can help to protect private 
property from flooding or land loss due to watercourse erosion. 
Furthermore, as concerns over climate change grow, it should be 
recognized that functioning ecosystems are more efficient at consuming 

Commented [CG35]: All non-subdivision related exemptions 
have been removed. 

Commented [36]:  

Commented [CG37]: All non-subdivision related exemptions 
have been removed. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 32 of 34 

carbon dioxide as well as carbon storage. Vegetation adjacent to 
watercourses needs to remain in a largely undisturbed state in order to 
maintain a healthy environment and clean water. 

The south Okanagan-Similkameen area is considered one of the most 
ecologically diverse in British Columbia and Canada, and includes sensitive 
ecosystems which support a number of provincially Red and Blue-listed 
species (extirpated, endangered, threatened, and vulnerable) and federally 
listed Species at Risk. The ESDP Area is intended to protect habitat for 
endangered species of native, rare vegetation or wildlife, and provide 
wildlife corridors and secondary habitat within the Plan Area. 

The ESDP Area is comprised of important habitat areas for wildlife and 
plant communities. Sensitive ecosystems in the area include grasslands, 
riparian areas, old forest, shrub-steppe, broadleaf woodland, coniferous 
woodland, wetlands, shallow soiled rock outcrops and ridges. It is the close 
proximity of these diverse habitats that contribute to a wide variety of 
species, both common and rare, that are found in this Electoral Area.  

 
.5 Development requiring a permit 

.1 A development permit is required, except where exempt under Section 
24.2.7 (Exemptions), for development on lands within the ESDP area.  
Where not exempted, development requiring a development permit 
includes: 

a) subdivision. 
 

.6 Guidelines 

.1 A Development Permit is required for development within an ESDP 
Area, and shall be in accordance with the following guidelines: 

a) An Environmental Assessment (EA) Report, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the Regional District’s 
Development Procedures Bylaw, must be submitted to the 
Regional District in respect of the proposed development by a 
qualified environmental professional (QEP) that is a Registered 
Professional Biologist in British Columbia (RPBio) or team that shall 
include a RPBio under contract to the development applicant, and 
shall include: 

i)  An Ecological Assessment Phase including: 

.1 background information;  

.2 an ecological assessment; 

.3 listing of rare and endangered species; and 

Commented [CG38]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 33 of 34 

.4 stratification and rating of Environmentally Sensitive 
Areas (ESAs). 

ii)  An Impact Assessment and Mitigation Phase including: 

.1 description of proposed development;  

.2 assessment of potential impacts; 

.3 short and long term impacts; 

.4 cumulative and residual impacts; 

.5 avoidance of ESAs; 

.6 mitigation and compensation; 

.7 security requirements; 

.8 monitoring reports; 

.9 accountability; and 

.10 monitoring plan. 

b) Subdivision should be planned, designed and implemented to 
protect environmentally sensitive areas. Habitats that provide for 
at-risk species, at-risk ecological communities and keystone 
species should be given priority for protection. 

c) Development should be planned away from native trees and trees 
containing active nest sites or cavities. If removal of native trees 
cannot be avoided, mitigation should include restoration and 
replanting with equivalent native trees. 

d) Habitat connectivity and the retention of connectivity corridors 
between sensitive ecosystems should be preserved. Wildlife 
crossings should be designed to protect continuity of wildlife 
corridors where these are interrupted by roadways. 

e) Monitoring reports may be required to be submitted to the 
Regional District following the completion of a development in 
order to confirm the conditions of a development permit have 
been met. 

f) The Regional District may incorporate any areas or measures 
identified in an EA to protect sensitive ecosystems from the effect 
of development as terms and conditions of the development 
permit. 

.2 If an area of land is subject to additional Development Permit Area 
designations under Section 488(1)(a) of the Local Government Act, the 
Regional District requires that a single development permit application 
that combines the requirements of each Development Permit Area be 

Commented [CG39]: Proposes to replace reference to 
“development” with “subdivision” 



 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2912, 2020 
(X2020.009-ZONE) 

DRAFT VERSION — 2020-10-15  Page 34 of 34 

submitted. The application will be assessed in accordance with the 
individual development permit guidelines for each applicable 
Development Permit Area under this bylaw and, if approved, issued 
under a combined development permit. 

 
.7 Exemptions 

A development permit is not required for development within land in the 
ESDP area for: 

.1 subdivisions that propose to: 

a) consolidate existing parcels, including the consolidation of parts of 
a closed road to an existing parcel; or 

b) alter parcel lines between two or more parcels where no 
additional parcels are created upon completion of the alteration. 

 
 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 

Commented [CG40]: New wording. 



 
 

  
Page 1 of 3 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO:  Planning and Development Committee 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  October 15, 2020 
 
RE:  Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw Amendments - ALR Exclusion Applications 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors initiate Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2913, 2020. 
 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to review policy options to provide direction on how to address 
Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) exclusions, in response to recent changes to the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act that place the onus on the Regional District to submit exclusion applications within its 
jurisdiction. 
 
Background: 
As of September 30, 2020, private landowners are no longer able to make an application for 
exclusion, as a result of amendments made to the Agricultural Land Commission Act in an effort to 
protect the size, integrity and continuity of the land base of the ALR.  Henceforward, only a local 
government (or First Nation or prescribed bodies) may submit an exclusion application to the 
Agricultural Land Commission (ALC). 

The ALC has advised that: 

• a local government should only submit applications that it independently and objectively 
supports; 

• there is a $750 application fee to the ALC, to be paid by the local government; 

• a public hearing is required; and 

• the local government bears the costs of satisfying application requirements (i.e. signage – proof 
of application, public hearing (i.e. newspaper ads), any supplemental reports). 

Since 2012, new Electoral Area Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaws have stated that it is the policy 
of the Regional District Board to require ALR exclusions be accompanied by an assessment from a 
qualified professional agrologist. 
 
Analysis: 
With the responsibility for exclusion application now falling to the Regional District, any exclusion 
application, whether individual, grouped or part of a comprehensive review, will consume staff time 
and include hard costs. 

Administration notes that other jurisdictions are considering various options to address this change in 
legislation, such as considering ALC exclusions: 



  
 

  
Page 2 of 3 

• on behalf of a private landowner on an ad-hoc basis or at specified intervals (i.e. annually or once 
every two or three years); 

• as part of a comprehensive land use review (i.e. OCP update or other strategic projects) or in 
conjunction with an owner-led OCP/rezoning application; 

• only as part of a comprehensive land use review (i.e. OCP update or other strategic projects); or 

• by not accepting or considering exclusion requests from private land owners. 

Given the preservation of the ALR is a fundamental part of the goals, objectives and policies 
incorporated in the South Okanagan Regional Growth Strategy Bylaw and the Electoral Area’s OCP 
Bylaws, it is important that any exclusion application initiated by the Regional District reflect these 
overarching goals of supporting and protecting the agricultural land base. 

Administration considers that a request for exclusion from the ALR should be a “last resort” and that 
other options are available to a landowner, such as seeking ALC approval for either a non-farm use, 
non-adhering residential use, subdivision, etc. and should be exhausted prior to requesting the 
Regional District initiate an exclusion application. 

Administration has concerns with allocating limited staff resources on ad hoc exclusion requests and 
seeks to align such requests with broader policy objectives.   

As such, it is recommended that private landowners looking to exclude their lands from the ALR be 
directed to submit an application to the ALC (i.e. non-farm use, non-adhering residential, subdivision, 
etc.) when required to authorize their proposal. 

In addition, exclusion of lands from the ALR should be part of a comprehensive land use review (i.e. 
OCP update). 

Given the above, Administration suggests that the Regional District remove policy statements in the 
applicable Electoral Area OCP Bylaws that require agrologist reports for applications to exclude land 
from the ALR and to add growth management policies that the Regional District:  

• Will consider requests for the Regional District to initiate an application to the Agricultural Land 
Commission to have lands excluded from the Agricultural Land Reserve only within the context of 
a comprehensive review of this Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw. 

• The Regional District encourages property owners to seek, as an alternative to the exclusion of 
lands from the Agricultural Land Reserve, approval from the Agricultural Land Commission for 
other application types under the Agricultural Land Commission Act such as non-farm use, non-
adhering residential use and subdivision. 

• Generally supports maintaining the integrity of the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) and its existing 
boundaries. 

It should be noted that the drafted OCP Amendment Bylaw NO. 2913, 2020 does not include Electoral 
Area “A”, as it is anticipated that any policy direction would be incorporated into the OCP update.  
Further, the drafted OCP Amendment Bylaw only includes the first two policy statements, as the 
Electoral Area “H” already contains policies speaking to the ALR boundaries. 
 
Alternatives: 



  
 

  
Page 3 of 3 

1. THAT the Board of Directors not initiate Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2913, 
2020.  

2. THAT the Board of Directors direct staff to initiate Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2913, 2020, subject to the following amendments: 

i) TBD 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed by: 
 
_____________________  _________________ 
J. Peachey, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
 



 

Amendment Bylaw No.2913, 2020 
(X2020.014-ZONE) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 1 of 5 

 _________________ 
 

 BYLAW NO. 2913 
  _________________ 

 
 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2913, 2020 
 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, “H” & “I” 
Official Community Plan Bylaws 

         
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled ENACTS as follows: 

 
1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area Official Community Plan 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2913, 2020.” 
 
2. The Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2452, 2008, is amended by: 

i) adding a new sub-Section 6.5.8 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.8 Will consider requests for the Regional District to initiate an application to the 
Agricultural Land Commission to have lands excluded from the Agricultural 
Land Reserve only within the context of a comprehensive review of this Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw. 

 
ii) adding a new sub-Section 6.5.9 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as 

follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.9 Encourages property owners to seek, as an alternative to the exclusion of lands 
from the Agricultural Land Reserve, approval from the Agricultural Land 
Commission for other application types under the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act such as non-farm use, non-adhering residential use and 
subdivision. 

 
iii) adding a new sub-Section 6.5.10 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as 

follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.10 Generally supports maintaining the integrity of the Agricultural Land Reserve 
(ALR) and its existing boundaries. 



 

Amendment Bylaw No.2913, 2020 
(X2020.014-ZONE) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 2 of 5 

 
3. The Electoral Area “D” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2603, 2013, is amended by: 

i) adding a new sub-Section 7.6.13 under Section 7.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows: 

.13 Will consider requests for the Regional District to initiate an application to the 
Agricultural Land Commission to have lands excluded from the Agricultural 
Land Reserve only within the context of a comprehensive review of this Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw. 

 
ii) adding a new sub-Section 7.6.14 under Section 7.0 (Growth Management) to read as 

follows: 

.14 Encourages property owners to seek, as an alternative to the exclusion of lands 
from the Agricultural Land Reserve, approval from the Agricultural Land 
Commission for other application types under the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act such as non-farm use, non-adhering residential use and 
subdivision. 

 
iii) adding a new sub-Section 7.6.15 under Section 7.0 (Growth Management) to read 

as follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.15 Generally supports maintaining the integrity of the Agricultural Land Reserve 
(ALR) and its existing boundaries. 

 

iv) replacing sub-Section 9.2.13 under Section 9.0 (Agriculture) in its entirety, to read as 
follows: 

.13 deleted 
 

4. The Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, is amended by: 

i) adding a new sub-Section 7.3.11 under Section 7.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.11 Will consider requests for the Regional District to initiate an application to the 
Agricultural Land Commission to have lands excluded from the Agricultural 
Land Reserve only within the context of a comprehensive review of this Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw. 

 
ii) adding a new sub-Section 7.3.12 under Section 7.0 (Growth Management) to read as 

follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.12 Encourages property owners to seek, as an alternative to the exclusion of lands 
from the Agricultural Land Reserve, approval from the Agricultural Land 
Commission for other application types under the Agricultural Land 



 

Amendment Bylaw No.2913, 2020 
(X2020.014-ZONE) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 3 of 5 

Commission Act such as non-farm use, non-adhering residential use and 
subdivision. 

 
v) adding a new sub-Section 7.3.13 under Section 7.0 (Growth Management) to read as 

follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.13 Generally supports maintaining the integrity of the Agricultural Land Reserve 
(ALR) and its existing boundaries. 

 
5. The Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2790, 2018, is amended by: 

i) adding a new sub-Section 6.5.6 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.6 Will consider requests for the Regional District to initiate an application to the 
Agricultural Land Commission to have lands excluded from the Agricultural 
Land Reserve only within the context of a comprehensive review of this Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw. 

 
ii) adding a new sub-Section 6.5.7 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as 

follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.7 Encourages property owners to seek, as an alternative to the exclusion of lands 
from the Agricultural Land Reserve, approval from the Agricultural Land 
Commission for other application types under the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act such as non-farm use, non-adhering residential use and 
subdivision. 

iii) adding a new sub-Section 6.5.8 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.8 Generally supports maintaining the integrity of the Agricultural Land Reserve 
(ALR) and its existing boundaries. 

iv) replacing sub-Section 9.2.13 under Section 9.0 (Agriculture) in its entirety, to read as 
follows: 

.13 deleted 
 
6. The Electoral Area “H” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2497, 2012, is amended by: 

i) adding a new sub-Section 7.5.5 under Section 7.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.5 Will consider requests for the Regional District to initiate an application to the 
Agricultural Land Commission to have lands excluded from the Agricultural 
Land Reserve only within the context of a comprehensive review of this Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw. 

 



 

Amendment Bylaw No.2913, 2020 
(X2020.014-ZONE) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 4 of 5 

ii) adding a new sub-Section 7.5.6 under Section 7.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.7 Encourages property owners to seek, as an alternative to the exclusion of lands 
from the Agricultural Land Reserve, approval from the Agricultural Land 
Commission for other application types under the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act such as non-farm use, non-adhering residential use and 
subdivision. 

iii) replacing sub-Section 10.3.3 under Section 10.0 (Agriculture) in its entirety, to read as 
follows: 

.3 deleted 
 
7. The Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, is amended by: 

i) a new sub-Section 6.5.9 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as follows, 
and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.9 Will consider requests for the Regional District to initiate an application to the 
Agricultural Land Commission to have lands excluded from the Agricultural 
Land Reserve only within the context of a comprehensive review of this Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw. 

ii)  adding a new sub-Section 6.5.10 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.10 Encourages property owners to seek, as an alternative to the exclusion of lands 
from the Agricultural Land Reserve, approval from the Agricultural Land 
Commission for other application types under the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act such as non-farm use, non-adhering residential use and 
subdivision. 

iii)  adding a new sub-Section 6.5.11 under Section 6.0 (Growth Management) to read as 
follows, and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.11 Generally supports maintaining the integrity of the Agricultural Land Reserve 
(ALR) and its existing boundaries. 

iv) replacing sub-Section 9.3.5 under Section 9.0 (Agriculture) in its entirety, to read as 
follows: 

.5 deleted 

 
  



 

Amendment Bylaw No.2913, 2020 
(X2020.014-ZONE) 

 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-10-15 Page 5 of 5 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this ____ day of ___________, 2020.  

PUBLIC HEARING held on this ____ day of ___________, 2020. 

READ A THIRD TIME this ____ day of ___________, 2020. 

ADOPTED this ____ day of ___________, 2020. 

 
_______________________      ______________________  
Board Chair Chief Administrative Officer 



 
 

  
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO:  Planning and Development Committee 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  October 15, 2020 
 
RE:  Secondary Suites & Accessory Dwellings – Maximum Floor Area Allowances 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the maximum floor area of a secondary suite and accessory dwelling be set at 125.0 m2 in the 
Draft South Okanagan Electoral Area Zoning Bylaw No. 2800. 
 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to seek direction from the Board regarding proposed zoning bylaw 
amendments related to the maximum floor area allowance provided for secondary suites and 
accessory dwelling units. 
 
Background: 
Under the Electoral Area Zoning Bylaws, the maximum floor area currently permitted for a secondary 
suite and an accessory dwelling is generally limited to 90.0 m2 (NOTE: an exception is provided in 
some zones for accessory dwellings to have a larger floor area if the overall number of accessory 
dwelling units is reduced). 

This floor area allowance is based on a regulation that was previously contained within the BC 
Building Code that limited the maximum size of a secondary suite to 90.0 m2 or 40% of the floor area 
of the dwelling unit, but was removed from the Building Code following provincial amendments in 
December of 2019. 

The province further amended the Building Code to allow secondary suites in more building types, 
such as side-by-side duplexes, and side-by-side (row house) townhouse style buildings. 

In announcing these changes, the province stated that “allowing the construction of more secondary 
suites in more building types helps create more housing units while providing an acceptable level of 
health and fire safety to occupants. Secondary suites also help provide more affordable housing 
options, and by making more efficient use of land and infrastructure, they support community vitality 
and sustainability.” 

At its meeting of September 3, 2020, the Regional District Board accepted the Okanagan Falls 2020 
Economic Development and Recovery Plan as a guiding document.  This plan included, amongst other 
things, the following “Action Item” (1.3): 

Complete a review of zoning regulations in Okanagan Falls to ensure that single family residential 
lots have the flexibility to construct a carriage home or a secondary suite suitable for young 
families (i.e. review of maximum floor area and number of bedrooms). 

 
Analysis:  



  
 

  
Page 2 of 2 

In response to the provincial changes to the Building Code as well as the direction contained within 
the Okanagan Falls 2020 Economic Development and Recovery Plan, Administration is proposing that 
the zoning regulations governing the maximum floor area of a secondary suite be revised. 

Specifically, that the current restriction of 90.0 m2 be increased to 125.0 m2 in order to allow for the 
development of secondary suites that are more accommodating of families.  The basis of this increase 
is to allow for a third bedroom to comfortably be added to a suite (e.g. a master bedroom and bath 
requires approximately 20.0 m2) and to provide additional space to be used on increasing the size of 
other living areas in a suite. 

While the option to remove all floor area restrictions related to secondary suites is available, 
Administration is concerned that this could impact the character of existing low density residential 
neighbourhoods by effectively permitting de facto duplexes in the RS1, RS2, RS3 and RS4 zones.   

If floor area restrictions on secondary suites were removed, the only differences that would remain 
between a suite and a duplex would be design standards prescribed by the Building Code (e.g. suites 
can be built to a lower standard), while duplexes can be strata subdivided and suites cannot. 

It is also unclear what the implications of removing all floor area restrictions would be in relation to 
the exemption provided by the Okanagan Basin Water Board for suites as a permitted form of 
accessory dwelling unit on parcels less than 1.0 ha.  It is Administration’s understanding that this 
exemption for suites is based, in part, on their limited floor area. 

If the floor area of secondary suites is increased, Administration further supports applying this to 
accessory dwellings as the floor area of these dwelling unit types is currently linked to suites in the 
zoning bylaw (i.e. both have a floor area allowance of 90.0 m2). 

If a larger floor area is supported, a review of appropriate on-site vehicle parking requirements will 
also be undertaken. 

Alternately, the option of retaining the existing 90.0 m2 floor area restriction for suites is available to 
the Board, as is the introduction of some other floor area allowance.   

Should the Board support the proposed increase in floor area, Administration is proposing that this be 
included as a regulation in the Draft South Okanagan Electoral Area Zoning Bylaw No. 2800 as 
opposed to being addressed through a separate amendment bylaw to the current zoning bylaws. 
 
Alternatives:  

.1 THAT the maximum floor area of a secondary suite and accessory dwelling not be amended; or 

.2 THAT the maximum floor area of a secondary suite and accessory dwelling be amended as 
follows: 

i) TBD 
 

Respectfully submitted:  
 
_________________________________   
C. Garrish, Planning Manager 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Protective Services Committee 

Thursday, October 15, 2020 
10:00 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Protective Services Meeting of October 15, 2020 be adopted. 

 
 

B. Q3 ACTIVITY REPORT – For Information Only 
 

 
C. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Protective Services/Q3 Activity Report 
- Protective Services.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 5 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Protective Services Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Q3 Activity Report – For information Only 
 
Emergency Management, Policing, E-911, FireSmart  
 
Activities Completed in Q3 2020: 
 
Regional Emergency Management Training 
· Delivered live training within the Evacuation Reception Center and the EOC for RDOS and City of 

Penticton staff and volunteers who were paired with experienced individuals to provide hands on 

practice and mentorship during the event.  

Emergency Management Training - 2020 Summary  

Date Type of Training Location 
# Total number of 

participants 
(RDOS Staff) 

Q1 Jan-Mar 2020 Q1 Training Summary  335(287) 
Q2 Apr-Jun 2020 Q2 Training Summary  116(29) 
Aug 14 ERA Training RDOS 7(7) 
Aug 17 ERA Training OIB 11(9) 
Aug 18 – 28 Just in Time Training for the EOC and 

Reception Centre 
Region Wide  Unknown 

Aug 20 ERA Training – at the request of City of 
Penticton 

RDOS 2(2) 

 
E911 Radio System & Fire Dispatch  
· Commenced the Kaleden E911 Radio Tower project. (COVID-19 Delay for Transport Canada  Right 

of Way approvals)  
· Updated the RDOS Fire Departments response logic for the Fire Dispatch service.  
· Continued initial review of the Regional Fire Dispatch service contract (Dec 2021).  
· Developed and distributed a Fire Dispatch Service survey to all Fire Departments within the RDOS. 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Protective Services/Q3 Activity Report 
- Protective Services.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 5 
 

· Re-established the Emergency Tele-communications Committee with Fire Departments (first 
virtual meeting to occur in fall of 2020). 
 

Emergency Support Services  
· Continued recruitment for Emergency 

Support Services (ESS) volunteers.  
· Conducted three Regional ESS committee 

meetings – via teleconference and WebX to 
adhere to COVID-19 protocols.  

 
 
 
 
 

Animal Lifeline Emergency Response Team 
(ALERT) volunteers - Christie Mountain Wildfire 

Evacuation Reception Center 
 

RDOS Emergency Support Services 3rd Quarter 2020 
Date Response 

Area 
Location Reason ESS Team COVID 

screening 
#Persons 

Supported 
 

Online ESS 
Registration 
“ERA Tool” 

ALERT 
Registrations 

“Animals” 
June OIB Oliver Trailer 

Fire 
Oliver ESS Yes 1 In person 1 

July Cawston Cawston House 
Fire 

Keremeos ESS Yes 7 In person 5 

July Hedley Hedley House 
Fire 

Princeton ESS Yes 5 In person 5 

July Penticton Penticton Fire Penticton ESS Yes 4 In person 0 

July Penticton Penticton House 
Fire 

Penticton ESS Yes 2 In person 0 

August Area G Hedley House 
Fire 

Princeton/ 
RDOS 

Yes 6  In person 9 

August Sage 
Mesa 

Penticton Wildfire Penticton/RDOS 30 6 3 0 

August Christie 
Mountain 

Area D Wildfire RDOS and 
municipal ESS 

teams 

845 330 7,733 11 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Protective Services/Q3 Activity Report 
- Protective Services.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 
Emergency Operations Centre (EOC)  
· Continued activation of the Regional EOC to 

support the COVID-19 response. 
· Activated the Regional EOC to support the 

Christie Mountain Wildfire, Sage Mesa Wildfire 
and Dry lake Wildfire.  

· Continued facilitation of Regional EOC 
teleconference and WebX meetings for COVID-
19 and wildfire responses.  

· Continued developing and updating COVID-19 
specific pandemic plan and supporting 
response plans. 

· Facilitated Regional Emergency Preparedness 
working committee meetings. 

· Initiated an After Action Report for the Christie Mountain Wildfire EOC for RDOS and the City of 

Penticton.  

Emergency Operation Centre Responses 3rd Quarter 2020 
Date Response 

Type 
Location Support 

Type 
Evacuation Type 

Alert Order Rescind SoLe Tactical 
August 3 Wildfire Dry Lake region Area H Wildfire  43 - - - - 
August 6 Wildfire Penticton Wildfire - - - NA 74 
August 18 Wildfire Heritage Hills Wildfire 170 319 489 1 319  

 
Loose Bay Campground 
· The Regional EOC continues to provide oversight for COVID-19 related guidelines for cleaning and 

maintenance of the campground.   
· Increased hygiene and personal sanitization stations provided. 
· Continued oversight of the COVID-19 Coordinator for orientation to campers, monitoring of 

persons who come on to the site to minimize the risk of COVID-19.  
· Provide ongoing reporting to Ministry of Agriculture and Interior Health.  
· The RDOS EOC continues to complete final connections to the local water supply and replacement  
 
FireSmart 
· Continued work on FireSmart activities under UBCM’s CRI program. 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Protective Services/Q3 Activity Report 
- Protective Services.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 4 of 5 
 

· Supported development of a FireSmart DPA process for Electoral Area A in cooperation with RDOS 
Planning Dept. 

· Ongoing work on FireSmart community assessments for Hedley, Apex and Olalla.  
· Ongoing work to develop an RDOS FireSmart website.  
· Developing plans for the 2021 FireSmart program.   
 
Grants 
· Continued work on the Similkameen flood response and mapping projects through UBCM 

(CEPF) grant. ($138,957). 
· Continued work on the Park Rill, Horn Creek, Kerns Creek Flood Mapping and Report (CEPF) 

Grant ($125,000). 
· Commenced work on UBCM (CEPF) EOC Tools and Training Grant ($25,000). 
· Continued work on the UBCM (CEPF) ESS Modernization and Training Grant – RDOS joint grant 

with: Town of Oliver, Osoyoos Indian Band, Town of Osoyoos, Village of Keremeos, and the 
Town of Princeton ($133,470). 

 
Planned Activities for Q4 2020: 
· Commence initial review of the Regional Fire Dispatch service contract (Dec 2021).  
· Complete the Q4 phase of the Kaleden E911 Tower (Right of Way agreements, Environmental 

Assessment, permitting, site plans).   
· Continue to carry out online emergency management training for communities and volunteer 

groups throughout the region. 
· Continued work on the Similkameen flood response and mapping project and the Park Rill, Horn 

Creek, Kerns Creek Flood Mapping and Report project through UBCM (CEPF) grants. 
· Continued work on the UBCM (CEPF) ESS and Training Grant ($133,470.00). 
· Continue to coordinate changes to the 2020 Regional Emergency Preparedness training schedule 

to align with COVID-19 social distancing requirements.  
· Continue work on FireSmart activities under UBCM’s CRI program through the Interagency 

Cooperation Initiative. 
· Continue work on FireSmart community assessments for Hedley and Apex.  
· Continue with development of an RDOS FireSmart website to provide valuable links and resources 

for the public.  
· Continue supporting development of a FireSmart DPA process for Electoral Area A in cooperation 

with RDOS Planning Dept. 
· Add the COVID-19 Pandemic emergency response procedures on the Regional Emergency 

Management Plan  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Protective Services/Q3 Activity Report 
- Protective Services.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 5 of 5 
 

· Continued support of Loose Bay Campground to include installation of Wi-Fi and two permeant 
wash carts (washrooms, laundry and showers). 

 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
Mark Woods 
____________________________________ 
M. Woods,  General Manager of Community Services  

 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Community Services Committee 

Thursday, October 15, 2020 
10:30 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Community Services Meeting of October 15, 2020 be adopted. 

 
 

B. Q3 ACTIVITY REPORT – For Information Only 
 

 
C. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 



 

No:  
Page 1 of 5 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Community Services Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Q3 Activity Report – For Information Only 
 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Parks, Recreation, Transit, Cemeteries and Rural Projects 
 

Activities Completed for Q3 2020 
 
Parks, Recreation and Trails 
• Installed a benches and 

wheelchair accessible tables at 
KVR Little Tunnel above 
Naramata.  Picture to the right: 

• Provided facility support to the 
Loose Bay campground staff 

• Installed washrooms and septic 
system at Loose Bay 
campground.   

• Completed clearing, base 
preparation and pathway for 
boat storage lot in Naramata.  

• Tendered and awarded 
contract for new washrooms at Manitou Park in Naramata.   

• Completed engineered design for the Okanagan Falls trestle jumping platform. 
• Completed Parking lot expansion and landscaping at RDOS office. 
• Installed pickle ball courts at the Tulameen Rink. 
• Began regular maintenance and installed trail signage on the Summerland KVR. 
• Supported Rec Sites and Trails with three bridge closures on the KVR. 
• Participated in the ALC site review of Keogan Park Ball Diamonds. 
• Completed the Creek Park trail assessment and new trail planning. 
• Installed new play equipment at Kobau Park. 
• Sealed and upgraded anti-slip surface at Kenyon Spray Park.  
• Rebuild of Lions Park (Okanagan Falls) irrigation system.  
• Completed development of Osoyoos Lakefront Park restroom.  
• Installed development design signage at Coalmont Park.  

 
 



 

No:  
Page 2 of 5 
 

 
• Additional park space development underway at Garnett Family Park (Heritage Hills). Picture below: 

o Paved perimeter 
pathway and 
installed solar 
bollards (picture 
below).Installed 
picnic tables. 

o Awarded contract 
for installation of a 
2-stall accessible 
washroom.  
Construction started 
Sept 21st.   

 
• Completed the landscaping 

at the Selby Park. 
• Installation of Concrete 

paths on the courtyard of 
the Similkameen recreation 
center. 

• Applied for funding to the Investing in Canadian Infrastructure Grant Program (two park projects and 
three trails projects).  

• Applied for a License of Occupation renewal for Naramata Wharf Park in Naramata.  
• Applied for a License of Occupation for a section of KVR from Road 21 to Road 18 in Rural Osoyoos. 
• Applied for a License of Occupation for the Okanagan River Channel between Road 22 to McAlpine 

Bridge from Rural Osoyoos to Rural Oliver.  
• Prepared Draft budget documents for Parks and Recreation commissions. 
• Recreation updated RDOS Rec website to include COVID resources. 
• Recreation staff continues to support the communities with a variety of local and regional health and 

wellness initiatives (while respecting current COVID-19 measures). 
• Launch of South Okanagan-Similkameen Child care Study Survey. 
• Launch and now analysis occurring on West Bench Age Friendly Assessment and Action Plan.  
• Recreation Regional Guide targeted released electronically. 
• Modified delivery of PAT trailer for the region (cautious due to evolving COVID measures) 
• Working with School Districts on the potential of using Schools for programming after Thanksgiving. 
• Soft launch on Volunteer Program for various functions of the RDOS, initial focus is in Parks and Rec.  
• Delivery of a successful Canada Day Virtual Event in partnership with the City of Penticton 
• Managed to host some outside bookings for private events with increased measures respecting COVID 

restrictions. 
• Successful application for Canada Summer Jobs, and had a student support with regional programs. 

https://www.canva.com/design/DAEF6JdHk5k/xInbXKKMwgNHrkNnXGxprQ/view?utm_content=DAEF6JdHk5k&utm_campaign=designshare&utm_medium=link&utm_source=homepage_design_menu#1


 

No:  
Page 3 of 5 
 

 
• Creation of facility re-opening plans in all areas. 
• Delivery of Summer day programs in the Similkameen 
• Piloted a Youth Advisory in the Similkameen. 
• Delivery of modified recreation summer programs 

across the region which included: 
o Water safety in the lake 
o Yoga  
o Fishing (as a pilot program) 
o Tai chi 
o SUP 
o Drumming Circle 
o Intro to Pickle ball 
o Recreate in the park  
o Walking program 
o Spin classes 
o Active age and Choose to Move 

• Developed a games lounge beside the bowling area in 
the Similkameen Recreation Center. 

• Completed initial assessment of the Similkameen Recreation Center building cameras and Privacy 
Impact Assessment.  

COVID-19 Response 
• Developed and executed a COVID-19 reopening plan for park and recreation facilities. 
• Created and installed signage for park and amenity use during COVID-19. 
• Revised operational plans and work procedures for park and facility maintenance. 
• Updated park rental and recreation program documents.  
• Reviewed and reconfigured staff workspaces to meet WCB COVID-19 requirements. 
• Increased head office cleanings to twice a day. 
• Cancelled of registered/drop-in recreation programs. 
• Management of facility and parks bookings  
• Developed Parks and Recreation communication plan for Covid-19 pandemic and executed first stages 
• Worked with BC Transit to communicate COVID-19 initiatives to the public, installed signage at transit 

stop locations throughout region.  
• Completed additional daily cleanings of public washrooms. 
 
Transit  
• Conducted public engagement via online survey for West Bench transit system to be implemented in 

2021. 
• Conducted a survey and data analysis for the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on transit ridership in 

the region.  
• Updated on-site transit materials (schedules and maps) at existing bus stops. 
• Hosted transit working group meeting with municipal partners to discuss transit and future initiatives. 



 

No:  
Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Planned Activities for Q4 2020 

 
Parks, Recreation and Trails 
• Winterization of Parks and seasonal amenities. 
• Annual tree planting program in Okanagan Falls, Kaleden, West Bench and Naramata. 
• Complete RDOS head-office building assessment including refrigeration plant, HVAC, structural and 

deferred maintenance.  
• Decking Repairs of three KVR Trail trestles between Coalmont and Princeton. 
• Continued planning and negotiations with the ALC, BCTFA and private landowners to complete the 

Similkameen Rail trail between Keremeos and Cawston. 
• Continue to explore space and facility options for RDOS operations staff (Water, Parks, and Facilities).  
• Explore grant options for 

Museum facility upgrades 
(Naramata). 

• Prepare for Federal / 
Provincial Stimulus grant 
applications. 

• Repair rink boards at the 
Similkameen Outdoor Ice 
Rink. 

• Complete installation and 
commissioning of 
washrooms and septic 
system at Loose Bay 
campground.   

• Complete construction 
and commissioning of 
washroom at Garnett 
Family Park (Heritage 
Hills). 

• Begin construction of 
Manitou Park washroom 
(Naramata). 

• Complete the Naramata 
Boat storage project. 
Picture to the right: 

• Initiate Similkameen pool 
liner replacement design project for 2021 season. 

• Continuation of the Regional Child Care Study. 
• Continuation of the West Bench Age Friendly Assessment and Action Plan. 
• Run modified Fall programs (focus will be on outdoor activities), indoor programs in schools may be 

available after Thanksgiving. 
• Initiate Volunteer Recruitment and Orientation Program. 
• Complete bowling facility assessment at the Similkameen Recreation Center.  



 

No:  
Page 5 of 5 
 

• Complete Similkameen Rec Center building assessment including refrigeration plant, HVAC, structural 
and deferred maintenance. 
 

Transit  
• Work with the Transit working group, BC Transit and the District of Peachland to finalize the 2021 

expansion of the Penticton-Kelowna Regional transit service which will include an added stop in 
Peachland and expanded schedule/service hours. 

• Explore options for online transit pass sales and improved online transit trip planning assistance.  
• Undergo planning process for West Bench transit service implementation.  
• Inventory of unsold fare products for 2020. 
• Distribute Fare products for 2021 to municipal partners and vendors.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
Mark Woods 
____________________________________ 
M. Woods,  General Manager of Community Services 

  



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

Thursday, October 15, 2020 
10:45 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of October 15, 2020 be 
adopted. 

 
 

B. Q3 ACTIVITY REPORT – For Information Only 
 

 
C. 2020 MOSQUITO CONTROL PROGRAM REPORT – For Information Only 
 

 
D. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 



 

File No:  
Page 1 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Environment and Infrastructure Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Public Works Third Quarter Activity Report – For Information Only 
 
ACTIVITIES COMPLETED IN Q3 2020: 

SOLID WASTE  

Engineering: 

· Campbell Mountain Landfill Biocover Pilot – Waiting on results of formal application that 
was submitted in Q2 to the Ministry of Environment     

· Campbell Mountain Landfill Drainage and Leachate – Leachate extraction wells are pumping 
leachate into the pond and data is being collected. Detailed design on connecting north 
ravine extraction well and treatment works is on put on hold – with the recent purchase of 
1313 Greyback Mountain Road, the overall plan for operational areas and traffic flow will 
change with the relocation of composting operations. This project will be delayed until after 
a master plan for the site can be developed after necessary approvals are received for the 
new site. Consultant will continue with this leachate work in 2021.  

· Campbell Mountain Landfill New Entrance/Exit – Consultant has put together plans for the 
proposed new alignment for the entrances and details for new scales and scalehouse. 
Further efforts are being put on hold with the recent purchase of 1313 Greyback Mountain 
Road. The overall plan for operational areas and traffic flow will change with the relocation 
of composting operations. This project will be delayed until after a master plan for the site 
can be developed after necessary approvals are received for the new site. This will ensure 
the most efficient location and alignment of the new entrance way in consideration of the 
future operational requirements. Consultant will continue in 2021. 

· Keremeos Landfill Closure Plan – Monitoring continues of the new wells and report is being 
developed for the Ministry of Environment.  

· Oliver Landfill scale house and scale replacement – Complete  
· Oliver Landfill Organics Composting Facility and Design Operations and Closure Plan – Design 

work is underway for new facility, draft designs to be completed for review in October. 
Analysis of different methods undertaken – beneficial to utilize gore cover for the facility. 
DOCP work also underway looking at overall filling plan and operational needs. 

· Apex Waste Transfer Station – Ridge cap replacement and heat trace installation complete. 

 



 

File No:  
Page 2 of 5 

Operations: 

· Campbell Mountain Landfill Organics Composting – ALC public review process was 
completed.  A Town hall discussion on the project took place on September 30.  The 
purchase agreement for 1313 Greyback Mountain Road was completed, and a price for the 
existing building onsite was negotiated.   

· Improvements to the Keremeos Agricultural Plastics program were made. 
· The Phase 2 road of the Campbell Mountain fill plan is complete. Internal road works and 

pad have been developed and are proceeding with phase 2 of the landfill fill plan. 
· A drone survey of the landfills has taken place in order to determine landfill volumes. 
· RFP for truck replacement underway. 

WATER 

Engineering: 

· Willowbrook Water System Chlorine Contact System – Construction complete. Grant claim 
and final reporting underway.  

· Sage Mesa Water System Controls Upgrade – Work is complete.  
· Naramata Dam Safety Reviews – Site visit carried out by Consultant. Work delayed by a few 

months and extension from the Ministry received for report due date to February 2021.  
· Naramata & Olalla Watermain Upgrade Projects – RFP was released and consultant has 

been retained. Design work has started on the Naramata watermains for inclusion in ICIP 
grant application due October 22. Olalla watermain design will be commenced in November 
in preparation of the next grant program. 

· Cross Connection Control Bylaw – final version being prepared.  

Operations: 

· New safe work procedures have been developed to address COVID 19 risks. 
· Willowbrook Water GARP study was completed and showed favourable results.  Secondary 

treatment will not be required. 
· Naramata Water Source Water Protection Plan – Technical Advisory Committee has been 

meeting to review and make recommendations. The study is scheduled to be completed in 
the fall of 2020.  

· Shinish Creek diversion dam repairs were approved by the Province and completed. 
· RFP for Utilities trucks and Crane truck underway. 

SEWER 

Engineering: 

· Kaleden Sewer Expansion – Predesign Report complete and a website has been updated at 
www.kaledensewer.ca for project information as it becomes available. A new Question and 
Answer section has been added for posting questions on the website. Service area and cost 
allocation being further investigated for best options. Two informal meetings in Pioneer 



 

File No:  
Page 3 of 5 

Park were carried out over the summer for residents to ask questions directly to staff and 
the design engineer. Public assent process being planned with Legislative Services. 

· OK Falls Constructed Wetland Project – Commissioning underway. Cattails are starting to 
establish and various wildlife have been observed. Commissioning period will continue. 

· OK Falls Waste Water Treatment Plant Solids Dewatering Project – Looking for additional 
funding opportunities. Work plan is being developed to move project ahead in 2021. 

· Naramata Liquid Waste Management Plan – RFP developed and released for starting a 
LWMP in the community of Naramata  

· Naramata Shoreline assessment for impacts from onsite wastewater systems was initiated. 
Testing is ongoing through Q3 and Q4 to determine impacts from various sources on the 
shoreline of Naramata. OBWB grant of $25k was awarded for this project. 

Operations: 

· New safe work procedures have been developed to address COVID 19 risks. 
· Okanagan Falls Lift station #3 upgrades – Purchased replacement pumps. Work to replace 

the mechanical system inside lift station must be delayed due to COVID-19 potential 
aerosolized exposure.  Emergency repairs to control systems were made after a system 
failure cause the Lift Station to shut down. 

OTHER PROJECTS/PROGRAMS 

Engineering: 

· COVID response – All engineering staff working in the office. Meetings with consultants are 
still being held through virtual platforms to continue with project tasks. 

· Engineering Technologist – a new Engineering Technologist has been hired to fill the vacancy 
left in mid Q3. New staff member starts in October. 

· SCADA Master plan implementation – Consultant was retained and work began to plan for 
upgrade schedule and work required. Ransomware attack has delayed the project by a 
couple months due to inability to work on the systems until restoration occurred. Plans are 
being adjusted as needed to incorporate changes made from cyberattack recovery.  

· Lower Nipit Improvement District Acquisition – Consultant retained to complete engineering 
and financial assessment of the LNID assets. Work is underway. 

· Mosquito Control Program – program wrapped up at the end of Q3. Six helicopter flights 
have been carried and the final report for all treatment efforts is being assembled. Lingering 
flood waters increased the areas available for breeding mosquitos much later than in 
previous years. Assisted and mentored Lower Similkameen Indian Band (LSIB) staff member 
with treating various sites on Band lands in early Q3. 

· Follow the Water K-5 Curriculum Project – work in continuing with the En’owkin Centre to 
prepare the new learning materials and presentations for classroom deliveries.  

· Mosquito Control Bylaw – work will continue with Legislative Services to include Area I. 
· Invasive Weeds and Pests Bylaw – work will continue to combining bylaws into one Invasive 

Species Bylaw. 



 

File No:  
Page 4 of 5 

· Max Lake Restoration project – previous HCTF grant application is being reviewed and 
updated for submission in the 2020 intake due in November. 

ACTIVITIES PLANNED FOR Q4 2020: 

SOLID WASTE  

Engineering: 

· Campbell Mountain Landfill Biocover Pilot – Wait for a response from the Ministry of 
Environment on our application for substituted requirements.   

· Campbell Mountain Landfill Leachate – Design work is on hold until 2021 pending the results 
of the Master Plan for the site.  

· Campbell Mountain Landfill Entrance/Exit review – Design work is on hold until 2021 
pending the results of the Master Plan for the site.  

· Keremeos Landfill Closure – Monitoring wells will be sampled on schedule and report will be 
provided to the Ministry for analysis. 

· Oliver Landfill Organics composting facility and Design Operations and Closure Plan – work 
will continue as planned on the organics facility design and DOCP 

· Okanagan Falls Landfill Design Operations and Closure Plan – RFP will be developed and 
released for submission of proposals. 

Operations: 

· Continue with education and communications around implementation of the changes to the 
curbside recycling program that has eliminated blue bags. 

· Continue implementing safety work procedures measures as issues are identified at the 
landfills. 

· Repairs to the Campbell Mountain Landfill electric fence were completed 
· Campbell Mountain Landfill Organics Composting – ALC application will be submitted  

WATER 

Engineering: 

· Willowbrook Water System Chlorine Contact System – grant claims and final reporting will 
be submitted.  

· Olalla watermain upgrade – design will be initiated for all lateral road upgrade of mains 
· Naramata Dam Safety Reviews – Work will continue and draft report will be received for 

review and comment. 

Operations: 

· Naramata Water Source Water Protection Plan – Work will continue as planned.  

SEWER 



 

File No:  
Page 5 of 5 

Engineering: 

· Kaleden Sewer Expansion –Website will be updated as new information becomes available. 
Any final changes in service area and cost will be presented. Work will continue to secure a 
public assent process schedule.  

· OK Falls Constructed Wetland Project – Continue the two year commissioning process for 
vegetation establishment. 

· OK Falls Waste Water Treatment Plant Solids Dewatering Project – Plans will be developed 
to move the project forward for January tender with the available funds.  

· Naramata Liquid Waste Management Plan – Consultant will be retained and work will be 
initiated. 

· Naramata Shoreline study – sampling work will continue to investigate potential impacts 
from onsite septic systems with results going into the LWMP background information 

OTHER PROJECTS/PROGRAMS 

Engineering: 

· Mosquito Control Program – Carry out discussions with LSIB for 2021 workplan assistance. 
Prepare for 2021 season. 

· Unpacking the Guidebook – Building Climate Resilience in the Okanagan will work on 
education materials and workshops will be delayed until gatherings are again permitted. 

· Follow the Water K-5 Curriculum Project – work will continue with the En’owkin Centre to 
prepare the new learning materials and presentations for classroom deliveries. 

· Mosquito Control Bylaw – amendment to include Area I. 
· Invasive Weeds and Pests Bylaw – work will continue to combining bylaws into one Invasive 

Species Bylaw. 
· Works and Services Bylaw -Review and provide comments. 

Operations: 

· Utilities truck – start procurement of new vehicle. 
· Works and Services Bylaw -Review and provide comments. 
· Review methods of funding Cross Connection program as required within the bylaw. 

 

  

Respectfully submitted: 
 
Liisa Bloomfield                                                                         Andrew Reeder 
_________________                                                               _________________ 
L. Bloomfield, Manager of Engineering                                A. Reeder, Manager of Operations 

 



Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

Mosquito Control Program  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020  
Year End Report 

 

October 2020 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

2 
 

Prepared by:  Cindy Boehm & Shad Collins, RDOS Mosquito Control Program Crew 

Zoë Kirk, RDOS Public Works Projects Coordinator  

Liisa Bloomfield, RDOS Manager of Engineering 

 

 

  



2020 MCP Year End Report 

3 
 

Executive Summary      

Nuisance mosquitos have been a problem in the South Okanagan and Similkameen Valley for as long as 

humans have inhabited them. The primary reason is the quantity and quality of mosquito larval habitats; 

oxbows to wetlands and annual flood zones.  

In 1974, the RDOS initiated a Mosquito Control Program (MCP) to monitor and mitigate local mosquito 

populations in the more densely populated areas. Over the past four decades the in-house program has 

been adapting and integrating tools and technology to remain as effective and cost efficient as possible. 

In the past seven years, the number of sites being treated by the MCP has almost tripled from about 160 

sites.  

From March to September, the MCP monitors typically around 400 sites throughout the Electoral Areas 

“A”, “B”, “C”, “D”, “F”, “G”, “H” and “I” as well as the municipalities of Summerland, Osoyoos, Penticton, 

and Oliver.  

The Similkameen Valley experienced significant flooding this year; reminiscent of 2018. The Similkameen 

River had created pooled areas adjacent to the river from upwelled groundwater. These pools were 

ideal habitat for mosquito larvae and were spread further when the river overtopped its banks.  

In the Okanagan Valley, adjacent to the river, land was continuously flooded into the month of August. 

Conversely, Willowbrook saw no flooding this year at all with minimal stream flows. 

The MCP program continued to refine the Early Detection/Rapid Response method for the 2020 

treatment season. The Summerland ball fields in Dale Meadows have proven to be a good indicator for 

the start of the mosquito season, predicating the need for monitoring and treatment starting in March. 

The earliest first helicopter flight in the program history occurred on April 17.  

On average, the mosquito control program conducts three to four helicopter deployed aerial 

applications per season or up to six in flood years. In 2020, the combination of high snowpack, 

prolonged rainfall, and unseasonably cool temperatures, required six strategically organized flights to 

control mosquito populations.   

This season, a total of 5,795.9 kg of VectoBac 200G granular larvicide was applied to 384 sites (an area of 

438.5 hectares) of mosquito breeding habitat by helicopter and on the ground broadcasting. All 

applications were completed under the BC Ministry of Environment Pest Management Plan for the 

RDOS. 

Mosquito population control is most effective when the first hatch biomass potentials are greatly 

reduced through timely treatment at larval stage. It cannot be stated more strongly, that achieving the 

reduction in these first hatches, sets the stage for the majority of citizens in the region enjoying the 

outdoors in the summertime. 

  



2020 MCP Year End Report 

4 
 

Contents 
Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

1. Background Information ........................................................................................................................... 5 

1.1 Program Purpose and Scope ............................................................................................................... 5 

1.2 Program Methodology ........................................................................................................................ 5 

1.3 Early Detection/Rapid Response ......................................................................................................... 6 

1.4 Treatment Pesticide ............................................................................................................................ 6 

1.5 Treatment Areas of Note .................................................................................................................... 7 

2. Mosquito Control Program Operation ...................................................................................................... 9 

2.1 Operational Season 2020 .................................................................................................................... 9 

2.2 Treatment Distribution for 2020 ....................................................................................................... 11 

3. Mosquito Populations ............................................................................................................................. 14 

3.1 Climate Change and Mosquitos ........................................................................................................ 14 

3.2 Mosquito Sampling ........................................................................................................................... 14 

3.3 Mosquito Species Identification ....................................................................................................... 16 

3.4 Mosquito Biology .............................................................................................................................. 17 

3.5 MBD–Mosquito-Borne Diseases ....................................................................................................... 19 

4.  Public Information .................................................................................................................................. 20 

4. 1 Preventative Measures .................................................................................................................... 20 

4.2 Common Questions and Answers ..................................................................................................... 21 

5. RDOS Integrated Pest Management Plan and Bylaws ............................................................................ 22 

5.1 Integrated Pest Management Plan (IPMP) ....................................................................................... 22 

5.2 Service Establishment Bylaw and Update ......................................................................................... 22 

5.3 Program Cost Comparison ................................................................................................................ 23 

APPENDIX A: 2019 Sampled Species, their Characteristics and Location ................................................... 24 

APPENDIX B: Larvacide Credentials and Details ......................................................................................... 26 

 

 

 

  

file:///C:/Users/lbloomfield/Downloads/Temp/New%20folder%20(3)/20201001%20Final%20report.docx%23_Toc52557596


2020 MCP Year End Report 

5 
 

1. Background Information  

1.1 Program Purpose and Scope  

Since 1974, the RDOS Mosquito Control Program (MCP) has monitored and treated nuisance mosquito 

populations throughout the south Okanagan and Similkameen Valleys.  

The objectives of the RDOS Mosquito Control Program (MCP) are to limit the potential of widespread 

mosquito annoyance, and reduce the possibility of mosquito-borne diseases for the benefit of residents, 

visitors, workers, and livestock in the RDOS catchment area.  

From March to September, the RDOS Mosquito Control Program (MCP) monitors typically around 400 

sites throughout Electoral Areas: A, B, C, D, F, G, H and I as well as Summerland, Osoyoos, Penticton, and 

Oliver.  

The program is driven by property owner requests and has seen a 139% increase in site numbers, from 

161 sites in 2013 to 384 in 2020. Figure 1.1 provides the number of treated sites for the past five years.  

Figure 1.1: Mosquito Control Sites Over Time – Average of 402 sites 

 

The severe flooding of 2017 and 2018 caused sustained high ground water levels in the Okanagan and 

Similkameen Valleys. This extensive flooding caused site numbers to fluctuate and swell to over 400.  

A reprieve in 2019 relieved some of the higher elevation sites, but valley bottoms remained saturated. 

The prolonged cool spring of 2020, a high snowpack, and record breaking rains in May and June set the 

stage for another flood year in mid and lower elevations. 

1.2 Program Methodology  

It is important to state that ‘control’ does not mean eradication of mosquitos, but reductions of 

populations of mosquitos in populated areas and on agricultural properties (for worker safety) in the 

region. 

299

512

403 415
385

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
Si

te
s

Site Count Variations



2020 MCP Year End Report 

6 
 

The program methodologies can be put into three main categories: prevention, treatment, and 

monitoring.  

• Prevention focuses on minimizing larval habitats;   

• Treatment requires pesticide in order to control mosquito populations;  

• Monitoring is constant and requires vigilance from the crews. 

Mosquitos being controlled throughout the RDOS can be placed into two categories: nuisance and 

vector. In the South Okanagan and Similkameen, the vast majority of mosquitos are considered to be 

nuisance mosquitoes. Nuisance mosquitoes are extremely aggressive towards humans and livestock but 

are not known to carry life threatening pathogens at this time. Vector mosquitoes, on the other hand, 

are known to transmit a variety of diseases which can infect humans and animals causing illness, or in 

more serious situations, death.  

The RDOS MCP mainly involves targeting nuisance mosquitos; however, outbreaks have occurred from 

the vector mosquitos, such as the 2009-2010 West Nile outbreak. These occurrences reiterate the 

importance of having a robust control program, comprehensive Integrated Pest Management Plan 

(IPMP) and procedures in place to handle situations as they arise with continued focus on assuring the 

health and safety of the local residents.  

1.3 Early Detection/Rapid Response  

New techniques were developed and implemented in 2019 for treating water bodies that froze 

overnight. After breaking the film of ice that forms overnight and finding high larval levels, crews would 

sprinkle the BTI granules on top of the ice. As the ice melts in daytime temperatures, it enters the water, 

resulting in high mortality rates for the larvae. 

This method allows the crew to treat these areas 

and efficiently continue to the next site. This not 

only results in a savings in time and fuel but also 

provides for timely treatment being applied at 

critical stages. This early detection/rapid response 

method is now an integral part of early season 

operations. The figure to the right illustrates 

active larvae under a film of ice. 

Mosquito population control is most effective 

when the first hatch biomass potentials are 

greatly reduced through timely treatment at larval 

stage. 

Figure 1.2: Active larvae in Frozen Water 

1.4 Treatment Pesticide 

The RDOS uses a granular form of Bacillus thuringiensis var israelensis, more commonly referred to as 

Bti, to control mosquito larvae. Bti is a naturally occurring, non-toxic bacteria (found in the soil) which 

specifically targets mosquito and black fly larvae. For further information about Bti and how it works 

refer to the Health Canada-Bti fact sheet: 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

7 
 

Link to Health Canada BTI  https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/consumer-product-

safety/reports-publications/pesticides-pest-management/fact-sheets-other-resources/bacillus-

thuringiensis-subspecies-israelensis.html  

Bti has undergone nearly 40 years of lab/field research and over 30 years of large-scale operational use 

in a variety of public health programs around the globe.  

Bti is very target specific with activity largely restricted to mosquitoes and related flies (in the sub-order 

Nematocera of the order Diptera).  The specific pesticide product used by the RDOS in the MCP is 

VectoBac 200G, see the figures below. For further information on Vectobac 200G formulation has been 

provided in Appendix B. 

In addition to Bti’s non toxicity to beneficial insects, numerous toxicology studies have shown Bti to be 

non-pathogenic and non-toxic to other forms of wildlife (birds, fish, mammals, etc.) and humans.  The 

World Health Organization has approved the use of Bti for drinking water.  This is particularly important 

in many regions around the globe that depend on potable water or rain water stored in vessels in and 

around their home. Bti is the primary larvicide used for control in countries where Zika Virus can 

flourish.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1.3: VectoBac 200G    Figure 1.4: Pellets of VectoBac 200G 

1.5 Treatment Areas of Note 

The Similkameen Valley was significantly impacted from inflows into the river system this season. 

Ground water pressures from the Similkameen River caused pooling in many areas adjacent to the river, 

providing ideal habitat for very high larva counts through a large portion of the water column. When the 

Similkameen River overtopped its banks on May 1, the water further expanded the larvae filled flood 

waters.   

https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/consumer-product-safety/reports-publications/pesticides-pest-management/fact-sheets-other-resources/bacillus-thuringiensis-subspecies-israelensis.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/consumer-product-safety/reports-publications/pesticides-pest-management/fact-sheets-other-resources/bacillus-thuringiensis-subspecies-israelensis.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/consumer-product-safety/reports-publications/pesticides-pest-management/fact-sheets-other-resources/bacillus-thuringiensis-subspecies-israelensis.html


2020 MCP Year End Report 

8 
 

Cool weather and flooding persisted well into late July. Okanagan Lake finally dropped below full pool 

on July 29, but the entire Okanagan River system, north to south, remained a constant contributor to 

localized flooding into August.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1.5 (Above) – Wading through Water 

 MCP crew wading through flooded area due to 

groundwater push-up along the Similkameen 

River  

Figure 1.6 (Right) – Flood Water Extent:  

 Red shaded area illustrates extent of flood 

waters away from the Similkameen River and the approximate location where the above 

photograph was taken 

  



2020 MCP Year End Report 

9 
 

2. Mosquito Control Program Operation 

2.1 Operational Season 2020 

The annual weather conditions and resultant snowpack, lake, river and stream levels all play an integral 

role in the MCP variable start dates. Supervisory staff monitor weather and climate data, connect with 

Ministry authorities, such as main-stem lake level operations, to forecast potentials for the upcoming 

season.  

In 2020, high snow-pack(s), moderate temperatures, and increased early rainfall was the perfect storm 

forecast for early flooding. Larval population densities at the start of the season often exceeded 250 per 

single 250ml dip; the IPMP treatment threshold is 3 per dip. The figure below illustrates the high 

number of larvae seen in some dips. 

 

Figure 2.1: Larvae dips (2020)

          

 

The MCP program continued to 

utilize and refine the Early 

Detection/Rapid Response 

method for treatment. The 

Summerland ball fields in Dale 

Meadows have proven to be a 

good indicator for the start of 

the mosquito season. With the 

early detection of emerging 

larva activity, the MCP started 

monitoring and treatment in 

March. The earliest first 

helicopter flight in the program 

history occurred on April 17.  

As indicated above, the Similkameen Valley was significantly impacted from inflows into the river system 

this season. Ground water pressures from the Similkameen River caused pooling adjacent to the river, 

with larvae levels over 1000+/per 250ml dip. Larva distribution through the water column was observed 

much deeper than usual at depths over 112 cm.  

The treatment along the Similkameen River was complicated when the river overtopped its banks on 

May 1, expanding the already larvae filled flood waters.  A second mitigating helicopter flight took place 

on May 2 in efforts to reduce the spread of viable larvae.  

Localized flooding throughout the entire Okanagan River system were occurring until about mid-August 

due to the persistent cool weather and Okanagan Lake remaining above full pool until July 29th.   



2020 MCP Year End Report 

10 
 

A total of six helicopter flights were required this season. This increase from previous years, reflects the 

return to persistent flood waters in both the South Okanagan and Similkameen.  

Figure 2.2: Pre-flight safety check – prior to each flight: shown here with Global TV for their annual 

segment on the RDOS Mosquito Control Program 

 

Figure 2.3: Treatment Hopper under the Helicopter 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

11 
 

Using ArcGIS Collector (mapping and data collection), 

which RDOS IT/GIS developed specifically for the 

Mosquito program, continued to provide for full remote 

access for the crew and the collection/storage of data.  

Due to the risks of COVID-19, this application allowed the 

crew to stay safely out in the field for the season.  

Later in the season, in addition to the regular program 

deliverables, the Lower Similkameen Indian Band and 

RDOS collaborated to apply treatment to a small area on 

Band lands.  The work was performed under the RDOS 

Pest Management Plan with the endorsement of the 

Provincial Ministry. Over the winter, discussions will take 

place for collaboration potentials for the upcoming 2021 

season.  

 

 

 

Figure 2.4: Screenshots of ArcGis Collector on a cell 

phone 

 

In addition, new protocols were implemented and imbedded into the MCP Operational Safety Manual. 

Additional washing options, safety supplies and creative work-practices were developed to keep the 

crew safe and operational in the field.  

This season, 5,795.9 kg of VectoBac 200G granular larvicide was applied to 384 sites with a total area of 

438.5 hectares of mosquito breeding habitat. All applications were completed under the BC Ministry of 

Environment Pest Management Plan for the RDOS. 

2.2 Treatment Distribution for 2020 

Flood water mosquitos continued to be a concern into mid-summer as undulating water levels allowed 

multiple hatches to occur. This issue was most problematic in large, low lying wet lands close to 

communities, where a change as small as two inches in water table level can translate to entire areas re-

submerging.  

Larvaciding is done primarily by the ground crew on foot until sites are no longer safely accessible.  

The following tables and figures provide a record of the 2020 Mosquito Control Program treatment 

application records. Figure 2.5 provides the total treated area within each electoral area or municipality. 

Some of the sites were treated numerous times, which explains some of the large hectare totals as well 

as the large amounts of pesticide used in these areas as illustrated in Figure 2.6.  

 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

12 
 

 

Figure 2.5:  2020 Treated Area per Electoral Area or Municipality – layered multiple treatments 

 

 

Figure 2.6: 2020 Pesticide Use per Electoral Area or Municipality – Total of 5,795.9 kg 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

A
re

a 
tr

ea
te

d
 (

H
ec

ta
re

s)
Total Area Treated per Electoral Area or Municipality 

68.2

70.8

80.1

94.2

187.4

199.7

294.3

521.8

927.4

1440.4

1911.6

0.0 500.0 1000.0 1500.0 2000.0 2500.0

Osoyoos

Pentiction

Area I

Area H

Oliver

Area D

Summerland

Area A

Area G

Area C

Area B

Total Pesticide Use per Electoral Area or Municipality [kg]



2020 MCP Year End Report 

13 
 

The following table details the hours spent by the crew in each electoral area or municipality carrying 

out reconnaissance and treatment. The total percentage spent in each area during the 2020 season is 

also provided for information. 

 

Table 2.1 Time Allocation for each Electoral Area or Municipality – Total of 1,317.4 hours  

Percentage of time spent in each Area or Municipality  

Area or Municipality 
Treated 

Helicopter 
treatment 

Back-Pack 
treatment 

Total 
treatment 

time 

% of 
Total 
Time 

A 44.8 73.8 118.6 9.0 

B 317.3 117.2 434.5 33.0 

C 118.9 208.5 327.4 24.9 

D 19.5 25.9 45.4 3.4 

E 0 0 0 0.0 

F 0 0 0 0.0 

G 167.7 43.1 210.8 16.0 

H 0 21.4 21.4 1.6 

I 4.6 13.6 18.2 1.4 

Oliver 8.1 34.5 42.6 3.2 

Osoyoos 0 15.5 15.5 1.2 

Penticton 0 16.1 16.1 1.2 

Summerland 0 66.9 66.9 5.1 

2020 Totals 680.9 636.5 1317.4 100% 

 

  



2020 MCP Year End Report 

14 
 

3. Mosquito Populations 

Our mandate, first and foremost is to control mosquito larvae in their breeding sites. The high larval 

levels contained in the vast areas of flooded land made it necessary to begin treatment earlier than in 

past years. The Mosquito control program has a large area to monitor and treatment of these sites was 

critical in preventing the release of their adult mosquito population.  

In order to understand the most effective way to monitor and treat the breeding sites, it is important to 

be aware of the seasonal timing and emergence conditions for the different mosquito species.  

3.1 Climate Change and Mosquitos 

Climate change is effecting mosquito distribution. Over the last 20 years, 6 species of mosquito have 

been reported as newly established in Canada; in addition, 10 others have expanded their geographic 

range. Of these, 4 are well established throughout the RDOS: sticticus, cataphylla, campesris, and 

tarsalis.   

Four of the past five years the Okanagan and Similkameen have seen unprecedented water levels, 

adding to already established mosquito habitats, greatly increasing the area of ground where eggs are 

now deposited. The diverse species collected in our region reflects the variety of localized habitats and 

the impact that local weather conditions, snowpack, lake and river/creek levels have on their 

distribution.  

The two key factors of climate change that effect endemic mosquito populations in our region are an 

increase in median temperature, and changes in rainfall patterns. The survival of adult mosquitos is 

temperature and humidity dependent as forests, long grass, hedges and sheltered areas give good 

resting places for adult mosquitos and help to extend their life cycle.  

Temperature increases over summer reduce the ‘instar’ (larval) lifecycle stages dramatically requiring 

more frequent checks and treatment across the region. The increase in precipitation and the variability 

in timing have given the mosquito(s) more opportunity to flourish and expand its breeding ground. 

It is anticipated that both the mosquito lifecycle and virus transmission patterns will continue to be 

affected by climate change, resulting in an increase in both the range and local abundance of several key 

mosquito species.  

“Climate change is increasingly being recognized for its potential to adversely affect public health. One 

such consequence of climate change that has been described in the literature is a change in the 

distribution and habitat of mosquito vectors that are known to transmit disease.”  National Collaborating 

Centre for Infectious Disease, 2016 

3.2 Mosquito Sampling 

In 2019, in response to the changing mosquito species migrations, a new methodology was added to the 

RDOS Mosquito Control Program to determine the general population distribution for the different 

mosquito species over the season. The methodology involved larval collection and identification. Due to 

COVID-19 no samples were submitted for 2020, but are planned for the 2021 season.  



2020 MCP Year End Report 

15 
 

The protocols employed were provided by a reputable biologist and lab in Victoria. Samples from larval 

pools were obtained using consistent methods from multiple sites scattered throughout the RDOS then 

shipped to Victoria for identification. All sent samples were counted, identified and the larval stage, or 

instar, was noted. When larva are 3 instar and older, specific identification is relatively simple. However, 

due to their small size and immaturity, most 1 & 2 instar larval specimens could not be identified to 

species; in these situations, the larvae were identified to genus. 

In the industry, some vector control companies wait for the majority of the larvae at the site to be 3 

instar and older for more accurate classification; however, as all sites have larvae at different stages and 

if treatment is held off to allow more larvae to mature for classification, a large percentage of the larvae 

will be left untreated and enter the adult airborne stage.  

 

Figure 3.1: Collecting Larvae Samples in 2019 

In 2019, mosquito larvae samples were sent to Victoria for identification in April, May and July. 

Seventeen species of larval mosquitos were collected during the 2019 season: 11 Aedes, 3 Culiseta, two 

Culex, and one Anopheles. All of these mosquitos are able to produce multiple generations during the 

season if the right conditions persist.  

Data collected in 2019, shown in the figure below, illustrates the mosquito species identified.   



2020 MCP Year End Report 

16 
 

 

Figure 3.2: Mosquito Species Identified for 2019 Mosquito Season 

3.3 Mosquito Species Identification  

Aedes mosquitos make up the large majority of the mosquito population in the Okanagan and 

Similkameen valleys, and is typical for the rest of British Columbia. Aedes mosquitos, also known as 

flood water mosquitos, are noted for its aggressive biting behaviour, its strong flying ability, adaption to 

very cold water, ability to use a variety of water conditions, and in the case of the species Aedes 

cataphylla, the ability to mature 5 batches of eggs in one season. The 

Aedes species is also carries the canine heartworm. 

The Aedes species lays its eggs in the mud and wet earth as water 

retreats. The following year, when the water levels rise with the 

spring snowmelt, the eggs become saturated and the larvae hatch 

within a couple of days.  

Adult Aedes mosquitos hatch around the beginning of March and fly 

until the end of July. The females are capable of laying multiple 

batches of eggs (depending on the abundance of blood meals) per 

season. This process allows females to lay numerous egg batches within a close proximity to each other; 

resulting in a significant accumulation of eggs within one flood water pool. Again, this adds to the 

argument that controlling larvae populations before the first hatch of adults is the most effective way to 

control mosquito levels in the RDOS for the duration of the summer. 

Culiseta mosquito species appeared in the 2019 samples by the end of April. It is known as a serious 

pest to cattle but they also bite people. These mosquitos will fly in weather too cold for other insects 

and can be seen flying around on a winter day when the sun comes out.  

77%

9%

13%

1%

Mosquito species (based on sample %'s)

Aedes

Culex

Culiseta

Anopheles

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 3.3 Aedes vexans 

 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

17 
 

Larva can be found in ice covered pools and they often emerge when 

snow is still on the ground.  

It is the most widespread mosquito in BC and some Culiseta species 

keep pools of water teeming with larva all summer. They are a primary 

vector for Western Equine Encephalitis. 

 

 

Culex mosquito species were identified in samples from early May of 

2019. Traditionally, these mosquitoes are not present until late May to 

early June. This species will tolerate any water source, even highly 

polluted ones. They bite readily, will come into your house, and typically 

reproduce all summer long. As a primary vector of Western Equine 

Encephalitis and West Nile Virus, this species needs surveillance and a 

treatment regime. 

 

 

Anopheles mosquito species is persistent in their desire to enter 

houses. They bite freely after dark or in shaded areas. These mosquitos 

will use any type of water source for reproducing. This species was 

identified in the May 2019 samples. 

 

 

For information, the 2019 results for where the different species were 

found within the Okanagan-Similkameen region is included in Appendix A in this report.  

Data was not collected in 2020 for species identification by a biologist. The distribution of the mosquito 

species was anticipated to remain fairly consistent each year with about 75% of the mosquitos being 

from the Aedes species.  Species identification is planned to be included in the 2021 MCP season.  

 

3.4 Mosquito Biology  

In order to become adults, all mosquitoes need non-agitated water in their larval stage. Larvae must 

proceed through four stages called instars. Each stage requires a molt allowing the larvae to mature and 

increase in size. The final water stage is called a pupae during which a complete metamorphosis takes 

place and the winged form emerges. This entire process begins in early spring in snow-meltwater pools 

and usually takes a few weeks.  

With increased temperatures, this process accelerates and can complete in as little as 5-7 days. With 

normal temperatures, (daytime temperatures reaching 15 degrees) most mosquitoes require 7-14 days.  

 

Figure 3.4  

Culiseta inornata 

 

 

Figure 3.5 Culex tarsalis  

 

Figure 3.6  

Anopheles punctipennis 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

18 
 

Adult mosquitoes feed on plant nectar. However, the female mosquito requires a blood meal in order to 

complete the development of her eggs. Females will take blood as soon as the opportunity presents 

itself; if no blood is available, she will go looking for it. Although most mosquitoes do not have to fly far 

to find a blood source (1-2km), some species can fly great distances and up to great heights (30km from 

their origin and at heights up to 10,000 meters).  

With the mountain and valley topography, mosquitos are easily dispersed from the frequent winds thus 

placing an increased importance on finding and treating new larval sites. 

 

 

Figure 3.7:  Lifecycle of the Mosquito 

 

Floodwater mosquitoes (Aedes) lay their eggs in the soil of receding flood water where they overwinter 

in egg form waiting for the spring floods. These eggs can remain viable for upwards of 20 years and can 

endure deep cold. When the flood waters come, the eggs hatch synchronously, causing an intense 

biomass of flying insects that not even the most industrious of predators can hope to control. Large 

areas of flooded land increases the number of eggs ready to hatch in subsequent flooding events. 

Optimal Larvicide Window: 

2nd and 3rd Instar  

or Larval Stage 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

19 
 

Summer Mosquitoes (Culex, Culiseta, and Anopheles) lay their eggs on the water surface. The hotter the 

temperatures, the quicker the eggs hatch. These mosquitoes continue to lay eggs as long as there is 

water available and the temperatures remain above freezing. Once temperatures drop below freezing, 

the remaining hatched females breed and hide away until warmer temperatures return. As soon as 

temperatures allow, they are ready to take a blood meal first thing in the spring. 

 

3.5 MBD–Mosquito-Borne Diseases 

The mosquito as a vector for disease is the undisputed champion. Mosquito-borne diseases are 

increasing in Canada. According to the Canada Communicable Disease Department the changes in our 

climate is influencing the extent to which our mosquito vectors spread viruses. Mosquito-borne diseases 

in our endemic populations have been increasing and new species (and associated pathogens) moving 

into other territories will only add to the risk of infections.  

West Nile virus (WNv) is familiar to us here in western Canada, but other endemic mosquito borne 

diseases in the area include  Western Equine Encephalitis and two California serogroup viruses : 

Jamestown Canyon virus and the Snowshoe Hare virus. The serogroup viruses can be transmitted by a 

number of mosquito species, and the virus has been found in all provinces and the North West 

Territories. These viruses can cause febrile illness and neurological disease in humans.  Our canine 

companions also need to be protected from Canine Heartworm.  

Unfortunately, diagnosing many of these infections is difficult because of their non-specific symptoms 

and the low level of awareness among health care practitioners. Climate change will continue to expand 

mosquito habitats, their associated diseases and the extension of our mosquito season; our response 

must be to meet these challenges with continued and expanded surveillance, backed by science and 

appropriate treatment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 3.8: Adult mosquito resting on the vehicle dashboard 

 

  



2020 MCP Year End Report 

20 
 

4.  Public Information  

4. 1 Preventative Measures  

Mosquitos occur in a wide variety of habitats; removal of standing water and control of mosquito 

breeding sites should be a priority for homeowners. In a 250 ml dip, one larva can translate into an 

excess of 10,000 mosquitoes emerging from a small backyard pond or swimming pool. Left untreated, or 

undrained, the resultant adult mosquito population will cause noticeable annoyance for local residents. 

Tires, lawn depressions, gutters, animal feeders, birdbaths, all assortment of man-made containers, 

leaking irrigation and rain events can all be harbingers of larvae. Decorative ponds should be aerated 

with a fountain or aeration device.  

 

 

Figure 4.1 Mosquito Program Brochure 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

21 
 

4.2 Common Questions and Answers   

Q: How does the RDOS control mosquitos?   

A: With the use of environmentally friendly pesticide. The RDOS uses a granular product called 

Vectobac®. Small pieces of crushed corn are saturated with an active ingredient called Bacillus 

thuringiensis var israelensis (Bti). The Bti is ‘stuck’ to granules using paraffin wax. The product is placed 

on the water surface where the active ingredient is released. Mosquito larvae are filter feeders and 

when they ingest the bacteria it creates a toxin in their gut which terminates them. 

Q: Can Bti have negative effects on humans and other animals?  

A:  Bti is a non-toxic naturally occurring bacteria which has been successfully used as a biological pest 

control agent to combat mosquitoes and black flies since 1982. There has been significant research on 

the product during its long period of worldwide use. As a listed pesticide, research continues to show its 

effectiveness on these 2 targeted organisms (mosquito and black fly larva). There have been no 

registered poisonings of humans due to an intake of Bti. 

Q: Do I have to pay for mosquito control?  

A: Mosquito control is paid for by the entire Electoral Area or Municipality in which you reside. 

Therefore, all residents in the area are part of the program even if control is not on their property. 

Q: Does the RDOS treat everywhere there is mosquito populations?  

A: No. Private property owners must ask for mosquito control to be conducted on their property. Crews 

only treat where permission has been granted. Also, most conservancies do not allow any form of 

mosquito control. Additionally, if an Electoral Area or Municipality has chosen not to contribute to the 

program funding, that area will not be treated. 

Q: Can I get sick from a mosquito bite? 

A: Mosquitoes are vectors for disease. The biggest killers in tropical countries are Malaria and Yellow 

Fever. Here in BC, mosquito bites can result in extreme allergic reactions and/or secondary infections. 

Diseases like Canine Heart-Worm, Western Equine Encephalitis and West Nile Virus are transmitted 

between birds and mosquitoes to family pets, livestock and humans. Recently, the mosquito-vectored 

virus that causes Zika has become a major health concern in many areas of the world including the 

southern USA.  The primary vector for Zika, Ae. aegypti, does not find our current climate hospitable, 

but with a changing climate and the possibility of competent secondary mosquito vectors, Canada has 

employed two specialty labs to study and monitor the situation.  

Q: Can I purchase BTI? 

A: Yes, Duka Environmental supplies 5kg bags of BTI that can be used only in stagnant water on your 

own property. 

 

 

 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

22 
 

5. RDOS Integrated Pest Management Plan and Bylaws 

5.1 Integrated Pest Management Plan (IPMP) 

The RDOS is required to have an active, approved Integrated Pest Management Plan in place at all times. 

The plan expires every five years, and reapplication is required. Costs are adjusted in correlation to 

amount of hectares to be treated as determined from manual data supplied to the Province after the 

treatment season ends.   

Significant consultation is required when a new IPMP is developed, including all Indigenous peoples who 

have rights or claims on the area to be treated.  

Link to IPMP: http://www.rdos.bc.ca/departments/public-works/pest-control/  

 

 

 

Figure 5.1 – Integrated Pest Management Plan  

 

5.2 Service Establishment Bylaw and Update 

The current bylaw in place for the Mosquito Control Program is located at the following link. 

Link to Bylaw 2602-2014: 

http://www.rdosmaps.bc.ca/min_bylaws/bylaws/engineering/2014/BL2602.pdf    

 

http://www.rdos.bc.ca/departments/public-works/pest-control/
http://www.rdosmaps.bc.ca/min_bylaws/bylaws/engineering/2014/BL2602.pdf


2020 MCP Year End Report 

23 
 

5.3 Program Cost Comparison 

The RDOS has had a long standing in-house MCP. It is prudent to continuously evaluate the cost to 

benefit ratio of an in-house versus contracted service, in order to insure ratepayers are getting the most 

value for tax dollars spent. The RDOS uses the Central Okanagan as a nearby, similar geographical area 

who uses a very reputable contracted service provider as a comparison. The information is publically 

accessible on their website (as are the RDOS MCP annual budgets and reports.  

Regional District of Central Okanagan MCP - Excerpt 2019 Annual Report: 

https://www.regionaldistrict.com/media/279320/2019_Mosquito_Report.pdf  

A total of some 1,248 kilograms of VectoBac 200G were applied to a total area of 166.37 hectares of 

active larval mosquito development habitat. Some 190 sites were treated on a total of 816 separate 

occasions. Although many sites were only treated on 1 or 2 occasions during 2019, numerous sites were 

treated 3 or 4 times and several sites were treated 15 or more times. A total of 19,806 catch basins were 

treated during two treatment campaigns: Approx annual costs $200,000. 

Note that the RDCO catch basins are close together, easily accessible and very quickly treated  

Table: RDOS and RDCO Mosquito Control Program Comparison for 2019 

 Hectares treated ~Annual Budget Costs Larvicide kg totals 

RDCO 166.37 $200,000 1,248 

RDOS  384.5 $176,000 5,795.9 

 

Rationale for RDOS In-house MCP: 

For some provided services, a contracted company is the best option to supply an annual or seasonal 

service. In this case, the RDOS benefits substantially from continuing to keep the MCP as a seasonal 

employee in-house program: 

 Mosquito crew members are internalized and become a recognized part of the RDOS staff team 

 Crew can and do supply area specific information back to the RDOS: topography, logistics etc. 

 Local knowledge is important, time saving and a resource tool for other Dept.’s 

 Crew have and can be used in Emergency Operations for recognisance, delivery and as active 

participants in mitigation 

 Crew are used to transport goods and materials to outlying RDOS offices or facilities 

 Crew members are a first contact for many residents, and therefor provide information and 

assistance to citizens that contract providers cannot. 

 

 

  

https://www.regionaldistrict.com/media/279320/2019_Mosquito_Report.pdf


2020 MCP Year End Report 

24 
 

Species Charateristics 
Location 

(2019)

Aedes Sticticus

◦Viscous biters day or 

night   ◦Several mile 

flight range          ◦Hatch 

immediately after eggs 

are flooded in the spring                                                        

Eastgate, Chopaka

Aedes Cataphylla

◦Aggressive biter, bites 

in broad daylight  ◦ 

Strong flyer  

predominant species of 

the dry interior 

grasslands/pastures, 

snowmelt pools, forests  

one ◦Female can mature 

5 batches of eggs in 1 

season

Princeton, 

Summerland

Aedes Implicatus

◦Vigorously bites in 

shaded areas snowmelt 

pools or rain pool 

woodland mosquito 

◦Emerges early

Oliver, Princeton, 

Caweston, 

Summerland, 

Osoyoos

Aedes Fitchii

Strong flyer – is a 

nuisance up to 1500m 

snow pool breeder ◦ 

Likes open grassland and 

wooded environment  

Chopaka, Osoyoos

Aedes Intrudens

◦Vicious biter day or 

night ◦ A big nuisance as 

they enter buildings 

readily through the 

smallest of openings ◦ 

Prefer woodland areas, 

bogs and snow pools

Chopaka

Aedes Dorsalis

◦Live and breed in fresh 

and salt water – major 

beach pest ◦ Continuous 

summer breeder

Eastgate 

Aedes Campestris

◦Attack even in the 

extreme heat of the day 

– attack in swarms bite 

all day ◦ Wide flight 

range ◦ Like alkaline 

pools and water rich in 

organic matter

Osoyoos

 

APPENDIX A: 2019 Sampled Species, their Characteristics and Location 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

25 
 

Species Charateristics 
Location 

(2019)

Aedes Vexan

◦Major cause of daytime 

annoyance ◦ Wide distribution in 

Canada ◦ Strong flyer 20-50 km; 

100’s of km when they get into 

the jet streamrequire ◦  Flooding 

may immerse eggs  several times 

in any one season each initiating 

a further hatch

All Areas

Aedes Impiger ◦Prefer high evelations

Princeton, 

Osoyoos, 

Summerlan

d

Culiseta Inornata

◦Serious biter of cattle ◦ wide 

distribution across BC ◦ Fly when 

it is too cold for other insects ◦ 

Larvae found in ice covered pools 

◦ Main transmitter of WEE

Osoyoos, 

Oliver

Culiseta Impatiens

◦ Emerge when snow is still on 

the ground ◦ Mainly bite cattle 

and humans

Osoyoos, 

Oliver

Culiseta Incidens

◦ Loves to bite on warm evenings 

◦ Very large in size ◦  Most 

common widespread mosquito in 

BC

Summerlan

d

Culex Tarsalis

◦ Bite readily and enter houses ◦ 

Any water source will do even 

with high degree of pollution ◦ 

Several generations per summer 

◦ Vaccinate horses for WEE and 

West Nile

Osoyoos, 

Oliver, 

Culex Territans

◦Breed in permanent pools and 

swamps ◦ Do not like polluted 

water ◦ Mainly amphibian biter

Oliver, 

Osoyoos

Anopheles Punctipennis

◦Bite freely after dark ◦ Breed any 

type of water ◦ Persistent in 

entering houses

Caweston, 

Oliver, 

Osoyoos  

 

 

 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

26 
 

APPENDIX B: Larvacide Credentials and Details 

 

 

 

 

  



2020 MCP Year End Report 

27 
 

 

 

 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

28 
 

 

 

 



2020 MCP Year End Report 

29 
 

 

 

  



2020 MCP Year End Report 

30 
 

APPENDIX C: References 

 

1. Public Health Agency of Canada, “Government of Canada,” Endemic mosquito-borne diseases 

due to climate changes - Canada.ca, 04-Apr-2019. [Online]. Available: 

https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/reports-publications/canada-communicable-

disease-report-ccdr/monthly-issue/2019-45/issue-4-april-4-2019/article-3-endemic-mosquito-

borne-diseases-climate-change.html. [Accessed: 02-Aug-2019]. 

 

2. P. Belton, The Mosquitoes of British Columbia. Victoria: British Columbia Provincial Museum, 

1983. 

 

 

 

Acknowledgements: The program would like to acknowledge the contributions from RDOS administration 

staff, front counter staff and the dedicated flight staff at Eclipse Helicopters for assisting in the successful 

execution of the program every year.    Zoë Kirk, Supervisor RDOS MCP  

 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Corporate Services Committee 

Thursday, October 15, 2020 
11:15 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Meeting of October 15, 2020 be adopted. 

 
 

B. Q3 UPDATES – For Information Only 
1. Activity Report 
2. Communications Report 

 
 

C. Q3 CORPORATE ACTION PLAN – For Information Only 
 

 
D. Q3 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT – For Information Only 
 
 
E. BOARD POLICY REVIEW 

a. Draft Revised Fleet Acquisition Policy 
b. Draft Revised Exempt Employee Performance Planning and Review Policy 
c. Draft Public Complaint Resolution Policy 
d. Draft Official Recognition Policy 
e. Bylaw Enforcement – Pre-existing, Non-Compliant Buildings, Structures, or Things That Have Been 

Denied Variance Permits Policy 
f. Anti-Idling for RDOS Fleet Vehicles 
g. Proclamation Policy 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 

 
1. THAT the Board of Directors adopt the amended “Fleet Acquisition, Replacement and Disposal 

Policy”, and the amended “Exempt Employee Performance Planning and Review Policy”. 
 

2. THAT the Board of Directors adopt the new “Public Complaint Resolution” and the “Official 
Recognition” policies. 
 

3. THAT the Board of Directors rescind the “Bylaw Enforcement – Pre-existing, Non-Compliant 
Buildings, Structures, or Things That Have Been Denied Variance Permits”, the “Anti-Idling for 
RDOS Fleet Vehicles” and the “Proclamation” policies. 

 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/B.1. Q3 Activity 
Report - Corporate Services.Docx File No: 
Page 1 of 4 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Corporate Services Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Q3 2020 Activity Report 
 
LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

2020 Q3 Completed Activities 
 

· Launch and promotion of RDOS Regional Connections public engagement software with 
first two projects – Organics Facility and Citizen Survey 

· Activated Info Section for Christie Mountain Fire and conducted daily media events 
· Implemented alternative and innovative ways to communicate both internally and 

externally during the Ransomware event 
· Completed Phase 3 of 2020 Policy Review 
· Formalized budget communication strategy for 2020/21 
· Commenced the process for investigation of an Apex Fire Service  
· Finalized review of proposals for Meeting Management Software 
· Developed Terms of Reference for InterCom internal communications committee 
· Created Service Area and Loan Authorization bylaws for Kaleden extension of OK Falls Sewer 
· Developed strategy for Compost Facility public engagement and hosted Town Hall 
· Introduced Ombudsperson Fairness Guides for staff 
· Finalized Open Burning Bylaw and Burning Authorization process 

 
Q4 Planned Activities 

· Introduce Public Complaint Resolution and Recognition policies 
· Introduce Privacy Management Program 
· Commence Phase 4 of the 2020 Policy Review 
· Host Privacy Commissioner/Office of the Ombudsperson event November 5 
· Conduct Legislative Workshop November 6 
· Present policy recommendations resulting from Provincial Legislative Assembly Audit 
· Introduce comprehensive Board report template and guidelines 
· Continue promotion of CivicReady 
· Continue with outreach and securing of Community Champion program in each electoral 

area 
· Analyse Citizen Survey results and report on findings for formation of 2021 initiatives 

  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/B.1. Q3 Activity 
Report - Corporate Services.Docx File No: 
Page 2 of 4 
 

2.0 INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

2020 Q3 – Completed Activities 
 

· Electronic Document Management System (EDMS) 
o Implementing automatic declaration of records 

· Decommission and remove old backup machine 
· Move RDOS backup file storage to SD67 
· Perform updates (Windows and GIS) on EOC mobile server and thin clients 
· Continue work moving data from current development tracking software to new software 
· Configure new physical server to host virtual servers and improve performance with existing 

application 
· Move 911 and trails applications to new web mapping platform 
· Pilot citizen engagement GIS applications with Community Services (parks, trails and 

facilities) 
· Update phones and IT equipment in OK Falls office 
· Set up new switch and servers 

 
2020 Q4 – Planned Activities 

· Setup Network Monitoing system. 
· Complete and Present IT Assesment Report. 
· Mitigate issues resulting from Attempted Ransomeware Attack. 
· Setup of New Remote Access system for Staff and Exertnal Users. 
· Implemetation of a MFA (Multi-Factor Autorization) system. 
· Deployment of new Networking to accommodate SCADA Masterplan. 
· Update internet mapping with new information from Geotech Hazard Study 
· Update internal GIS map viewers to Web App builder 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/B.1. Q3 Activity 
Report - Corporate Services.Docx File No: 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

2020 Q3 – Completed Activities 
 

· Completed implementation of HRIS My Way timekeeping software  
· Continue to convert vendors to EFT payments 
· Submitted 2019 LGDE and SOFI Report   
· Launched 2021 RDOS/OSRHD budget process 
· Prepared 117 manual paycheques during system outage 
· Prepared projections for revenue and expenditures to year-end 
· EMBC 2019 Claim Submissions totalling $1,000,000  
· Began 2021 Property Tax Exemption process 

 

2020 Q4 – Planned Activities 
 

· Budget Committee preparation 
· Prepare 2021-2025 budget bylaw for 1st reading at Board 
· Submit Board adopted 2021 Permissive Tax Exemptions 
· Update purchasing card processes 
· Support Fire Departments in CEP Grant reporting 
· Fill Accountant position 
· Finalize all EMBC claim submissions for 2020 
· Fill Asset Management position 

 

4.0 HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
  

2020 Q3 Completed Activities 
· Coordinated staffing recruitments as required   
· Worked with the BCGEU on finalizing MOUs for the new Collective Agreement and updated 

exempt staff on the changes 
· Provided additional resources and created a buddy system to support staff mental health and 

address overall staff well being as the pandemic evolved 
· Complied with WorkSafeBC and Provincial health requirements to provide safe workspaces 
· Developed necessary safe work procedures and programs to address exposure controls 
· Assisted departments with pandemic messaging and safety protocols 
· Assisted departments with tracking safety supply inventory (e.g. PPE, hand sanitizer etc.) 
· Completed the annual OH&S statistical report 
· Supported the Emergency Operations Centre in a Logistics capacity as required 

 
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/B.1. Q3 Activity 
Report - Corporate Services.Docx File No: 
Page 4 of 4 
 

2020 Q4 Planned Activities 
· Coordinate educational and engagement opportunities for staff with respect to mental health 

well-being 
· Represent HR at Interdependency, Strategic Planning and Business Continuity Sessions for 

2020 
· Continue to monitor safety supplies and responding to the changing dynamic with respect to 

COVID-19 
· Finalize 2020 targeted safety programs and safe work procedures 
· Develop the 2021 budget for HR 
· Continue to review every job description on current maintenance schedule and evaluate new 

positions as needed 
· Provide additional opportunites to update staff on the changes to the Collective Agreement 
· Train the new Exempt Job Evaluation Committee on the HayGroup program 
· Coordinate 360 degree reviews for supervisors and managers 
· Organize and conduct the 2020 Staff Perception Survey 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/B.2. Q3 
Communications Update.Docx File No:  
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Corporate Services Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Q3 Communications Update – For Information Only 
 
Communications  
2020 Q3 Completed Activities 
 

· RDOS 2021 Budget Public Engagement: Finalized the plan and presented it to the Board 
· Citizen Survey: Presented proposed questions to the Board 
· Emergency Operations Centre: Prepared and distributed information releases  
· Community FireSmart Website: Finalized content, forwarded to I.S. to build (Grant Funding) 
· RDOS Regional Connections: Prepared site elements 
· COVID-19: Worked with CAO to provide regular updates 
· Loose Bay Campground: Prepared media briefing notes for Chair, attended steering 

committee conference calls, provided messaging background information to the District of 
Summerland 

· Proposed Organics Composting Site: Finalize Pubic Engagement strategy and materials 
· Public Meetings: Distributed an information release about electronic board meetings 
· West Bench Transit Survey: Distributed information release  
· Federal Funding Announcement: Shared Media Release and Backgrounder re: Fed-Provincial 

Infrastructure Grants for Naramata Recreation Access and Enhancement and Willowbrook 
Water Treatment: Chlorine Contact System 

· Canada Day Video Message from the Chair   
 
Q4 Planned Activities 
 

· Citizen Survey: Finalize Questions, Prepare Regional Connections Survey and Public 
Engagement 

· RDOS Regional Connections: Prepare to launch site with Citizen Survey 
· FireSmart Website: Oversee site content and construction  
· Proposed Organics Composting Site Public Engagement – Pending  
· RDOS Fire Department Burning Bylaw – Provide Public Engagement support 
· COVID-19 and Emergency Operations Centre: Distribute updates as required 
· Web and Communications Committee – InterComm: Finalize Terms of Reference and hold 

inaugural meeting 
· RDOS Community Champions: Finalize List and information distribution strategy 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/B.2. Q3 
Communications Update.Docx File No:  
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Erick Thompson 
___________________________________________ 
Communications Coordinator 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 Corporate Action Plan 
 
 

Q3 Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2020 Business Plan Adopted by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2020



 
 

 

2020 Corporate Action Plan 
(Adopted 19 March 2020) 

Dashboard 
 

# Objective Status Page 

1.1.1 By achieving a high standard of financial management and reporting  1 
1.1.2 By being an effective local government  1 
1.2.1 By implementing the 2020 joint occupational health and safety 

action plan 
 

2 

1.3.1 By implementing an Organizational Development Program  2 

2.1.1 By promoting regional district facilities and services  2 
2.1.2 By engaging our citizens in the development and improvement of our 

programs 
 

3 

2.2.1 By continuously improving bylaws, policies and process within the 
organization 

 
3 

2.2.2 By implementing the regional transit future plan  4 
3.1.1 By reviewing and updating the emergency management program  4 
3.1.2 By implementing the Regional Trails Program  5 
3.1.3 By implementing the 2019 phase of the parks program  5 
3.1.4 By providing public recreational opportunities  5 
3.2.1 By implementing the Asset Management Plan  6 
3.2.2 By Initiating the Economic Development program for Electoral Area D  6 
3.2.3 By Reviewing Long-Range Planning Documents  6 

3.3.1 By implementing the 2019 Phase of the Solid Waste Management 
Plan 

 
7 

3.3.2 By implementing the Campbell Mountain Landfill infrastructure 
upgrades and requirements 

 
7 

3.3.3 By enhancing the Okanagan Falls Waste Water Treatment System  8 
3.3.4 By enhancing Regional District Water System Delivery  8 
4.1.1 By executing the Strategic Planning and Enterprise Risk 

Management Programs 
 

9 

4.2.1 By improving Regional District/ Municipal Relations  9 

 



 
 

 

 
Dashboard 

 
 

 
 
 
Action Plan Definitions: 
CAO = Chief Administrative Officer  
MCS = Manager of Community Services 
MFS = Manager of Financial Services 
MHR = Manager of Human Resources 
MIS = Manager of Information Systems 
MLS = Manager of Legislative Services 
MPS = Manager of Planning Services 
MBE = Manager of Building and Enforcement 
MES = Manager of Engineering Services 
MO = Manager of Operations

Progress Colour Key: 

No Issues 

Minor issue(s) 

Significant issue(s) 

GREEN 

YELLOW 

RED 

 

For the full detail on each corporate 
objective refer to the appropriate # 
or page # in the document attached 
hereto. 

Status Colour Key: 
Q1 – Black  
Q2 – Red  
Q3 -  Blue  
Q4 -  Green 



 
 

Page 1 
 

Corporate Action Plan 2020 
 

 

Goal 1.1 To Be an Effective, Fiscally Responsible Organization 
Objective 1.1.1 - By achieving a high standard of financial management and reporting 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

1.1.1.1 Receipt of an unqualified independent audit for 2019 MFS Q2 Complete 

1.1.1.2 Adoption of an informed 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan  MFS Q1 Complete 

1.1.1.3 Successfully meeting budget in 95% of established services MFS Q4 In Progress 

1.1.1.4 Enhance the strength of performance indicators in the MD&A MFS Q4 In Progress 

1.1.1.5 Review each program to determine if reserves are required 
and, if so, at what level. MFS Q4 

In Progress 

1.1.1.6 Develop a Fees and Charges Policy to provide a decision-
making directive for the pricing of services;  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

MLS/ 
MFS Q3 

Move to Q4 

 

 

Objective 1.1.2 - By being an effective local government 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 
1.1.2.1 Develop a workspace plan  MCS Q3 In Progress 

Move to Q4 
1.1.2.2 Complete negotiations for a revised collective agreement 

CAO Q1 
Complete 

1.1.2.3 Conduct Process Reviews on:  
· Invoicing  
· All external facility cash management  
· Landfill processes (entry to billing) 

MFS Q4  
· In Progress 
· Refer to Audit 
· Complete 
 

1.1.2.4 Complete external IT assessment to better use 
technology at the RDOS. 
 
 

MIS Q3 Contract awarded 
In Progress 
Q4 

 

 
 

1.1.2.5 Conduct cyber security training for all staff and Rural 
Directors 

MIS Q3 Move to Q4 

1.1.2.6 Implement leadership training initiatives (Administrative 
Fairness, Transparency, FOI 

MLS Q4 Legislative Wkshp 

Key Success Driver 1.0:  To Be a High Performing Organization  
 



 
 

Page 2 
 

 

Goal 1.2 To Be a Healthy and Safe Organization 
Objective 1.2.1 By implementing the 2020 joint occupational health and safety  program 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 
1.2.1.1 Identify areas of regulatory non-compliance and develop 

a plan to close the gap 
MHR Q2 Complete 

1.2.1.2 Keep the RDOS injury rate below the average for our 
WorkSafe BC classification unit 

MHR Q3 Complete 

1.2.1.3 Implement an ergonomics program review throughout the 
organization 

MHR Q4 In Progress 

 

Goal 1.3 To Cultivate a High Performing Organizational Culture 
Objective 1.3.1 By implementing an Organizational Development Program 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 
1.3.1.1 Develop and support an employee organizational 

development committee MHR Q1 
Complete 

1.3.1.2 Create a 2020 organizational development action plan 
MHR Q2 

On hold 
Suspended 

1.3.1.3 Provide 360 evaluations for all supervisory staff MHR Q4  

1.3.1.4 Conduct a 2020 Staff Perception Survey MHR Q4  

1.3.1.5 Show improved results on the 2020 Staff Perception 
Survey over the 2019 Survey MHR Q4 

 

 

 

Goal 2.1 To Provide a High Level of Customer Service  
Objective 2.1.1 By promoting regional district facilities and services 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

2.1.1.1 Develop a marketing program to promote understanding of 
RDOS Facilities and Services 

MLS Q2 Q4 - Modified 
due to COVID 

2.1.1.2 Implement a rigorous program for the PAT trailer in 2020 MCS Q3 Modified due 
to COVID 

2.1.1.3 Evaluate our current regional recreation program initiative 
and submit an opportunities report 

MCS Q3 In Progress 

 
 

Key Success Driver 2.0:  To Optimize the Customer Experience 



 
 

Page 3 
 

 
 
Objective: 2.1.2 By engaging our citizens in the development and improvement of our 

programs 
# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

2.1.2.1 Conduct 4 service-related quality assurance surveys MLS Q3 In progress 
1 to go 

2.1.2.3 Initiate a 2020 Communication/Public Engagement 
Plan 

MLS Q1 Complete 

2.1.2.3 Develop a schedule and attend community events 
throughout the Regional District 

MLS Q4 Schedule 
complete, but no 
events 

2.1.2.4 Investigate the cost of technology to provide publicly 
accessible Board meetings 

MIS Q3 In progress 
Move to Q4 

2.1.2.5 To investigate the establishment of a cemetery service 
for Electoral Area G 

MLS Q4 Complete 

 
 
 
Goal 2.2 To Meet Public Needs Through the Continuous Improvement of Key Services  

Objective 2.2.1 By improving bylaws, policy and process within the organization 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

2.2.1.1 Bring 20 policies to Committee in 2020 for review MLS Q4 In progress 
Complete 

2.2.1.2 Bring 8 Regulatory Bylaws forward to the Board for 
discussion and updating 

MLS Q3 In progress 
Complete 

2.2.1.3 Update Invasive weeds and pest bylaws into a single 
Invasive Species Bylaw 

MLS Q3 Pending ministry 
approval 

2.2.1.4 Adoption of an Okanagan Valley Consolidated Zoning 
Bylaw   

MPS Q3 Delayed 
Q4 

2.2.1.5 Adoption of a Works and Servicing Bylaw MPS Q3 Delayed 
Q4 

2.2.1.6 Implementation of new Development Services software MBE Q4 In Progress 

2.2.1.7 To design and conduct a citizen survey in the regional 
district electoral areas 

MLS Q3 Launch in Q3 
Underway 

 

  



 
 

Page 4 
 

 

 

Objective 2.2.2   By implementing the 2020 phase of the regional transit future plan 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

2.2.2.1 Implement the 2020 phase of the Penticton – Kelowna 
Service 

MCS Q4 Suspended 

2.2.2.2 Implement the West Bench Service MCS Q4 Suspended 

 

 
 

 
 
KSD 3: BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE REGION  
Goal 3.1 To Develop a Socially Sustainable Region 
Objective 3.1.1 By reviewing and updating the emergency management program 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

3.1.1.1 Review and update the emergency program bylaw MCS Q2 Complete 

3.1.1.2 Review and update the emergency response plan MCS Q2 Complete 

3.1.1.3 Develop an emergency response plan exercise 
program and implement the 2020 phase 

MCS Q2 
 

Complete 

3.1.1.4 Upgrade the Kaleden E911 infrastructure MCS Q3 Complete 

3.1.1.5 Commence the process to initiate a flood management 
mitigation service for Electoral Areas C and I 

MLS Q3 Detailed Design 
commenced 

3.1.1.6 To investigate the conversion of the Lower Nipit 
Improvement District Letters Patent to the RDOS 

MLS Q3 Planning Grant 
Underway 

3.1.1.7 To investigate the development of the Old Kaleden 
Road as an emergency egress 

MCS Q3 MoTI Road 
Started 

 
  

Key Success Driver 3.0:  To Build a Sustainable Region 



 
 

Page 5 
 

 
 
Objective 3.1.2: By implementing the regional trails program 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

3.1.2.1 Apply for tenure on the Okanagan River Flood Works 
between Road 9 to 18 

MCS Q2 Q3 
Complete 

3.1.2.2 Apply for tenure on the Okanagan Channel Flood 
Works between Road 22 and the McAlpine Bridge 

MCS Q2 Q3 
Complete 

3.1.2.3 Upon successful acquisition, cost the paving of the 
Canal trail between Road 22 and Road 9 

MCS Q3 2-Year 
timeline 

3.1.2.4 Commence planning for a hike and bike link over Fairview 
Rd. into the Similkameen 

MCS Q3 Not 
Promising 

 

 
 

Objective 3.1.3: By implementing the 2020 Phase of the Parks Program 

 
 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

3.1.3.1 Implement the 2020 phase of the Heritage Hills Park 
development plan 

 MCS Q4 Underway 
Complete 

3.1.3.2 Implement the 2020 phase of the park development 
plan for the Coalmont Park  

 MCS Q2 Complete 

3.1.3.3 Implement the 2020 phase of the Wharf Park 
development plan 

MCS Q3 MoTI 

3.1.3.4 Implement the 2020 phase of the Manitou Park 
development plan  

MCS Q4 Grant 
received 

3.1.3.5 Implement the land acquisition process for West Bench 
Elementary School for public purposes 

MCS Q3 Q4 

3.1.3.6 Develop a Regional Parks and Trails Master Plan MCS Q4 Deferred due 
to COVID-19 

3.1.3.7 Work with the Apex Community Association to establish 
a Parks and Recreation Service 

MLS Q3 No contact 

3.1.3.8 To determine the status of the 1912 Hotel and respond on the 
grant request for the stabilization project 

MCS Q3 Included in 
Parks 
Master Plan 

Objective 3.1.4: By providing public recreational opportunities 
 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

3.1.4.1 Devise a plan to renovate the Similkameen 
Swimming Pool 

MCS Q3 Underway 



 
 

Page 6 
 

 
 

Goal 3.2 To Develop an Economically Sustainable Region  
Objective: 3.2.1: By Implementing the Asset Management Plan 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 
3.2.1.1 Commence implementation of Stage 4 of the Asset 

Management Plan 
MFS Q4 In Progress 

3.2.1.2 To introduce an asset/supply chain management 
program to the Regional District 

MFS Q3 In Progress 

 
 
 
Objective: 3.2.2: Initiating the Economic Development program of Electoral Area D 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 
3.2.2.1 Development of an Area “D” Economic Development 

Strategic Plan 
 

MPS Q3 In Progress 
Complete 

 
 

Objective: 3.2.3: By Reviewing Long-Range Planning Documents  

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 
3.2.3.1 Initiate the development of an Electoral Area “G” Official 

Community Plan 
MPS Q4 (RFP Released) 

Re-issued 

3.2.3.2 Complete the finalized draft of Electoral Area “A” Official 
Community Plan 

MPS Q4 (Draft OCP Done) 
Consultation issue 

3.2.3.3 Initiate review of the South Okanagan Regional Growth 
Strategy 

MPS Q2 RFP Closed 

3.2.3.4 Initiate a collaborative Regional Housing Needs Report  MPS Q2 Complete 
 

3.2.3.5 Initiate a Kaleden Area Development Plan upon 
successful creation of a Kaleden sewerage project 

MPS Q4 Pending 

3.2.3.6 Review the Electoral Area “I” Zoning Bylaw to establish 
controls  for tiny homes, shipping containers and B&B at 
Apex Mountain Resort. 

MPS Q4 On Track 

3.2.3.7 Explore alternative energy sources to determine 
financial and environmental benefit 

MCS Q4 Sustainability 
Coordinator 

 
 
 



 
 

Page 7 
 

 
 
 
Goal 3.3: To Develop an Environmentally Sustainable Region 
 
Objective: 3.3.1:By implementing the 2020 Phase of the Solid Waste Management Plan 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 
3.3.1.1 Acquire a north regional organics facility site MO Q4 Complete 

3.3.1.2 Commence development of the Oliver Organics Facility MES Q2 Complete 

3.3.1.3 Work with the City of Penticton to create a plan to 
relocate the Penticton Compost Facility at CMLF 

MO Q4 2021 

3.3.1.4 Complete a waste composition study (SWMP) MO Q4  

 
 

 
  

 Objective: 3.3.2: By implementing the Campbell Mountain Landfill infrastructure upgrades 
and requirements 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS  
3.3.2.1 Complete the leachate treatment system review for 

design and  implementation in 2021 
 

MES Q4 On track 

3.3.2.2 Submit the revised Substituted Requirement application 
to MOE for the BioCover Project and proceed with 
landfill gas management system design  

MES Q4 application 
submitted 

3.3.2.3 Submit leachate test results for the Keremeos landfill 
closure plan to MOE for approval  

MES Q4 
 

On track (wells 
installed) 

3.3.2.4 · Complete the detailed design of a revised 
entrance/exit for CML  

· Obtain any Land required for the access  
· Commence construction and scale purchase 

MES  
Q3 
Q4 
2021 

Under 
reconsideration 



 
 

Page 8 
 

 
 

 
 
Objective: 3.3.4: By enhancing the Regional District Water System Delivery 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 
3.3.4.1 Develop a Source Water Protection Plan for the 

Naramata Water System  
MO Q4 On Track 

3.3.4.2 Completion of Olalla Water System Generator 
construction and commissioning 

MES Q2 Complete 

3.3.4.3 Installation of SCADA system in the Missezula Lake 
Water System 

MES Q1 Complete 

3.3.4.4 Initiate 2020 Phase of SCADA Master Plan for all 
water systems  

MES Q3 Complete  

3.3.4.5 Complete design of high priority water main 
replacements in Naramata water system  

MES Q4 In Progress 

3.3.4.6 Complete design of remaining water main 
replacements in Olalla water system  

MES Q4 In Progress 

3.3.4.7 Retain Consultant to Complete Dam Safety Evaluation 
of Naramata Dams.  

MES Q3  Q2 
Complete 

 
 
  

Objective 3.3.3 By enhancing RDOS Waste Water Treatment Systems 

# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS  
3.3.3.1 Complete the Okanagan Falls Wetland Project and 

commence the commissioning process with seeding of 
vegetation 

MES Q4 
 
 

Complete; 
Commissioning 
underway 

3.3.3.2 Present preliminary costs for the design and 
construction of the Kaleden Sewer Collection Project  
 

MES Q3 
 
 

 

Complete 

3.3.3.3 Complete construction of a solids dewatering works at 
the Okanagan Falls WWTP 
  

MES Q4 Delayed 
(insufficient 
funding) 

3.3.3.4 Replacement of aging pumps and mechanical system 
at Liftstation #3 

MO Q3 Purchased pumps 
Underway 
 

3.3.3.5 Commence a Liquid Waste Management Plan for 
Naramata for implementation in 2021 

MES  Q4 In Progress 



 
 

Page 9 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Goal 4.1 To Execute a Well-Defined Strategic Planning Cycle 
Objective: 4.1.1: By executing the Strategic Planning and Enterprise Risk Management 

Programs. 
# ACTION WHO WHEN STATUS 

4.1.1.1 Adoption of the 2020 Corporate Business Plan CAO Q1 Complete 

4.1.1.2 Update the Enterprise Risk Management Register 
and present to 2018-2022 Board of Directors 

CAO Q3 Referred to 
2021 

4.1.1.3 Initiate the 2021 Corporate Business Plan Cycle CAO Q3 Complete 

 

Goal: 4.2. To Promote Board and Chair Effectiveness 
Objective 4.2.1: By Improving Regional District/ Municipal Relations 

# ACTION WHO WHEN  
4.2.1.1 Identify relationship success factors CAO Q3 COVID 

4.2.1.2 Open discussions with the City of Penticton for a co-
located headquarters 

CAO Q2 Complete 

4.2.1.3 Plan and implement an annual Board/member municipal 
council training program  

MLS Q4 Nov. 5th  

4.2.1.4 Open discussions with the City of Penticton about a 
Penticton/Peripheral Recreation Facilities Service 

CAO Q2 Complete 

 

Key Success Driver 4.0:  Provide Governance and Oversight in a Representative 
Democracy 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/D. Q3 2020 
MDA.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 1 of 3 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Third Quarter Management Discussion & Assessment Report 

Purpose: 

A key responsibility for the Board of Directors is to provide oversight on the financial position of 
the corporation.  In addition to the development and approval of the annual business plan and 
budget, is a quarterly review of the variance between the Income Statement and the Budget.  
Administration provides this to the Board in a narrative format with forecasts for year-end. 
 
The third quarter report is an indicator of how the organization is tracking to the end of 
September.  As we are now three quarters of the way through the fiscal year we should have a 
good idea of where we’re going to end up, but still have the flexibility to make changes to 
influence the outcome at year-end.  Certain services have been affected by the corona virus and 
the expenses would either be increased or decreased depending on the service, and this will be 
taken into account for this forecast. 
 
Each manager reviews the services they are accountable for and provides explanations for any 
variance between expected and actual expense.  Where actuals are higher than budget, they 
should either be explainable or corrections will be made to bring them back within estimates.   
 
Business Plan Objective:  

1.1.1 By providing the Board with accurate, current financial information 
 
Analysis: 

In the first nine months of 2020 the Regional District has spent just under $26.6 million (52.1%) 
of its $51.1 million dollar operating budget. 
 
Managers have reviewed the actual revenues and expenditures up to September 30, 2020 and 
performed a forecast to year-end, in order to identify significant variances to the annual budget.  
 
Services with material deficits (>$5,000) and/or those first identified being of concern in the 
special May 21st, First Trimester Projection are highlighted below:  
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/D. Q3 2020 
MDA.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 2 of 3 
 

General Government (100) – this service has spent 72% of its budget and continues to forecast a 
year-end deficit of $60,367.00 due to an impact of higher than anticipated legal expenditures 
and the write-off of the Appleton accounts receivable.  A portion of this deficit may be reduced 
by reducing a portion of budgeted transfers to reserve at year-end.  Additional opportunities to 
further reduce expenditures will be explored in the remaining quarter of 2020. 
 
Electoral Area Planning (5000) – this service has spent 63% of its budget and at the second 
quarter update a year-end deficit was forecasted in the amount of $19,746.38.  This deficit has 
now been reduced to $3,000 and will be completely eliminated by a further reduction in 
transfers to reserve at year-end.  
 
Sterile Insect Release Program (6000) – this service is continuing to forecast a year-end deficit of 
$17,791.87 due to the changes in parcel tax as administered by the SIR Board of Directors.  This 
deficit will be recovered in the 2021 budget. 
 
South Okanagan Transit (8600) – this service is forecasting a year-end deficit of $5,301.18 due to 
reduced ridership revenue which is projected to be $3,374 less them budgeted and a loss in the 
previous year in the amount of $7,494.  This deficit was reduced by $5,000 by eliminating a 
budgeted transfer to operating reserve at year-end, without this reduction the deficit would 
have been $10,301.18. The projected deficit will have to be collected in the 2021 budget, similar 
to the unbudgeted loss in last year’s budget. 
 
Bylaw Enforcement (5100) – this service continues to forecast a year-end deficit of $10,244.79 
due to the actual prior year surplus being less than budgeted.  This deficit has almost been 
halved from what was forecast in May through reductions in operating expenditures.  Additional 
opportunities to further reduce expenditures will be explored in the remaining quarter of 2020. 
 
OK Falls Sewage Disposal (3800) – this service is currently projecting a deficit of $5,333, In May 
the forecast was projected at a deficit of $153k. Reducing wage expenditures from deferred 
hiring will address the deficit. 
 
Building Inspection (2500) – this service is continuing to forecast a small surplus of $21K due to 
reductions in operating expenditures, deferred hiring of a building official and the elimination of 
a position.  This is a significant improvement from the deficit of $45,496 that was forecast in 
May. 
 
Naramata Water (3940) – In May, the projected deficit for this service was $32K, currently the 
forecast for this service is a surplus in the amount of $65,846. The main reason of the surplus is 
that transfer from reserves has been increased by $120,000. This account has been flagged for 
further analysis.  
 
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/D. Q3 2020 
MDA.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Penticton Landfill (3500) – in May this service was forecasted to have a $23k deficit. For the 
second quarter report it was stated that the service will have a balanced budget. As at the third 
quarter this service is projected to be on budget without any adjustments to reserves.  
 
Loose Bay Campground (3905) – in the second quarter report this service was forecasting a 
balanced budget by year-end through reductions in planned transfers to reserve at year-end 
and additional grant and operating revenue, for the third quarter this budget is still forecasting a 
balanced budget.  This service had originally forecast a deficit of $10K in May. 
 
Corporate Facilities (160) - this service had originally forecast a deficit of $10K in May due to the 
additional costs of Covid-19, currently with adjustments to expenses the deficit has been 
reduced to $3,248. With the reduction of year-end transfer to reserves, this service is 
forecasting a balanced budget by year-end.  
 
Refuse Disposal – Keremeos, B/G Landfill (3400) – in the second quarter report this service was 
forecasting a balanced budget by year-end. For the third quarter, the forecast is a surplus of 
$10,735, this is mainly achieved by a reduction of consulting cost in the amount of $13,463 and 
through reduced wage expenditures which offset the impact of the Recycle BC contract.  This 
service had originally forecast a deficit of $10K in May. 
 
Sun Valley Water System (3980) – in May this budget was forecasting a deficit of $10k. The third 
quarter forecast is forecasting that the budget will be balanced by year-end.  
 
Net Zero Recycling Facility (4320) – this service has no budget, but has an expense of $22,002 of 
which $21,121 are legal fees. These expenses are recoverable and will be invoiced to a third 
party. 
 
Area D Economic Development (9380) – this service currently is forecasting a deficit of $5,282. 
The wage and salary account can be reduced so that by year-end it will be balanced. 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Jim Zaffino, Finance Manager 
 
____________________________________ 
J. Zaffino,  Finance Manager 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E. Policy Review 
Rpt.Docx     File No:  
Page 1 of 4 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Board Policy Review 

Administrative Recommendation: 
 

1. THAT the Board of Directors adopt the amended “Fleet Acquisition, Replacement and 
Disposal Policy”, and the amended “Exempt Employee Performance Planning and Review 
Policy”. 
 

2. THAT the Board of Directors adopt the new “Public Complaint Resolution” and the “Official 
Recognition” policies. 
 

3. THAT the Board of Directors rescind the “Bylaw Enforcement – Pre-existing, Non-Compliant 
Buildings, Structures, or Things That Have Been Denied Variance Permits”, the “Anti-Idling for 
RDOS Fleet Vehicles” and the “Proclamation” policies. 
 

Purpose: 
To ensure Regional District policies are relevant and reflect current practice. 
 
Reference: 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Policy Manual (https://www.rdos.bc.ca/regional-
government/board-policies) 
Draft amended Fleet Acquisition, Replacement and Disposal Policy 
Draft amended Exempt Employee Performance Planning and Review Policy 
Bylaw Enforcement  - Pre-existing, non-Compliant Buildings, Structures, or Things That Have Been 

Denied Variance Permits Policy 
Anti-Idling for RDOS Fleet Vehicles Policy 
 
Business Plan Objective:  
Goal 2.2 of the RDOS Corporate Action Plan is to meet public needs through continuous improvement 
of key services.  One of the objectives of this goal is achieved by ensuring policies are current and 
reflect the priorities of the Board of Directors. 
 
Analysis: 
Board policy provides direction for the consistent administration of recurring issues.  Policy statements 
allow Administration to carry on their day-to-day chores transparently, consistently, fairly and in a 
manner preferred by elected officials.  It’s important that a process to ensure the timely review and 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E. Policy Review 
Rpt.Docx     File No:  
Page 2 of 4 
 

update of Board policies is practiced and that current policies are easily available for the public to 
access. 
 
The Management Team regularly reviews Board policies. From time to time, some policies are 
identified as potentially benefitting from a revision, or as being no longer relevant.   
 
Fleet Acquisition, Replacement and Disposal Policy (to amend) 
The draft revision of this policy was reviewed at the February 6, 2020 Corporate Services Committee 
meeting but has not yet been adopted by the Board.  Proposed changes include: 

· Adding additional scoring criteria related to fuel efficiency and vehicle emissions.   
· A business case will be required in order to keep a vehicle in the RDOS fleet beyond 12 years. 

 
Exempt Employee Performance Planning and Review Policy (to amend) 
The Corporate Services Committee was advised on April 16, 2020 that the economic challenges as a 
result of COVID-19 necessitated a change in management structure, eliminating the second tier of 
management.  This change necessitates a revision to the Exempt Employee Performance Planning and 
Review Policy.  Additionally, it is suggested to remove compensation for superior performance.  
Proposed changes include: 

· Removal of reference to “Senior” management  
· Removal of performance rewards 
· Removal of reference to weighted corporate objectives in annual business plan 

 
Official Recognition Policy (to adopt) 
The draft Official Recognition policy established guidelines for occasions when an official recognition of 
an event by the Regional District is appropriate.  The following topics are addressed: 

· Display of flags 
· Expressions of Condolence and Moments of Silence 
· Acknowledgement of community members 
· Elections and appointments 
· Volunteer acknowledgement 
· Proclamations 

 
Public Complaint Process Policy (to adopt) 
The draft Public Complaint Resolution policy provides a fair complaint procedure for complaints raised 
by members of the public regarding program and service delivery.  The policy does not address 
complaints about non-Regional District services, internal employee complaints or matters handled by 
tribunals, courts of law or quasi-judicial boards.  This draft policy arises out of an initiative to be more 
transparent and responsive to member of the public regarding Regional District matters. 
 
Bylaw Enforcement – Pre-existing, Non-Compliant Buildings, Structures, or Things That Have Been 
Denied Variance Permits Policy (to rescind) 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E. Policy Review 
Rpt.Docx     File No:  
Page 3 of 4 
 

This policy was identified by Administration as not serving a purpose.  The policy directs staff to 
proceed to enforcement of land use bylaws in cases where the Board has denied a Variance Permit, 
which is the usual course of action if a variance has been denied. 
 
Anti-Idling for RDOS Fleet Vehicles Policy (to rescind) 
This policy directs that fleet vehicles shall not idle for more than three minutes, except under certain 
exemptions.  While Administration continues to be supportive of limiting unnecessary vehicle idling as 
a means of reducing air pollution, it should be classified as an Administrative Directive as opposed to a 
Board policy.  
 
Proclamation Policy (to rescind) 
This policy has been incorporated into the draft Official Recognition policy.  If the Board of Directors 
adopts the Official Recognition policy, the Proclamation policy becomes redundant. 
 
Other polices reviewed by Administration and forwarded to the Board of Directors in 2020 include: 

· Mutual Aid Cost Recovery (rescinded January 2020) 
· Emergency Response Outside of Service Area (rescinded January 2020) 
· Beer Garden License Application Referral (rescinded January 2020) 
· Internal Audit – RDOS departments (rescinded January 2020) 
· Regional Grant in Aid (reviewed March 2020) 
· Landfill Customer Accounts (amended April 2020) 
· UMCM Meeting Requests (adopted June 2020) 

 
Additionally, the following policies were reviewed by Administration and they were determined to still 
be current and relevant in their existing form: 

· Area Director and Peripheral Website  
· Elected Officials Conference Compensation 
· Manufactured Home Park Redevelopment  
· Property Tax Exemption 
· Public Works Sewer Plans and Service Records 
· Screening Officer Bylaw Notice  

 
Alternatives: 

1. THAT the Board not adopt the amended “Fleet Acquisition, Replacement and Disposal Policy”, 
and the amended “Exempt Employee Performance Planning and Review Policy”. 
 

2. THAT the Board not adopt the “Official Recognition” and “Public Complaint Resolution” 
policies. 
 

3. THAT the Board of Directors rescind the “Bylaw Enforcement – Pre-existing, Non-Compliant 
Buildings, Structures, or Things That Have Been Denied Variance Permits Policy”, and the “Anti-
Idling for RDOS Fleet Vehicles”. 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E. Policy Review 
Rpt.Docx     File No:  
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Communication Strategy: 
The Board Policy Index on the RDOS website is updated as policies are adopted, revised or rescinded.  
Additionally, staff is advised of any change in policy through the staff Intranet. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Gillian Cramm” 
____________________________________ 
G. Cramm, Legislative Services Coordinator 

Endorsed by: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
 
 
 
Appendix A: Policies that Pertain to Members of the Board of Directors 
 

· Area Director and Peripheral Website 
· Board and Committee Delegation  
· Board Correspondence 
· Code of Ethics 
· Communications 
· Community Works Gas Tax Funding 
· Conflict of Interest 
· Decision-Making Guidelines 
· Director and Alternate Director 

Accident Insurance 
· Directors Mobile Computer 
· Elected Officials Conference 

Compensation 
· Electoral Area Grant in Aid 
· Electronic Mobile Communication 

Device 
· Harassment, Bullying & Discrimination  
· Information Systems Use and Social 

Media 
· Insurance Coverage – Rental & Personal 

Vehicles 
· Multiculturalism  
· Proclamation 

· Terms of Reference – Select 
Committees 

· UBCM Meeting Requests 



https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.a. Draft Revised Fleet 
Acquisition Policy.docx    File No: 0340.50 
Page 1 of 4 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD POLICY 

 
POLICY:  Fleet Acquisition, Replacement and Disposal Policy 
 
AUTHORITY: Board Resolution dated August 4, 2016. 
 
POLICY STATEMENT  
The acquisition, replacement and disposal of Regional District fleet vehicles will be undertaken in an efficient and cost 
effective manner that minimizes greenhouse gas emissions and maximizes life-cycle economics while taking into account 
the individual services’ current and future needs. 
 
PURPOSE  
To establish the method and criteria for procurement and subsequent disposal of the safest, most fuel efficient vehicles 
that meet department needs.  Vehicle acquisitions will seek to optimize the fleet size, support climate action initiatives 
by minimizing the environmental impact of owning and operating vehicles and provide the best overall value for the 
Regional District.  Vehicle disposals will be done in a fair, transparent manner that maximizes value. 
 
DEFINITIONS  
RDOS – Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen 
 
Fleet vehicles– all vehicles, except specialized Emergency response vehicles, owned by the RDOS 
 
Green Alternative vehicles – vehicles that emit low or zero emissions; typically powered by fuels other than gasoline or 
diesel 
 
Right sizing – vehicles purchased to meet the average or usual anticipated use of the vehicle. 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
Department managers will assess operational needs and identify any new or replacement vehicle requests during the 
annual budget process.   
 
The Board will consider each request for new/replacement vehicles during the annual budget process. 
 
The Board will be notified of any unanticipated, “emergency” replacements as they occur throughout the year.  The 
Board will consider each emergency replacement as they occur. 
 
PROCEDURES 
Department managers will ensure right sizing of vehicle purchases.  Some items to be considered when determining a 
vehicle to meet right sizing are: 
a) Engine size 
b) Vehicle weight 
c) Average carrying capacity (if applicable) 
d) Average passenger capacity 
e) Average terrain (all wheel drive/four wheel drive requirements)  
f) Acceptable safety equipment 
 
When more than one type of vehicle make and/or model is suitable to meet right sizing, life cycle costs including capital 
costs, maintenance costs, fuel costs and resale value should be considered. Refer to Life Cycle Costing Matrix. 
 



  

https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.a. Draft Revised Fleet 
Acquisition Policy.docx    
Page 2 of 4 

The lowest GHG emission fuel possible should be purchased for all fleet vehicles.  Green alternative vehicles should be 
selected whenever operationally suitable.  
 
Use the Canadian Fuel Consumption Guide provided by Natural Resources Canada to review efficiency and GHG 
emissions.  The yearly cost of the vehicle can also be found here for life cycle costing.  
 
All fleet vehicles will be standardized in color.  All fleet vehicles will be outfitted with the appropriate RDOS logo decals. 
 
Department managers will work collaboratively with other departments requiring vehicles to solicit the most desirable 
quote from prospective vendors and ensure purchasing policy requirements are met for any vehicle acquisition. 
 
Replacement vehicles reaching the service life replacement trigger points, will be assessed using the “Vehicle 
Replacement Guide Scoring Sheet” (see attached).  The scoring sheet will accompany any subsequent budget requests. 
 
Due to safety and GHG concerns, after 12 yrs. all vehicles will be removed from service unless a business case can be 
made to preserve them. 
 
The RDOS will only make urgent “safety related” repairs immediately prior to disposition of any vehicle. 
 
Department managers will ensure vehicles under their authority maintain a preventative maintenance program to 
maximize useful life. 
 
Disposal of any vehicle will seek to maximize value to the RDOS.   
 
Methods of disposal include;   internal reassignment between services at an agreed upon fair market value, trade-in and 
offer for sale to public.   If a vehicle is deemed obsolete or unsafe for resale, it will be sold when possible, for scrap 
metal. 
 
Disposals will not be made to RDOS employees or Board Members without written consent from the Chief 
Administrative Officer. 
 
Related Links: 
 
https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/energy-efficiency/energy-efficiency-transportation/2019-fuel-consumption-guide/21002 
 
http://www.greeningtheblue.org/sites/default/files/UNSP_Product%20Sheet_Vehicles_basic%20and%20advanced_all%
20regions.pdf 
 
https://toolkit.bc.ca/tool/life-cycle-costing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  

https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.a. Draft Revised Fleet 
Acquisition Policy.docx    
Page 3 of 4 

RDOS VEHICLE REPLACEMENT GUIDELINE SCORING SHEET 
 

 
Inspection date:        
 
 
Unit number:         VIN:                                                                                         
 
Vehicle Make/Model:                                                                      In-service date:                                          
 
Kilometers or Hours:                                                
 
Dept. Assigned to:                                                        
                
 

FACTOR DESCRIPTION POINTS 
Age One point for every year of service from manufacture date  

   Mileage One point for every 20,000 kms.   
Type of Service 1 to 5 points based on type of service 

Constant Heavy Use (e.g. Utilities) 5 Points  
  Occasional Heavy Use (e.g.  Parks) 4 Points  

                       Medium Use (e.g. Inspections) 3 Points  
                                 Light Use (e.g. Landfills) 2 Points  

Administrative Use (e.g. Pool Vehicles) 1 Points  
Reliability Frequency of Repairs            (in addition to regular preventative 

 Pending major repairs 10 Points  
In shop once per month 8 Points 
In shop every 2 months 6 Points 
In shop every 4 months 4 Points 
In shop every 6 months 2 Points 

In shop once per year 1 Point 
Condition General Exterior Appearance 

Integrity of Interior 
Rust, Dents etc. 

Good 1 Point  
Fair 3 Points 

Poor 5 Points 
Deduction Deduct 5 Points if vehicle is still under manufacturer’s warranty  

Efficiency Vehicle Fuel Efficiency  
(Based off U.N. Sustainability 
Guidelines)  
Adjust Annually. 

≤5 l/100km 0 points  
6 ≤ x >5 l/100km 2 points 
8 ≤ x >6 l/100km 4 points 
10 ≤ x >8 l/100km 6 points 
>10 l/100km 8 points 

Emissions 1 point for each 10% over the current 
model year emissions output for the 
same vehicle or equivalent 

Ex. 1 point= 10% 
Ex. 2 point= 20% 
Ex. 3 point= 30% 

 

 TOTAL POINTS  
 

 

Points Ratings Under 20 Condition 1 Excellent 
20 to 25 Condition 2 Good 
26 to 30 Condition 3 Fair 
31 to 35 Condition 4 Poor   (consider replacement) 
Over 35 Condition 5 Replace 

 



  

https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.a. Draft Revised Fleet 
Acquisition Policy.docx    
Page 4 of 4 

 



https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.b. Draft 
Exempt_Employee_Performance_Planning_and_Review_Policy.docx    File No: 0340.50 
Page 1 of 5 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD POLICY 

 
POLICY:  Exempt Employee Performance Planning and Review 
 
AUTHORITY: Board Resolution dated July 2, 2015. 
 
   
POLICY STATEMENT  
 
It is a policy of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen that, in order to achieve the Board’s goals 
and objectives, the Board shall develop a framework and implement a system to assess the performance, 
provide adequate compensation and incent superior performance of the Officers and Managers of the 
RDOS annually. 
 
PURPOSE  
 
1. To provide a link between Board expectations and the performance of Officers, Managers and 

Confidential Employees at the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen (the “RDOS”). 
2. To ensure the Board has the opportunity to make informed decisions on the provision of adequate 

base compensation to secure and retain the services of exempt employees with the skills, abilities and 
competencies necessary to achieve the goals of the RDOS. 

3. To establish a process to link compensation to performance and provide an objective basis for 
recognizing and rewarding superior performance. 

4.3. To focus management performance on achieving the Corporate Business Plan. 
5.4. To facilitate coordination and teamwork among the organization's senior management team. 
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
1. “Administrative Support” means human and financial resources provided by the CAO to carry out a 

function in support of the RDOS Board or its Committees. 
 
2. “Board” means the Board of Directors for the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen. 
 
3. “CAO” means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, duly 

appointed by resolution or bylaw of the Board of Directors, and holding the designations under s. 197, 
198 and 199 of the Local Government Act. 

 
4. “CFO” means the person appointed as Chief Financial Officer by the CAO and delegated the 

responsibility of s. 199 of the Local Government Act. 
 
5.  “Chair” means the person elected as Chairperson of the Board of Directors for the Regional District of 

Okanagan Similkameen by his peers on the Board. 
 
6. “Committee” means a standing, select or ad hoc committee of the Regional District of Okanagan 

Similkameen. 
 



  

https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.b. Draft 
Exempt_Employee_Performance_Planning_and_Review_Policy.docx   File No: 0340.50 
Page 2 of 5 

7. “Exempt Employees” mean all those employees of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen 
excluded from the Union, including those in Officer, Manager and Confidential positions. 

 
8. “Governance” means the process of exercising corporate leadership by the policy-making authority on 

behalf of the organization as a whole in terms of its purpose, control, and future.  
 
9. “Manager of Legislative Services” means the person delegated the responsibility of s. 198 (Corporate 

Officer) of the Local Government Act by the CAO.   
 
10.  “Member” means an individual member of the Board of Directors. 
 
11. “RDOS” means the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen. 
 
12. “Senior Management Team” means the Senior Management Team for the Regional District of 

Okanagan Similkameen, as appointed by the CAO. 
 
13. Whenever the singular, masculine or feminine is used in this Policy it shall be interpreted as if the 

plural, feminine or masculine has been used where the context so requires. 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Board shall: 
1. Govern the RDOS consistent with its Legislation, Bylaws, Mission Statement, Values and Budget.  
 
2. Adopt an Annual Business Plan, including weighted corporate objectives. 
 
3. Annually budget an aggregate amount for salary increases and performance rewards for the Exempt 

Employee Group. 
 
4. On an annual basis, review compensation for Exempt Employees at Budget committee and authorize 

the CAO to increase salaries for exempt employees based on year-over-year adjustments to the BC 
Cost of Living Index. 

 
5. Annually review a Corporate Services Committee Report on the performance of the CAO based on 

achievements against the annual Business Plan (80%) and personal performance (20%). 
 
6. Maintain possession of this policy and any amendments thereto shall be made by resolution of the 

Board. 
 
Individual Board Members shall: 
7. Participate in the annual electronic performance evaluation of the CAO.   
 

  



  

https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.b. Draft 
Exempt_Employee_Performance_Planning_and_Review_Policy.docx   File No: 0340.50 
Page 3 of 5 

 
The Corporate Services Committee shall: 
8. Administer the Exempt Employee Performance Planning and Review Policy and recommend 

amendments to the Board, if any. 
 
9. When required, review the base compensation paid to Exempt Staff, informed by a market survey of 

benchmarked positions and submit a recommendation to the Board for the subsequent year’s base 
pay. 

 
10. Annually review a consolidated performance evaluation for the CAO based on achievements against 

the annual Business Plan (80%) and personal performance (20%). 
 
The CAO shall: 
11. Within Budget, establish rates of pay for the Exempt Group. 
 
12. Present a Business Plan to the Board by December 31st of each year setting out the objectives for the 

subsequent year to achieve the strategic goals, prioritized and weighted. 
 
13. Present an assessment of the corporate performance against the Business Plan to the Corporate 

Services Committee in January of the subsequent year, which shall be integral to the performance 
evaluation calculation. 

 
14. Evaluate the performance of the Senior Management Team against their duties and award a 

performance reward to the Senior Management Team, if warranted, assessed on their success on 
corporate (70%) and personal (30%) objectives.   

 
15. Ensure that all exempt employees receive a formal annual performance review. 
 
16. Assign administrative support to the Corporate Services Committee for the review of survey results and 

undertake any instructions therefrom to address threats or opportunities identified. 
 
EVALUATION CRITERIA: 
 
1. The Chief Administrative Officer holds a strategic leadership position within the organization and the 

CAO Performance Planning and Review Process will address the competencies of critical importance to 
the success of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen: 

 
· Communicates Clearly: Listens to others, provides clear translation between the Board and staff, 

presents well at all levels and in all mediums. 
 
· Leadership:  Supports the Board in maintaining a strategic focus in the organization, assisting and 

supporting the Board in maintaining operational readiness; 
 
· Organizational Development:  Evaluates the CAO’s performance on his ability to develop and lead a 

high performance team;   



  

https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.b. Draft 
Exempt_Employee_Performance_Planning_and_Review_Policy.docx   File No: 0340.50 
Page 4 of 5 

 
· Systems Thinking: Understands the big picture and forms linkages between strategy and action.  Can 

grasp complexities and identify policy and priority contradictions; 
 
· Nurtures Relationships: Builds trust and respect with others and moves towards win/win situations; 
 
· Understands Political Sensitivities: Understands governance responsibilities and can bridge the 

political/administrative interface.  Ensures implementation of the Board’s decisions. 
 

PROCEDURES 
 
The Corporate Services Committee shall: 
1. November - Review the profile and the competencies required for the CAO position as a basis for the 

annual CAO Evaluation Survey by the Board. 
 
2. November - Develop an electronic survey tool to allow the Board Members to measure the CAO’s 

success against the profile and competencies for the position.  Administrative Support shall be 
provided by the Manager of Human Resources. 

 
3. December - Survey all Board Members.  
 
4. January - Review a report from the CAO on the corporate performance against the previous year’s 

annual business plan and develop a point-rating for the corporate component of the CAO Performance 
Evaluation. 
 

5. January - Review the results of the Board Evaluation of the CAO Survey, both quantitative and 
qualitative, in-camera.  This survey shall be non-attributable and the CAO shall be invited to participate 
in the review at Committee. 

 
6. Information obtained or disclosed during the evaluation process shall be confidential to the Board and 

the CAO and will not be used or disclosed except as defined per the Policy. 
 
CAO Evaluation by Employees: 
 
7. December – The HR Manager will develop and distribute an electronic survey to allow Employees to 

evaluate the performance of the CAO.  The survey should be designed with questions that could be 
responded to fairly by employees to be used to assist the Corporate Services Committee in their 
assessment of the CAO’s personal performance. 

 
8. This survey shall be non-attributable. 
 
9. January - Results of the Survey, both quantitative and qualitative, shall be provided to the Corporate 

Services Committee. 
 
10. The CAO shall be invited to participate in the review at Committee. 



  

https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.b. Draft 
Exempt_Employee_Performance_Planning_and_Review_Policy.docx   File No: 0340.50 
Page 5 of 5 

 
11. Information obtained or disclosed during the evaluation process shall be confidential to the Board and 

will not be used or disclosed except as defined per the Policy. 
 
CAO Base Compensation 
 
12. It is a priority of the Board to remain competitive with their compensation practices in order to attract 

and retain competent employees.   
 
13. January - the Corporate Services Committee shall obtain a report from the Manager of Human 

Resources on CAO Compensation.  Every 3rd year, the HR Manager shall produce a report that 
compares remuneration of similar positions to the CAO across a broad range of organizations as a 
foundation for their analysis of the CAO salary and to determine if adjustment to the range is required.   

 
CAO Performance: 
 
14. The CAO shall provide the Corporate Services Committee with the following information to assist with 

the performance evaluation: 
a. The Business Plan; quantitative results 
b. A Self-Assessment 
c. The Job Description for the position 
d. The Employee Survey Results 
e. The Board Evaluation Results 

 
The CAO shall: 
 
15. Conduct performance evaluations on the members of the senior management team annually and issue 

performance rewards to the Senior Management Team, excluding the CAO, based on performance 
judged to be superior for that calendar year. 

 
16. The CAO shall brief the Corporate Services Committee on the results of the annual Senior Management 

Team performance evaluations and performance rewards. 
 



Public Complaint Resolution Policy  File No:       
Page 1 of 5 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD POLICY 

 

POLICY:  Public Complaint Resolution 

AUTHORITY: Board Resolution dated _____ 

 

POLICY STATEMENT 
The Regional District shall provide a timely and fair response to complaints.  Complaints shall be viewed 
as an opportunity to improve program service delivery. Any person making a complaint shall be 
provided the opportunity to do so, free from actual or threatened negative consequences regardless of 
what the complaint is regarding, who it is direct to, or the eventual outcome.  
 
PURPOSE  
The purpose of the Public Complaint Resolution Policy is to promptly and effectively address program 
and service delivery concerns raised by members of the public. The policy will assist to provide excellent 
service to the public and contribute to the continuous improvement of Regional District operations. The 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen strives to increase customer satisfaction by:  
 

• providing a fair complaint procedure which is clear and easy to use for anyone wishing to make 
a complaint; 

• providing a timely and reasonable response to complaints; and  
• using complaints as an opportunity to improve program and service delivery issues.  

 
This policy does not address complaints regarding non-Regional District services, issues addressed by 
legislation, a decision of the Board, internal employee complaints or matters that are handled by 
tribunals, courts of law, and quasi-judicial boards. 
 
DEFINITIONS 
“Board” means the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
 
“CAO” means Chief Administrative Officer of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen  
 
“Chair” means the person elected as Chairperson of the Board of Directors for the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen  
 
“Director” means an elected or appointed Director of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, an 
appointee to a board, committee, commission, plan, task force or other body of the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen 
 
“Investigator” means the CAO or designated department manager tasked with conducting an 
investigation into the complaint 
 
“Regional District” means the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
 
 



Public Complaint Resolution Policy  File No:       
Page 2 of 5 

COMPLAINT DEFINITION 
A complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction with respect to a contradiction in policies or procedures 
related to Regional District programs, services, facilities or staff members, where a member of the public 
believes that the Regional District has not provided a service experience to the customer’s satisfaction at 
the point of service delivery and where a response or resolution is expected.  
 
A complaint is distinct from:  

• A request for service made on behalf of a citizen for a specific service,  
• A general enquiry or specific request for information regarding Regional District services  
• An opinion or feedback, comment, or expression of interest in a program or service processes  
• A suggestion or idea submitted by a customer with the aim of improving services, programs or 

processes  
 
In order to resolve a complaint, the Regional District requires the complaint’s personal information 
including name and contact information. Therefore, anonymous complaints cannot be addressed. 
 
APPLICATION  
All employees, Directors and committee members should have a clear understanding the Complaint 
Administration Procedure. 
 
COMPLAINT ADMINISTRATION PROCEDURE 
 
A. Frontline Resolution  
The complainant should attempt to resolve concerns by dealing with the applicable Regional District 
employee or immediate supervisor directly involved with the issue, where appropriate.  
Regional District employees have a responsibility to attempt to resolve an issue or concern before it 
becomes a complaint and to identify opportunities to improve Regional District services where 
deficiencies are noted.  
 
B. Complaints  
If a complainant does not consider their matter was not resolved through a frontline resolution, a 
formal complaint may be submitted to the CAO on the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Complaint Form (Appendix A). All information, including name and contact information, must be 
complete to initiate an internal investigation.  
 
Administration  
The CAO, or designate, shall log the complaint within the ‘Complaint Registry’, assign a tracking number 
and acknowledge receipt of the complaint within 4 business days.  
During this phase, the CAO or designate shall:  

a. Contact the complainant, acknowledging receipt of the complaint, and provide a tracking 
number for reference purposes.  
b. If needed, clarify the complaint with the complainant obtaining additional detail.  
c. If appropriate, transfer complaint to the Manager of the appropriate department. In the case 
of a complaint regarding the CAO, the complaint shall be transferred to the Chair.  
 
 
 
 



Public Complaint Resolution Policy  File No:       
Page 3 of 5 

Investigation  
The Manager, or designate, of the applicable department and CAO, or designate, shall conduct an 
investigation into the nature of the complaint.  
 
If a complaint is made against the CAO, the Chair shall conduct the investigation or designate a solicitor, 
or other qualified individual at arms-length of the regional district.  
 
The designated investigator shall review the issues identified by the complainant, and in so doing they 
may:  

• Review relevant regional, provincial or federal legislation  
• Review Regional District policies, procedures and any existing file documents  
• Interview employees or members of the public involved in the issue(s)  
• Identify actions that may be taken to address the complaint or to improve Regional District 

operations  
• Provide a resolution report to the CAO or Chair  

 
Decision  
Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the complaint, the designated investigator shall make a 
determination as to the validity of the complaint (determine that the complaint was valid, not valid, 
valid in part, vexatious, or unfounded). The designated investigator shall recommend an appropriate 
resolution which may include initiating changes to procedure, initiating the progressive disciplinary 
process or any other suitable resolution as may be appropriate in the circumstances.  
A written response shall be provided to the complainant and shall include whether or not the complaint 
was substantiated with reasons for the decision and any actions the regional district has or will take as a 
result. Details of the information provided may include the following where appropriate:  
 

• Overview of complaint  
• Detail of how the investigation was conducted  
• Summary of the facts  
• Outline of the findings 
• Identification of next steps  
• Suggestions of appropriate resolution along with the rational supporting the proposed 

resolution  
 
If the complaint is complex, the response provided may identify a need for additional time. Justification 
and an estimated timeline will be provided within this correspondence.  
 
The decision shall be considered final. There are no appeal mechanisms at the Regional District level. If 
the complainant is dissatisfied with the response, they are invited to contact the Ombudsperson’s 
office.  
 
C. Records Management & Personal Information  
A copy of the complaint and response shall be maintained in accordance with the Records Retention 
Policy.  
 
The Regional District will adhere to all applicable legislation regarding privacy in accordance with the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. All complaint records will be kept securely and in 
accordance with corporate policy and legislative responsibilities.  



Public Complaint Resolution Policy  File No:       
Page 4 of 5 

Personal information on the complaint is treated as confidential to protect the privacy of the 
complainant. However, complainants should be aware that certain circumstances may indirectly identify 
them during an investigation.  
 
RETRIBUTION  
Allegations of retribution or threat of retribution against a complainant or anyone cooperating with an 
investigation under this policy shall be investigated in accordance with current Code of Ethics, Code of 
Conduct, and Harassment and Bullying and Discrimination policies. 
 
REFERENCE  

Ombudsperson Act, RSBC 1996  
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, RSBC 1996 
Records Management Policy  
Code of Conduct Policy 
Code of Ethics Policy 
Harassment and Bullying Policy 
Discrimination Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Public Complaint Resolution Policy  File No:       
Page 5 of 5 

 
Appendix A 

 
 

Public Complaint Form 
CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 

Date: 
 

Name:  (Please Print) 
 

Contact Information: (Phone number and email address) 
 
 
 

 
Date of Incident: (if applicable) 

 
 

Name of RDOS Representative and 
Department with whom you were dealing 
with (if known and if applicable) 
 

 

 

Complaint: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Official Recognition Policy  File No:       
Page 1 of 3 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD POLICY 

 
POLICY:   Official Recognition Policy 
 
AUTHORITY:  Board Resolution dated _________________. 
 
 
POLICY STATEMENT 
 
PURPOSE  
The purpose of the policy is to establish guidelines and ensure that occasions of Official Recognition are 
handled in a consistent and appropriate manner. 
 
PROCEDURES 
Display of Flags: 
The National Flag of Canada, the flag of British Columbia and the flag of the Regional District shall be 
displayed in accordance with Government of Canada Rules for flying the National Flag of Canada, and 
the Province of British Columbia Flag Protocol. The following shall be adhered to: 
 

· All flags should be in good condition and should never touch the ground when being raised, 
lowered or removed. 
 

· Where there is only one flag pole, the National Flag of Canada shall be flown. 
 

· When two flags are displayed, both flags are to be flown on separate poles and are to be flown 
at the same height. 

 
· Placement of flags to an observer facing the flags, the position of the honoured flag shall be on 

the left. For example, when the Canadian flag and the B.C. flag are flown together, the Canadian 
flag is positioned on the left and the B.C on the right.  

 
· When three flags are displayed, the position of the honoured flag is in the centre. To an 

observer facing the display, the second-ranking flag (in order of precedence) is placed to the left 
of centre and the other to the right. For example, when the Canadian flag, B.C. flag and the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) flag are flown together, the B.C. flag is on the 
left, the Canadian flag is in the middle and the RDOS flag is on the right. 

 
Half-Masting: 
Flying of flags at half-mast represents a period of official mourning or commemoration. When lowering 
to half-mast, the flag should be raised fully to the top of the flagpole, then lowered immediately to the 
half-mast position. 
 
If more than one flag is being flown, then all flags must be half-masted. Half-masting is to occur from the 
time of notification of death until sunset on the day of the funeral, on the following occasions: 
 
 



Official Recognition Policy  File No:       
Page 2 of 3 
 

Federal 
Death of the current Sovereign, the current or former Governor General or the current or former Prime 
Minister 
Death of a Member of the House of Commons that represents a riding within the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen. 

 
Provincial  
Death of the current or former Lieutenant Governor or current or former Premier of British Columbia 
Death of a Member of the Legislative Assembly that represents a riding within the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen 

 
Regional 
Current Board Member 
Current First Nations Leader within the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen boundaries 
Current Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen employee 

 
Special Days 
April 28 Day of Mourning (Workers) 

 
On the death of a person, or an event, the Chief Administrative Officer, in consultation with the Chair, 
shall have the authority to bestow this honour on behalf of the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen 
 
Should half-masting need to commence on a weekend or statutory holiday, flags will be lowered on the 
Friday evening prior to the half-masting date and raised again on the morning of the next business day. 
 
Expressions of Condolence and Moments of Silence 
The RDOS Board may from time to time observe a brief period of silence in commemoration of solemn 
occasions. If a member wishes the Board to observe a moment of silence during a meeting, the member 
must consult with the Chair and/or Vice-Chair prior to the meeting. If approved, during the meeting, the 
Chair will introduce the moment of silence for the occasion during the meeting outlining that prior 
consultation has occurred and that the moment of silence has been agreed upon for the occasion.  
 
Instances may include: 

• Death of a current or former Board member 
• Death of a current or former alternate Director 
• Death of local Indian Band Chief or councillor 
• Death of mayor or councillor from a member municipality 
• Death of school district trustee  
• Death of current or former employee 
• Tragic incident in the community, province or country 

 
 
 
 
 



Official Recognition Policy  File No:       
Page 3 of 3 
 

Acknowledgement of Community Members 
 
Electoral Area  
An Electoral Area Director may recognize the contributions made by a member of their community. A 
Certificate of Recognition or Appreciation may be signed by the Electoral Area Director in recognition of 
their contributions.  The Electoral Area Director may elect to purchase, from their contingency budget, 
an award for the member of the community in recognition of outstanding service.  Any award may be 
considered a taxable benefit for the recipient. 
 
Regional Area 
In consultation with the Chair, an Electoral Area Director may recognize the contributions to the 
Regional area made by a member of their community. A Certificate of Recognition or Appreciation may 
be signed by both the Chair and the Electoral Area Director. The Electoral Area Director may elect to 
purchase an award for the member of the community in recognition of outstanding service.  Any award 
may be considered a taxable benefit for the recipient.  
 
Elections and Appointments 
When a Prime Minister or Premiere has been elected, the Chair on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen shall provide a letter of Recognition to the new elected 
official. 
 
Upon appointment to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs, the Chair on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen shall provide a letter of Recognition to the newly 
appointed minister.  
 
Upon election as Chief or Councillor of Penticton Indian Band, Osoyoos Indian Band, Lower Similkameen 
Indian Band, Upper Similkameen Indian Band or Chair of the Okanagan Nation Alliance, the Chair on 
behalf of the Board of Directors of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen shall provide a letter 
of Recognition. 
 
Volunteer Acknowledgement 
All volunteers shall be invited and acknowledged at a year end reception, hosted by the RDOS. 
 
Proclamations 
All requests for the issuance of proclamations will be referred to the Manager of Legislative Services to 
acknowledge the request and advise the requesting individual or organization that the Regional District 
declines to issue proclamations in accordance with Board Policy. 
 
The Regional District does not have any statutory authority in accordance with the Local Government 
Act or the Community Charter for the issuance of proclamations. 



 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
  
 
 P O L I C Y 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
POLICY NO:  P4020-00.05 Page 1 of 1  
 
 
SUBJECT: BYLAW ENFORCEMENT – PRE-EXISTING NON-COMPLIANT 

BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, OR THINGS THAT HAVE BEEN 
DENIED VARIANCE PERMITS 

 
 
Effective Date  Amendment  Board Resolution  Administered By 
June 19, 2008     B256/08    Development Services 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Local Government Act, Section 266: 

· Authorizes Regional Districts to make bylaws for the purpose of enforcing the bylaws of 
the Regional District. 

 
RDOS Enforcement Bylaw No. 708: 

· States that contravening RDOS bylaws is a punishable offense subject to the regulations 
set out in the relevant bylaw. 

 
Land use bylaw enforcement is currently undertaken upon written complaint, unless directed 
otherwise by the RDOS Board. 
 
 
POLICY 
 
That staff are directed to proceed immediately with enforcement upon denial of Variance Permits 
for pre-existing non-compliant buildings, structures, or things in the context of the applicable 
land use bylaw and its regulations. 
 
 



https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.f. 
AntiIdling_For_RDOS_Fleet_Vehicles Policy.docx    File No: 0340.50 
Page 1 of 1 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD POLICY 

 
POLICY: Anti-Idling for RDOS Fleet Vehicles 
 
AUTHORITY: Board Resolution No. B201/07 dated April 19, 2015. 
  Administrative Review July 14, 2015 
 
 
 
POLICY STATEMENT  
 
The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) endeavours to build a sustainable community through 
environmental stewardship. 
 
PURPOSE  
 
The RDOS is committed to reduce unnecessary vehicle idling as a means of reducing air pollution, harmful 
greenhouse gas emissions and fuel expense. 
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
“Idle” means the state in which vehicle engine is running but is not in gear. 
  
“Operator” means any Regional District employee or Director that operates a Regional District vehicle. 
 
 
PROCEDURES 
 
No operator of an RDOS fleet vehicle shall permit the engine of that vehicle to idle for more than three (3) 
consecutive minutes except as provided in under the “Exemptions” listed below.  
 
Exemptions:  
 
This policy shall not apply when:  
 
a) A vehicle is forced to remain motionless because of traffic; 
 
b) The primary propulsion engine of a vehicle is providing a power source necessary for operations other 

than propulsion;  
 
c) The primary propulsion engine of a vehicle is being operated at idle to conform to manufacturers warm 

up and cool down specifications, for maintenance or diagnostic purposes, or by manufacturer’s engaging 
the engines in testing for research and development. 

 



https://portal.rdos.bc.ca/departments/officeofthecao/BoardReports/Board Reports/20201015/Corporate Services/E.g. 
Proclamation_Policy.docx    File No: 0340.50 

Page 1 of 1 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD POLICY 

 
POLICY:   Proclamation Policy 
 
AUTHORITY:  Board Resolution dated July 16, 2015. 
 
   
 
 
POLICY STATEMENT  
 
A proclamation is a public or official announcement made by declaration of a public body.  The Regional District 
of Okanagan-Similkameen does not have any statutory authority in accordance with the Local Government Act 
or the Community Charter for the issuance of proclamations. 
 
PURPOSE  
 
To provide direction that formalizes the resolution of the Board on handling proclamation requests and to 
eliminate unnecessary administration of proclamations where the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
has no statutory authority. 
 
The Board of Directors may lend political support to community causes, organizations, and events by means 
other than proclamations. 
 
PROCEDURES 
 
All requests for the issuance of proclamations will be referred to the Manager of Legislative Services to 
acknowledge the request and advise the requesting individual or organization that the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen declines to issue proclamations in accordance with Board policy.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD of DIRECTORS MEETING 

Thursday, October 15, 2020 
12:15 pm 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of October 15, 2020 be adopted. 

 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

 
a. Similkameen Recreation Commission – September 17, 2020 

THAT the Minutes of the September 17, 2020 Similkameen Recreation Commission meeting be 
received. 
 

b. Electoral Area “D” Okanagan Falls Parks Recreation Commission 
THAT the Board of Directors appoint Judy Garner to the Electoral Area “D” Naramata Parks and 
Recreation Commission for a two year term, ending December 31, 2022. 
 

c. South Okanagan Conservation Fund – Technical Advisory Committee Appointments  
THAT the Board of Directors appoint the following as volunteer members of the South Okanagan 
Conservation Fund Technical Advisory Committee: 
 
Three year term ending December 31 2022 

- Timothy Gray (B.Sc, M.E.T, R.P.Bio.) 
- Laura Machial (MSc., R.P.Bio.) 

 
THAT a letter of appreciation be sent to Adam Ford, Ph.D on behalf of the Board, thanking him 
for his dedication and support while serving on this committee for the past three years. 
 

d. Planning and Development Committee – October 1, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the October 1, 2020 Planning and Development Committee meeting be 
received. 
 

e. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – September 17, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the September 17, 2020 Regular Board meeting be adopted. 
 

f. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – October 1, 2020 
THAT the minutes of the October 1, 2020 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. 
 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 2 October 15, 2020 
 

 
2. Consent Agenda – Development Services  

 
a. Temporary Use Permit Application – 3575 3rd Street, Electoral Area “E” 

i. Permit 
ii.    Representations 

 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP 

  
RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Development Services be adopted. 

 
 

B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Building Inspection 
 
1. Building Bylaw Infractions – 1321 Fish Lake Road – Placement of structures without building 

permits 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT a Section 302 Notice on Title, pursuant to Section 302 of the Local Government Act and 
Section 57 of the Community Charter (made applicable to Regional Districts by Section 302 of the 
LGA), be filed against the title of lands described as District Lot 3761, ODYD, Except Plan 33562, 
that certain works have been undertaken on the lands contrary to the Regional District Okanagan-
Similkameen Building Bylaw No. 2805, 2018; 
 
AND THAT injunctive action be commenced. 

 
 
2. Building Bylaw Infractions – G9 – 5405 McLean Creek Road, Electoral Area “D” – Expired permit, 

incomplete inspections and failure to meet floodplain elevation requirements 
a. Representations 

 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT if corrective works have not been completed by November 30, 2020 a Section 302 Notice on 
Title, pursuant to Section 302 of the Local Government Act and Section 57 of the Community 
Charter (made applicable to Regional Districts by Section 302 of the LGA), be filed against the title 
of lands described as Lot 1, District Lots 374, 551 & 2710 Plan KAP81234, SDYD, that certain works 
have been undertaken on the lands contrary to the Regional District Okanagan-Similkameen 
Building Bylaws No. 2333 and No.2805; and 
 
THAT injunctive action be commenced. 

 
  



RDOS Board Meeting 3 October 15, 2020 
 

 
 

C. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 
1. Reschedule Public Hearing - Zoning Bylaw Amendment – 500 Secrest Hill Road (Loose Bay) 

Electoral Area “C” 
 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the holding of a public hearing for Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, be scheduled for the Regional 
District Board meeting of November 19, 2020; 
 
AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
 
 

2. Petition to Enter Service Areas – 3498 Arawana Forestry Road – Electoral Area “E” 
Street Lighting and Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste Collection and Drop-Off 
a. Bylaw No. 1618.02 
b. Bylaw No. 2190.08 
 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020, Naramata Street Lighting Local Service Establishment Amendment 
Bylaw be read a first, second and third time; 

AND THAT Bylaw No. 2190.08, 2020, Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste Collection and Drop-
Off Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw be read a first, second and third time. 
 
 

3. Petition to Enter Water Service Area – 3440, 3498, 3580, 3690 Arawana Forestry Road  
Electoral Area ”E” 
a. Bylaw No. 2896, 2020 
 
The Chair enquired whether the property owner was present to address the Board  
 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 

THAT Bylaw No. 2896, 2020, a bylaw of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen to amend 
the Naramata Water System Local Service Establishment Bylaw be read a first and second time; 
but that the Bylaw not be brought for third reading until the following conditions have been 
fulfilled. 

1. That a detailed letter, with expectations and requirements of the Regional District to be fulfilled 
at the expense of the owner with respect to infrastructure upgrades to provide water service to 
the Lands be delivered to Naramata Benchland Properties Ltd.; and, that the letter contain a 
provision whereby the developer acknowledges receipt of the letter and agrees with the 
contents therein; and 

2. That to ensure any future owner has notice of the infrastructure requirements of the Regional 
District, and the costs to provide water service to the Lands and to mitigate potential liability 
with respect to any obligation of the Regional District to provide water service, that a “no-
build/subdivision” covenant be registered against the Lands pursuant to Section 219 of the 
Land Title Act prior to inclusion of the Lands into the Naramata Water System Service Area. The 
Section 219 Covenant should also refer to the requirements of a development agreement being 
entered into prior to rezoning, subdivision or construction, if any. 

 



RDOS Board Meeting 4 October 15, 2020 
 

 
 

4. Agricultural Land Commission Referral (Exclusion) – 1313 Greyback Mountain Road  
Electoral Area “E” 
a. Representations 

 
RECOMMENDATION 9 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the RDOS Board “authorize” the application to exclude an approximately 22.56 ha part of 
the parcel located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road (Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8, District Lot 2711, 
SDYD) to proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission. 
 
 

5. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – 2390 Coalmont Road – Electoral Area “H” 
a. Bylaw No. 2498.22 
b. Representations  
 
RECOMMENDATION 10 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a third time 
and be adopted. 
 
 

6. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Regulation of Metal Storage Containers 
Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F” & “I” 
a. Bylaw No. 2895, 2020 
 
RECOMMENDATION 11 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2895, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Metal Storage Container 
Regulations Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and second time and proceed to public 
hearing; 
 
AND THAT the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
November 19, 2020; 
 
AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 

 
 

D. PUBLIC WORKS  
 
1. Required Resolution for Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program – Rural and Northern 

Communities Grant Application 
 
RECOMMENDATION 12 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Regional District support the following applications to the Investing in Canada 
Infrastructure Program – Rural and Northern Communities for the following projects, given in 
priority order: 
 
1. Naramata Water System Infrastructure Upgrades 
2. Sun Valley Water Treatment and Generator Upgrade; AND, 
 
THAT the Regional District commits to its share of each project for staff time, potential cost 
overruns or other ineligible expenses. 



RDOS Board Meeting 5 October 15, 2020 
 

 
 
E. COMMUNITY SERVICES  

 
1. Community Economic Recovery Infrastructure Grant Program 

 
RECOMMENDATION 13 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Board endorse two applications to the Community Economic Recovery Infrastructure 
Program (CERIP) grant for: 
- Keremeos Outdoor Pool Restoration and Accessibility Improvements 
- Kaleden Hotel Structural Rehabilitation 

 
 

2. Award of Manitou Park Public Washroom Construction Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION 14 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
THAT the Board of Directors award the construction of a new Public Washroom and septic system 
at Manitou Park to Plan B Contractors Inc. up to the amount of $282,110.00 exclusive of GST. 
 

F. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 
 

1. Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw 
a. Bylaw No. 1388.03 

 
RECOMMENDATION 15 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw No. 1388.03, 
2020, being a bylaw to change reference to Electoral Area “D” to Electoral Area “I”, be adopted. 

 
 

               2. Update on Municipal – Information Only 
 
 

G. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Verbal Update 
 
 

H. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. Chair’s Report 
 

 
2. Board Representation 

a. BC Grape Growers Association and Starling Control – Bush, Monteith (Alternate) 
b. Municipal Finance Authority – Kozakevich (Chair), Holmes (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
c. Municipal Insurance Association – Kozakevich (Chair), Holmes (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
d. Okanagan Basin Water Board - McKortoff, Holmes, Knodel, Pendergraft (Alternate to McKortoff), 

Monteith (Alternate to Knodel) 
e. Okanagan Film Commission – Gettens, Holmes (Alternate) 
f. Okanagan Regional Library – Kozakevich, Roberts (Alternate) 
g. Okanagan-Kootenay Sterile Insect Release Board – Bush, Knodel (Alternate) 
h. South Okanagan Similkameen Fire Chief Association – Pendergraft, Knodel, Monteith, Obirek, 



RDOS Board Meeting 6 October 15, 2020 
 

 
Roberts 

i. Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District – Kozakevich, Holmes (Alternate) 
j. South Okanagan Similkameen Rural Healthcare Community Coalition (formerly Developing 

Sustainable Rural Practice Communities) – McKortoff, Bauer (Alternate) 
k. Southern Interior Municipal Employers Association – Knodel, Kozakevich (Alternate)  
 
 

3. Directors Motions 
a. Directors Motion - Director Gettens 

THAT staff investigate the feasibility of hiring an Indigenous Relations position to develop and 
maintain resilient working relationships with each of the South Okanagan Similkameen's Indian 
Bands. 

 
 

4. Board Members Verbal Update 
 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT 



Minutes of the Similkameen Recreation Commission Meeting of September 29, 2020 
 Page 1 of 3 

Minutes 
Similkameen Recreation Commission 

Meeting of September 29, 2020 

311 9th Street, Keremeos, BC 

Present: 

Members: 

Absent: 
Staff: 

Mr. G. Bush, Director, Electoral Area “B” 
Mr. T. Roberts, Director, Electoral Area “G” 
Mr. M. Bauer, Director, Village of Keremeos 
Arden Holley, Village of Keremeos  

Tom Robins, Chair, Duncan Baynes, Jennifer Roe, Tim Austin, 
Selena Despres, Darrell Taylor 

Jeremy Evans, Village of Keremeos  
Jim Zaffino, Manager of Finance 
Justin Shuttleworth, Manager of Parks and Facilities 
Augusto Romero, Recreation Manager 
Andy Foster, Similkameen Recreation Manager 

Recording Secretary: Andy Foster 

Delegates / Guests: None 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 6:32 p.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

RECOMMENDATION

It was Moved and Seconded that the Agenda of September 29, 2020 be adopted.

CARRIED 

2. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES

RECOMMENDATION

It was Moved and Seconded that the Minutes for Similkameen Recreation Commission
meeting of August 11, 2020 be approved.

CARRIED 



 

Minutes of the Similkameen Recreation Commission Meeting of September 29, 2020 
   Page 2 of 3 

 

3. CORRESPONDENCE / DELEGATIONS 

3.1 None 

 

4. RDOS STAFF REPORTS 

4.1 Rec Centre 

 Operational overview 

4.2 General 

 Program update 

4.3 2021 Projects and Budget 

 Overview of process and timeline 

 2020 and 2021 Budget Review 

 2021 Project Review 
 

5. COMMISSION MEMBER REPORTS 

5.1 None provided  

6. RDOS DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

6.1 

 

6.2 

 

6.3 

Village of Keremeos 

 None provided 

Electoral Area “B” 

 None provided 

Electoral Area “G” 

 None provided 

7. BUSINESS ARISING  

7.1 None  

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 RECOMMENDATION 

It was Moved and Seconded that the meeting be adjourned at 8:30 pm. 

CARRIED 



 

Minutes of the Similkameen Recreation Commission Meeting of September 29, 2020 
   Page 3 of 3 

 

 

NEXT MEETING:  TBD based on budget process with target of late October / November 

 

 

      _____________ 

Chair, Recreation Commission – Similkameen Recreation      

 

       

Recording Secretary 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Electoral Area “D” Okanagan Falls  Parks and Recreation Commission 

Appointment 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Board of Directors appoint the following member to the Electoral Area “D” Okanagan 
Falls Parks and Recreation Commission for a two year term, ending December 31, 2022. 
 

Area “D” 
Okanagan Falls Parks and Recreation Commission 

Judy Garner  
 
 
Purpose: 
To appoint a new member to the Okanagan Falls Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 

Reference: 
Bylaw 2732, 2016 Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Parks and Recreation Commission 
Establishment Bylaw. 
 
Background: 
Pursuant to the Bylaw 273, 2016, parks and recreation commissions are appointed by and advise 
the Board of Directors regarding matters related a local parks and recreation service area. Members 
must reside in the service area in which they serve and terms are for two years. New members can 
be appointed at any time provided there is openings. Advertisements for membership occurs each 
fall with most members beginning their term January 1st each year.  
 
Analysis: 
Okanagan Falls Parks and Recreation Commission currently has nine members with the maximum 
number allowed under the bylaw being eleven. 
The Electoral Area Director has reviewed the new application, and is recommending Judy Garner be 
appointed to the Okanagan Falls Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Alternatives:  
That the Board not appoint the new member to the Okanagan Falls Parks and Recreation 
Commission. 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Justin Shuttleworth 
____________________________________ 
J. Shuttleworth, Parks & Facilities Manager 

 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/A.1.C. SOCF TAC 
Appts.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 1 of 4 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: South Okanagan Conservation Fund - Technical Advisory Committee Appointments 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Board of Directors appoint the following as volunteer members of the South Okanagan 
Conservation Fund Technical Advisory Committee: 
 
Three year term ending December 31  2022 

- Timothy Gray (B.Sc, M.E.T, R.P.Bio.) 
- Laura Machial (MSc., R.P.Bio.)  

 
THAT a letter of appreciation be sent to Adam Ford, Ph.D on behalf of the Board, thanking him for his 
dedication and support while serving on this committee for the past three years.  
 
Purpose: 
To appoint volunteer members to the South Okanagan Conservation Fund Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
to provide expertise in the review and recommendation to the Board of Directors regarding the selection of 
projects or recipients of the South Okanagan Conservation Funds. 
 
Reference: 
South Okanagan Conservation Fund Terms of Reference – (May 2017). 
 
Business Plan Objective: (Tie to current RDOS Business Plan) 
Goal 3.3 To develop an environmentally sustainable region 
 
Background: 
In December 2016, the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, with public assent, adopted Bylaw  
No. 2690 to establish an Environmental Conservation Service for the Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, 
“E”, “F”, the City of Penticton, District of Summerland, and the Town of Oliver.   
 
The funds requisitioned are in support of undertaking and administering activities, projects, and 
works that include, but are not limited to, water, environment, wildlife, land and habitat conservation 
efforts to protect natural areas within the participating areas of the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen.  
 
At the June 1, 2017 Board meeting, the Board of Directors approved a Terms of Reference for a 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), which is attached to this report for reference. 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/A.1.C. SOCF TAC 
Appts.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
The purpose of the TAC is to: 

(a) Ensure that all proposals to the Fund receive an expert technical review based on a fair 
assessment of merit and project effectiveness; 

(b) Provide a high level of accountability in the review process; and 
(c) Provide recommendation on technically appropriate proposals to the Board of Directors 

 
TAC members may serve a term of up to three years (renewable upon reappointment), with some 
members serving one- or two-year terms initially to ensure membership continuity.   
 
Analysis: 
In accordance with the Terms of Reference, the TAC will be comprised of five to seven volunteer 
members with expertise in each theme area of hydrology, ecology, conservation biology, ecosystems 
(sensitive terrestrial and aquatic ecosystems, management, enhancement and restoration), 
restoration and enhancement of habitat, fish and wildlife conservation including species at risk. 
 
In response to advertisements in local newspapers and via social media, 2 candidates submitted 
resumes.  Candidates for membership were evaluated by Regional District staff Christy Malden and 
SOCF Administrator Bryn White. Applicants were considered for recommendation based on the 
following criteria: expertise and qualifications in management, restoration or enhancement of fish 
and wildlife habitat, sensitive ecosystems, species at risk, natural resource management and 
qualifications in Environmental Studies, Science, Ecology, or other applicable qualification.  
 
The applications submitted to the SOCF are extremely complex in nature and these two committee 
members have a level of in-depth environmental knowledge and experience.  To that end, 
administration is recommending that these two individuals be appointed for the maximum three year 
period. A brief biography for the new new candidates is also noted in Appendix ‘A’ of this document, 
for the Board’s reference. 
 
If appointed, these two candidates would join the current five member Committee.  

· Mr. Steve Matthews, R.P.Bio and retired Provincial Okanagan Fisheries Section Head (Chair) 
· Ms. Ellen Simmons MSc. (Ph.D. candidate UBCOK) and Professor, Nicola Valley Institute of 

Technology  
· Mr. Orville Dyer, retired Senior Provincial Okanagan Species and Ecosystems at Risk Biologist  
· Mr. Darcy Henderson, Ph.D. Senior Species at Risk Biologist, Environment and Climate 

Change Canada.  
· Ms. Eva Durance, Naturalist and Volunteer; Vaseux Lake Important Bird Area, BC Nature 

Conservation Committee, South Okanagan Similkameen Stewardship Society and Burrowing 
Owl Society of BC.   

 
Administration would also like to extend a thank you to Adam Ford Ph.D.  (UBCOK) for serving as a 
volunteer on this committee for the past three years. 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/A.1.C. SOCF TAC 
Appts.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
Next Steps: 
The TAC will meet shortly to commence the evaluation process for the 2020 applications (delivery in 
2021) and provide recommendation to the Board of Directors before the end of the calendar year.  
 
Alternatives: 
1. THAT the Board of Directors appoint as volunteer members of the South Okanagan Conservation Fund 

Technical Advisory Committee, candidates as contained within this report. 
2. THAT the Board of Directors defer appointment of the Committee members for future consideration. 
3. THAT the Board of Directors decline to appoint additional members to the Technical Advisory Committee. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Christy Malden” 
___________________________________________ 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 
 

 
 
  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/A.1.C. SOCF TAC 
Appts.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Appendix ‘A’ 
 
 
Tim Gray (B.Sc, M.E.T, R.P.Bio.) Tim has nine years of experience as an environmental consultant with 
areas of focus including environmental assessment, contaminated site investigation and remediation, 
species at risk assessments, env permitting for infrastructure projects and environmental management 
for major construction and land development projects. Tim has worked with multi – discliplinary teams 
across Canada, liaising with First Nations, municipal, provincial, and federal authorities, and working 
with industries including land development, transportation, and oil and gas. Tim has completed 
environmental assessments to meet the requirements of Official Community Plans throughout the 
Okanagan.  
 
 
Laura Machial (MSc., R.P.Bio.) Laura has over 15 years of extensive practical experience working on 
projects that protect and restoreecosystem health, with a focus on species at risk, source water 
protection planning, and climate change vulnerability assessments. She has collaborated with 
Indigenous groups, land owners, community groups and rural governments and has over 10 years 
experience working in the non-profit sector and has successfully acquired over $990,000 in grants for 
environmental projects. Her experience is diverse, developing written and verbal environmental 
outreach and stewardship materials, organizing and delivering hundreds of information-sharing 
sessions, open houses, and events.  
 
 
 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Planning and Development Committee 

Thursday, October 1, 2020 
9:00 am 

 
Minutes  

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Vice Chair R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director E. Trainer, District of Summerland, Alternate 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland 

 
Director M. Johansen, Town of Oliver 
 Director K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 
Director CJ Rhodes, Town of Osoyoos, Alternate 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland (on leave) 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Planning and Development Committee Meeting of October 1, 2020 be 
adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Areas ‘A’, ‘C’, ‘D’, ‘E’, ‘F’, ‘G’, ‘H’, & ‘I’ 
Regulation of “Solar Energy Systems” 
1. Bylaw No. 2911 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the matter of the zoning bylaw amendment for Regulation of Solar Energy Systems be abandoned. 
DEFEATED 
Opposed: Bauer, Bloomfield, Trainer, Bush, S. Coyne, Gettens, Holmes, Kozakevich, Robinson, Rhodes, 
Monteith, Obirek, Pendergraft, Regehr, Roberts, Johansen, Vassilaki,  
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2911 (Solar Energy Systems Amendment Bylaw) be drafted for Electoral 
Areas “D””E”, “F”, “I” to include: 



Planning and Development Committee 2 October 1, 2020 
 
 

1. ground mounted systems, when limited to the height of accessory buildings and structures allowed 
under the applicable zone, be required to comply with the minimum setbacks for accessory buildings 
and structures outlined in that zone. 

2. if the height of ground mounted systems exceed the height of accessory building and structures 
allowed under the applicable zone, such systems be set back at least twice the height of the solar 
energy systems installed in that zone. 

3. that a maximum of 1.0 m height for roof-mounted systems be allowed above the maximum building 
height allowed under that zone 

4. that the height and setbacks for ground-mounted systems be required to meet the maximum 
permitted height requirements for a given zone, as well as setback requirements. 

CARRIED 
 

 
C. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Areas ‘A’, ‘C’, ‘D’, ‘E’, ‘F’ & ‘I’ 

Regulation of Metal Storage Containers 
1. Bylaw No. 2895 
2. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Amendment Bylaw No. 2895 be amended to incorporate the following prior to consideration of 
first reading: 
 
1.  a minimum parcel size requirement of 0.5 ha 

 
2. the replacement of the cladding and roofing requirement with a requirement to paint the container 

the same colour as the principal dwelling in Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones; 
 

3. a definition of “metal shipping container”; 
 
4. a regulation that metal shipping containers not be located between the front parcel line of a 

property and the principal dwelling unit in Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones; and 
 
5. a regulation permitting one (1) metal storage container to be used for temporary storage of 

household goods for a period not exceeding one (1) month. 
CARRIED 
 

 
 
D. ADJOURNMENT 

By consensus, the meeting adjourned at 9:53 a.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
M. Pendergraft 
Committee Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 

 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD of DIRECTORS MEETING 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Board 
of Directors held at 10:45 a.m. on Thursday, September 17, 2020 in the Boardroom, 101 Martin Street, 
Penticton, British Columbia. 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 

 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton, Alternate 
Director P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of September 17, 2020 be adopted as amended by 
removing Item A2b Development Variance Permit Application from the Consent Agenda and moving it 
to Item B4. - CARRIED 

 
 

1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 
 
a. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – September 3, 2020 

THAT the Minutes of the September 3, 2020 Environment and Infrastructure Committee meeting 
be received. 
 

b. Planning and Development Committee – September 3, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the September 3, 2020 Planning and Development Committee meeting be 
received. 
 
THAT the Regional District accept the Okanagan Falls 2020 Economic Development and Recovery 
Plan as a guiding document. 
 

c. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – September 3, 2020 
THAT the minutes of the September 3, 2020 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 

 



RDOS Board Meeting 2 September 17, 2020 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. - CARRIED 
 
 

2. Consent Agenda – Development Services  
 
a. Temporary Use Permit – 345 Kathleen Avenue, Electoral Area “E” 

1. Permit 
2. Representations 

 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
 

b. Development Variance Permit – 2620 West Bench Drive, Electoral Area “F” 
1. Permit 
This item was removed from the Consent Agenda; please refer to Item B4. 

 
c. Temporary Use Permit – District Lot 1838, SDYD, Except That Part Thereof Outlined Red on Plan 

B1374, Electoral Area “H” 
1. Permit 
2. Representations 

 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
 

d. Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) Appointment  
THAT the Board of Directors appoint Debbie Selwood as a member of the Electoral Area “E” 
Advisory Planning Commission until October 31, 2022. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Development Services be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 
1. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – 2390 Coalmont Road, Electoral Area “H” 

a. Bylaw No.2498.22, 2020 
b. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 
second time and proceed to public hearing; 
 
AND THAT, the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
October 15, 2020; 
 
AND THAT staff give notice of the pubic hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
CARRIED 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 3 September 17, 2020 
 

 
 

2. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Loose Bay, Electoral Area “C” 
a. Bylaw No.2453.38, 2020 
b. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 
second time and proceed to public hearing; 
 
AND THAT the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
October 15, 2020; 
 
AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
CARRIED 
 
 

3. Agricultural Land Commission Referral (Non-Farm Use) – 1543 Maple Street, Electoral Area “D” 
 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors defers making a decision and directs that the proposal be considered by 
the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC). - CARRIED 
 
 

4. Development Variance Permit – 2620 West Bench Drive, Electoral Area “F” 
1. Permit 
 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008-DVP. - CARRIED 

 
 

C. FINANCE  
 
1. Utility Billing – Late Payment Fee 

 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Regional District waive late payment charges to outstanding utility bill accounts up to, but 
not including, those balances that remain unpaid as at December 31, 2020.  - CARRIED 

 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 4 September 17, 2020 
 

 
D. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

 
1. Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 

 
RECOMMENDATION 9 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Open Burning Regulations Bylaw No. 2898, 2020 
be read a first, second and third time and be adopted. – CARRIED 
Opposed: Director B. Coyne 

 
 

E. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Verbal Update 
 
 

F. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. Chair’s Report 
 

 
2. Board Representation  

a. BC Grape Growers Association and Starling Control – Bush, Monteith (Alternate) 
b. Municipal Finance Authority – Kozakevich (Chair), Holmes (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
c. Municipal Insurance Association – Kozakevich (Chair), Holmes (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
d. Okanagan Basin Water Board - McKortoff, Boot, Knodel, Pendergraft (Alternate to McKortoff), 

Holmes (Alternate to Boot), Monteith (Alternate to Knodel) 
e. Okanagan Film Commission – Gettens, Holmes (Alternate) 
f. Okanagan Regional Library – Kozakevich, Roberts (Alternate) 
g. Okanagan-Kootenay Sterile Insect Release Board – Bush, Knodel (Alternate) 
h. South Okanagan Similkameen Fire Chief Association – Pendergraft, Knodel, Monteith, Obirek, 

Roberts 
i. South Okanagan Similkameen Rural Healthcare Community Coalition (formerly Developing 

Sustainable Rural Practice Communities) – McKortoff, Bauer (Alternate) 
j. Southern Interior Municipal Employers Association – Knodel, Kozakevich (Alternate)  
 

 
3. Directors Motions 
 

a. Director’s Motion – Director Obirek 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT staff investigate the impacts of increasing agricultural reserves and agricultural operations 
to increase food security. - CARRIED 

 
 

4. Board Members Verbal Update 
 

 
  



RDOS Board Meeting 5 September 17, 2020 
 

 
G. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 11:50 a.m. 
 
 
 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Board 
of Directors held at 10:17 a.m. on Thursday, October 1, 2020 in the Boardroom, 101 Martin Street, 
Penticton, British Columbia. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 

 
Director CJ Rhodes, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director E. Trainer, District of Summerland, Alternate 
Director P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland (on leave) 

 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of October 1, 2020 be amended to remove Item A.1.h. 
“RDOS Board Meeting Minutes of September 17, 2020”. - CARRIED 
 
 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

 
a. Similkameen Recreation Commission – August 11, 2020 

THAT the Minutes of the August 11, 2020 Similkameen Recreation Commission meeting be 
received. 
 

b. Naramata Parks Recreation Commission  
THAT the Board of Directors appoint the following member to the Electoral Area “E” Naramata 
Parks and Recreation Commission for a two year term, ending December 31, 2022. 
 

c. Advisory Planning Commission, Electoral Area ‘C’ – September 8, 2020  
THAT the Minutes of the September 8, 2020 Advisory Planning Commission, Electoral Area ‘C’ 
meeting be received. 
 

d. Advisory Planning Commission, Electoral Area ‘D’ – July 14, 2020  
THAT the Minutes of the July 14, 2020 Advisory Planning Commission, Electoral Area ‘D’ meeting 
be received. 



RDOS Board Meeting 2 October 1, 2020 
 

 
 

e. Corporate Services Committee – September 17, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the September 17, 2020 Corporate Services Committee meeting be received. 
 

f. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – September 17, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the September 17, 2020 Environment and Infrastructure Committee 
meeting be received. 
 

g. Planning and Development Committee – September 17, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the September 17, 2020 Planning and Development Committee meeting be 
received. 
 
THAT the Board of Directors advise the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing that it supports 
the extension of Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D to June 30, 2029, in order that replacement 
federal and/or provincial legislation can be enacted. 
 

h. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – September 17, 2020 
This item was removed from the agenda. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

2. Consent Agenda – Development Services  
a. Development Variance Permit – 218 Cedar Avenue, Electoral Area “I” 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Development Variance Permit No. I2020.009-DVP 
 

RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Development Services be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 
1. Agricultural Land Commission Referral – 5317 Sunflower Street, Electoral Area ‘C’ 

 
The Chair enquired whether the property owner was present to address the Board, however, due to 
technical difficulties, they were unable to. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the RDOS “not authorize” the application for a “non-adhering residential use” at 5317 
Sunflower street (Lot 249 Plan KAP1789, DL 2450, SDYD) in Electoral Area “C” to proceed to the 
Agricultural Land Commission. 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the matter of the Agricultural Land Commission Referral for 5317 Sunflower Street be 
deferred to the next meeting to allow the property owner to address the Board. - CARRIED 
 

 



RDOS Board Meeting 3 October 1, 2020 
 

 
2. Official Community Plan (OCP) and Zoning Bylaw Amendments 

Proposed Dock Regulations – Okanagan Basin Lakes 
a. Bylaw No. 2862 
b. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2862, 2020 the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Okanagan Basin Lakes 
Official Community Plan and Zoning Amendment Bylaw, be read a first and second time and 
proceed to public hearing; 
 
AND THAT the Board of Directors considers the process, as outlined in this report from the Chief 
Administrative Officer dated October 1, 2020, to be appropriate consultation for the purpose of 
Section 475 of the Local Government Act; 
 
AND THAT, in accordance with Section 477 of the Local Government Act, the Board of Directors has 
considered Amendment Bylaw No. 2862, 2020, in conjunction with its Financial and applicable 
Waste Management Plans; 
 
AND THAT the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
November 19, 2020; 
 
AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
CARRIED 

 
 

C. PUBLIC WORKS  
 
1. Organic Composting Site 

 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Regional District purchase the modular home at 1313 Greyback Road for $110,000 plus 
applicable taxes from the Campbell Mountain Landfill Reserve to provide office space at the 
proposed Organics Composting Facility. - CARRIED 
 

 
2. Net Zero Waste Eastgate Partnership Agreement 

 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Regional District execute a Partnership Agreement with Net Zero Waste Inc. and Net Zero 
Waste Eastgate Ltd. to meet the requirements of the Shared Cost Agreement to accept the 
$4,066,666 grant from the Organics Infrastructure Program funding. - CARRIED 

 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 4 October 1, 2020 
 

 
D. COMMUNITY SERVICES  

 
1. Award of Garnett Family Park – Public Washroom Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the construction of a Public Washroom at Garnett Family Park be awarded to Plan B 
Contractors Inc. up to the amount of $96,000.00 exclusive of GST. - CARRIED 
 

 
2. 2021 UBCM Community Resiliency Investment Grant Program 

 
RECOMMENDATION 9 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Regional District submit a grant application for the 2021 UBCM Community Resiliency 
Investment Program in the amount of $600,000 for the identified work as outlined in the October 1, 
2020 Administrative Report to the Board from CAO, Bill Newell. - CARRIED 

 
 

E. FINANCE  
 
1. Property Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 2910, 2020 

 
RECOMMENDATION 10 (Weighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2910, 2020, being a bylaw of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen to 
exempt specific properties from property taxation, be read a first, second and third time and be 
adopted. 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT golf courses be removed from the list of properties subject to tax exemption in Bylaw No. 
2910. - DEFEATED 
Opposed: Directors Gettens, B. Coyne, Bloomfield, Trainer, Holmes, Roberts, Johansen, Knodel, 
S. Coyne, Obirek, Pendergraft, Bush, Kozakevich, Monteith 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2910, 2020, being a bylaw of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen to 
exempt specific properties from property taxation, be amended to reflect the Okanagan Falls Legion 
amount adjustment to $412.00 and the removal of Okanagan Falls United Church, and be read a 
first, second and third time and be adopted. – CARRIED 
Opposed: Director Bauer 

 
 

F. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Verbal Update 
 
 

G. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. Chair’s Report 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 5 October 1, 2020 
 

 
 

2. Directors Motions 
 
a. Notice of Motion - Director Gettens 

That staff investigate the feasibility of hiring an Indigenous Relations position to develop and 
maintain resilient working relationships with each of the South Okanagan Similkameen's Indian 
Bands. 

 
 

3. Board Members Verbal Update 
 

 
H. ADJOURNMENT 

By consensus, the meeting adjourned at 11:36 a.m. 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

                                                         File No: E2020.008-TUP 
Page 1 of 6 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 15, 2020 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Application – Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP 
 

Purpose:  To allow for a short-term vacation rental use through issuance of a TUP 

Owners:   Brent and Deanna Ryll Agent: n/a Folio: E-00585.005 

Civic:  3575 3rd Street Legal: Parcel B (KF13976), Block 6, Plan 519, DL 210, SDYD  

OCP:  Low Density Residential (LR) Zone: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking a temporary use permit to authorize the operation of a short-term vacation 
rental use of a single detached dwelling, from May 1st to October 31st and which is to be comprised of 
three (3) bedrooms and a maximum occupancy of 6 people within the existing single detached 
dwelling with accommodation for three (3) parking stalls.  
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 836 m2 in area and is situated on the south side of Ritchie 
Avenue and the west side of Third Street with vehicular access from the lane at the rear of the parcel 
and from Ritchie Avenue.  It is understood that the parcel is comprised of a single detached dwelling 
with an attached garage (single car).  

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by similarly sized residential 
parcels that have been development with single detached dwellings in the immediate vicinity and a 
mix of uses in the Naramata Townsite to the north. 
 
Background: 
Parcel Information 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by the Plan of Naramata Townsite in July 
8th, 1908, while available Regional District records indicate that a building permits for a single 
detached dwelling (1992). 

In support of this TUP application, a Health & Safety Inspection was completed on August 31, 2020.  
An assessment from a ROWP regarding the septic system was provided and the property is serviced 
by a community water system. 



  

                                                         File No: E2020.008-TUP 
Page 2 of 6 

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01). 

Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, the subject 
property is currently designated Low Density Residential (LR). 

Section 22 of the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw contains the objective to consider allowing on-going 
short-term vacation rental uses on properties designated Residential through the issuance of 
Temporary Use Permits.  

This is also supported under Section 11 of the Electoral Area “E” OCP bylaw, which includes vacation 
rental policies that support paid accommodation for visitors through the short-term rental of 
residences provided that community and neighbourhood needs and other land use needs can be 
addressed (Section 11.6.1).  

Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459, 2008, the property is currently zoned Residential 
Single Family One (RS1) which permits single detached dwellings as a principal use, with limited 
accommodation for commercial uses in the form of “home occupations” and “bed and breakfast 
operations” as permitted secondary uses. 

COVID-19  

The Province of British Columbia has declared a state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. The Province has entered into “Phase 3”, which calls for those within BC or travelling from 
another province or territory to travel safely and respectively.  
 
Public Process: 
On September 28, 2020, a Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held electronically and was attended 
by approximately one member of the public (as well as the applicants and Area Director). 

Due to COVID-19, an Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) meeting was not held.  Area “E” 
APC members were provided the opportunity to comment individually on this application.  

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.  

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw includes 
supportive policy for vacation rental uses in residential areas and outlines a number of criteria against 
which the Board will consider such a use. 

In response to the criteria outlined in Section 11.6.2, the applicant has provided a letter from a 
Registered On-site Wastewater Practitioner (ROWP) inspecting the septic tank and stating that 
“existing system should be sufficient” for intended use.   



  

                                                         File No: E2020.008-TUP 
Page 3 of 6 

With regards to screening and fencing, there is a vegetative hedge and fencing along the property 
boundary. 

In terms of off-street parking, the applicant has submitted a site plan which shows provision of three 
parking stalls, two tandem stalls accessed from Ritchie Avenue and one from the lane at the rear of 
the subject parcel.  This includes a single car garage and two on-site surface parking spaces. 

A Health and Safety Inspection was completed on August 31, 2020 and no deficiencies were noted. 

Conversely, Administration recognises that operation of a vacation rental will attract non-residents to 
the area and into an established residential neighbourhood during a Provincial State of Emergency for 
COVID-19.   

The intent of the Regional District’s “Vacation Rental Temporary Use Permit Policy”, and supportive 
OCP policies is to allow for a new vacation rental use to operate for one “season” in order to 
determine if such a use is inappropriate, incompatible or unviable at a particular location and, if so, to 
allow for the permit to lapse or not be renewed within a relatively short period.  

Given the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw generally supports vacation rentals in residential areas, and 
the applicant has satisfied or will satisfy criteria requirements for a three-bedroom vacation rental, it 
is recommended that the vacation rental be approved, with conditions (see TUP No. E2020.008-TUP).  
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP; or 

2. THAT the Board of Directors defer consideration of Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP for 
the following reasons: 

i) TBD 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:   

_____________________ _________________  
JoAnn Peachey, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Agency Referral List   

 No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

 No. 3 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

    



  

                                                         File No: E2020.008-TUP 
Page 4 of 6 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 
 
Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. E2020.008-TUP: 
 

o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) þ Fortis 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o City of Penticton 

o Ministry of Agriculture o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Energy, Mines & Petroleum 
Resources 

o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Environment  & Climate 
Change Strategy 

o Town of Princeton 

o Ministry of Forest, Lands, Natural 
Resource Operations & Rural 
Development (Archaeology Branch) 

o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Jobs, Trade & Technology o Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o BC Parks o Upper Similkameen Indian Band (USIB) 

o School District  #53 (Areas A, B, C, D & G) o Lower Similkameen Indian Band (LSIB) 

o School District  #58 (Area H) o Environment Canada 

o School District  #67 (Areas D, E, F, I) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o Central Okanagan Regional District o Canadian Wildlife Services 

o Kootenay Boundary Regional District o OK Falls Irrigation District 

o Thompson Nicola Regional District o Kaleden Irrigation District 

o Fraser Valley Regional District o  Irrigation District / improvement 
Districts / etc. 

þ Naramata Fire Department   

 
 
 
  



  

                                                         File No: E2020.008-TUP 
Page 5 of 6 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

    

  

View from 3rd Street 



  

                                                         File No: E2020.008-TUP 
Page 6 of 6 

 Attachment No. 3 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

     

  

View from Ritchie Avenue 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP 
  Page 1 of 6 

TEMPORARY 
USE PERMIT 

  

 
 

FILE NO.: E2020.008-TUP 
 

Owner: Brent and Deanna Ryll 
 3575 3rd Street 
 Naramata BC, V0H 1N0 

Agent: n/a 
  
 

 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied 
or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a 
part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as shown 
on Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, and ‘C’ and described below: 

Legal Description: Parcel B (KF13976), Block 6, Plan 519, District Lot 210, SDYD 

Civic Address: 3575 3rd Street, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 017-683-360  Folio: E-00585.005 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 22.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a “vacation rental” use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the temporary commercial accommodation of paying guests for a period of less than 
one month. 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP 
  Page 2 of 6 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 31st; 

b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be 
three (3); 

d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
six (6); 

e) a minimum of three (3) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying 
guests; 

f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use Permit 
shall be provided to the owner of each property situated within 100 metres of the land 
and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

h) vacation rental operation must follow the Ministry of Health’s COVID-19 Guidance for 
the Hotel Sector during the Provincial State of Emergency, including environmental 
cleaning, staff health and communication, and any subsequent provincial health orders 
for hotel operators. 

i) information shall be posted within the dwelling unit during the Provincial State of 
Emergency for COVID-19 following Provincial recommended communication, signage 
and posters for the Hotel Sector on the following topics: 

i) Symptoms of COVID-19 



Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP 
  Page 3 of 6 

ii) B.C.’s COVID-19 Self-Assessment Tool 

iii) Handwashing  

iv) Respiratory/cough etiquette 

v) Self-isolation and self-monitoring 

j) a sign must be posted on the front entrance telling staff not to enter the premises if 
they are feeling ill.   

k) all guests must follow Provincial guidelines during the Provincial State of Emergency 
for COVID-19, including avoiding non-essential travel as a measure to protect 
vulnerable people in communities from COVID-19.  

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit shall expire on December 31, 2021. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP 
Page 4 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2020.008-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NNNARAMATA 

Subject 
Property 

OKANAGAN 
LAKE 

RITCHIE AVE 

TH
IR

D 
ST

 

SE
CO

N
D 

ST
 

 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP 
Page 5 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2020.008-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.008-TUP 
Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2020.008-TUP 

Schedule ‘C’ 
 

 
 
 
 



Interior Health
vnaSsWh

July 27, 2020

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen
101 Martin Street
Penticton, BC V2A 5J9

Blanning(%rdos.bc.ca

To Whom It May Concern:

RE: File #: E2020.008-TUP
Our interests are unaffected

The IH Health/ Built Environment (HBE) Team has received the above captioned referral from
your agency. Typically we provide comments regarding potential health impacts of a proposal.

More information about our program can be found at Healthy Built Environment.

An initial review has been completed and no health impacts associated with this proposal have

been identified. As such, our interests are unaffected by this proposal.

However, should you have further concerns, please return the referral to hbe(5)interiorhealth.ca

with a note explaining your new request, or you are welcome to contact me directly at 1-855-

744-6328 then choose HBE option.

Sincerely,

//%w
Mike Adams, CPHI(C)
Team Leader, Healthy Communities

Interior Health Authority

Bus: I-855-744-6328, Option 4 Kamloops Health Unit
Email: hbeOinteriorhealth.ca 519 Columbia Street
Web: interiorhealth.ca Kamloops, BC V2C2T8



2 Feedback Form™:WlW;yi.]M<:!t.«

-^DDS
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SI'MILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Fax: 250-492-0063 / Email: planning@irdos.bc.ca

?<UL
TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: E2020.008-TUP

FROM: Name: ( ^ ^ ^-( ^. ^ /-<- /^

(please print)

Street Address:

/<LA^_^'Date: _ /N ^'<-^ ^-^ ,/ ^^3 ,

RE: Temporary Use Permit (TUP) Renewal -^''Vacation Rental" Use
3575 3rd Street, Naramata (Area "E")

My comments / concerns are:
y

I do_support the proposed use at 3575 3rd Street.^\
I do_support the proposed use at 3575 3rd Street, subject to the comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed use at 3575 3rd Street.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to a decision being made on this TUP application.

Hi
-segiona! Distrn-

f:l}\ • ' .J'.f.''j'(

' •-' • WSftm Sti'QyL

'-'yniicTbn nr i/&& c .r,
n5^

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

prior to the Board meeting where the TUP will be considered.

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9, 250-492-0237.



8 Feedback Form•iEaSfiBIilHCSaI

WrJ
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SI'MFLKAMEEN Tei: 250-492-0237 / Fax: 250-492-0063 / Email: pt3nning@)rdos.bc.ca

1 , .

^;^-
TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.; E2020.008-TUP

FROM: Nams: J-/f^h^f^__J^^£'C(<
(please print)

Street Address:

Dat^ fi^q /0 ^A£<3

RE: Temporary Use Permit (TUP) Renewal - "Vacation RentaF Use
3575 3rd Street/ Naramata (Area "E")

My comments / concerns are:

0 I dfi.support the proposed use at 3575 3 Street.

I do.support the proposed use at 3575 3rd Street, subject to the comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed use at 3575 3 Street.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the
Regional District Board prior to a decision being made on this TUP application.

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

prior to the Board meeting where the TUP will be considered.

Protecting your personal tnformatlon is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Simtlkameen takes seriously, our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of infarmatlafi and Pmtectitin of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary tnfonnatton you provide ID us is collected, used and dbdoserf in accordance wfth FIPPA. Should you have gny quealops about the collection, use

ordlsdosyre of this information please contact: Manager of L^liilaUve Sorviuss, ROOS, 101 Martin Street, Punticton, BC V2A 5J9,250"'t92-0237.



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.1. 20201015 RPT  
Board Building Enforcement F07213.000 Baron.Docx File No: F07213.000 
Page 1 of 6 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Building Bylaw Infractions 

Electoral Area:  F         Folio: F07213.000 
PID:  011-336-676 
Civic Address: 1321 Fish Lake Road 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT a Section 302 Notice on Title, pursuant to Section 302 of the Local Government Act and 
Section 57 of the Community Charter (made applicable to Regional Districts by Section 302 of the 
LGA), be filed against the title of lands described as District Lot 3761, ODYD, Except Plan 33562, 
that certain works have been undertaken on the lands contrary to the Regional District 
Okanagan-Similkameen Building Bylaw No. 2805, 2018;  

AND THAT injunctive action be commenced.  
 

Civic:  1321 Fish Lake Road, (Faulder)    Folio: F07213.000 

Legal:   District Lot 3761, ODYD, Except Plan 33562 

Zone:  Resource Area (RA) 
 
Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek direction from the Regional District Board regarding 
enforcement against the property owner(s) of 1321/1344/1405 Fish Lake Road, legally described as 
District Lot 3761, ODYD, Except Plan 33562 in relation to: 
 

1. Placement of structures without building permits 
 

Site Context 
 
The subject property is approximately 1,055,473 m2 (105.5 ha) in area and is situated at 1321 Fish 
Lake Road, approximately approximately 25 km northwest of Summerland, BC.   
 
The property is not located within the Agricultural Land Reserve although the owners have 
indicated that they are seeking inclusion. The entire property, except for one homesite, is within 
the Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit area. 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.1. 20201015 RPT  
Board Building Enforcement F07213.000 Baron.Docx File No: F07213.000 
Page 2 of 6 

 

Regulatory Provisions: 
 
RDOS Building Bylaw #2805, 2018 (“Building Bylaw”) 
 
Area “F” Okanagan Lake West / West Bench Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008 
Section 10.1.6 of the Zoning Bylaw permits a maximum of 4 accessory dwellings with a maximum 
gross floor area of 360 m2.  For parcels situated within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR), the 
maximum number of accessory dwellings permitted per parcel in excess of one are permitted only 
to the extent that a “non-adhering residential use” approval from the Agricultural Land Commission 
(ALC) has been granted for such accessory dwellings. 
 
Background: 
 
In April, 2019, a complaint was received with respect to multiple structures, including accessory 
dwellings, which have been constructed on the subject property.  

No building permits are on record as having been issued for this property other than a farm 
exemption for a farm storage building which was processed in April, 2001 after an enforcement file 
was initiated with respect to construction occurring on the property.  At the time of submission for 
the application for farm exemption there was one dwelling identified on the parcel site plan.   

Since April, 2001, it appears that several more structures have been constructed without permit, 
including at least two dwelling units (#1344 and #1405 Fish Lake Road) as well as accessory 
buildings.   

On July 10, 2019 a letter was prepared and forwarded to the owners with respect to the 
requirement of building permits for all buildings larger than 107 ft2.  Building permits have been a 
requirement of Regional District Bylaws since adoption of the first Building Bylaw in 1972.  

No response was received from the owners and on January 29, 2020 a further letter was sent to the 
owners giving them until February 29, 2020 to arrange a mutually convenient time to conduct a site 
assessment.  The owners’ response dated February 20, 2020 advised that they were in the middle 
of calving season and asking for our patience.  
 
On March 5, 2020, a follow up letter was sent to the property owners asking for response by the 
end of April, 2020.   
 
On June 22, 2020, following receipt of a further complaint advising of construction activity, the 
Building Official attended at the property and noted active construction.  A Stop Work Order was 
placed and construction was ordered to be stopped.   
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.1. 20201015 RPT  
Board Building Enforcement F07213.000 Baron.Docx File No: F07213.000 
Page 3 of 6 

A letter dated June 29, 2020 was sent to the registered owners advising of the Stop Work and 
requirements to obtain a permit.  A deadline to apply for a building permit by July 26, 2020 was 
imposed. 
 
 
 
A letter dated August 4, 2020 was received from the registered owners saying that they “will be 
able to deal with these issues” after the cattle roundup and harvest. 
 
The Building Bylaw infraction is considered to be Category 3.   
 
Analysis: 

Reasonable efforts have been made to achieve voluntary compliance with the property owner.   

In July 2009 the Board adopted a Policy (Resolution B354/09) to provide for a consistent and cost 
effective approach to the enforcement of Building Bylaw violations.  This policy provides the Board 
with three categories of infractions and the recommended action for each. 
Category 1 (Minor Deficiencies) – Place notice of deficiencies on folio file. 
Category 2 (Major Deficiencies) – Place Section 302 Notice on title. 
Category 3 (Health & Safety Deficiencies/Building without Permit) – Place Section 302 Notice on 
title and seek compliance through injunctive action. 

As there are potential construction and health and safety deficiencies on this property, a Section 
302 Notice on Title and injunctive action are recommended by staff. The Notice on Title advises the 
current and future owners of the deficiency and injunctive action will require that the deficiencies 
be remedied and the property be brought into compliance with RDOS bylaws. 

Injunctive action will require an application be submitted to the British Columbia Supreme Court. 
Seeking a court injunction has a legal cost which, if successful, can only partially be recovered from 
the property owners.  
 
Alternatives: 

1. Do not proceed with enforcement action 
2. Place a notice of deficiencies on the folio file (Category 1) 
3. Place a Section 302 Notice on title (Category 2)  

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
“L. Miller” 
____________________________________ 
L. Miller, Building & Enforcement Services 
Manager 

 

 
Attachments: No. 1 – Parcel Map 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.1. 20201015 RPT  
Board Building Enforcement F07213.000 Baron.Docx File No: F07213.000 
Page 4 of 6 

  No. 2 –June 2020 photo 
 
 
 
  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.1. 20201015 RPT  
Board Building Enforcement F07213.000 Baron.Docx File No: F07213.000 
Page 5 of 6 

 
ATTACHMENT No. 1 

 
  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.1. 20201015 RPT  
Board Building Enforcement F07213.000 Baron.Docx File No: F07213.000 
Page 6 of 6 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 
 

 
 
 

1321 Fish Lake Road 
F-07213.000 
June 22, 2020 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.2. 20201015 RPT  BRD 
Building Infraction Magdalena.Docx File No:D70020.790 / 03461.005 
Page 1 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Building Bylaw Infraction 

Electoral Area:  D         Folio: D-70020.790 / 03461.005 
PID:  026-711-524 Mobile Home Registry #102363 
Civic Address: G9 – 5405 McLean Creek Road (Permit 20624) 

 
Administrative Recommendation: 
THAT if corrective works have not been completed by November 30, 2020 a Section 302 Notice on 
Title, pursuant to Section 302 of the Local Government Act and Section 57 of the Community 
Charter (made applicable to Regional Districts by Section 302 of the LGA), be filed against the title 
of lands described as Lot 1, District Lots 374, 551 & 2710 Plan KAP81234, SDYD, that certain works 
have been undertaken on the lands contrary to the Regional District Okanagan-Similkameen 
Building Bylaws No. 2333 and No.2805; and 
 
THAT injunctive action be commenced.   
 

Civic:  G9 – 5405 McLean Creek Road   Folio: D-70020.790 / 03461.005 

Legal:   Lot 1, Districts Lots 374, 551 & 2710, SDYD, Plan KAP81234  

Zone:  RSM1s – Residential Manufactured Home Park Zone, site specific 
 
 
Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to seek direction from the Regional District Board regarding 
enforcement against the property owners in relation to an expired building permit with incomplete 
inspections and failure to meet floodplain elevation requirements; 

 
Site Context 
The subject property is approximately 124609 m2 (12.46 ha) in area and the building in question is 
situated at G9 – 5405 McLean Creek Road, located approximately 2 km east of Okanagan Falls, BC.   
 
The property is not located within the Agricultural Land Reserve.  
 

  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.2. 20201015 RPT  BRD 
Building Infraction Magdalena.Docx File No:D70020.790 / 03461.005 
Page 2 of 5 

Regulatory Provisions: 
 
Building Enforcement Policy (Resolution B354/09) – July, 2009 
 
RDOS Building Bylaw #2805, 2018 (“Building Bylaw”) 
 
Area “D” East Skaha Vaseux Zoning Bylaw No. 2455, 2008 
Section 8.1.2 of the Zoning Bylaw states that land lower than 1.5 m above the natural boundary of 
any watercourse is designated as floodplain.   
Section 8.3.2 states the no person must construct, reconstruct, move or extend a floor system or 
pad which supports a habitable area…lower than the flood construction levels.  
 
Background: 
 
The Contravention of Building Regulations Report dated September 2, 2020 from the Building 
Official indicates that a Building Permit No. 20624 was issued on December 6, 2017 to place a 
manufactured home, with an attached garage and a porch, in a manufactured home park.  The 
permit expired December 6, 2019.  The permit was issued to the property owner and the Agent was 
the company which placed the modular home and constructed the garage. 
 
The permit was issued with the condition that a survey was required to prove that the home was 
placed above the flood construction level.  The lot is beside Shuttleworth Creek. 
 
On February 27, 2018 a Final Inspection was undertaken. The only outstanding item was receipt of 
the survey to demonstrate that the underside of the floor system of the home was above the 
designated flood construction level (1.5 m above the natural boundary of the adjacent 
watercourse).  On March 27, 2018 the bulding official reviewed the matter with the agent to discuss 
occupancy requirements.  The agent was advised that occupancy could not be approved until the 
floodplain elevation was confirmed.   
 
On March 7, 2018 an email was received from a professional surveyor stating that the dwelling did 
not meet the required flood construction level.  The building needed to be raised approximately 3.3 
feet to meet the designated flood construction level. 
 
On August 24, 2018 a family called to report that they had purchased the home and requested an 
Occupancy Permit.  The purchaser had bought the home from the property owner but had not been 
advised about the floodplain issue. 
 
On January 28, 2019 the Agent called and discussed the options of applying for a Floodplain 
Exemption or raising the home and garage.  On August 1, 2019, RDOS staff met with the Agent and 
a surveyor on site.  On September 4, 2019, the property owner and agent met with RDOS staff to 
discuss options.   
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.2. 20201015 RPT  BRD 
Building Infraction Magdalena.Docx File No:D70020.790 / 03461.005 
Page 3 of 5 

Background con’t: 
 
On October 10, 2019 the property owner called RDOS staff to inform that he was having a 
hydrologist re-measure the elevation to determine if a new high water mark had been established 
by a recent dredging of the creek (due to floods of 2018).  On October 30, 2019 the RDOS sent a 
letter to the owner requesting that the issue be resolved before the building permit expired in 
December 2019.  Five subsequent letter were sent to the homeowners and the property owner. 
 
In June 2020, the homeowners called to advise that the property owner had re-purchased the 
home and they were no longer involved.   
 
The deficiencies are health & safety related.   
 
In order to close the permit file, the dwelling must be raised to meet the required flood 
construction level. 
 
This Building Bylaw infraction is considered to be Category 3.   
 
This property is listed for sale with a real estate agent (MLS #185222).  Staff is concerned that the 
property owner will once again sell the dwelling, knowing that it does not meet the required flood 
construction level. 
 
On October 6, 2020, the property owner advised that steps have been taken to remediate the 
deficient items.  In particular, the owner has advised that contractors have been consulted to lift 
the home off the foundation and construction a 3’6” wall to raise the structure above the flood 
construction level.  This work is to place by the end of October, 2020.   
 
A map showing the location of this property and a photo of the infraction are attached. 
 
Analysis: 

Reasonable efforts have been made to achieve voluntary compliance with the property owner.   

In accordance with the Building Enforcement Policy, as there are potential construction and health 
and safety deficiencies on this property, staff is recommending proceeding with Category 3 
enforcement action (Place Section 302 Notice on title and seek compliance through injunctive 
action).  A Section 302 Notice registered against the property title advises the current and future 
owners of the deficiency.  The Notice will be remain registered against the title until the 
deficiencies have been remedied.   

Proceeding to Injunctive action will require an application be submitted to the British Columbia 
Supreme Court.   Seeking a court injunction has a legal cost which, if successful, can only partially be 
recovered from the property owners.   Anticipated costs to proceed to legal action could be 
between $1,500 and $25,000.  
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.2. 20201015 RPT  BRD 
Building Infraction Magdalena.Docx File No:D70020.790 / 03461.005 
Page 4 of 5 

Alternatives: 
1. Do not proceed with enforcement action 
2. Place a notice of deficiencies on the folio file (Category 1) 
3. Place a Section 302 Notice on title (Category 2)  
4. Place a Section 302 Notice on title and seek injunctive action (Category 3) 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
“L. Miller” 
____________________________________ 
L. Miller, Building & Enforcement Services 
Manager 

 

 
Attachments: No. 1 – Parcel Map 
  No. 2 – Parcel photo 
  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/B.2. 20201015 RPT  BRD 
Building Infraction Magdalena.Docx File No:D70020.790 / 03461.005 
Page 5 of 5 

ATTACHMENT No. 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

 
  

Photo from real estate 
listing September 2020. 

G9 



October 5, 2020 

 

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen  

101 Martin Street 

Penticton, B.C. 

V2A 5J9 

 

Re: Building Bylaw Infraction 

Folio #: D-70020.790/03461.005 

Lot: 1 Plan KAP81234 DL 374, 551 & 2710 SDYD 

PID: 026-711-524  

Mobile Home Registry: 102363 

Civic Address: G9-4505 McLean Creek Road 

Permit #: 20624 

 

Attention: Laura Miller, Manager of Building and Enforcement Services 

 

I am writting in response to your letter dated October 15, 2020 which I assume is an error and 
should read September 15, 2020. I have read through the contents and I generally agree with the 
timelines as stated  as well as the various correspondence and site meetings. The main issue that has 
been continually ignored is the fact the RDOS gave formal approval for the design and construction of 
the expansion of Peachcliff Estates on July 14, 2014. After reviewing my files and past emails between 
myself, the RDOS offices and Protech Consulting Engineers I cannot find any request to address the 
flood plain issue. We conducted all the necessary engineering reports that were required at the time of 
re-zoning and the flood plain issue was never broached.  

The fact that the potential of a 200 year flood could impact the height of the foundations in that 
phase should have been addressed prior to final approvals. That would have allowed us to raise the 
roads which would have eliminated the extra costs that we have incurred to build retaining walls, import 
fill material to lift the foundation heights for lots that lie within the flood plain area as well as we would 
have avoided having to re-purchase a home off of a home owner. The costs that we have spent to date 
are well over $450,000. In your letter you stated that the permit for G9 was issued with the condition 
that a survey was required to prove that the height of the foundation was above the flood construction 
level. I was never made aware of any conditions as part of the permit for G9.  



Moving forward our plan is to lift the home off of the foundation, build a 3’6” pony wall and 
then drop the home back onto the foundation. We are currently scheduling this work to take place by 
the end of October so we ask that the RDOS refrain from taking injunctive action at this time. The home 
is in our possession and we will not be selling the home until all the work is completed.  

  

 

Sincerely 

 

 

 

Aldo Venier, Retire West Communities Ltd and Magdelena Enterprises Ltd.  



 

                                                         File No: C2020.010-ZONE 
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 15, 2020  
 
RE: Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “C” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT the holding of a public hearing for Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, be scheduled for the Regional 
District Board meeting of November 19, 2020; 

AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to seek direction from the Regional District Board in relation to a new 
public hearing date for Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020. 
 
Background: 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, relates to the proposed rezoning of 500 Secrest Hill Road in 
Electoral Area “C” in order to formalize the operation of the “Loose Bay” campground. 

At its meeting of September 17, 2020, the Board approved first and second reading of Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, and directed that a public hearing be scheduled ahead of the Board’s 
October 15, 2020, meeting and that staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government Act. 

Under Section 466(3) of the Act, a public hearing notice must be published in at least 2 consecutive 
issues of a newspaper, the last publication to appear not less than 3 days and not more than 10 days 
before the public hearing (i.e. between October 5th and 12th). 

On October 2, 2020, it came to the Regional District’s attention that the first scheduled notice for the 
public hearing had not appeared in the September 30, 2020, edition of the Oliver Times-Chronicle. 
 
Analysis: 
In order to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act for notification of the public hearing 
for this rezoning it is recommended that the holding of the public hearing be delegated to Director 
Knodel, so that an electronic public hearing can be held in early November.  
 
Alternative:  

1. THAT the holding of the public hearing for Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020 be delegated to Director 
Knodel, or their delegate; 

AND THAT staff schedule the date, time, and place of the public hearing in consultation with 
Director Knodel; 



 

                                                         File No: C2020.010-ZONE 
Page 2 of 2 

AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:  

     Cory Labrecque                               ________________________ 
Cory Labrecque, Planner II C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
 

  



 
 

                                                         File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 1 of 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 15, 2020 
 
RE: Petition to Enter Service Areas – Electoral Area “E” 
 Street Lighting and Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste Collection and Drop-Off 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020, Naramata Street Lighting Local Service Establishment Amendment 
Bylaw be read a first, second and third time; 

AND THAT Bylaw No. 2190.08, 2020, Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste Collection and Drop-
Off Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw be read a first, second and third time. 
 

Purpose:  To extend Street Lighting and Solid Waste Collection service areas to a parcel in Naramata 

Owners:   Naramata Benchland Properties Ltd Agent: Brad Elenko (McElhanney)  Folio: E-07171.400 

Civic:  3498 Arawana Forestry Road Legal: Lot 3, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 2711, SDYD 

OCP:  Small Holdings (SH) Zone: Small Holdings Five Site Specific (SH5s)  
 

Purpose: 
The applicant has submitted two petition requests to the Regional District relating to the provision of 
Street Lighting and Solid Waste Collections services to the property at 2498 Arawana Forestry Road 
(being Lot 3, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 2711, SDYD). 

In order to facilitate this, the following bylaw amendments are required: 

· amend Schedule ‘A’ of the Naramata Street Lighting Local Service Establishment Bylaw No. 1618, 
1995, to include the property at Lot 3, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 2711, SDYD; and 

· amend the Schedule of the Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste Collection and Drop-Off 
Service Establishment Bylaw No. 2190, 2003, to include the property at Lot 3, Plan EPP60812, 
District Lot 2711, SDYD. 

 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 14.4 ha in area, is situated on the south-east side of the 
Arawana Forestry Road and is understood to be developed to an existing single detached dwelling 
and related accessory structures. 

The surrounding pattern of development to the east is largely comprised of undeveloped Crown land 
and residential development to the west. 
 
Background:  



  

                                                          File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 2 of 4 

Attachments:   
No. 1 – Context Maps 
No. 2 – Applicant’s Proposed Subdivision Plan 

The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on September 15, 2016, while available Regional District records 
indicate that building permits have not previously been issued for this property. 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, the property is 
designated Small Holdings (SH), and is the subject of an Environmentally Sensitive Development 
Permit (ESDP) and Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area designations.   

Under the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459, 2008, the property is currently zoned Small 
Holdings Five Site Specific (SH5s), with the site specific regulation limiting density to 41 parcels while 
allowing 8 of these parcels have a minimum parcel size of between 1,500 m2 and 2,020 m2 (the bylaw 
otherwise requires a minimum parcel size of 2,020 m2). 

On June 11, 2018, the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) referred a proposed 41 lot 
subdivision involving the property at 3498 Arawana Forestry Road to the Regional District for 
compliance with any applicable RDOS land use bylaws. 

On August 21, 2018, the Regional District provided the comments to the Ministry in relation to the 
proposed subdivision which included, amongst other things, that “the subject property is not within 
the existing Naramata street light service area …” 

This petition request was originally scheduled to be considered by the Board at its meeting of August 
6, 2020, but was removed from the Agenda at the request of the applicant. 
 
Analysis: 
In considering this proposal, Administration supports the request to include the subject property in 
the Street Lighting Service Area as this is consistent with the comments the Regional District provided 
to MoTI regarding the 41-lot subdivision of this property. 

Similarly, Administration supports the property’s inclusion within the Solid Waste Collection and 
Drop-off Service Area due to the pending subdivision of this parcel to a rural-residential use (despite 
inclusion in this service area not being a requirement of the Subdivision Servicing Bylaw). 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020, Naramata Street Lighting Local Service Establishment 
Amendment Bylaw be denied; 

AND THAT Bylaw No. 2190.08, 2020, Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste Collection and 
Drop-Off Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw be denied. 

2. That consideration of Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020, Naramata Street Lighting Local Service 
Establishment Amendment Bylaw and Bylaw No. 2190.08, 2020, Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid 
Waste Collection and Drop-Off Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw be deferred pending: 

a) TBD. 
 
Respectfully submitted:  

_____________________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Manager  



  

                                                          File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Context Maps 
   
  
 
 

  

   
     

 
  NN

Subject 
Parcel 

NARAMATA 



  

                                                           File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 4 of 4 

Attachment No. 2 – Applicant’s Proposed Subdivision Plan 

    

 



Amendment Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020 
(E2020.001-SAP) 

  Page 1 of 2 
 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 1618.02 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  1618.02, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Naramata Street Lighting  
Local Service Establishment Bylaw No. 1618, 1995 

 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Naramata Street Lighting Local Service 
Establishment Amendment Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020.” 

 
2. The Schedule ‘A’ of the Naramata Street Lighting Local Service Establishment Bylaw No. 

1618, 1995, is amended by incorporating the land described as Lot 3, Plan EPP60812, District 
Lot 3474, SDYD (3498 Arawana Road), and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which forms 
part of this Bylaw. 

 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
APPROVED BY THE INSPTEOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 
 
 

FILED WITH THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020 
(E2020.001-SAP) 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020 File No.  E2020.001-SAP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 

 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 

NN

Subject 
Parcel 

NARAMATA 
 

Bylaw No. 1618, 1995, is amended to incorporate: 
Lot 3, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 3474, SDYD 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2190.08, 2020 
(E2020.001-SAP) 

  Page 1 of 2 
 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2190.08 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2190.08, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste  
Collection and Drop-Off Service Establishment Bylaw No. 2190, 2003 

 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste 
Collection and Drop-Off Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw No. 2190.03, 2020.” 

 
2. The Schedule of the Campbell Mountain Landfill Solid Waste Collection and Drop-Off 

Service Establishment Bylaw No. 2190, 2003, is amended by incorporating the land 
described as Lot 3, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 3474, SDYD (3498 Arawana Road), and shown 
shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw. 

 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
APPROVED BY THE INSPTEOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 
 
 

FILED WITH THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2190.08, 2020 
(E2020.001-SAP) 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2190.08, 2020 File No.  E2020.001-SAP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 

 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 

NN

Subject 
Parcel 

NARAMATA 

Bylaw No. 2190, 2003, is amended to incorporate: 
Lot 3, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 3474, SDYD 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



 
 

                                                         File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 1 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 15, 2020 
 
RE: Petition to Enter Water Service Area – Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 2896, 2020, a bylaw of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen to amend 
the Naramata Water System Local Service Establishment Bylaw be read a first and second time; but 
that the Bylaw not be brought for third reading until the following conditions have been fulfilled. 

1. That a detailed letter, with expectations and requirements of the Regional District to be fulfilled 
at the expense of the owner with respect to infrastructure upgrades to provide water service to 
the Lands be delivered to Naramata Benchland Properties Ltd.; and, that the letter contain a 
provision whereby the developer acknowledges receipt of the letter and agrees with the 
contents therein; and 

2. That to ensure any future owner has notice of the infrastructure requirements of the Regional 
District, and the costs to provide water service to the Lands and to mitigate potential liability 
with respect to any obligation of the Regional District to provide water service, that a “no-
build/subdivision” covenant be registered against the Lands pursuant to Section 219 of the Land 
Title Act prior to inclusion of the Lands into the Naramata Water System Service Area. The 
Section 219 Covenant should also refer to the requirements of a development agreement being 
entered into prior to rezoning, subdivision or construction, if any. 

 

Purpose:  To extend Water System service to three (3) parcels in Naramata 

Owners:   Naramata Benchland Properties Ltd. Agent: Brad Elenko (McElhanney)   

Legal:  Lots 4-5, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 2711, SDYD; and Lot A, Plan KAP59640, District Lot 3474, SDYD 

Civic:  3440, 3580 & 3690 Arawana Forestry Road Folio: E-07171.100/.500/.600 

OCP:  Large Holdings (LH)  Zone: Resource Area Site Specific (RAs) 
 

Purpose: 
The applicant has submitted a petition to the Regional District seeking to include the subject 
properties within the Naramata Water Service, which provides for the supply, treatment, conveyance, 
storage and distribution of water within the community.   

In support of this request, the applicant has stated, amongst other things, that: 
· including these properties in the water service area will allow any future campground use to 

obtain water from a new upper-elevation water reservoir to be located on these same lands and 
that this water could also be used for wildfire suppression; 



  

                                                          File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 2 of 5 

· that this new water reservoir is needed to service some of the lots being subdivided on the lower 
lands; and 

· there would be no reason for Naramata Benchlands to construct an upper elevation water 
reservoir if these lands were not included in the water service area as they see this as potentially 
limiting their access to the reservoir and ability to service any future campground. 

 
Site Context: 
The Naramata Benchland Properties Limited holdings that are the subject of this service area request 
comprises three separate parcels that represent a land area of 111.54 ha (Lot 4 at 47.1 ha, Lot 5 at 
44.2 ha and Lot A at 20.24 ha). 

These lands are seen to be relatively undeveloped with access to the two easternmost parcels via a 
forestry service road.  The surrounding pattern of development to the east is largely comprised of 
undeveloped Crown land and residential development to the west. 
 
Background:  
Historically, the subject parcels were part of the Blackwell Stores Limited development and, in 2006, a 
295 parcel subdivision to be completed over eleven (11) phases was proposed.  This involved the 
subject parcels as well as additional lands to the east.  This development was opposed by the 
community and subsequently withdrawn by the proponent.   

Under the Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) Bylaw No. 2770, 2017, the subject properties are not 
within a currently designated growth area.  The RGS Bylaw speaks to supporting “efficient, effective 
and affordable infrastructure services …” and, as an objective, to “direct development to areas with 
publicly operated services and infrastructure.”  The RGS is currently under review. 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, the parcels are 
currently designated Large Holdings (LH), and are the subject of an Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit (ESDP) and Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) Area designations. 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459, 2008, the parcels are currently zoned Resource 
Area (RA), which stipulates a minimum size for subdivision of 20.0 ha and permits extensive land uses 
such as forestry, natural resource extraction and agriculture, but does also include campgrounds. 

At its meeting of March 19, 2020, the subject parcels were included in the Naramata Fire Prevention 
and Suppression Local Service Area. 

This petition request was originally scheduled to be considered by the Board at its meeting of August 
6, 2020, but was removed from the Agenda at the request of the applicant. 
 
Analysis: 
The applicant is proposing to extend the water service area to parcels that are not contemplated for 
future residential development under the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw.  While the establishment 
bylaw does not prescribe any limits on where within the community the water service can be 
provided, it has historically not included parcels zoned Resource Area (RA). 

The parcels reflected in this application are remote and large and not yet ready for development. 



  

                                                          File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 3 of 5 

20.0 ha parcels are large enough to sustain groundwater wells for single family domestic and other 
uses and do not require a connection to a community water system. Should a higher density 
development be envisioned in the future, a plan of subdivision would be filed, rezoning would need to 
occur and public consultation would be required.  While extending the water service prior to the 
establishment of a growth boundary for Naramata under the OCP Bylaw is seen to be premature, the 
rationale for extending the water service now has been defended by the developer. 

The existing Naramata Water System infrastructure is physically incapable of serving a majority of the 
lands petitioning to join the service area.  To upgrade this existing infrastructure would require a 
significant capital investment that would have to be borne by the Developer.  Upgrades would include 
a new reservoir, booster station and a water delivery system. 

While the current owner understands that a significant investment in infrastructure would be 
required prior to approval, it would be important to ensure that new property owners would not 
presume that inclusion in the service area implies access to the water system and would not realize 
the impediments (both financial and physical) that would confront the Regional District in attempting 
to provide this service. 

Extension of a water service to the proposed campground use of the site, at such time it is actually 
being developed, would be considered in conjunction with the issuance of a Campground Permit. 

While the lands have already been included in the fire service area, the applicant is suggesting that 
inclusion in the water service area will provide the necessary assurance needed to construct the new 
reservoir, and that this reservoir will be made available for fire suppression activities in the area.  
Increased wildfire hazard related to the applicant’s proposed campground was a concern previously 
raised by the community at public meetings. 

It is unusual that extension of services to a parcel of land zoned Resource Area (RA) precede zoning 
and this application may be premature.  The Board may choose to deny the petition for the full parcel 
and, if in future, these lands are contemplated for residential development or work on the 
development of a campground is commenced, there may be merit in revisiting the extension of the 
water service to a more targeted area at that time.  

The Regional District is not obliged to provide a service upon receipt of a petition from a land owner, 
particularly if the Board has concerns about the request for service. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT this petition into the Naramata Water system be denied. 

2. THAT consideration of Bylaw No. 2896, 2020 be deferred  
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Context Maps 

 No. 2 – Applicant’s Service Area Petition Request (Water) 
 
  



  

                                                          File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 4 of 5 

Attachment No. 1 – Context Maps 
  
  
 
 

  

   
     

 
  NN

Subject 
Properties 

NARAMATA 

3440 Arawana 
Road 

3690 Arawana 
Forestry Road 

3580 Arawana 
Forestry Road 



  

                                                           File No: E2020.001-SAP 
Page 5 of 5 

Attachment No. 2 – Applicant’s Service Area Petition Request (Water)  

      

 

Area to be included in Water 
Service Area Boundary 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2896, 2020 
(E2020.001-SAP) 

  Page 1 of 3 
 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2896 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2896, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Naramata Water System Local  
Service Establishment Bylaw No. 1620, 1995 

 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Naramata Water System Local Service 
Establishment Amendment Bylaw No. 2896, 2020.” 

 
2. The Schedule ‘A’ of the Naramata Water System Local Service Establishment Bylaw No. 

1620, 1995, is amended by incorporating: 

i) an approximately 30.4 ha part of the land described as Lot 4, Plan EPP60812, District 
Lot 3474, SDYD (3440 Arawana Road), and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which 
forms part of this Bylaw. 

ii) the land described as Lot 5, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 3474, SDYD (3580 Arawana 
Road), and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw. 

iii) the land described as Lot A, Plan KAP59640, District Lot 3474, SDYD (3690 Arawana 
Road), and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw. 

 
 
  



Amendment Bylaw No. 2896, 2020 
(E2020.001-SAP) 

  Page 2 of 3 
 

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
APPROVED BY THE INSPTEOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 
 
 
FILED WITH THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this _____ day of ___________, 2020 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2896, 2020 
(E2020.001-SAP) 

  Page 3 of 3 
 

Lot 4 

Lot 5 

Lot A 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2896, 2020 File No.  E2020.001-SAP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 

 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 

NN

Subject 
Parcels 

NARAMATA 
 

Bylaw No. 1620, 1995, is amended to incorporate: 
part of Lot 4, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 3474, SDYD; 
Lot 5, Plan EPP60812, District Lot 3474, SDYD; and  
Lot A, Plan KAP59640, District Lot 3474, SDYD. 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



 

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 1 of 10 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 15, 2020 
 
RE: Agricultural Land Commission Referral (Exclusion) – Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the RDOS Board “authorize” the application to exclude an approximately 22.56 ha part of the 
parcel located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road (Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8, District Lot 2711, SDYD) 
to proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission. 
 

Purpose:  To exclude an approximately 22.56 ha area of land from the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). 

Owner:    Sather Ranch Ltd. Agent: RDOS  Folio: E-06828.000 

Civic:  1313 Greyback Mountain Rd  Legal: Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8, District Lot 2711, SDYD 

OCP: Resource Area (RA) Zone: Resource Area (RA) 
 

Proposed Development: 
The Regional District has submitted an application to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under 
Section 30 of the Agricultural Land Commission Act (the Act) in order to exclude the property at 1313 
Greyback Mountain Road from the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). 

The Regional District is pursuing this application in relation to the proposed development of a regional 
composting facility related to the Campbell Mountain Sanitary Landfill operation. 

Under the ALC’s application processing procedures, the Regional District— despite being the 
proponent of this proposal — is required to pass a formal resolution “authorising” this application to 
proceed to the Commission for their consideration. 
 
Statutory Requirements:  
Under Section 34(4) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act, the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen (RDOS) must “review the application, and … forward to the commission the application 
together with [its] comments and recommendations.”  

In this instance, Section 30(4) is seen to apply as an amendment to the Electoral Area “E” Zoning 
Bylaw No. 2459, 2008, will be required in order for the proposed composting facility to be developed 
on the subject property. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 32.0 ha in area and is bisected by Greyback Mountain Road and 
adjoins the boundary of the City of Penticton along its western and southern parcel boundaries. It is 



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 2 of 10 

understood that an approximately 10.0 ha part of the property has previously been used as part of a 
ranching operation. 

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by the Campbell Mountain Landfill 
operation to the west, largely undeveloped land to the east and south and rural-residential (“Falcon 
Ridge”) development to the north.  
 
Background:  
The subject property was created by a plan of subdivision prepared in 1912, while available Regional 
District records indicate that Building Permits (BPs) have been issued for the placement of a modular 
home and an accessory structure (i.e. “calving barn”). 

Under the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, the subject property is currently designated 
as Resource Area (RA), an objective of which is to minimize conflicts between forestry activities and 
other land uses in order to protect working forests, grasslands and livestock & grazing operations.   

Under the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459, 2008, the subject property is zoned Resource 
Area (RA) and defines “composting operation” as meaning the use of “… buildings, and equipment … 
for the biological decomposition of organic materials, substances or objects under controlled 
circumstances in composting storage facilities and composting storage sites.” 

In other Electoral Areas, a “composting operation” is generally permitted in the Community Waste 
Management (I3) Zone, but that this zone does not currently apply to any lands within Electoral Area 
“E”. 

At its meeting of January 9, 2020, the Regional District Board resolved, amongst other things, to 
pursue the development of an organic composting facility at the subject property and directed that 
“an application [be submitted] to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) for the exclusion of lands 
required for the purposes of constructing an organics composting facility from the Agriculture Land 
Reserve (ALR); or, failing that, for a non-farm use.” 

At its meeting of May 7, 2020, the Board resolved to defer consideration of this application in order 
that additional public consultation could be undertaken. 
 
Public Process: 
Under Section 36 of the Agricultural Land Commission Act, a person who makes an application to 
excluded lands from the ALR is required to give notice of the application in accordance with 
Agricultural Land Reserve General Regulation 171/2002, including newspaper publications, a 
notification sign on the property, and notification to adjacent owners of agricultural land. 

The Regional District fulfilled these requirements throughout March of 2020, and all comments 
received in relation to this proposal are included as a separate agenda item.  

Following the direction provided by the Board at its meeting of May 7, 2020, a Communications Plan 
for the proposed organics composting facility was prepared and outlines a number of actions to be 
taken.  The following is a highlight of some of these actions: 

· a broader written notification of surrounding property owners and residents; 

· create a central hub of information on the Regional District’s Regional Connections site: 



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 3 of 10 

Ø there were eight (8) posts on the Q&A section of RDOS Regional Connections as of Oct. 2, 
2020 (2:00 pm), with most of the posts featured multiple questions.  

Ø questions posted to this site were answered publicly on the site within 24-48 hours. 

· a video presenting an overview of the project was posted to the Regional District’s YouTube 
channel: 

Ø this video has been viewed 110 times as of Oct. 2, 2020 (2:00 pm). 

· an electronic town hall was held on September 30, 2020, and was attended by approximately XX 
individuals.   

Ø a video stream of this town hall on the Regional District’s YouTube channel had 36 views as 
of Oct. 2, 2020 (2:00 pm); and 

Ø a Facebook post for the town hall shows 285 people reached and 2 shares as of Oct. 2 (2:00 
pm). 

A number of news articles appeared in the local press related to the proposed facilities, copies of 
which are included, while the City of Penticton also posted a page related to the facility on their web-
site (https://www.penticton.ca/compostfacility). 
 
Analysis:  
Further to the Administrative Report considered by the Board at its meeting of January 9, 2020, the 
site has been identified by the Regional District as a preferred location for an in-vessel composting 
facility that is in close proximity to the existing sanitary landfill operation at Campbell Mountain 
(approximately 300 metres to the west).  

The proposed in-vessel composting facility would serve the City of Penticton (CoP), the Town of 
Keremeos and Electoral Areas “B”, “D”, “E”, “F”, “G” and “I”.   

The facility would manage food waste, yard waste, wood waste and potentially biosolids that are 
generated by the CoP, Okanagan Falls and Town of Keremeos. 

In seeking a new location for its composting operations, the Regional District is attempting to address 
existing space constraints at the Campbell Mountain landfill.  There are minimal opportunities to use 
closed space for future organics collection and transfer operations at Campbell Mountain.   

This has direct implications on the amount of space available for composting operations, as it will 
affect the space required for siting additional recycling/transfer or composting operations at the 
landfill.  This will be further exacerbated as the region moves towards implementing source-separated 
organics (SSO), as this will require the development of additional space to facilitate a new organics 
processing facility. 

A new in-vessel composting processing facility will require approximately 2.04 ha of land area and the 
subject property features adequate flat areas to site such a facility and there are not expected to be 
any spatial constraints with this property. 

Additional odour controls that would result from composting organics and biosolids in an in-vessel 
composting facility and to show how the odour dispersion surrounding the CMLF would be reduced 
with the updated design and being located on the Greyback Mountain Road Property by 
approximately 69%. 



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 4 of 10 

Finally, the diversion of organic materials from the Campbell Mountain landfill are anticipated to 
extend the lifecycle of the landfill by approximately 11 years.  Administration further believes that it 
would be very difficult and expensive to site the composting facility elsewhere within the region and 
that there are efficiencies to be gained by co-locating any new composting operation in close 
proximity to the Campbell Mountain landfill. 
 
Alternatives:  

.1 THAT the RDOS Board “authorize” the application to exclude an approximately 22.56 ha part of 
the parcel located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road (Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8, District Lot 2711, 
SDYD) to proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission; or 

.2 THAT the RDOS Board “not authorize” the application to exclude an approximately 22.56 ha part 
of the parcel located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road (Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8, District Lot 2711, 
SDYD) to proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted   
 
_________________________  
C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Context Maps   

No. 2 – Site Plan 

No. 3 – Possible Composting Facility Locations on Subject Property  

No. 4 – Site Photos 

No. 5 – Communications Plan (Proposed Organics Composting Facility) 



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 5 of 10 

Attachment No. 1 – Context Maps 
     

  
  
 
 

  

   
 
    

  

NN

Subject 
Property 

PENTICTON 
 

CAMPBELL 
MOUNTAIN 

LANDFILL 



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 6 of 10 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Plan 
  

  



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 7 of 10 

Attachment No. 3 – Possible Composting Facility Locations on Subject Property 
 



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 8 of 10 

Attachment No. 4 – Site Photos 
      

 



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 9 of 10 

Attachment No. 5 – Communications Plan (Proposed Organics Composting Facility) 
      

 
  



  

 File No: E2020.002-ALC 
Page 10 of 10 

Attachment No. 5 – Communications Plan (Proposed Organics Composting Facility) 
      

 



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Notifying an ALR Exclusion to adjacent property owners

On Mar. 26, 2020 08:51, "Barlow, Celeste ALC:EX" <Celeste.Barlow(%yov.bc.ca> wrote:
Hey Chris,

Do you want to make sure to add this correspondence into the application material so that our admin team who vets

the applications is aware that Martin made that call and does not hold up the application.

Thanks,

Celeste

From; Collins, Martin J ALQEX
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2020 8:48 AM
To: Barlow, Celeste ALC:EX
Cc: 'Christopher Garrish'
Subject: RE: Notifying an ALR Exclusion to adjacent property owners

I don't believe it is necessary to contact the landowners.

Martin

From: Barlow, Celeste ALC:EX
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2020 8:02 AM
To: 'Christopher Garrish'; Collins, Martin J ALC:EX
Subject: RE: Notifying an ALR Exclusion to adjacent property owners

Hi Chris,

That is a good question, what are your thoughts Martin?

Celeste

From: Christopher Garrish [mailto:cgarrish@rdos.bc.ca]
Sent: Wednesday, March 25, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Collins, Martin J ALQEX; Barlow, Celeste ALC:EX
Subject: Notifying an ALR Exclusion to adjacent property owners

Friends,

The Regional District is preparing an Exclusion application involving the property at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road and
shown outlined by the black dashed line below.

In terms of notifying adjacent property owners, we did not notify the property owner at 130 Falconridge Drive (parcel
outlined in yellow) on the basis that the shared parcel line did not comprise land in the ALR (ALR lands being shown in
pink).

Was this correct or incorrect? If incorrect, to rectify the situation, what would need to occur on our part?

Sincerely,



Chris.

OKANAOAM.
INILKAMBIM

Christopher Garrish MA, MSS, MCIP, RPP • Planning Manager

Regional District ofOkanagan-Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9

p. 250.490.4101 | tf. 1.877.610.3737 | f. 250.492.0063

www.rdos.bc.ca | cearrish(S)rdos.bc.ca | FACEBOOK | YOUTUBE | Sign up for REGIONAL CONNECTIONS

This Communication is Intended for the use of the recipient to which It Is addressed, and may contain confidential, personal and/or privileged information. Please
contact the sender Immediately If you are not the Intended recipient of this communication and do not copy, distribute or take action relying on It. Any communication
received in error, or subsequent reply, should be deleted or destroyed.



#710, 1055 West Georgia Street
r__ • •--.•__—_ Vancouver, BC V6E 3R5

Canadian Horizons
Land Investment Corp, Phone: (604) 632-9919

Fax: (604) 632-9939

April 8, 2020

RDOS
101 Martin Street

Penticton, BC
V2A 5J9

RE: E2020.002 -ALC (1313 Grevback Mountain Road)

Attention Christopher Garrish

Please accept this letter as our support for the above application for the exclusion of the land required
for the purposes of constructing an in-vessel organics composting facility to be located at 1313

Greyback Mountain Road.

We are the owners of approximately 163 acres of land directly north and west of the Campbell

Mountain landfill (1050 Spiller Road, 880 Naramata Road, 788 Naramata Road, and 834 Naramata

Road). We have been working the City of Penticton, the RDOS, and the community in this area since
2007. We undertook and completed the Spiller/Reservoir Road Neighbourhood Concept Plan (NCP)

which was approved by City of Penticton Council in February 2014. In 2019, we submitted our

proposed Rezoning Application for our main development property adjacent to the RDOS landfill and

have been working with the City and RDOS on the proposal. One of the main concerns from the RDOS

and the City has been the nuisances such as noise and smell from the Landfill operation impacting

future residents. Should the RDOS be able to construct an in-vessel facility on 1313 Greyback Mountain

Road, then RDOS will be able to better control leachate coming from the landfill operation and limit the

nuisance of smell on surrounding lands. We feel that the construction of this facility will benefit the

surrounding community, the City, and the Region from further negative impacts associated with the

Campbell Mountain Landfill, specifically the current open air organic processing that is occurring on the

property.

Please reach out to us if you require further information on our proposal. Further, please ensure that

we are provided with additional infopfnation should it come available.

Thankyqi

Nathan Hildebrand

Vice President, Development
Canadian Horizons



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: 1313 Greyback Mountain Road

Attachments: imagel JPG; ATT00001 .txt; image2.JPG; ATTOOOOZ.txt; image3JPG; ATTOOOOS.txt;

image4.JPG; ATT00004.txt; imageS.JPG; ATTOOOOS.txt; image6.JPG; ATT00006.txt;

image7.JPG; ATT00007.txt; imageSJPG; ATTOOOOS.txt; image9JPG; ATT00009.txt;

imageWJPG; ATTOOOIO.txt

-—Original Message-—

From: vicky kryzanowski

Sent: March 26, 2020 5:06 PM
To: Planning <planning@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: 1313 Greyback Mountain Road

Sent from myiPad
I am sending this email in too voice my concerns of taking 1313 Greyback Mountain Road out of the ALR. Hope the ALC

Commission does not let this happen. We have had the property next too 1313 for 25 years . We have chosen not too

develop the property too keep it a farm and animal sanctuary for the deer,Elk, rattlesnakes,Bighorn sheep.

Our land is many levels of fields there isa large one about 25 acres to a lower level too 1313 there is also underground

water running through that area and leaching will destroy the water and land in that area and the will be no fixing

this.This happened too our other family property 1655 reservoir Rd. The RDOS had too buy it from the leaching I

received a Environment Emergency Notice concerning 5 property's.The RDOS doesn't communicate well with residences

in the area.

Yea

These are some of my family's concern:

1.Leaching affecting the property and the water(under ground spring and creek running down the road .

2.Noise and smells

3. Animals health ,cattle and horses and wildlife 4.Roads will be unsafe with large trucks in weather condition (snow and

ice)
5 Roads have not been upgraded in years

6 Property values will be affected

7 what is the buffer zone (at my other property 1655 no one could answer that)
8 was told dump had a 30 year life span of 30 years in 2002 so when will it be done 9will there be any testing of the area

10 Our quality of life will be greatly affected.
11. The RDOS has all not contacted all residents in the area.

12.The land that it is being used is on a hill sandy soil and on fractured bed rock 13. My neighbor well is on the lower

side of my property and will be affected we do not get any city water and our ground water will be affected.

Under no circumstances do we want this facility in this area all elements of this area will be affected.There is no

guarantee that it lOOpercent safe not now or in the future.

With this world emergency in affect the RDOS has not given out any information to the property owners in the area or

public it was brought to my knowledge that no other landowners have received any information or chance to voice their

opinion.Lots of rush in this matter makes it hard to voice our opinions and gives us little chance to do anything to stop

this.



101 Martin Street. Penticton. British Ccfumbia V2A SJC<

Tei-250.492.0237 Fix-250.492 0063

Toll Free. 87-T.6'0.3"':>~

Email, '"to ..'.jos.sx. -a

RDOS
OKANAGAN-
SIMILKAMEEN

— 1 3 ROOSFiltfNc. 533020C.\?L

:1- ~:r^'; ^C.

•:1AW

;. •.-.;;'•^•.-.s^.

RE: Campbetl Mountain Sanitary Landfill Leachate

- •inj rhe 3C E-r;,r<';snici',t,j! ?.''i.injt'.t.'!*ieni Act's Conumimted Siti.* P.L'i:""l.i»'ci. [ .'.'- . : '

-• ••- - .'.CTLT^.K'C'" ^? L;'M'!t, or Actiui Migrjiion Form and the 2LU4 Annudi M^!;^ •<•; • ••-, .•• - .

.^^c;-! '.•!cL::^j;ii ..ji'jfiii attached.

•j\ L-\; ,j'.-.3rt.' 55 pan ^r our due diligence, '.ve have undertaken investiganoii nn.j u •_ :.. '.. - .

:; "r^r:.c.z;; .T ^nariii ieachace rrom the City of Penticton ov/ned and Re6<0!-.j; '-•.•--;.•. •

;.^:3n-^.T-;!k3:neen ;RDOS'i Operated Campbetl Mountain Landfill (CMLF). Water ^^ .:. '—..:-.

• j^^-e;: ."i i\c\ernber 5 2015, from a spring and a groundwater monitorine •••-eis L'ra:-^ :.- •-,

.-'.'?L"T'. ,1555 Randolph Rd). This property is considered to be downgradiem of the C:.'--' ••-.•• -j

.''..''.•. 3 :er no.'. Labc'rator, analysis of the samples has indicated offsite migr3t;o:', .:• ^••...•.,

r^.'.aie" an j surface \';aier by landfill leachate.

='- Sections 57 and 60 1 of the Environmental Management Act's Contaminated S tes ?..;-'„ r .' .

:-ii3ie person who carries out a site investigation and who knows that one or ;'tc-t> <..c •..:"_> ••.-. •: ,.

5:ea or is i;ke;y to have migrated to a neighbouring parcel and is or is iikeiy causin.- ^:-u",- r. .: - ,

irej co^notiry tne person or persons who own the neighbouring parcel in v.nfn^ jp^i s..^n.: j ,-,-,

e ^t;r!car;on to the Direaor of Waste Management, wiihin 15 days aKer the''respans.b;e ./-^^'

-is aware of the migration or likely migration to the neighbouring parcei \^e thai" 'j-.;;'...

;' ^s conned as a parcel which is coniaminaied by the migration of substance T;om a ne^^^^
?. me required documentation is included with this notification Seller. ' - '.L- — - .5

!?OSJlcomm'^^!mplementtng a Leachate Management Plan to heSp m^a,e ia-d:, „ ,..- ,..
^n ^ the CMLF. We will work^?^ul,o^tte^d^^'^ ^^^^^s,^';i"



ysment
IWPONTANT INPONMATION row rwnppwry »(»»wti»i» »nf,^

I/

M»ii^tK*<tvx<i 'yy»

nft-m<(rU»iMl>f<(

Hotl: (XXIA2 100
Schoil DrtrtU (\r

•. '-. ' A^ \. . \; ' l;. 'CIT COWPtOBNTlAL WN; 00014B0227

SRTY ASSESSMENT NOTICE
" • .,< ''< '••' Ji •^ n(jl ., ^> >',...,? p'.>piH, ,iiu-) .in ••'.tim.itr i >t yf.iur {irDpcrty"*. v<ituc for 4'.'>t;s ^'•re'.* ^jfp0''>c-;,

*'.• * i .i1 c" ind t"' ';<."in-^t to i xcm(it;on'. from t.ix.itK.in, it ,my dtiply For most pro&frf* <-'. >r'€? ,a''je' ;'>

'» w-«t- .tnd n''jrl-.o! t'«lrx1\

mCTU?T2W.tN41LKAMEENOfVQFYAl£LAhtO
'' ^•w,^^ -^f'^ i •\-v; -f^W^f. {^M^

^ ••••*'' Y^'^i •"#^- •-<<. •^<- ^. . ., ,, ,

'•'; rt-m/.^St^.-ik, :'-«s|^» ,,-'-•-. r,.-^^;,,^: : •"•f':' 1'- ', - ^ ;

IMPORTANT DATES

July 1. 2014
Assessed value is estimated for most
types of properties as of this date.



Penticton Western News
Wednesday, March 25,2020 A19

Legal Notices Legal Notices Legal Notices Merchandise for Sale Merchandise for Sale Rentals

)TICE OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION
garding Land in the Agricultural Land Reserve

; : The Regional District of Okanagan-Simitkameen (RDOS)
fUw.cr rwm <X'».r»^*J wnr)

i-— I —i- of 101 Martin Street, Penlicton, BC, V2A-5J9
tn*»fl**»-m)

Inlands on making an application pureuant to Secllon 30(1) of Iho Agricultural Land
Commission Acl \o oxdudo from Ihe Agricultural Land Raaerve Uio (ollowing propen/ which

Is legally described as:

Plan KAP1190, SublotB, DislriclLot2711, SDYD
Or?J OMC-l >-n 1"^ • < b-<" co-l<=a'»l

and tocaled al-

1313 Greyback Mountain Road (Electoral Area "E")
ft^l»dy»u)

Any person wishing lo express an inleresl in Iha appllcalion may do so by forwarding llieir
comments in wriling to:

RDOS. 101 Martin Street, Penlicton, BC, V2A-5J9
in«-< *-d nfrh^ »adre»a c/ o» Lxaf (p<»-rmrt»

by: April 8, 2020

NOTE:
This n<?t»co and tho o/fpfc.ilun or» pcrttcd on tTo lutie^ p^opcfly
Plow bo od/iMd MT.H uB corrtupor>d»n.^> recc^rd fry yo focal o<r.-cmmtnl and/o/ ir< ALC lomu pan ct ?o public

rooofd, and Is ducfosod to na p.-vLw. imAxfng PK» flpptcant

Misc. Wanted Misc. Wanted • Apt/Condo for Rent

$$$$$ Cash Paid for
GOLD & SILVER coins,
bars, bullion, ingols, coin

collections, jewelry,
nuggets, plaster gold,
gold dust, gold denial

work, old sterling
silver, sets, scrap+.

Anything
gold, silver, platinum etc.

Todd The Coin Guy.
250-864-3521

Christine is Buying
COIN COLLECTIONS
Vintage Jewelry, Gold,
Silver, Sterling, China.
Estates, Antiques ++

1-778-281-0030
I can make House Calls

$$$ Coin Collector
Buying Royal Canadian

Mint coins, coin
collections, old coins,

paper money, pre 1968
silver coins, bullion,
bars, world money
colledions.+ ANY-

THING GOLD & SILVER
ToddThe Coin Guy

250^64-3521

Real Estate

Princeton

1 Bedroom
Apartment for

Rent
$700, month +

utilities. No Pets.
Damage deposit.
250-295-1006

Transportation

Commercial/
Industrial Property

$ COIN COLLECTOR $
BUYING Coins,

Collections.Olympic
Gold & Silver Coins
Canadian, US, Worid
Coins.RCM Mint Sets,
Coins Any Colleclionl

Chad, The Coin
Expert

250-863-3082

Office Space
For Lease

Scrap Car Removal

#1 SCRAP Vehicle / Farm
Equipment Removal.

Will meet or beat.SSS lor
cars.T78-581 -CARS(2277)

/',^Prime Downtown
location. Range from

461 to 3267'sq.ft.
For turther into

contact Lorne Dennis
@ Locke Property
hAanagemert Lid.

250-492-0346 National Nutrition
Month®, celebrated

each year during
March, focuses on
the importance of
making informed

BUYING
RENTING
SELLINGWITH THE PEOPLE.



§§lg
Sir

a.
O? BB
n^
DO-e.

Illc c~ 0
s w ^
0-. ff» 0

a§. ^
g a. 9;

§.. .5 I
II? is
Ifn
z^

?g|8.

•t/» < »

§1
</> "

i s
y a. 3
-» g" 12.

8-

I

I!
^g.

•9

«

^|^J?j^j^;^
—4—

1-1&
<s " ^

0 0 Q.
1= _ 9~
3 0 1
G-'2 <'

^!&

y 5 w •«»



t t



/MUXI*. '

r^^
_BnmsH
COLUMBIA

Minisoyof
Errrironmcnt

NOTIFICATION OF
LIKELY OR ACTUAL

MIGRATION

I BlrJ l<«»li»'luilx<i ^--Ux
r'orio/u'ny '.u. r"/<'-'./'

VKAMKlK, W/IWM
Tatopliw- Wfi, '•f'l «'*'

1 »f nwii •y.i wm

Sections 57 and 60. l of Uie Enviimmental Managomem Acl's ConlafninolinS Silos noyuMwi r.^unu u iwfrM^i n"i wi M", '-""" -
out imSependeiitremediaSon or a sHe investigation and who knows U)»< ono or mofu ml^l.ww:. /i.ia fnloinlotl 1,1 ^ iir'il/1''<"""

ri^ial^loane^bouringparwlandisorislikelycousirvcoiMminalJOnlonolilyllwiwiMnwp'fiMn^
parcel n fmting and sutimii a copy isflhc noiificaUon 10 itio Dlrcclor of Woslo Manoyoinwil. wlhvi 16 dayu nllw Hii: iwi^ir^r/ f,< .w
'laecomesa^ of Itie migration or likofymigmiion 10 the naiohboumg paicol. Nololli.il •:iHuctw) pa/corts <lvHn'rla'» apw' ///.i'.»'»-.

coniamnaied by the migratwi of substances 1mm a noielilsounng paical

Information for Affected and Likely Affcclod P.ircol!

1) Owner Name: IANK. GRACE and LANK. JOHN (Jack)
Owner's address /Parcel Civic Address or Localion (t.e., ncareat »ondway).

1555 RANDOLPH RD
PENTICTON, B.C.. V2A8T5
Phone: 250^S2-S023

Parcel P1D or PIN (» applicable): 003-504-131 (primoiy) '

Parcel Ste ID number (if applicable): 6969

Latitude and Longitude for Centre of Parcel: !;

N:49°317.1461" '

W: m'33'4.6926"

Type(s) of ulitily affected(if applicable, e.g. sewer, telephone, electrical): groundwator and spring water

Does this parcel have likely or actual high risk conditions (as described under ihe Aci's Prolocol 12) aas&uat&d v/ilh ihc
likely or actual migration of substances from the source parcel? No. However, thoro is a potontial aroa of concorn wilhm
the soils at the upper northeast corner of tho property, potentially affected by spring walor auriaclng upgradlenl. Wo
recommend further investigation of this aroa.

'I

This parcel owner has allowed for tho RDOS to Investigate tho groundwator and •urfaco water al thlu parcol. Roaulla <
from sampling the newly installed well at tho Lank parcol on Oclobor 23,2015 havo triggorod Bubmiaion of thn.'~'~ ;;
^r?-1^117FO"n-Groundwatora"d spring water at tho parcol Is now an aroa of concorn, llkoly affoci.od by landnil
leachate, see Section V for our current understanding of tho iaauo. Noto, o''oundwalorianotboinnuMd for dom&ttic i
or irrigation purposes at this parcel. ~ " - ---—"...B——-—•—">-p

Please include a separate sketch plan with this form for this parcel. See Fiflure 1 allachod.





w

<nNlte»..

•A'iISIC

-rf--';?'...,

..-<- •:\

ŷ .-w" .^fpr-'

,.fSrr:-

"y^^.

..^

'^
;T~ ~~\''^- : - "5:. — --

<•:•%••

^̂
^i^e-

^. w'

/



r> ni?^^'^'^ •^':^
^' .;- 1 ^\'\.

•.••^'—.
.''»<•' " '' •

ry;'^@^s
». . r ;••

^
ify" r^^i"•^.•^.ySy^ ...a-.r-=y^3T 7^^\,^ji..^:^- .^•m

'^ ^-S l^'"'''" '^. te'":-- ':" -

... ^ ?-??•'""r"7^-" <" -' '' 7- - ^'

^;^ ^''' ^" ( '
' ^ '_. S.<is=s^ ;1'%: •-• ^aa'

^^w^y^^.r.^'^.^^^ '^v
,''<< •"

, ^ -.<'» ^^ ^ ^y^ ^. - .,
/' ' iiv*; :• ' . '

r'^r-fc'-"'"'•'•"•*— -

•C-"^.«ST • T-'

^

•h* ^.^ _

V-^^wy '"-'V
^^"^^.
•••:^^~~

.^JK^/^1

' v~^...s::
U""^ '•V

-a

^

..-?»*•'
-^-^^^r^^^^^^^-J^

.,^^_-- ••••:- .<^h.- ^^:

^^f- "^^-'^...^ •

T?^

—fL j^
.^' '^ u.riri^ifc'

*-<F_-'

^' ^?1^

^»1

Ss
...is

^•r ^y

y^:.:.^^ .-.rtd»..' -.

'• \ . :11-' .

: '~".:,'l' .•''''^tl- . •

,•,

'•w*..,

^.^^:;

I

.i,, .; .

;^^. '•"• *-; - ^'.••^>e^!sa^''^ /•?^-'--^'--~-'--
-..-•;.-—^fy ^i.df^--''^^'-^,:"""-^-'"'< •'-• . ' • ,

^-—^^:.. "^y ^. "-^ " ' ^.-' ": - -, ^ , ^,' , ,.

*../

V,

r-.

. •'•."•••-^: -

.">;—. ^ '•>,.-

"l<.



^•A."

••^

.n^<

.-.-^?'''

:;ffin^-^
•>(

••^

:-^:^- '-^
^"-" ^^^^^ ^
-. -^ ^^ ' "''%''^^.',-

^
:•». ^

•<y'

•:•- .'!!<"

^ '^ ~
' ?- ?

-rl
^

.,;-^-if<'yc<
'• -s -y ' >• ~. " •'•* •

•'^tf^St-

*-^ .

•:''-'•••' •

^'•.-'•^ --'."••-": ~; _'-' -

t' '<"-:• -' ^r>t^-.<^'<" ^.
''..^.'''"''''^w^:

^:^^^'^MS€^:^^S^^^^&f:^^ '—
^^i&S'^^S^^^^..^. -^- ~-
^f^^s'-s^^^^^i^^ -"' ••.^"/'^'-^- *w':r :'7('^' -.'.
S?:?^t^-.lSM'^;''s-1''.^ ''l'-"^^^.IA'1^^^^

-»
»'

'%r'"

,-
^••. ^f~y.- • , • .'•; • ''

^•'^^ •̂^ ^^\—

^w^
^-'^ ^ - '•'-- ->

^.^
.^-^'

"•'

,\.'



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Exclusion of 1313 Greyback Mountain Road from ALR

From: brian kerluke

Sent: April 2, 2020 9:17 PM
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: Exclusion of 1313 Greyback Mountain Road from ALR

I am a partial owner of 1425 Greyback Mountain road, and I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the

Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

have known this property to be used as farmland for many years.

Thanks,

Brian Kerluke

>-/
r



Lauri Feindell

From: okout@telus.net

Sent: April 8, 2020 11:06 AM
To: agr.minister@gov.bc.ca

Cc: Okanagan Outfitters LTD.; Dan Ashton; Christopher Garrish
Subject: Bio-solids composting site, Penticton

Attachments: FW: ALC Exclusion Application web-page link

Dear Honourable Lana Popham minister of agriculture

Please see attachment with my letter regarding the exclusion of ALC land application Project No: E2020.002ALC 1313
Greyback mMtn. Rd. to remove 22.56 ha from the ALC for a invessel composting facility. This piece of property has been

and is very valuable farming land which there is very little in this specific location of the Okanagan Valley. The RDOS has
identified an alternative site which is not in the ALR adjacent to the Ok Falls landfill site but would cost a little more to
operate but I believe there would be no requirement to purchase more land so that is a very large savings and is not

farm land under production like this piece of land in Penticton. If you could only visit the proposed lands you would
definitely not support this exclusion from the ALR.
Sincerely, Marc Hubbard



Sent: April 4, 2020 11:16 AM
To: Christopher Garrish <cgarrish@rdos.bc.ca>

Cc: Okanagan Outfitters LTD >; Walker, Andrew FLNR-.EX <Andrew.Walker@gov.bc.ca>; Craig A FLNR:EX

McLean <Craig.A,McLean@gov,bc.ca>; alcburnaby@victorial.gov.bc.ca

Subject: RE: ALC Exclusion Application web-page link

Hi Chris
Thank you for talking with me the other day. My name is Marc Hubbard and live at 1400 Greyback Mtn.
Rd. only one other piece of property separates us from this proposal Project No: E2020.002ALC 1313

Greyback mMtn. Rd. to remove 22.56 ha from the ALC for a invessel composting facility.

We absolutely are apposed to this application and I will explain the many reasons why.

After reading the Agrologist inspection report it is clear that the existing condition of the land are very

valuable farm land and with a little work like normal farming practices like rock picking would even make

it more valuable and productive. Under agricultural Capability and Climatic Capability it states that it is

proven high-quality agricultural land with wide range of crop can be grown including tree fruits and

grapes, the soil sample states that it is Arable land. Photo #1 is a beautiful piece of land which is exactly

like adjoining lands that are dry landed farmed even for hay crops and pasture land, not to mention one

of the most beautiful view property of the Okanagan Valley, it is a unbelievable piece of farm land and
demonstrate it's capability for good farming soil. Photo #3 show that grass can grow on it without and

prep or planting and is exceptional quality for tree fruits or grapes. In the report it also identifying two

seasonal ponds that are exactly like the seasonal pond that borders this property that alongside the

Greyback Mtn. Road.that us local's call "NHL pond", this ponds is protected under the FLINRO as a

riparian area that supports Ducks and Geese during the time there is water in them during the spring

time which is extremely important to Waterfowl at their nesting time, this should be no different if the

two ponds are left alone on 1313 greyback mtn. rd.

Nov.5, 2018 Bill 52 passed restricts the size of building on ALR land to less than 500 sq. meters to

enhance food security and encourage farming on ALR land, even during these troubling times with the

Corona Virus happening demonstrate even more import values with us in BC should maximize our

farming capabilities to reduce the dependency of food imports from other Countries.

This piece of land has extremely important wildlife values it is home to aprox. 90 to 120 elk that are

there right now feeding off the early grasses that come up on the low elevations with the elk depend on

this time of the year for high nutrition value after a hard winter, you can come up daily and view them

migrating thru this land and the adjoining lands. This is one of the only migration routes that allow the
Elk to cross onto what is call Campbells Mtn. that we have counted up to two hundred elk at one time

over the past years. This land is also visited by Mule deer/Black Bears and Blue listed California Bighorn

Sheep that also use this land as a migration route.

This land for the past 60 years plus has been a part of a family based Ranching business supporting up to
200 plus head of cattle up till now, but still could support a lot less amount of cattle along with

pigs/chickens/ground crops and other farm animals to be a viable farm.

We are very concern with the intended or unintended consequences that this facility would have, right

now the adjoining properties have complained of the smell from the existing composting facility in the
RDOS dump and we are concerned by moving it up uphill to the Might of land that with the
prevailing winds that blow from the west to the east that our property will have the same smell impact,

this is smelled and inhaled with serious health concerns and devalued land values. We are also very

concerned of the land contamination as we have 3 wells on our property that we use for drinking water

and the existing landfill has contaminated wells on adjoining lands and were condemned for drinking

this is a fact, before any other things are done with this rezoning application there should be a full

hydrogeology report done guaranteeing that the underground aquifers will not contaminate any existing

wells on 1313 Greyback mtn. Rd. or any other properties on that mountain.

Thank you ,Sincerely Marc Hubbard



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: NO to Biosilids Waste Facility near my Home!!!

From: starshine

Sent: April 5, 2020 3:44 PM
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>

Cc: ALC.Okanagan@>Rov.bc.ca; John Vassilaki <iohn.vassilaki(a)penticton.ca>

Subject: NO to Biosilids Waste Facility near my Home!!!

I live off Naramata Road near the city dump and have to live with the awful "Stench on the Bench" as it is, I don't want

any form of Biosolids Waste facility near residential housing, hiking and hiking trails, wildlife, and underground springs.

We live in the HEART of WINE COUNTRY, you have to think that this is an agri-tourism zone and the draw for the tourist

dollar is our natural beauty and to remove land from the ALR for a sewage treatment plant is totally unacceptable. Give

your heads a shake RDOS.

This neighbour says NO to this proposal!

Respectfully,

Jo Nichols



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Biosolids waste facility Penticton Grey back Mt

-—Original Message-—

From: Gayle Mclntaggart

Sent: April 4,2020 4:19 PM
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>; ALC.Okanagan@gov.bc.ca

Subject: Biosolids waste facility Penticton Grey back Mt

Completely against this facility being built in such a pristine area. Not mention this land is designated ALR. Also I have

lived in a city where a facility of this kind was built miles outside the city and the smell is disgusting inside the city limits!
The smell travels, I cannot imagine this facility being anywhere near a city or town but to plant it right in the heart of our

orchards and vineyards is ridiculous. So our tourist community can be standing looking at our gorgeous views yet

smelling the most disgusting smell, this is a disaster. Please find a location far far away from communities, agriculture

and people's homes! Also this is an area for people to enjoy hiking trails and outdoor enthusiasts to be with nature,this

facility will ruin it.

Gayle MCINTAGGART



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Opposition to Bio-solids Facility

From: Wayne Llewellyn

Sent: April 4, 2020 10:12 AM
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>

Cc: ALC.OkanaRan@Rov.bc.ca; council(S)penticton,ca

Subject: Opposition to Bio-solids Facility

Dear RDOS,

This is to express my opposition to the proposal to put a bio-solids facility in at and near 1313 Greyback
Road, It is the wrong place for just so many reasons:

- proximity to the Campbell Mountain recreation area
- too close to the South Okanagan's highest density municipality
- other sites had previously been identified as more suitable and are in far less dense areas and will impact far
fewer people
- proximity to a major source of water for the city ofPenticton

Yours truly,

Wayne Llewellyn



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission
to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve,

From: Frank Malinka >

Sent: April 4, 2020 10:02 AM
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback
Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback Mountain

Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Frank Malinka

Frank Malinka



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Website Contact Form Submission

The following comment was submitted from the RDOS website:

Contact Information
First Name

Beth

Last Name

Payne

Questions / Comments
Comments

I am strongly opposed to the construction ofabiosolids composting facility on 1313 Greyback
Mountain Road,
Please consider with drawing your application to the ALC.
Thank you



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Notice to Exclude 1313 Greyback Rd. from the ALR

From: Susan and Keith <\

Sent: April 7, 2020 9:37 AM
To: Info <info(®rd^s.bc.ca>; ALC.OkanaRan@Rov.bc.ca

Cc: dan.ashton.MLA@IeR.bc.ca; Richard. CanninRS@parl.gc.ca

Subject: Notice to Exclude 1313 Greyback Rd. from the ALR

To Whom It May Concern:

We wish to express our opposition to the proposed removal of 1313 Greyback Mountain Road from the
ALR. As farmers here in the Okanagan Valley we are very aware of the pressures across the Province to have
land removed from the ALR. This 80 acres of viable farm land should not be removed from the meager 5% of
British Columbia's total land base that is protected by the ALR.
Our concerns also include the proximity of the proposed site to the Campbell Mountain hiking and hiking trails
and homes situated on and around the mountain. We feel recreation and farming are compatible, Biosolid
Waste Facilities and recreation areas are not.
The Biosolids Waste Facility should not be built on ALR land. This 80 acres is protected by the Province as a
valuable resource in an ever challenging world of food production. Let's continue to protect our 5%.
Further to the above we find the timing of this proposal and deadlines imposed during a world wide crisis to be
completely unacceptable. This whole issue should be presented at a time in the future when people's lives and
safety are not threatened by a pandemic.

Sincerely,
Susan J. Seddon
Keith H. Johnstone



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Biosolids facility

From: John Greene

Sent: April 7, 2020 11:08 AM
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: Biosolids facility

As a user of Campbell Mountain park, I beg you not to put this facility near the park.

John Greene



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: opposing the 1313 Greyback Mountain Road project

Sent: April 8, 2020 10:30 AM
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>

Cc: 'at' <ALC.OkanaRan@gov.bc.ca>;

Subject: opposing the 1313 Greyback Mountain Road project

Good morning!

I am opposed to taking the 80 acres property on 1313 Greyback Mountain Road out of the ALR.

The RDOS has already been bringing all that sludge to the landfill and processing it outdoors, not according to standard,

right? It was supposed to be an experiment, and now it should be a permanent solution? That has been creating a lot of

odour and leachate for the southern part of the Naramata Bench wine terroir. Will the amount of sludge increase over

the years? How much more will this plant process? What about sludge transporting truck traffic going by wineries,

orchards, a high school, a seniors home? Will that increase?

The 80 acres at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road have been ranch-land for many years. The property is close to Campbell

Mountain recreation area and Three Blind Mice. It is a corridor for wildlife between these two areas. A herd of about 80

elk lives there, certainly also wolves, lynx, etc..

I don't think the whole property should be taken out, but just what is needed for a state of the art, modern, high-tech

Biosolids composting facility, as small as possible. The rest should stay in the ALR, or become park land for recreation,

hiking, hiking etc., protecting the existing wildlife.

We can say, the area is disturbed and close to a landfill, so let's just add pollution to an area close to a polluted area. But

where so we stop with this? Where is the limit?

Close by on Spiller Road, a developer (Canadian Horizon) wants to build a subdivision with 400 houses like they did at
Sendero Canyon. I am opposed to that as well, for the same reasons. Give nature space!

Anette Engel

Maple Leaf Spirits Inc



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Biosolids Waste Facility

From: Elaine Price

Sent: April 7, 2020 4:27 PM
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>; ALC.OkanaRanfSgov.bc.ca

Subject: Biosolids Waste Facility

I am opposed to the proposed biosolids waste facility at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road. I am an owner of 1425

Greyback Mountain Road and grew up on this property as this land has been in the Kerluke family for over 80 years. I

have a number of reasons why I'm opposed to this facility, including life, water, and wild life safety along with the loss

of good agricultural land and the loss of property values.

I have been driving up Reservoir Road and Greyback Mountain road for decades and the road to the current waste

facility has always been inadequate and a potential hazard with large trucks. It is incredibly narrow in spots and

inadequate for large trucks to be driving on. The switchback corner right below the current waste facility is extremely

dangerous as the top corner is blind to on-coming traffic and too narrow for trucks to safely navigate it without

impeding into on-coming traffic at multiple corners. There is quite a bit of residential and recreational traffic also on

this road, causing many hazards. Adding more large truck traffic to this road in its current condition is irresponsible and

a life safety issue.

I have concerns regarding water safety as the current waste facility has already compromised the water safety for those

properties surrounding it. I have no faith that a new facility will not add to this problem. What safety measures are

being put in place to safe guard water in an area where water is in extremely short supply? And where will this facility

get it's water supply from? Will it be at the expense of the current residents?

Wildlife are also a concern as there are a lot of herds of deer, elk and bighorn sheep in the area. All of these herds

migrate through this property and will potentially be displaced with this new development. As a long time resident, we

have worked very hard to conserve these herds and protect them from poachers and hunters alike.

The proposal is also using valuable agriculture land that has been used for food production for decades. This is good

land, in an area where good land is hard to find. Why is it being considered for industrial use? I'm very opposed to this

and disappointed in the planning committee of the RDOS!

I also very concerned about the reduction of property values the facility will bring to all impacted residents. This facility

will be in our direct sightline to our view of Okanagan Lake, and no one wants to look at an industrial

complex! Currently, we do not view the existing waste facility, it is hidden from our view but this new one will not

be! Is the RDOS going to compensate us for our loss of view and property value? I hope so! Also, will this new facility

emit any hazardous or noxious odors? We do not want to start experiencing foul smells and be forced to be inside,

particularly during the middle of summer! Would you?

I am very concerned about this proposed new facility and I do not understand why there isn't/wasn't proper

consultation with the residents impacted by it. There are many places this facility could be located that would not

impact anyone, why is it being considered here? Is it because of the current waste facility? That should be moved

too! It is a mountain of garbage that has out lived it's space and needs to be moved! Also, why is this facility going to

service the entire RDOS population? Is this a money making proposition for the City of Penticton at the expense of all

neighbouring residents? This will not benefit any of us, put it somewhere else!

Elaine Price



PROTECT AGRICULTURAL LAND

DATE: APRIL 3, 2020

ADDRESS OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION: 1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD
PENTICTON, BRITISH COLUMBIA

TO: THE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN (RDOS)

We, the undersigned, in reference to the NOTICE OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION regarding land in the
Agricultural Land Reserve and legally described as:

and located at:

PLAN KAP1190, SUBLOT 8, DISTRICT LOT 2711, SDYD (80 acres)

1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD (ELECTORAL AREA "E")

do hereby URGE THE PROTECTION of agricultural lands and accordingly PROTEST AGAINST the exclusion of
the lands from the Agricultural Land Reserve for the purposes of a composting facility.

The reasons for our protest are:

• Together we need to protect this agricultural land particularly when we are in an era where

food security is a growing global issue and the ALR land must be preserved for its highest

and best use -agricultural production.

• Land In the ALR is to be protected so British Columbians can access locally grown food, and

communities and local economies can prosper through farming, ranching and agriculture

businesses, such as B.C.'s growing food-processing sector.

• The City of Penticton built a parking lot and established hiking and hiking trails on Campbell
Mountain which is across the road from the above lands and the pristine beauty of this area

needs to be maintained.

• Loss of existing wildlife (herd of 30+ California Big Horn Sheep, herd of100+ elk, deer) and
their wildlife corridor and birthing grounds.

• Fractured bedrock can directly contaminate runoff In any direction and ultimately pollute

well water and the existing water wells in the area are drilled to depths in excess of 500'.

• A composting facility has no place on agricultural land that has a known base of sandy soil,

as well as the added noise, air and environmental pollution that goes along with this type of

facility.

PRINTED NAME
Steve Boultbee

PhilGuertin
Jacqule Jackson

Jim Jackson

tori Guertin

ADDRESS
1101 Spiller Rd Penticton V2A6J9
Ill Falconridge Pr Penticton V2A8T4
130 Falconridge Or Penticton V2A8T4
130 Falconridge Or Pentirton V2A8T4
Ill Falconridge Pr Penticton V2A8T4



6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54

Elaine Price

Julle Nurse

Lorralne Nagy

j?iyYiy10dj?jL
Dave Morgenstern

Stefan Ermair

Michael Ermair

AdolfErmair
Maria Anna Ermair

Atix MacDonald

Ken Hampson

Quinn Dagneau

Spence Dagneau

Victoria Kryzanowski

Katie Fortune

Alexandra Gray

^eo.%e.Mc^e'?rl.
Coteman Jackson

George Niddery

Chad Niddery
Philip Robson
Gillian Robson
Kelsey Robson

Christina Staden

Dean Hudson

Deborah Hughes

Thomas Campbell
Ryan McNichol
Darrell McClarty

Karen McClartY
Marcus Ansems

(Vlichelle Parry
Jim Parry

Byron Lutz

Jennifer Lutz

DayeJ^aBerge
Laura Galata

Steve Galata
Stephanie Galata
Herb John Cattee

Grant Pierce

Gail Pierce
Tyler Pierce

Tea I Crosson

Matt Pierce

Alayna Pierce
Bram Ramjiawan

Angela LaBerge
Cassi Petersen

1425 Greyback Mtn Rd Penticton

^^^L^^^t^rl^^L
-l^^fterRoad^entictony2AST3-
101-637 Van Home St Penticton V2A4L2
1550 Reservoir Rd Pentlcton V2A8T3
102 Vista Place Penticton V2A8T4
102 Vista Place Penticton V2A8T4
102 Vista Place Penticton V2A8T4
102 Vista Place Penticton V2A8T4
1278 Spiller Road Penticton V2A8T3
1278 Spiller Road Penticton V2A8T3
1278 Spitler Road Penticton V2A8T3
1278 Spiller Road Penticton V2A8T3
202 Van Home St Penticton

1489 Balfour St Penticton

101-637 Van Home St Penticton

1257 Spi Her Road Penticton
130 Fatconridge Dr Penticton
1362 Greyback Mtn Rd Penticton
1362 Greyback Mtn Rd Penticton
1185 Spiller Road Penticton
1185 Spiller Road Penticton

1185 Spiller Road Penticton
1059 Spiller Road Penticton
119 Pinetree Way Penticton V2A8T4

119 Pinetree Way Penticton V2A8T4
118 Vista Place Penticton V2A8T4
101 Pinetree Way Penticton

122 Vista Place Penticton
122 Vista Place Penticton

1305 Smethurst Rd Naramata VOH1NO
762 MacCleave Ave Penticton V2A3C3

762 MacCleave Ave Penticton V2A3C3

1117 Spiller Rd Penticton V2A8T3
1117 Spiller Rd Penticton V2A8T3
133 Pinetree Way Penticton

1199 Spiller Road Penticton
1199 Spiller Road Penticton
1199 Spiller Road Penticton
164 Falconridge Dr Penticton

19 Blue Wing Place Winnipeg R3YOC1
19 Blue Wing Place Winnipeg R3YOC1
285 Brooklyn St Winnipeg R3J1M3^
285 Brooklyn St Winnipeg R3J1M3
65 Keonaona Lane Wailuku HI 96793

65 Keonaona Lane Wailuku HI 96793
351 Tache Ave Winnipeg R2H2A6
133 Pinetree Way Penticton

1037 Spiller Road Penticton y2A8T3



55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70

~71

72
73
74
75
76'

77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

Michael Sean Hill
Lyndle Marie Hill
Thomas Pango

Lana Schultze

Michael Woods

Rqslyne^uchanan^

Mark Binsenberg

Grant Willis
Pam Willis
James Denton

Julie Fortln

Troy Fader

David Ktemchuk

Andrea Ktemchuk
Henry Craig Morrtson

Kassia Morrison

Margo Boult

Eleanor Papp

.^i?b-?.?lj??pj?_
Anette Enget

Tammy Hansel

EricHansel

Sydney Hansel

Roman Kansel

Kyle Gratton

Catherine Lavoie

James Thumm

DeniseThumm

Trish Picherack
Kelly Farley
Jake Farley
Russell Hubbard

MarcHubbard

Wendy Gary

Keith Payne
Brent Ryll

Susan J.Seddon

Keith J. Johnstone

Peter Osborne

Kelly Schulli
Dan Schulli
Nancy Ducharme

795 Ontario St Penticton

795 Ontario St Penticton

106 Fatconrldge Dr Penticton V2A8T4
106 Falconridge Or Penticton V2A8T4
119 Vista Pl Penticton

127 Falconridge Dr Penticton V2A8T4
127 Falconridge Dr Penticton V2A8T4

1241 Spiller Road Penticton
1241 Spiller Road Penticton
158 Fatconrldge Dr Pentlcton

1256 Spiller Rd Penticton V2A8T3
1256 Spiller Rd Penticton V2A8T3
1238SpillerRdPenticton
1238SpillerRdPenticton
133 Pinetree Way Pentlrton V2A8T4
133 Pinetree Way Penticton V2A8T4

107 PinetreeWay PentirtonV2A8T4

147 Pinetree Way Penticton V2A8T3
147 Pinetree Way Pentirton V2A8T3

948 Naramata Road Pentlcton

1100 Spiller Rd Penticton
1100 Spiller Rd Pentkton
204,403 Churchill Ave Penticton

709 Okanagan Ave E Pentlcton

204,403 Churchill Ave Penticton

1290 Smethurst Rd Naramata

1220 Spiller Rd Penticton
IZZOSpillerRd^^
109 Flagstone Rise Naramata VOH1N1

1410 Greyback Mtn Rd Penticton

1410 Greyback Mtn Rd Penticton

Vernon, BC
1400 Greyback Mtn Rd Pentlcton

5615 Deadpine Drive Kelowna

1557 Reservoir Rd Penticton V2A8T3

PO Box 16 Naramata VOH1NO

Penticton

Penticton

76 Huth Ave Penticton V2A2Z8
152 Falconridge Dr Pentidon V2A8T4
152 Falconridge Dr Pentidon V2A8T4

22 Abbott St Penticton V2A4J2

CONTACT: CAMPBELL MOUNTAIN AREA RESIDENTS



From: Steve Boullbee
Subject: Correct?

Date; March 25, 2020 at 10:52 AM
To: Jacquie Jackson

I am opposed to the application by the R DOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Steve Boultbee_

Address J 101 Spiller Road, Penticton V2A6J9_



From: PhIIGuertlnl
Subject: Re: BIOSOLIDS FACILITY IN YOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Date; March 25, 2020 at 10:58 AM
To: Jacquie Jacksor

HI Jacquis,
Below is my declaration in opposition to the to the removal of "1313 Greyback Mountain Road"
as petitioned by tha RODS. Thanks again for organizing this effort.
Phil

from the Agricultural Land Reserve

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _Phil Guertin

Address_11-1 Falconridge Drive, Penticton,V2A8T4



From: Jacquie Jackson|
Subject: Re: BIOSOLIDS FACILirYII

Dale: March 25,2020 at 11:07 AM
To; Jacquie Jackson

iOURHOOD

j am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name . Jacquie Jackson

Address_130 Falconridge Drive, Penticton, V2A8T4



From: Jacqule Jacksoi
Subject: Re: BIOSOLIDS FACILITY IN YOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Date; March 25, 2020
To: JacquleJact

;020at11:C
;t

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _Jim Jackson

Address _130 Falconridge Drive, Psnticton, V2A8T4



From; PhllGuertlnl
Subject: Fwd: BIOSOOGSTAi

Date; March 25, 2020 at 11:11 AM
To; JacqulaJi
Cc: Lorl Quertfnl

IGHBOURHOOD

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Lori Guertfn



From: ElalnePrlcel
Subject: Fw; BIOSOLIOS FACtUTTMYOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Date: March 25,2020 at 2:44 PM

! am opposed to the application by the R DOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _._Elaine Price____

I am an owner of 1425 Greyback Mountain Road and I'm opposed to this
development.

Thank you.
Elaine Price

From:
Sent: Wednesday, March 25, 2020 10:23 AM
To: Elaine Price
Subject: Fwd: BIOSOLIDS FACILITY IN YOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Sent from my iPhone

Begin fomard9d msssags:

From: Jacquie Jflckson
Date: March 25, 2020 at 10:18:58 Alvl PDT
To: Jacqula Jackson 4
Subject: BIOSOLiDS FACILITY'IN YOUR NE1CHBOURHOOD

Heilo,

You may be aware that the is to an of land
from the ALR. They hope to locate a

FACILITY that wouid process biosotids/waste water siudge, etc. for
the (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("•{313 Greyback
Mtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and
to "join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultura! Land" and
follow the direcl'ions beiow.
Please forward 'this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!



From: Julte Nui
Subject: Re: BIOSOLIOS FACILITY IN YOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Date: March 25, 2020 at 4:44 PM
To; Jacqule Jacksonl

Julie nurse
i266sDiHerrd

Sent from my IPhone

On Mar 25, 2020, at 10:18 AM, Jacqule Jackson ^^^^^^^^^^^^B'/rotc:

Hello,

You may be aware that the is to an oi
the They hope to locate a

COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land"and
follow the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

Reply to this email 1st! Cut -s- paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact itrroi'mation for each person that replies with you.
Tills information wiil be addeci to a master list for a group submission prior to the
deadline of April 3rd, 2020.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultura! Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _
Address.

Telephone Number

Email Address __.

TOGETHEP^ WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!

Jacfjuie Jackson



From: LorraIneNas
Sub|ect:

Date: March 25, 2020 at 5:14 PM
To: Jacqule Jaoksor

E am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricuitural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Lorraine Nagy



From: Cory Rhodes |
Subject: Ra: Blosollds Facility on Agricultural Lane

Date: March 25, 20Z
To; Jacqule Jacks

! am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have -1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve,

Name Coiy Rhodes

Address 101 637 van home St, Penticton, BC V2A4L2, Canada

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land"and
follow the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the
deadline of April 3rd, 2020.

I am opposed to the ai3piication by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricuitural Land Reserve.

Name

Address

Telephone Number

Emai! Address

TnnrrnFR WF F.AN MAKF A niFFFRPNfFi



PROTECT AGRICUtTURAL LAND

DATE: MARCH 25,2020

ADDRESS OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION: 1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD
PENTICTON, BRITISH COLUMBIA

TO: THE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMIIKAMEEN (RDOS)

We, the undersigned, in reference to the NOTICE OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION regarding land in the

Agricultural Land Reserve and legally described as:

PLAN KAP1190, SUBLOT 8, DISTRICT LOT 2711. SDYD (80 acres)
and located at:

1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD (ELECTORAL AREA"E")

do hereby URGE THE PROTECTION of agricultural lands and accordingly PROTEST AGAINST the exclusion of
the lands from the Agricultural Land Reserve for the purposes of a composting facility.

The reasons for our protest are:

• Together we need to protect this agricultural land particularly when we are in an era where
food security is a growing global issue and the ALR land must be preserved for its highest

and best use - agricultural production.

• Land in the ALR is to be protected so British Columbians can access locally grown food, and
communities and local economies can prosper through farming, ranching and agriculture
businesses, such as B.C.'s growing food-processing sector.

• The City of Penticton built a parking lot and established hiking and hiking trails on CampbeK

Mountain which is across the road from the above lands and the pristine beauty of this area
needs to be maintained.

• Loss of existing wildlife (herd of 30+ California Big Horn Sheep, herd of100+ elk, deer) and

their wildlife corridor and birthing grounds.

• Fractured bedrock can directly contaminate runoff in any direction and ultimately pollute

well water and the existing water wells In the area are drilled to depths In excess of 500'.

• A composting facility has no place on agricultural land that has a known base of sandy soil,
as well as the added noise, air and environmental pollution that goes along with this type of

facility.

PRINTED NAME
P^(/ f.. M^W^^^1/1'

ADDRESS

CONTACT: CAMPBELL MOUNTAIN AREA RESIDENTS TELEPHONE: 250-490-6269



From: StefanErmall
Subject: RE: BIOSOLIDS FACILITY IN YOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Date; March 25, 2020 at 7:53 PM
To; Jacqule Jacksoi

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve,

Stefan Ermalr
102 Vista Place, Penticton, BC, V2A 8T4.

Michael Ermalr
102 Vista Place, Penticton, BC, V2A 8T4.

Adolf Ermalr
102 Vista Place, Penticton, BC, V2A8T4.

Maria Anna Ermalr
102 Vista Place. Penticton, BC, V2A8T4.

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

From: Jacqule Jackson
Sent: March 25, 2020 10:18 AM
To: Jaccjyje .JacteQn
Subject: BIOSOLIDS FACILITY IN YOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosotids/Waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Manv MANY oeoole are oooosed to this aDDlication bv the RDOS. To read more and to



From; AllxMacDonaI
Sub|ect: RE: BIOSOLIDS FACILITY IN YOUR'NEJQHBOURHOOD

Date; March 26, 2020 at 3:01 PM
To: Jacquls Jackson]

I am opposed to the aipplication by the RDOS to the Agricuttural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name
Address

Alix MacDonald
1278 Spiller Road, Penticton BC, V2A8T3

Name Ken Hampson
nBC,V2A8T3

Name
Address

Quinn Dagneau
1278 Spiller Road, Penticton BC, V2A8T3

A8T3

Sent: Wednesday, Me
To:Jacquie Jackson
Subject: BIOSOLIDS

Hello,

OURHOOD

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd"),

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below.
Ptease forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste th|e sentence below and add your
contact information at the too.





PROTECT AGRICULTURAL LAND

DATE: MARCH 25, 2020

ADDRESS OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION: 1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD
PENTICTON, BRITISH COLUMBIA

TO: THE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN (RDOS)

We, the undersigned, in reference to the NOTICE OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION regarding land in the

Agricultural Land Reserve and legally described as:

PLAN KAP1190, SUBLOT 8, DISTRICT LOT 2711. SDYD (80 acres)
and located at:

1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD (ELECTORAL AREA"E")

do hereby URGE THE PROTECTION of agricultural lands and accordingly PROTEST AGAINST the exclusion of
the lands from the Agricultural Land Reserve for the purposes of a composting facility.

The reasons for our protest are:

• Together we need to protect this agricultural land particularly when we are in an era where

food security is a growing global Issue and the ALR land must be preserved for its highest
and best use - agricultural production.

• Land in the ALR is to be protected so British Columbians can access locally grown food, and
communities and local economies can prosper through farming, ranching and agriculture

businesses, such as B.C.'s growing food-processing sector.

• The City of Penticton built a parking lot and established hiking and hiking trails on Campbell

Mountain which is across the road from the above lands and the pristine beauty of this area
needs to be maintained.

• Loss of existing wildlife (herd of 30+ California Big Horn Sheep, herd of100+ elk, deer) and

their wildlife corridor and birthing grounds.

• Fractured bedrock can directly contaminate runoff in any direction and ultimately pollute

well water and the existing water wells in the area are drilled to depths in excess of 500'.

• A composting facility has no place on agricultural land that has a known base of sandy soil,

as well as the added noise, air and environmental pollution that goes along with this type of

facility.

PRINTED NAME
Victoria Kryzanowskl

ADDRESS

202.VanitomeST_

CONTACT: CAMPBELL MOUNTAIN AREA RESIDENTS TELEPHONE; 250-490-6269



From: kallefortuna
Subject: Btosolids Facility on Agricultural Land

Date; March 26, 2020 at 9:26 PM
Toi

I am opposed to the application by the RDO.S to

the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313

Greyback Mountain Road removed from the

Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name .Katie Fortuna_

Address _1489 Balfour St,

Pentlcton



From: Alexandra Gray |
Sublect: Re: Blosollds Facility on Agricultural Land

Date; March 27, 2020 at 8:03 AM
To:|

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name: Alexandra Gray

Address: 101-637 Van Home St Pentieton BC

From: Cory Rhodes <coryleerhodes@gmail.com>
Sent: March 25, 2020 8:27 PM

Subject: Fwd: Biosolids Facility on Agricultural Lan<

Hey guys check this out. Apparently they are trying to put a waste site up by Campbell mountain. Sounds like a bad Idea to mel Send
to your friends If you think It Is a bad Ideal

Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of (and
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolidsAvaste water sfudge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the tight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below.
P/ease forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
Thic* in^ni^mo+inn lAiflll Krk arlrtorl trk o mcsc'+or liofr -frtr "a nrniir^ c** th»rr»ic*c*ir»r» rkrinr trk iha rloor(IInc»



am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _George McLean____

Address _J 257 Spiiler Road.

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd"),

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This Information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline
of April 3rd, 2020.

i am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agriculturai Land Commission to
have 1313 Greybac!<_MountaJn Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Coleman Jackson

Address 130 Falcon Ridge Dr

On Mar 35, 2020, at 7:53 PM, Jacquie Jackson <jacquiej62@yinail.com> wrote:

S am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricuitural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _
Address

Telephone Number,

Email Address



From: Chad Niddery
Sent: March 28, 2020-9:47
To: george niddery
Subject: ALR Petition

new doc

2020-...,41.pdf

Sent from my iPhone



I am opposed to the application by the RODS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313

Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name 6^roic-
ZT

^ItdL-c^

Address 1.3^2 (?^W< iM^J- R<1-

Scanned with CamScanner



I am opposed to the application by the RODS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313

Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _CMb_J<lM^L

Scanned with CamScanner



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name PHILIP ROBSON

Name G1LLSAN ROBSON

Address 1185 SPiLLER RD, PENTICTON, BC

Name KELSEYROBSON

Address 1185 SPILLER RD. PENTICTON, BC

Helto.
Please read below update on the subject and find details of action required to opposs this thing, the deadllns is approaching soon.
Hope everyone Is doing good despite current events.
Take care,
Laura Galata

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:



Hello Jacqie:

Thanks for your initiative. I certainly support it.

My name:
Address:

Christina Staden
1059 Spiller Road

lextend the infnrmatinn tn my neighbours: Philip and Gillian Robson at 1185 Spiller Rd.
Email:

Regards,

Christina



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission

to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land

Reserve.

Date: March 27, 2020

Name: Dean Hudson

Address: 119 Pinetree Way, Penticton, B.C. V2A 8T4

t am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission

to have 1313 Greyback Miountain Road removed from the Agricuitural Land

Reserve.

Date: March 27, 2020

Name: Deborah Hughes

Address: 119 Pinetree Way, Penticton, B.C. V2A 8T4



Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline
of April 3rd, 2020.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _.J~homas Campbell,

Address _118 Vista Place PENTiCTON B C V2A 8T4_

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!

Jacquie Jackson



I am opposed to the application by the RODS to the Agricuitural Land Commission to hava 13'|3_G|'eybacl< Mountain
Bogci removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve,

Name Ryan McNichol

Address 101 Pinetree Way, Penticton, BC,

On Sat, Mar 28, 2020 at 12:56 PM Jacqufe Jackson <jasauig)'S2®gffla!LcsjB> wrote:
I am opposed to the applteatlon by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Grsyback Mounlain^oad removed
from Ihe Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name

Address

Telephone Number

Email Address

Thanks for your email, what exactly do I need to {ill out/Sign.? And I'll get it To you today. Sorry if I misser) a link.

On Sat, Mar 28, 20RO at 11:55 AM Jacquis Jacksor

Hello,

ACT and forward me your opposition to the RDOS removing 1313
Greyback Mountain Road from the ALR.

Here are some things that may not have been realized:

1. The RDOS wants to install a Regional Composting Facility on 80 at
1313 Greyback Mtn Rd making this a very industrial Prior to now,
this has been a cattle ranch;

2, This Regional Composting Facility will of which
is organic matter recycled from

3, The facility is to be an "in-vessel" facility which WILL impact atmospheric air
quality, water and soil;

4. The soil at 1313 Greyback Mtn Rd is sandy and therefore predisposed to
harmful leachate problems;

5. This area is comprised of fractured bedrock so any leachate will contaminate
runoff, can pollute water wells in the area, and can pollute the City of Penticton
Water Reservoir (Penticton Creek);

6. There are several properties below the Landfill that are already contaminated;
7, This facility would serve the entire region, from Peachlancl to Manning

Park to Anarchist Mountain to the US/Canada Border;
8. The trucks that currently brinq Biosolids to the Landfill are "in-vessel"



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name: Darreli McClarty

Address: 122 Vista Place, Penticton BC

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land"and
follow the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1stl Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the
deadline of April 3rd, 2020.

i am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve,

Name

Address

Telephone Number

Email Address

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name: Karen McClarty

Address: 122 Vista Place, Penticton BC

Sent from my IPhone

On Mar S3, S020, at 12:55 PM, Jacqule Jackson

Hello,

ACT NOW and forward me your opposition to the RDOS removing 1313
Greyback Mountain Road from the ALR.

Here are some things that may not have been realized:

1. The RDOS wants to install a Regional Composting Facility on 80 at 1313
Greyback Mtn Rd making this a very site. Prior to now, this has
been a cattle ranch;

2. This Regional Composting Facility wlli of which Is organic
matter recycled from

3. The facility is to be an "in-vessel" facility which WELL impact atmospheric air
quality, water and soil;

4. The soil at 1313 Greyback Mm Rd is sandy and therefore predisposed to
harmful leachate problems;

5. This area is comprised of fractured bedrock so any leachate wili contaminate
runoff, can pollute water wells in the area, and can pollute the City of Penticton
Water Reservoir (Penticton Creek);

6. There are several properties below the Landfill that are already contaminated;
7. This facility would serve the RDOS region, from Peachiand to Manning

Park to Anarchist Mountain to the US/Canada Border;
8. The trucks that currently bring Biosolids to the Landfill are "in-vessel"

trucks that consistently leak sewage sludge onto the roadway and are extremely
srnelly;

9. There wili be an excessive increase in the amount of large heavy truck traffic
on Reservoir Road due to the huge Region this facility will service. The
trucks may operate on off-peak hours due to traffic congestion;

10, This facility will be operational 24 hours/day, 7 ciays/week, 365 daysA/ear due to
the biosolids material having to be continually heated, mixed and disbursed;

rtr\("M ie* *"y^ <!.r.>-i^l >»>;11 h rl .-„,<-! -,rt ^', th,-. fnnllH-t



am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 13l3Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Marcus Ansems

Address 1305 Smetiuirst rd Maramata B.C. VOH1NO_



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313
Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _Michelle Parry

Address 762 MacCleave Ave, Penticton B.C., V2A 3C3

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313
Greyback Mountain Road removeci from the Agricultural Land Reserve,

Name Jim Parry

Address 762 MacCleave Ave, Penticton B.C., V2A 3C3

From: Jacquie ,'Jackson
Sent: Saturday, March 28, 2020 4:32 PM
To: Jacquie Jackson
Subject; Biosolids Facility near Campbell Mountain

Hello,

I am hoping that you will be interested in the following and that you will be opposed to what the
RDOS is attempting to do and will spread the news far and wide. Please read on.

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids (sewage sludge) for the
ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313
Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

A/*Tir>M Dcmnocn.



You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline
of April 3rd, 2020.

! am to the appiication by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Byron Lutz

Address 1117 Spiller Rd, Penticton, BC V2A 8T3

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!

.la/vil lim . la/'l/cnn



Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below,
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline
of April 3rd, 2020.

I am to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Jennifer i-utz

Address 1117 Spiller Rd, Penticton, BC V2A 8T3

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!

. lar*ni no . lar'1/cnn



3/29/2020

•/S Shared by others > Scan Mar 29, MM • PDF

Scan Mar 29,2020.pdf(Shared)- Adobe Document Cloud

0. i. @ Sign In

is

Hello,

You may bo awara Ihal thB RDOS la applying to have an BO-acre parcel ol land removed from Ihs ALR. Thay hops
FACIUTY hot would process btosolMt/wasto waler sludfle. ale. for Iho ENTIRE nDOS AREA (see allached map "Enllm HI
Road and Is shovw) In Iha allaohad map ('.1313 Qrayback Mtn Rd").

Many MANY psopla are oppoaod to Ihts appllcfllton by ths RD03. Tb read more and to loin His llghf, read Iha allached doci
dlradtons bstow.
PlaasalaMBld lhf» to eveiybody In you- nehvork.
ACT NOW and thenK youl

ACTION HEQUMED;
Reply to tht» •mail bflfmcARll) l8ll Cul + pasla Iha sentenca below and add your conlacl Wormallon at Iha top.
Add ssparalo sets of conlacl Inlormalion for each peraon that replies wllh you.
This Intormallon wH bo addad to a masler list for a group submission prior lo Iha deadllns of April 3rd. 2020,

I am opposed to Iha appteatlon by Iha RDOS to Iho Agricutlural Land Commission to have l313.Q(Whack MCUOSaiaRaad ro"

Name Q^ 1^&- /--^

Address ,3-3 A-A^.T/yQ^- t-^'C.y/-

Sun Mar 29,2020

SHAfiEO Mar2a,10:SSPM

/P Copy shared link

(j> Save link

|^ Report abuse

Contacl ihe undersigned should you liavs quesltons.
Thont-o anptnt

Cooklas and other tschnaloglts

Byc&klng "Accept,* you agree to the use of Adobe and third-party cookies and other similar technolaglts to enhance your
browsing experience, analyze and measure your engagement with our content, and provkle more relevant ads on Adobe
websftes and others. Learn more about your choices and coofcias. ^6u can withdraw your consent st any time.

https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=um%3Aaaid%3Ascds%3AUS%3Aa6abb64<:-891d-4f5e-b(M9-e361dleOf645 1/1



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have the 1313 Greyback Mt, Road
removed from tho Agriculture Land Reserve Name Herb John Catteo

Address 164 Falcon Ridge Drive

BWed, Mar 25, 2020 at 10:18 AM Jacquie Jackson
"Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS i8 applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLID8 WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land"and
follow the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the
deadline of April 3rd, 2020.

I am opposed to the application by tn© RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricuitura! Land Reserve.

Name

Address

Telephone Number _

Email Address

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!



I am opposed to the application by the R DOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have -1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Laura Galata
Steve Galata
Stephanie Gatata

Address 1-i 99 SpiMer Road

Thank you Jacquie,
Best Regards,

Steve and Laura Galata

Sent from my IPhone

On 25 Mar 2020, at 10:18, Jacquie Jacltson <lacciuieiG2@gniail.com? wrole:

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name

Address

Telephone Number



Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land removed
from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES COMPOSTING FACILITY
that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see
attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313 Grey back Mountain Road and is shown
in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to "join the
fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow the directions
below.

Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your contact
information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline of
April 3rd,2020.

1 am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission, to have 1313
Greyback Mountain Road removed irom the Agriculturai Land Reserve.

Name _Grant Pierce.

Address _19 Blue Wing Place, Winnipeg, MB R3YOCI.

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!



'^

$
^

^

>.
•^
rs

th

fti>^

r\

s
^



Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land removed
from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES COMPOSTING FACILITY
that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see
attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown
in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to "join the
fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow the directions
below.

Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REOmRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your contact
information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline of
April 3rd,2020.

I am opposed to the ajiplicafion by the RDOS to i'h.e Agricultural Land Corninission to have 1313
Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricuitural LEind Reserve.

Name Gail Pierce

Address J9 Blue Wing Place, Winnipeg, MB R3YOC1.

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!



?
•a
1"^

<
•~a

^
<s

<
I?
\^

^
0



Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land removed
from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOUDS WASTES COMPOSTING FACILITy
that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see
attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown
in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to "join the
fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow the directions
below.

Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your contact
information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline of
April 3rd,2020.

1 am opposed to the application by tlie RDOS to the Agricultural Land Coinniission to have 1313
Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name JTyIer Pierce._

Address _285 Brooklyn StWinnipeg.MB R3J1M3..

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!





Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land removed
from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOUDS WASTES COMPOSTING FACILITY
that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see
attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown
in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mta Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS, To read more and to "join the
fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow the directions

below.

Please forward this to everybody in your network.

ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REOmRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your contact
information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline of
April 3rd, 2020.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Lantl Commissioii to have 1313
Greyback Mountain Road cemovec! from the Agricultural Lnnd Reserve.

Name ._Jeal Crosson_

Address _285 Brooklyn St, Winnipeg, MB R3J1M3.

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!





Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land removed
from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES COMPOSTING FACILITY
that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see
attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown
in the attached map ("1313 GreybackMtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to "join the
fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow the directions
below.

Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you;

ACnON REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your contact
information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline of
April 3rd, 2020.

1 am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313
Cxi'e.yback Mountain Road removed from 'die AgricuUi.'.ral Land Reserve.

Name _Matt Pierce_.„,.,__

Address _65 Keonaona Lane, Wailuku, HI USA 96793_

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!







Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land removed
from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES COMPOSTING FACILITY
that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see
attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown
in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to "join the
fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow the directions
below.

Please forward this to everybody in your network,
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your contact
information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline of
April 3rd, 2020.

I am opposed to the .'ipplicarion by the RDOS to the. Agrk'ultural Laitd Commtssion to have 1313

Greyback Mountaiii Road removed from the Agricnlttira) Lnnd Reserve.

Name ___Alayna Pierce___

Address __65 Keonaona Lane, Wailuku, HI USA 96793,

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!





You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land removed
from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES COMPOSTING FACILITy
that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see
attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown
in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to "join the
fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow the directions
below.

Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your contact
information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline of
April 3rd, 2020.

I am opposed to the applicarion by the RDOS to the Agrictilniml I.and Commission to have 13! 3
Greyback Mountain Road reinoved from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _Brain Ramjiawan____„._..__

Address __35i Tache Ave, Winnipeg, MB R2H 2A6_

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks again!



3/29/2020 Scan Mar 29,2020 (2),pdf(Shared)- Adobe Document Cloud

Shared by olhcrs • Scan Mar 29,2020 (I) • PDF Q> A .,

Scan Mar 29,2020 (2)

SHARED HhrIHSa4AM

@ Sign In

Reply to this email befora April 1stl Cut + pasta lh« tenlanct betow and add your conlacl Intomalion at tha lop.
Add separalB sets ol conlacl Inlomalton tor etch paison that replias wtth you.
This informallon wil ba added lo a master list lor a group submission prior to tha deailllnB ol April 3(d, 2020.

I am opposed toiha appBcallon by ths RDOS to Ihe Aaricullufal Land Commission lo hma 13.13 .QMytiMk.MQundDn.Band ren <? c°Pyshar

Name B^ch. (.O^QgC ^SaveUnk

Address ]3S^.ioeJlx££'lL)t
abusa

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCEI

Contact the undarelgiwd should you hava quesllons.
Thanks ngalnt

Jacqula Jackson
(250) -190:6269.

Entire RODS Area

1313 GreybackMtn Road

ht(p8;//documentdoudadobe.com/link/track?uri=ura%3Aaaid%3Ascd8%3AUS%3Acc7f25af.0996^588-a295-600791c2454f 1/1



Sorry for the delay

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Cassi Petersen
Address 1037 Spiller Rd, Penticton BC, V2A 8T3

Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolidsAvaste water sludge, etc. for
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the fight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline
of April 3rd, 2020.

i am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the AgricuJtura! Land Commission to
have "1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

N amp



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name __.Michael Sean Hil! __mike@hoodoo

Address 795 Ontario St Penticton

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name jj/ndie Marie Hi!l_

Address _795 Ontario St PentictorL

Mike Hill



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Thomas Pango

Address 106 Falconridge Drive, Penticton V2A 8T4

Name Lana Schultze

Address 106 Falconridge Drive, Penticton V2A 8T4

Hello,

ACT NOW PLEASE and forward me your opposition to the RDOS removing 1313
Greyback Mountain Road from the ALR.

Here are some things that may not have been realized:

1. The RDOS wants to install a Regional Composting Facility on 80 acres at 1313
Greyback Mtn Rd making this a very large Industrial site. Prior to now, this has
been a cattle ranch;

2. This Regional Composting Facility will consist of Blosollds which is organic
matter recycled from sewage;

3. The facility is to be an "in-vessel" facility which WILL impact atmospheric air quality,
water and soil;

4. The soil at 1313 Greyback Mtn Rd is sandy and therefore predisposed to
harmful leachate problems;

5. This area is comprised of fractured bedrock so any leachate will contaminate
runoff, can pollute water wells in the area, and can pollute the City of Penticton
Water Reservoir (Penticton Creek);

*U^. I ^^^ItW *1^-* -.-~ ^1»^-^1.. -^.-.*x~,!n^t~^l.



Land Commission to have 1313
Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _ Michael Woods

Address _119 Vista Pl Penticton BC_

From: Jacquie Jackson
Sent; Wednesday, March 25, 2020 10:18 AM
To: Jscquie Jackson
Subject; BIOSOLIDS FACILm' IN YOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Hello,

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR. They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the
ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property is 1313
Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn Rd").

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to
"join the tight, read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and follow
the directions below.
P/ease forward this to everybody in your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste the sentence below and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the deadline
of April 3rd, 2020.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name

Address

Telephone Number



j am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.
Name Roslyne Buchanan

This email has been checked for viruses by Avast antivirus
a vast software.

www.avast.com.



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

This email has been checked for viruses by Avast antivirus
,QVaSt software.

'Awyi/jwasLccma



Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the TELUS network.

From: Jacquie Jackson
Sent; Monday, March 30,2020 2:17 PM
To: Grant WIHis
Subject: Re: BIOSOLIDS FACILHY

HI Qrant and Pam,

I so appreciate your support but can you send your opposition In the following format please;

i am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Grant Willis

Address J 241 Spifler Rd Penticton BC

SMame Parn Willis

Address _1241 Spiller Rd

On Mar 30,2020, at i0:20 AM, Grant WW

Pam and I are on board with you on this. So mark us down as opposing.

Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone on the TELUS networlc.

Hello,

ACT NOW and forward me your opposition to the RDOS removing 1313
Greyback Mountain Road from the ALR.

Here are some things that may not Slave been i-ealized:



I am opposed to the appllcalion by the RODS to the A9ricultural Land Commiesion to have 1313 Greybaok Mountain Road removed
(rom the Agricultural Land Reservs.

Name James Dsnton

Address 160 Falcunridgs Drive



On Mar 30, 2020, ai 3:17 PM, Jacquie Jackson

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback
Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _ Julie Fortin_

Address ......1256 Spliler Rd Pentlcton V2A 8T3__



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to (lie Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed
from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _Troy Fader_

Address _1256 Spiller Rd PenUcton, B.C. V2A 8T3.

On Mar 30, 2020, at 3:17 PM, Jacqule Jacks'

1-li Troy and Julie,

I am sure that you aro sending In your opposition to the RDOS but I was wondering if both of you will sign my Opposition Letter so
that we can go ths RDOS showing Spiller/Falconrldye residenls as a united front.

If you are opposed la the Biosolids Facility (sewage sludge) being built on 1313 Qreyback Mountain Road please cut and paste the
following statement to a reply email to me. Just repeal the infonnation for each person who wants to sign it.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to iha Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Qieyback Mountain Road romovsrl
from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name . . _..___...

Address

Telephone Number _.._.___. _.__^_

Email Address ____

TOGETHER WE CAN hflAKE A DIFFERENCEI



Jacquie Jackson

TELUS

Blosolfds Facility near Campbcll Mountain

From iJticquic Ji.ickwn <jiicqu

Subject: Bio&olitls F<xili(y HP<» Gini()bcll Mourit^ttn

To : Andrco Klcnichnk <.n ' ''" "

Mon, Mar JO, 2020 03; 18 PM

Hello,

1 an)sure thai you tire wnding in your opjxi'.ition (o tin'' RDOS but I was v/ondenng if you and
any other adults at your residence will sign my Opposition Li'ttcr 'fO ihiit we ciin <jo itie RD05
showing Spillur/Fdlconritttje resitlents as a uitited rront.

If you a»e opposed to the Biosotids Facility (sewage sludge) being built on 1313 Grcytack
Mountain Road pteasc cut and payte UK.' followinq *>t<itenn:;nt to A »ep!y email to me. Just repeat
the infonnation for each person who wants to sign it.

? i!!l'l (l|;|;i,swl ii'i ii't' tiji['!i;"aSion i',1/ [ii(- }liX^t.> i'i'i t''.- i'..^:;-;K<.'d" L/;!'!J C

(:i!f?v(?'.:i\ ?'1oinii<'ir Koiid reiiKjyi':! fiom tii'' A('f;r,|i?i.(f.;i i,tid P1 ..-",,•

i\i,»'nr I ..•..(•. r^v..' .1- ;• 't'

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE"

Thanks again!

•'f'-:i:i\ tv i'..!1,^' ) .'ii »



TELUS

Biosolids Facility near Campbcll Mountain

M<m,Mar30,202003:l8PM

Hello,

I om sure dial you are sending in your opposition to the RDOS but I was wondering if you and
any other adults at your residence will sign my Opposition letter w that we can go the RDOS
showing Spillcr/Folconridge resjdente as a united front.

If you are opposed to the Biosolids Facility (sewage sludge) being built on 1313 Greyback
Mountain Road please cut: and paste (he foltowinq statement to a repSy email to me. Just repeat
the information for each person who wants to sign it,

( am upposed 10 thi,: applKaUon by tii^ RC35 1.0 Uii- Ayr^uUux;' lui'u Ccipt1' •;;;i.m lo i'..i'.\; '3iJ

Grcyback Mountai'n Road wriovcd now tiic A'ifK«;!t!fAl t.:i*':1 Re-*;1-,?.

:'' ^ K..

Addrc&s •S'.i.-.s.ii i

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKfc A DIt-hfcRENCfc!

Thanks again!

Jacquie Jackson



Hi Jacquie,

Please see the attached. Thank-you.

Andrea and Dave Klemchuk

From: "Jacquie Jackson"|
To: "Andrea Klemchuk" <|
Sent: Monday, March 30,'
Subject: Biosolids Facility near Campbell Mountain

Hello,

I am sure that you are sending in your opposition to the RDOS but I was wondering
if you and any other adults at your residence will sign my Opposition Letter so that
we can go the RDOS showing Spiller/Falconridge residents as a united front.

If you are opposed to the Biosolids Facility (sewage sludge) being built on 1313
Greyback Mountain Road please cut and paste the following statement to a reply
email to me. Just repeat the information for each person who wants to sign it.

I am opposed to the appiication by the RDOS to the Agricultura! Land Commission
to have "1313 Greyback !VJountain Road removed from the Agricuftura! Land
Reserve.

jarne

Address

Telephone Number

Email Address

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

Thanks again!



3/30/2020

^ Shared by others ;•

Hello,

Scan Mar 29,2020 (2).pdf(Shared). Adobe Document Cloud

Scan Mar 29,2020 (2) • PDF d. A .,

SnnMar29,2020(2)

SIURB) MarUt&MAM

@ Sign In

You may ba awaia Ihal (ho RODS la applying to have an BO-acre parcel of land removed (rom the ALR, Thsy hope to
FACIUTY that would piocesa blosoHdstoasta watar sludgt, etc for Ihe ENTIRE RDOS AREA {see aHached map 'EnUfe ROC ^^
Rog<)andl8»hownlnil>eaHachedm»p("13l3G(9y)38cttMin.B<r). y f

Many MANY people are opposed to IMs appteallon by Iho RDOS, To read mora and to loin Iho ngW", read UIB allachsd docun ^ 5^ l^l,
dlroctlons betow,
P/eass forward this to eveiybody In your netwoik.
ACTNOWBndlhankyoul' ' ' 1'H Report abuie

ACTION REOUIHEO!
Reply to Kits email hel.ow AMLtall Cut + pasla the santonce betow and add youf conlact lirfonnallon at the top.
Add separate sals ol oonltct IntormaUon to each person Ihal replas wllh you.
This infonnallon wM he addsd lo a master list to a group submission prior 10 thfl dwdllne ol April.anl.ZOZO.

I am opposad ta Iha appllcaUon by the RDOS lo Iha Aaricullural Land Comnrtsslon lo have .l.aiiasytoClS.Mci'atalaBnad rsm<

Nams \^M\«^, C/cmc\ P^offvSaC^

Contact Ihe undersigned shouU you hava questions.

Entire RDOS Area

l3136reybacl<MtnKoad

https://documenteloud.adobe.coin/link/tiack?uri=ura%3Aaaid%3Ascd8%3AUS%3Acc7f25rf-0996^588.a295.600791c2454r 1/1



300/2020

A shared byolhcrs > Sun Mar 39,2020 (I) • PDF

Scan Mar 29,2020 (2).pdf(Shared)- Adobe Document Cloud

Q. A ® Sign In

IS Scan Mar 29,2020 (2)

SIIAHED M»rWia4AM

^l Copy shared link

<? Save link

pl R«port abuse

Heto,

You may bs aware Ihal the RDOS la applying to have an BO-acrn parcel at land removed from tlw ALR. Thay hope to
FACILITY that would procasa bksoldsAvasla wBlersludge. ole. hr Iha ENTmE RDOS AREA (SBB altochBd mas> "EnUfB ROC
Road and Is shown In Iha allachsd map ("1313 GrevbgckMtn R<f).

Many MANY people ars opposed lo this application by the RDOS, To read moro and lo "jotn iha nghr, read ths altoched docwr
direcllons below.
Pfeass forward this to everybody an your nehvork.
ACT NOW and Ihank youl

ACTION REOtHRED;

Reply 10 this email before April 1 all Cut + pasla Iha aenlancs belownd add your conlact Inlomiallon at the top.
Add saparata sets of conlaol Inlormallon for each person that rspllos wllh you.
This (ntomutlon will ba added to a mailer 1st (or a group uibmUSton prior la Ihs deadllnB ol April Snf. 202ft

I am opposed to Iho applcalton by Iha HDOS to the Agricullural Land Commission to hare .ISU3 arfiyliafikMnmtalaflflad rerac

Mama Ko&-^c<> NVitci-soCt

Address J3i2tJi'>AtA(AaJuA^ ,ftfi^<:ya".> 8<,

https://doeumentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn%3Aaaid%3Ascds%3AUS%3Acc71'25af.0996-4588.a295.600791c2454f 1/1



From; Marflo Boul.
Subject: Re: Blosollds hacnity nearuampDeii wiouniain

Date: March 30,2020 at 8:59 PM
To: Jacqute Jacksor ' ' '""" "--"

I am opposed to fhe application by the RD08 to the Agricullural Lanct Commission to have 1313 GreybacK Mountain Road removed
from the Agricultural Land Resarvo.

Name MARQO BOULT

Address 107 PINETREE WAY. PENTICTOM, BC V2A 8T4

On Man, Mar 30, 2020 at 3:01 PM Jacquie Jacksc

Hi Bill and Margo,

I am sure that you are sanding in your opposition to the RDOS but I was wondering if both of you and perhaps your children will
sign my Opposition Letter so that we can go the RDOS showing Spiller/Falconrldge residents as a united front.

If you are opposed please:

Hit reply,

Cut and paste the blue section below,

Add your contact information for each parson who wants to sign it.

Then press send.

I am opposed lo (lie applic.alion by tlte RDOS to the Agriculfurtil Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road romoved

from tho Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name ______.
Address

Tolophone Number _„_.. _.._.___.__._^_

Email Address ____._...... .__.„.

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCEI

Thanks again I



From: Eleanor Papp
Subject: Biosolids

Date: March 31, 2020'

removed from the Agricultural Land Reservo,

Name _Eleanor Papp_

Iths Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road

removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _ „ Michael Papp.

Address _ 147 Pinetree Way, Pentlcton, BC, V2A8T3

Get Qytlookjw 1QS



Hi Jacquie,
Thank you for taking the time to chat with me about the composting / blosolids facility that
is planned on 1313 Greyback Road!

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name

Address

_Anette F-ngef

_948 Naramata Road, Penticton.

Sure. Anytime after 9:00 am will work.

Jacquie

On Mar 30,2020,at 8:57 PM|

Hi Jacquie,
Thank you for your email! I would like to chat with you tomorrow, Tuesday, to
tell you what we have experienced, relevant to the landfill etc.
When would be a good time for me to call you?



HI Jacqute,
Yes wo ars all opposed to the biosolids facility being built on 1313 Qreyback Mountain Road.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed
from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name

Address

Jammy 1-lansel_.

J 100 Spiller Rd Penticton BC_

I am opposed toihs applicaiion by tha RODS to (lie Agricultural Land Corni-nlsslon lu liave 1313 GraybacK Ivlountain Road removed
from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Naina

Address

_Eric Hansef

_1100 Splller Rd Penllcton BG.__.

I am opposed to She application l.iy His RDOS to llie Agricultural Land Commission lo have 1313 Greybadc Mountain Road removsd
from the Agricultural Land Reserve,

I'lame ._Sydney Hansel_

Aclciiess ____204 403 Cliurcliill Avs Penliulon_

I am opposed to the appllcdlion by the RDOS to Ihe Agricultural land Gommiasion to have 1313 Greybaok Mounlain Road romovsd
from She Agricullural Land Reserve.

Name Roman Hansel.

Address _709 Okanagan Ava E. Penticton 13C___.



I am opposed to the applicaiion by Iha RDOS to the Agricultural l.and Coinmission to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed
from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name .._Kyte Gratton_..._._

Address __.204 403 Churchill Ave. Penticton

On Mon, Mar 30, 2020 at 3:27 PM Jacquie Jackson

HI Tammy,

I am sure that you are sending In your opposition to the RDOS but I was wondering if both of you & Eric and your adult children will
sign my Opposition Letter so that we can go th® RDOS showing Spilter/Falconridge residents as a united front.

If you are opposed to the Btosolids Facility (sewage sludge) being built on 1313 Qreyback Mountain Road please cut and paste the
following statement to a reply email to me. Just repeat the information for each person who wants to sign It.

I am opposed to the application by tha RDOS to llia Agricultural Land Conunission to have 1313 Greyb,icl< Mountain Rosd removed
from llie AQricultural Land Reserve.

Name

Address

Telephona Number

Email Address.

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCEI

Thanks againl

Jacqule Jackson



!am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 13J3 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Catherine Lavoie

Address 1290 smethurst Road, Naramata

|my IPhone

On Mar 31, 2020, at 9:13 AM, J,

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name

Address

Telephone Number

Email Address



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission
to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land
Reserve.
Name James Thumm
Address J 220 Spiller Rd_Penticton,



am opposed to the application by tiie RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission
to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land
Reserve.
Name Denise Bonimani Thumm
Address J 220_ SoiilerRd Penticton



Trish Picherack, ^B—B 109 Flagstone Rise, Naramata.VOH 1N1
I am a hiker and enjoy rambling the Campbell Mountain Trails which would be compromised by
the proposed compositing site, it was a surprise to see the sign posted near the parking lot last
week.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have 1313
Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve."

Thank you
Trish Picherack



Hi Jacquie
They never notified us either we also drove by and saw the notice, I am not that good
with computers so not sure how to "cut and Paste" so hopefully this works for you,
Thanks, Marc.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.
Kelly Farley
1410 Greyback Mtn. Rd Penticton BC

am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.
Jake Farley
_l^.10_Girevback_Mtn, Rd Penticton BC

am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.
Russell Hubbard

BC

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _marc Hubbard_

Address _1400 greyback Mtn. Rd. Penticton_



(i
11,[r

It

»

I



i am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agriculturat Land Commission to
have l313.Greyj3ack_MoynlainJ3sad removed from the A.gricultural Land Reserve.

Brent Rytl
PO Box 16
Naramata BC

_V£

From: Jacquie Jacksor
Sent: Sunday, April 05,2020 12:33 PM
To: Marc Hubbarc
Subject: Re: Biosolids Facility

Hi Marc,

Click on the link below and it should take you right to it:

!.itti3s:/Zwv/w^gQpgMQn..£Ojii/petiti^p^^^^^
.bjos^lids^Q.ste-icicHjty^jiieassJittT^

From there you should be able to click on "Sign the Petition" and add your information.

Jacquie

That works perfect. Thanks so much Marc.

Jacquie

On Apr 5, 2020, at 11:12 AM| wrote:

Hi Jacquie
They never notified uy either we aiso drove by and saw the
notice, I am not thr?it Ciood with compulei-s so iiot surfe hovi/ to "cut



Hi Jacqufe
This Is to inform you that I am opposed to tha Bfosollds facility proposed for 1313 Grsyback Mountain Road by the RDOS.

Keith Payne
1557 Reservoir Road
PentictonBC V2A8T3

On Man, Apr 6,2020 at 5:02 PM Jacquie Jackson -^^^^^^^^^^Bwrote:

Hi,

I still haven't received your opposition to the Biosolids Facility going in near Campbell
Mountain.

Could you please send it to me asap! Thanks so much!

ACTION REQUIRED IMMEDIATELY:

Hit Reply to send the email back to me.
Highlight the blue area below.
Right click and cut.
Go to the top of the new email to me and right click and paste the blue area.
Then fill in the blank areas.

Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.

i am opj;)osed to the application by the RDOS to ['he Agrict.iiturol L.and C'k')iTirniRsion lo
iiave 1313 Gi'eyi:i(-i.ck iViountain Road f'ernoved fs'oin the Agtlculturai Land Refierve,

Name

Address

Teiephone Number

Email Address



HI Ms. Jackson, hope this helps. We are tireless proponents of the preservation of ALR lands,

Sincsrely,
Susan Seddon

To Whom It May Concern:

We wish to express our opposition to the proposed removal of 1313 Greyback Mountain Road from ths ALR. As farmers here in the
Okanagan Valley we are very aware of the pressures across the Province to have land removed from the ALR. This 80 acres of
viable farm land should not be removed from the meager 5% of British Columbia's total land base that Is protected by the ALR.
Our concerns also Include tha proximity of the proposed site to the Campbelt Mountain hiking and hiking trails and homes situated on
and around the mountain. We feel recreation wd farming are compatible, Blosolid Waste Facilities and recreation areas are not,
The Blosollds Waste Facility should not be built on ALR land. This 80 acres Is protected by the Province as a valuable resource In an
ever challenging world of food production. Let's continue to protect our 5%.
Further to the above we find the timing of this proposal and deadlines Imposed during a world wide crisis to be completely
unacceptable, This whola Issue should be presented at a time In tha future when people's lives and safety are not threatened by
a pandsmic.

Sincerely,
Susan J. Seddon
Keith H. Johnstone



Jacquie,
In 1973, the British Columbia New Democratic Party led by their Premier Dave Barrett
created the Agriculture Land Reserve (ALR).
At this time 1973,1 was a member of the Advisory Committee, Electoral Area E. Mr.
Dune McDougall was a Director and in 1980 he became the Chairman of the Regional
Districts. We spent many hours of discussion related to many issues. For instance, how
a farmer could stay on his property when sold. The promise to our citizens was the
preservation of agricultural land for our future. Eighty acres of agricultural land for
waste materials is outrageous without the studies relating to the geotech, release of
methane gas, waterflow particularly relating to melting snow load and the topography of
the ground. The keyword really is "agricultural". If this land is proven not suitable for
agricultural use and is removed from the ALR it has to be replaced in another area.

I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to
have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Peter Osborne, 76 Huth Avenue, Penticton, BC V2A2Z8,

Peter Osborne.

Sent from Mail for Windows 10



I am opposed to the application the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have
1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed form the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name Kelly Schulli

Address 152 Falconridge Drive, Penticton BCV2a8t4

Sent from my IPhona

Hi Kslly,

Welcome to the neighbourhood I Your support is greatly appreciated!

My husband Jim and I live at 130 Falconridge Drive.

Can you send me your opposition as follows please and do one for each you and your husband as wall as any other adult that
would like to have their name added to the Petition.

ACTION REQUIRED IMMEDIATELY!

Hit Reply to send the email back to me.
Highlight the blue area below.
Right click and cut.
Go to the top of the new email to me and right click and paste the blue area.
Then fill in the blank areas,

Ilame
Please add iilri io ihe petition!

'I am i-leflnitoly a|.lpowrl io (lie possibilify oi 13 i3 Greyback Road coi-iijnc) out of EhG ALR to becomo a 'wasto facility!*

In addition to "ii'nat I've read recently on tho matter I would add the fact that the dump trucks etc., aiready reek havoc on our road';

I all vaar round!
Thrtnk you for your >lec]ir:st'[oi] un l\w: prf.bli-ini,
kindest rogaiLls, Kally Scliu!!!

Soul fium mv IPIioiio



am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have
1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed form the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _Dan Schulll

Address_152 Falconridge Drive Penticton BC V2a8t4

HI Kelly,

Welcome to the nelghliouihoocl! Yuur support is greatly appreciated!

My husband Jim and I live at 130 Falconridge Drive.

Can you send me your opposition as follows please and do one for each you and your husband as well as any other adult that
would like to have their n<anie added to the Petition.

ACTION REQUiRED IMMEDIATELY!

Hit Reply to send the email back to me.
Highlight the blue area below.
Right click and cut,
Go to the top of the new email to me and right click and paste the blue area.
Then fill in the blank areas.

Hello, my name Is Ke!ly scl-iulli my husharni snci I own ;) pioperlics on Falconrid.ge Dri'/e in Peiitioton.
Ptey.so arid me tu tile ph'iiiion!

*1 am dofinitely apposed lo tl'io possibiliiy 01 13)3 Sreybac1: Roac! ci-ii-iiing out of ihe ALR io bacQiTie a Vi'asls (sciliiy!'

In adillik'n to whal l'";-i ietu'1 recii'lri.tv •->'! iii(J [rir'.tiei I i.'vi'-uld a.'lri Ih-; iHrt ih.-i! Ihfc rliun|) inlcl',:; fiic., cllieEdv real; !i?,'<.W; Cl'i oui ru."-;!..-'

alt year round!
Thank you •foi v'our Ll.icllaaiioii 0.1 tliiB piubl'dtn,
kindest regards. Kslly Sc'nulli

1'16 & •IK'Fi-ilcanridye Diive, h'eniicton HC; V;'!a8t-l



I am opposed to the application by the RDOS to the Agricultural Land Commission to have
1313 Greyback Mountain Road removed form the Agricultural Land Reserve.

Name _Nancy Ducharme_

Address _22 Abbott Street Penticton BC__v2a4j2_

Sent from my iPhone

Welcome to the noighbourhoodl Your support is greatly appreciated!

My husband Jim and ) ln»e nt 130 Falconridge Drive.

Can you send me your opposition as follows plsaee and do one for each you and your husband as weil as any other adult that

would like to have ihelr name added to the Petition.

ACTION REQUIRED IMMEDIATELY!

Hit Reply to send the email back to me.
Highlight the blue area below.
Right click and cut,
Go to the top of the new email to me and right click and paste the blue area.
Then fili in the blank

name Is Kelly Schi.illl iny Imsliand anc! I own 2 properties on Falconridge Drive; in Penlfcion.
Pleaso mid ITIE to tho petition!

"I ESITI definilo!y apposecl to the possibiiily of 1;:113 (Ireyback Po.id coming ou'i of iho ALP, to become a waste facility!'

In ada'iiion to what Vw I'Baif i-ecantly on the maiter I would add Shs fact that ills clump trucks etc., already (eak havoc on our roads

all year round!
I'liank you fur your dedic.aliDn an Sw, prohlHin,
liindsst regards, Keily Scl-iiiill

r;
l.'!6 & 15S ,L-ak:oni'iiige Orn'R, Pmiiiclon 80 '/;?aBr'l

Sent fiorn my iPhone

Beyin FoiWHidiiil insssaije:



Stop an 80 acre cattle ranch from turning
into a Biosolids Waste Facility, PLEASE!
Published by Jacquie Jackson on 30th Mar 2020

The RDOS (Regional District of the South Okanagan) has applied to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR (Agricultural Land Reserve). They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY there that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for the ENTIRE
RDOS AREA (from Peactdand, to Manning Park, to Anarchist Mountain, to the US/Canada Border
and everywhere in between). The property is 1313 Greyback Mountain Road, Penticton BC. This is

literally in the shadow of Campbell Mountain where lots and lots of people hike, walk dogs and
mountain bike. Who wants a "stinky poo processing plant" there?

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to "join the
fight", PLEASE sign this petition and SHARE it with everyone in your network. ACT NOW! Together,
we can make a difference.

We, the undersigned, oppose the application by the RDOS (Regional Disbict of the Okanagan
Similkameen) to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road,
Penticton BC removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR).

Powered byGoPetition



:l0

iThis is the WRONG place fiir this I

fmr ;somiy iffiohr

;4
!5
;6

;7
is
is

j_;Nancy
1icST
ims 'tan^

iAlice

!Dawn
"IMS^iihu

Nyhus
Rathwell

tougas

Strohmaier

l-Bume

Nilsson 1150 Mairon Valley Kd |Penticton

|A project lite tins should be in a forested araa Uiat is no where naar the aquifer and dimyBg water reseTOir supplies fbr the town.

!MIS 'Dawn :Lemiski l^^—^^^n |2I2-100 Lakeshore IPenticton ;BC
IDrive

|Mar3l. 2020'

Ill

jir
;13
;14
i
t
(15
'16

in
.18

il§r
'21

iThis is the wrong location fbi this facility! I drive by the one nearVernon all the time and it has an odour that has made neighbouring properties devalued due to the nasty scent It tsas also rendered this
IbeauUul pared of land in- usable hy aiyose but this company. Grey back is a beautilul aiea clcse to Penttcton and Naramata and is utilized by hiters all ttie time.

: ;Shana
s •

|Ms ;Cassidy

iUndley
!Dr 'Ssyassa

;Mr Syan

;Mr ;Kylan

L_ JKelly
[Or 'KeUy

|Ms jTeny
!Ms rSamantha

jMr. {Wayne

MiUer I

McDeimott

Sranger

lnkster-Henning

Perret

Veriiaeghe

Kenyan

SingtetoQ

Malo

Ptom
Uewellyn

170 Upper Bench Road Penticton
South I
1688 Ridgedale ave

BaUarneySt

Penticton

PenUcton

620 Upper Bench Rd. Ipenticton
North i,

763 eckbaritave east SPentictoE.

480 orchari ave IPenUctoc

195 Lower Bench Rd IPentictan

JPentKton

PenUcton PenUcton

179 Westview Dr IPeiiticton

jPepticton

British Columbia 1V2A m

Be

BC
BC

Be

Be

BC
Be

Canals

British Columbia

CanBda

•V2a2s5

!V2A4P9
'TOA8V2

i.V2a2el

]V2aly2
'V2A1B2

iV2Ala4
;V2A3Y8
IV2A7V9
IV2A8HI

Canada

Canada.

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Mar 31,2020;

.1

Mar 31,20201

Mar 31,2020;
Mar 31.2020]

Mar 31,2020;
Mar 31,2020:

Mar 31,2020;

Mar 31,2020;
Mar 31.20201

Mar 31,2020;

Mar 31,2020j
jThis is not the bestlocatioa. TIiere were tn'o ottier sites that were previoasly deemed superior but only got stopped because of a lack of political wilt It should either be located west of Summeriand as
ioriginaUy proposed, in tbe Maion VaUey area or some otiier location thafs far away from a large group of residents such as in PenBctan.

|22
123
!24

j25
!26~

;27

;28

!,29

!30

'Ms ;Cbarlie

[Mr ;Cbad

.Brace

UeweUyn

Gentes

Pairweather

154 LaM Pl 'Pentlctoc iBritish Columbia ]V2A 8H1

ipenticton IBritltsh Cotbaobia
ICacada |AprOl,2020i

UlSHoldecBd Penttcton tBnBsh Colombia JV2AOB7 - - jCanada

JHeasedo not allow this to go ahead so dose to a popular recreatk

JMs. (J- 'Doe igc^B——w-ca
'JHoplans

lAprOt.2020;

[Apr 01,2020

.Dave

(Not the right place this business

"nimxiins ION IPON1HO ICanada

102-296 KinceyAve ;PenBcton jBnBsh Colombia JV2A3N9 Canada

|AprOl.2020j
'JApr 01,2620J

il vacation in Naramata and have family who live there. This is a

[54033 DawsonRd ISpriEgfield IMantoba JK5TOAI [Canada (Apr 01,20201
idea

'Ms iRoslyne EBucbanan

i See some hackground an www.rozsmaB6y.ci

:Mr Tony iBuckmghaxn

:Viviau .Short

(l27 Falcoinridge Drive |Pentictoa IBC {V2A8T4 JGanadaJApT01,20201

14.12 naish drive iPenUctoc iBc |V2a6l5
iPacttctOE IBC

Canada |Apr 01,2020)

: Canada |Apr01,2020|

Powered by GoPetition



[Forbes

)32
133
ST

JMr

1

•Andrew

keilA

Barbara

Broae

Bates

Lambert

.35

137
,38

|39
|40
i41
|42
i43
;44
j45
j46

;TJUs is a desperately teirlble Idea - the landUU Is already fhreatenlag the air quality and toalth of tlie precious agricultural area and the Iiomes of all who Uve ttiere. Do we want Uie soufh east side of
iPenttctoD to become tbe dumping ground the southern Okanagan? Please KDOS thislc agam.

IGaulia.Myles

,No thacks!

Tm Twia Lakes EoadiKaleden IB.C. IVOH 1KO |Apr01,2020 !

jjean |#9-650EUlsAve.,Box [Naramata
jlll i

IBMTISH
^COLUMBIA

iVOH INO I Canada

•Roir i583PmevlewRd IPenttcton IBC IV2A7SS
Kewn IPenticton IBC

|Stes 'KaUy [538 BecnettAve IPenticton [British' Columbia 'V2A2P6

|Ms. 'Barfa

iMr
!Mr

J°s_

ICabemetDr.

•7G3 eckhardt ave e | Penttcton

Oianagan Falls |BC •VOH1B3
Tie" V2a2a5

jCody 13405 cartwrite ave I Smmnerland iBrittsh Columbia ;VOH1Z8
i&lr. .Grant jPenttctoa 'w

ICanada

ME. 'Deborah

Mis iGayle

[142 Duncac Pl jPenUcton IBC !V2A4B3 [Canada
|912KewtocDr IPenticton iBC

iKolbus 114516 Deaike street

ino removal of farm land for bio solids waste composting,use crowis land instead

Sunnerland B.C.
Canada

;V2a8z3 Canada

ICA ;vOMz8

dZ-
,.48

imrs 'rutfa

!Mr. !Darid

;duff tllll BartlettDr [Penficton IBC
Brooks jGeneral Delivery iKeremeos

;V2A 8Y4
IBC TOX 1NO {Canada

|Apr 01.2020 '

[Apr 01,2020 !

[Canada |Apr 01,2020 j
[Canada |Apr OL2020 i
lCanada JApr 01,2020 |

ICaaada [Apr 01, 2020
;Apr01, 2020

?01,2020
Apr 01.2020 1

Apr 01,2020 !

|Apr 01,2020 '

jCanada |Apr 01.2020 !
|Apr 01,2020'

149
INot enough coDtrols on this system yet. Too many untaiowns and -wliat is known isn't wonderful.

Mr- ,Mart iBinsenberg Jmtl^^^BI^B^B?1 J127 Falcouldge Drive IPenttcton

|Tourists won't return alter the pandemic to vacation at a dump. Back to the tlimk ta^li RDOS!
ICESLA

British Columbia .V2A 8T1 [Canada |Apr 01,2020'

620MUNSONMTN.BD PENTICTON
;2250 Newton Rd iCawstoa

1890 Tallgrass Trafl

;8-669 Long Ridge Drive

IBC V2A8S5
iBridsh Columbia VOX 1C1

ICanada

; Canada

iKelowna JBC :V1P 1T9
iPenticton IBC V2A ass (Canada

IKelowna [British Columbia ;V1V 2R9

55
What a terrible idea!! This operation should not be wifhm 15 miles of any homes.
•Mr Ted ISaamelson 170 HigUajid place [Penttcton British Columbia V2a6m6

Strongly disagree with this happening to our cities recreational area.

Powered by GoPetition

[Apr 01,2020|
|Apr 01,2020 j

ICanada jApr 01,2020 j
[Apr 01. 2020 •

[Canada |Apr01.2020i

jAprO 1.2020 ;

There are surely better areas for this ct where it won't aBectso many people!

;'6l !
i62 I

\Susan
iCoU

ITaylor ^^^—
(Cash 1-32 Duncan Ave W

iya-non

iPenUcton

BC
BC

I
;.v2a2y2

JCasada
JCauada

Apr 02, 2020 !

Apr 02,2020 !



J2r70NoyesKoad INaraxaata
1305-3426 Hemtock St iPentictoD

|4995EastsideKDad

1135 Front street

1706,250 Marina Way

JVOH 1NI
:BC JV2ABK1
British Columbia |VOhlr3

IPecttcton |BC IV2A1H3
IPenttcton |British Columbia \V2A 1H4

Canada 'Apr 02, 2020;

|Apr02.2020'

Canada

Canada

[Apr 02,2020:
[Apr 02,2020

lApr 02,2020 !

JI am sboctod that you are not coiisldermgUie^long term ramificattons of the leaching into productive agricultural land-Surely there aie otlier sites that could be considered, especially for the long term.

77

78
79
80
Bl
82
83
84
85
86
w~~

88
B9
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
.97

198
;99
ilOO
1101
[102

; Shame oa your directors of BDOS for wanting to use valuable farm land for aou agricultural use- Show some leadership and find an alteraative site.

;Mr
'Mrs

iMR
;Ms.

;Mr.

Mr

!Mr
iMr.

;MIS
'Dr.

;mr

•Mrs

I
|Ms

[Mr

I
JMJS
|M5

IMS~-

iMr
iMr
,;Mr.

Ryaa
Kathryn

Tim

Leanne

Ronald

•Thomas

^Eugene

:Broce
'William

; Carol

.Victoria

,mthony
^Robert

StoBnou

Alemodra
Erin

Daniel

;Mike

iCariee

Kellie

•Brooke

.Scott
'Tiavis

[Andrew

IJusUn
'Joaime

toydea

3ierriman
iotsford

fcrter

..ewis

•lines

aiuk

Martel
Sowman

Sistagna
•ogeis

luchanan

Jray-
lyotte

iray-
Kcrpisto

L
Soaes

tostto
Beck

Myhus

Austin

Briari
Flower

Bardarsoc

McDougafl

530 boothe rd

Noyes road

SOSWisemaaPl

2825 Noyes Road

2825 Noyes Road

3060 Hayman rd

10-650 EUis Avenue

2900 Outlook way

2930 Outlook way

3280 Juniper Kd

300 Pineview

2986 Evergreen Drive

11705 Slave

637 Van Home st

Maram&ta

Maramata

Maramata

Naramata

Naraxia.ta

Naramata
Naramata

Naramata

Naramata

Naramata

Naramata

Pectteton

Penticton

Delta

penticton

1-6248 Okanagan Street I Oliver

10 Cushman Street

102-223 Conklin ave

142 ash place

102-223 ConBin we

iOSOsuDsUnerd

23511astBw

Toronto

Plymouth

Penticton

\rtctoria

PBBtictOC

Penticton

Kelowna

Calgajy
Kamloops

iWhitehorse

BC
3c

BC
BnUsh Colufftbia.

VOH1N1
VOH 1N1
VOHINI
VOH 1N1

British Columbia IVOH 1N1

British Columbia

BC
B.C.

BC
Be

BC
BC
British Columbia

Be

VOHIN1

VOH1NO
VOH 1N1
VOH un
VOH1N1
v2ar7sl
V2A9A8
V4elc7

British Columbia v2a4I2

British Columbia
Ontaiio

MA
Canada
British Colunsbia

Be

Be

British Colmnbia

Alberta

British Columbia

Yukon.

VOH no

02360
V2a2tl

V2a6s7

V2a2U
VIW3Z6
T2Nlx9

Canada

:anada

Canada

Canada

|Canada

^Canada
Canada

jCaoada.

ICanada

[Canada

(Canada

iCanada
(Canada

USA

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada.

(Canada

1

^p^ 03,2020

^pr 03.2020

\pr 03,2020'

Ipr 03.2020

\pz 03,2020 i

\pt 03, 2020

\y 03, 2020 i

\-pr 03,2020!

\yr 03,2020 '

!vpT 03,2020 '

\y 03.2020 .

^pr 03,20M •

HVT 04.2020;

&pr 01,2020
^p^ 01,2020 '

\pr 04.2020

^pr04,2020j
Apr 01, 2020 !

Apr 04.2020;
tau-04,2020,

Apr 04, 2020,

&pr04,2020l
Apr 04,2020 I
Apr 04, 2020J
Apr 04, 2020 i

kprOi.2020,

Powered by GoPetition



103 Mr

104
105
106
107

..Mr.

Mr

Ms

-Mr

'Evan

Jesse

Michaela

Heather

CampbeU

Andeisoa

;Budd

Duncan

Kris iHu&ky
108
109
no

Miss

Mr

Ms

Jaclyn

There
'Claire

'Pickerill

:Weyrauch

! Sear

Darik I.Angeli

Louis
Aarou

Scbuss

Aa ton :HoUer

Mrs DanieUe Scherz

Syac

Setty
Ms J?

•Mullm

jKorpisto
:NicIiols

We have to deal vritb ttoe "stench oc the bem
Counb-y!

CaAerine .Jones

•Ms Caitlin .Nyhus

Ms Candies ;Boden

4IsltootCr

206 Douglas Ave

[3070rotartyway

1-179 Municipal Ave

•1065 Westminster Ave E

SchIegels^aBe 9

1073A West llth
•Avenue

2578 s zang st

74.1 Sbeppard Ave West
14431 52 a street

191BraceweUDr

; 164 Troy court

162 Frank

, 11607 Tassie Drive

ilZSlEvansAve

WIiitehoise

PeaticLon

Burlington

Penticton

.Toronto

;Penticton
•Hancover

'Vancouver

Denver

'Heiltironn
IToronto
'|Delta~

IPenticton

Pencicton

Ottawa

Coldstream

PenttctoB

lYutoB
I British Columbia

I On
JBntish Columbia

I Ontario
]3C
Lower SaKony

'British Columliia

Colorado

BW
jOutario

-JIE
IBC
IBc
!oiT
IBC
'BC

Y1A OPS
V2A2T8
:L7mObl
;V2A2G3

!V2A7P1
'30625

V6J 2cl

80228

M3H2S9
V4k2y3
V2A6X1
,V2A7L4
':<2p0x2

;V1B 1H3
.v2a 8vl

iCarada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Canada

Genmuy

Canada

'Germany

Carada
'Cacada

Canada

.Canada

;Canada

[Canada

I Canada

iApr 04, 2020

Apr 04, 2020

[Apr 04. 2020
IApr 04, 2020

iApr 04, 2020

iApr 04, 2020
Apr 04, 2020

Apr 04,2020

Apr 01, 2020

•Api 04, 2020
Apr 64, 2020"

JApr 04, 2020"

iApr 04, 2020

]Apr 04, 2020

Apr 04, 2020

Apr 05.2020

Apr 05,2020
"this wil- make it better! Also, keep this land in the ALR and DO NOT place a biosollds waste facility in the HEART of WINE

123

124
125

,Mr

Candies

Simo Korpisto

iP&ntictou 'British Columbia Canada 'Apr 05, 2020

142 ash pl

201-102 Van Home SL

IPecticton .British Columbia V2a6s7 Canada |Apr 05, 2020
IPentictoD

11607 TassieDr i Colds tream

,BC

IBC
V2A4K2 Canada |Apr 05, 2020 ;

;VIB 1H3
.ALR should NOT be used for this. Put it on a rock pile somewhere-

Matt 'WUdns

iMr Ken [Hylaad

:Apr 05,2020

Kimberiey

,116Elm PentictBD

;BC

iBC
Canada .Apr 05.2020

IV2A3W1 'Apr 05, 2020

126

127

il2B
129

I oppose the removal oSftas land from the ALX It also needs to be far from even low density areas

Mrs Christa Kulch —Ngi

I am against the location

Mr & Georges & Jansen
•Mrs .Cbwyl i

Ohhh. come OB- You can find a more remoce area than next to a tourist atlractlon. ZUlions of acres in B.C. why next to a park-r

.Mr Marc -Hubtard ^^^^^^^^^N 1.100 Greyback Mtn rd .Pecticton

an

181 Elm Ave

305-3313 Wllson St

Penttcton

PentictoD

|BC V2A3WI 'Canada Apr 05,2020

.British Columhia V2A 8J3 ;Apr 05.2020

130
Albert
Carry and
Lynn

BETSCHABT
CrassweUer

iBC V2a8t3 !Api 05. 2020

; 205 2 Naramata Road penttcton I Canada 'V2A8T9 iApi 05.2020
401 2245 Atldosca St iPeuticton !BC ;V2A8R7 Apr 05, 2020

\Veare opposmg this biosolids waste facility at 1313 Greyback Mcimtam Rd. And don't appreciate the underiianded way tliis is being pushed Lhrough by the local oQidals.

131 Mrs Jane [Coady ^^^^^^^^ 370 Lower Bench Road iPecticton •BC V2ABV4
Adjacent to Parldand

132 Lynda

133
134

-?ud:fL

iAUeii

'Byer

.Mr Boss •Arnot

iNotwacted. nor needed m this area.

iCanida Apr 05.2020

Penticton :B.C. !Apr 05, 2020 :

301 Penticmn Ave P5KTICTON -British Columbia V2A 2M4 Canada •Apr 05, 2020

il01-3313WTikonst Penticton iBC V2A8J3 .Canada Apr 06,2020 ;

Powered by GoPetitl'on



uanwsoQ Sq pananod

iaoeds aisyv. SARI •snosea.l ames aqi .icg 'nsn se •lEip 0) pasoddo are I -UOAHBO o.rapaas y pip Aain 93i!i SBsnoq]
OC? Vm noisiAipqns e p[mq 01 sinaA (UOTUOH •BBipetreo) -ladoiaAgp •e 'pevg. JBnids no &( SSOIQ iimni sip si 9J3l[A isnp I(IIM d<ns aM os ajaqM ing -ewB painnod E (q asop Ban us (q uognnod ppe isnr s,wi\\

os 'imputi B 01 asop pTO psq-ntisip si Baie snQ 'tes VBS 3^. 'ajTIPltu £ta|spta aiR Smiasiojd "aiB Bupoq 'Siipnq 'uoBEaaai jq; puei ysd amooaq m fn 9'ff u! ^®is pinoqs isai BXU, -siqissod se yems se 'Ampq|
BmtsoctaKO spi]oso;g ^aai-qfiiq 'luapom 'ys sin jo ams e .loj papsau S! W!^M. isnf }nq Ino iiai{e} aq p(nonp Apedcud a(Ot|M aqi iplpll l.uop i -aia 'xuX[ 'saAiOM osie Apneyaa 'eaaio SSAII ^a 08 inoqe jo pisq v]

•SBWE OAU asaqi assAnaq ajiiptun.joj jopuioo •e si u 'aoiM PlIIS aa"U. PCIe BS:[E •aoH'Baas.i ure)unoj«i |]aqdare3 01 asop si iusdcud aiu, •siBaI Anem -ioj pcei-ipruEi asaq SAeq peog mEiuno]*} 3p1eqto3 £1515e|
sane 08 sql t.sssaiannwp ITUIA c.smoq siomss E '1001(35 qBiq B 'sp-tKpio 'SBUSUUA j(q fitnofl o®eti inoqe isqM ^ssgoojd IUB[(I STIR p[ncn{S eiom qsnui MOH isjea/i aiR jaAO aseajam aBprqsjo imiome aip nyAl

0} fimpjoroe }oc '&ioo(qno 11 fiajsssrojd pne ngpirei 8^ 0} afipnp ieqi [|i Bxqfinpq uaaq &{masfs srq SOCM a1U. "HTV 3V 1° Vao PB°S H[B}'"'°W liacq&jo E1£t °° Atiadojd SSCB og sip Bup(ai cq pssoddo vss i]

OSOZ '80 •'dV| 'eproeol IAS VZA) oa| TOioBnail peoy 8}Bare.i8N 8W| laBugl suauvl s-W St!
juoitesoi »au e Gurpug joj n •iptBqj, 'Aq s.iassEd]

sn wj smsf'nsppni nBnotis sasnpcud [[gpaq sin, •sBa.re nogeanaj PTO saBjado-id SAisasdxa jean ion noTieaoi e pn!j lil-i^B iiKm pauodni luauanxa mmuqjo SOICUE laaus aiti Sigsfn }SOM ptre Atsoae]
snp }o MsiA. aip aAiasap iuop sAoqe si^u i^ sstHadoad Anem pce mqunow naqdm^s mqunom nogeajou Jno apisaq si }i'sypisino uo^

oeoz'so-iiv] EpBTOO U8VZAI 08' mqsBttajl •IQSBPMUMMMI sawo| Maqnewl '-iWi w|

s-nioeoz'^o^vl cpexr&3 9f9VZA| oa| TOiagnaji
peon uieianowl
ipeq&uo SOV aspal suieial

OZOZ'/.O-ntvl BpBTOQ] EHBVZAl oaj TOiagnactl BAuannpoQzgg)
•3pe^ metmiOK ipqilUBO jo jasn inanbai} B nre i|

sitaajQJ m(of| •JN|
•saAiasag pmq [Uiqinaufiv m -10 jew aisqAi^aeaiis Bmisodmoa sp!(OSO(q/piBZEi(oi|q •inaM lou op i •0^1

CTT

OZOZ'U)JrtV|
OZOZ'^O-ldVl

^PBTO3| EHBVZA)
EVEVZAl

siqmnioo qstmsl
3-al

•BOlOBTOjl

no)3puad|
SAUa UKPOQ Z99

nsosaiQ uoiiyn 101

smaJQ]

-lepires!

mU-[]

B3AIOI
SKI

sqnl
ml
on|

•spieqajo pue spjatemA 0} asop ooj.|

OZOZ'90-niVl

OZOZ'90-KfVt

OZOZ'90-"tV|

IpBCEQI

^pmeo!

1epeire3|

i.S8VZA|
OTBeSA]
OHIHOAl

Etqmnioo iisppgi
•3-ai

oa]

TKUOBUadl

no}3Ttnsd|

S(P»[ ueSwe^o

S pBOa qaaag SIPPOT 091
laaiis uosim QOTC-Zn

-re ssnoqdumd 0/.6]

anxip83op^|

STOAq]

aupatpti^]
"BUQOQi

-i8WM| .(Oiresial

!UN|
•SIN

•"Mi

eei]
8£t'

L£V
•spaqsawEM jno 10 pmi imonsaoai jno asnmudmos ion saop infl eare paiepsi aiom E si Ainpq BuBisodmoa]

stsem. sp^osoiq srqi sfe3a\ sseay •pa.iapisuoo naM -ro asun puuos ion saop 'AiUTpe ueimrq 01 asop siqi 'adEospnei tExioBsaoa-l aAgge 0} ssqa siqi ails B ing "aasS v sv •W, •syem xao aSsaetn 01 psac op 9^|

ancaAVS
Aqaung666-; smretp] 9EI

SEI



April 8, 2020

130 Falconridge Drive

Penticton, BC V2A 8T4

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

(RDOS)
101 Martin Street

Penticton,BC V2A5J9

info@rdos.bc.ca

-and to -

Minister of Agriculture

Hon. Lana Popham, MLA
Room 325 Parliament Buildings

Victoria, BC V8V 1X4

AR6. Ministe_r(a)gov. bc.ca

Richard Cannings, MP

#202, 301 Main Street

Penticton, BC V2A 5B7

Richard.cannjnfis@parl.gcca

-and to -

Provincial Agricultural Land Commission
201, 4940 Canada Way

Burnaby, BC V5G 4K6

ALCBurnabv@victorial.Rov.bc.ca

ALC.OkanaRan(5)eov.bc,ca

Dan Ashton, MLA

#210, 300 Riverside Drive

Penticton BC V2A 9C9

dan.ashton.MLA@leR.bc.ca

John Vassilaki, Mayor

171 Main Street

Penticton, BC V2A SAD
council@penticton ,ca

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Re: Notice of Exclusion Application - "Notice"

Regarding Land in the Agricultural Land Reserve - "ALR"
Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8, District Lot 2711, SDYD

1313 Greyback Mountain Road (Electoral Area"E")-"1313"

WE OBJECT TO THE EXCLUSION APPLICATION BY THE RDOS TO THE AGRICULTURAL LAND COMMISSION
TO HAVE 1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD REMOVED FROM THE AGRICULTURAL LAND RESERVE.

OUR OBJECTIONS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

1. 1313 must be protected and remain as agricultural land particularly when we are in an Exhibit 1
era where food security is a growing global issue and the ALR land must be preserved

for its highest and best use - agricultural production.

2. 1313 must be protected so British Columbians can access locally grown food, and Exhibit 2
communities and local economies can prosper through farming, ranching and

agriculture business, such as B.C.'s growing food-processing sector.

3. 1313 has a known base of sandy soil on fractured bedrock that can directly contaminate Exhibit 3

runoff in any direction and ultimately pollute well water. The existing water wells in

the area are drilled to depths in excess of 500'.



4.

5.

6.

The City of Penticton recently built a parking lot and established hiking and hiking trails
on Campbell Mountain which is across the road from 1313 and the pristine beauty of
this area needs to be preserved and protected.

Exhibit 4

There are herds of approximately 30+ California Big Horn Sheep, 100+ Elk and 40+ deer Exhibit 5

that are currently using 1313 as their wildlife corridor and birthing grounds. There are Exhibit 6

also numerous coyotes, rattlesnakes, bobcats, cougars, bald eagles and other native Exhibit 7
species that frequent 1313, Exhibit 8

The City of Penticton Water Reservoir (Penticton Creek) is just to the southeast and

below 1313. 1362 Greyback Mountain Road's water well is below 1313 and will also be

subject to leachate.

Exhibit 9

Exhibit 10

Exhibit 11

Exhibit 12

7. Watershed runsthroughthe valley from the east through the north end of 1313 and
flows downhill towards Okanagan Lake.

8. 1313 Is in a valley similar to a boxed canyon which restricts air movement and airflow,

9. Nine (9) residential properties from the north and east as well as numerous view

residences to the southeast (Upper Carmi) are in direct sight of 1313, This photo also
shows that the watershed flows from the east side of 1313 down to the City of

Penticton Water Reservoir (Penticton Creek) which has a huge potential forleachate.

RECENT EVENTS AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

10. On March 17, 2020 we went for a drive along Greyback Mountain Road and to our Exhibit 13
surprise discovered the Notice sign at the entrance to 1313 with a deadline date of

April 3, 2020. We searched the RDOS's website for further information and found

nothing. We are adjacent landowners and had received or heard nothing about this.

11. On March 19, 2020 we emailed the ALC requesting a copy of Section 30(1) of the Exhibit 14

Agricultural Land Commission Act. On March 20, 2020 Katie Cox, Land Use Planner at
the ALC advised by email that "The ALC will not see the application until/ifthe RDOS

forwards the application to the ALC. The RDOS will include public comments associated
with the Notice of Exclusion in the application materials.".

12, On March 20, 2020 our neighbour Alix MacDonald emailed our Area E Director Karla Exhibit 15

Kozakevich and sent her a photo of the Notice sign and requested further information.

Karla Kozakevich replied by email and stated "My understanding is that there are legal

issues right now and the property can't be sold. However we proceeded with the
application to exclude with the ALR so we can find out if they agree or not, then if
property becomes available for sale we will know how to proceed. If you would like

more information, please contact Andrew Reeder at areeder@rdos.bc.ca.".

13. On March 20, 2020 we emailed Mr. Reeder at the RDOS as per Karla Kozakevich's Exhibit 16

advice but to date have not received a response from him (almost 3 weeks).

14. On March 21, 2020 we emailed a copy of the Notice Sign and Section 30(1) to our Exhibit 17

surrounding neighbours to bring this to their attention.



15. On March 24, 2020 we were contacted by Victoria Kryzanowski, the adjacent land Exhibit 18
owner to the east of 1313 andsheemailed us a copy of the registered letter dated

March 12, 2020 that she received from the RDOS. The letter stated "The purpose of

this exclusion application is to facilitate the use of the property for the purposes of a
composting facility,".

16, On March 24, 2020 our neighbour Alix MacDonald emailed the ALC requesting a copy of Exhibit 19

the RDOS's application for the Notice of Exclusion. Claire Buchanan, Land Use Planner
at the ALC replied by email stating "Based on our records, the application hasn't been

submitted through the ALC portal at this time... exclusion applications require public

notification as per ,„ (specifically a newspaper advertisement, serving notice to owners

of land that share a common boundary with the property, and then photographic proof

of signage). As such, applicants are required to obtain these documents prior to
submitting their application through the ALC portal.".

17. On March 25, 2020 we prepared a petition called "Protect Agricultural Land". This Exhibit 20

petition, a map of the RDOS region and a map of 1313 was emailed to our

neighbourhood and beyond requesting their support in protecting 1313,

18. The Protect Agricultural Land document, as of today's date, has 96 signatures in Exhibit 21
opposition to this Notice. This document with the email signatures has been forwarded

to the RDOS, the ALC, the MP, the MU\, the Mayor and the Minister of Agriculture by
email under separate cover.

19. On March 25, 2020 our neighbour Alix MacDonald emailed the RDOS requesting a copy Exhibit 22
of the ALC Application, Christopher Garrish, Planning Manager at the RDOS replied by

email which stated ".„ wanted to let you know that a web-page was created on our site
this afternoon in relation to this application ... I am anticipating that we will have the

application documents linked to this page sometime tomorrow (Thursday) and that
these may answer some of your questions,".

20, On March 25, 2020 we downloaded the RDOS's Application to the ALC and it stated Exhibit 23

"The site has been identified by the Regional District as a preferred location for a in-

vessel composting facility that is in close proximity to the existing sanitary landfill
operation at Campbell Mountain (approximately 300 metres to the west). The

proposed in-vessel composting facility would serve the City of Penticton (CoP), the
Town of Keremeos and Electoral Areas C, D, F, G within the Regional District of
Okanagan-Similkameen. There is also a possibility that the District ofSummerland and

Town of Oliver could choose to be a part of the program in the future. The facility

would manage food waste, yard waste, wood waste and potentially biosolids that are

generated by the CoP, Okanagan Falls and Town of Keremeos.".

21. On the Agricultural Land Commission's (ALC) website under "Application Guidelines" it Exhibit 24

states that: "You must serve a signed copy of the application and Notice of Exclusion
Application Document to all registered owners of land in the ALR that share a common

boundary with the property, including owners ofALR property separated by a public
road.". To date, we have not received any written correspondence from the RDOS and

we share a common boundary with 1313 being the north property line for 1313.



22. On March 25, 2020 the Penticton Western News published the Notice Application in Exhibit 25

the local newspaper and it was noted that the deadline date of April 3rd, 2020 had been

extended to April 8th, 2020, a whole additional 3 business days.

23, On March 30, 2020 we drove by the entrance to 1313 and the Notice had the deadline Exhibit 26
date changed from April 3rd, 2020 to April 8th, 2020.

24. On March 30, 2020 we started on online GoPetition and as of today's date it has 145 Exhibit 27

signatures in opposition to this Notice. This GoPetition has been forwarded to the

RDOS, the ALC, the MP, the MLA, the Mayor and the Minister of Agriculture by email

under separate cover.

25. On April 3, 2020 RDOS Fact Sheet on Page 3 Next Steps states: "The RDOS is currently Exhibit 28

awaiting feedback from the ALC regarding siting of the proposed composting facility."
This is not correct in that the ALC confirmed on April 6, 2020 that they have received

nothing from the RDOS regarding this Notice on 1313.

26, On April 6, 2020 I received an email from Katie Cox, Land Use Planner, at the ALC that Exhibit 29
stated; "To clarify, the ALC has not yet received an application for exclusion for this

property.".

HISTORY OF EVENTS LEADING UP TO THE NOTICE OF EXCLUSION

27. In an article dated February 7, 2017 Shelby Thorn, South Okanagan Video Journalist, Exhibit 30
Global News, stated that the Campbell Mountain Landfill (CML) "was built long before

there were requirements for a special liner or membrane beneath the soil. That's why

contaminants from the garbage are now leaching beyond the dump's property line. 'It
is a landfill and it was constructed in 1972 so there is going to be leachate. We've been
testing around the landfill for years waiting to see if it was going to start moving down

towards the lake and in early 2016 we got our first indicators that it was moving off-
site/ said Bill Newell, CAO at RDOS".

28. On April 4, 2017 the RDOS sent a letter to all area residents inviting them to an Open Exhibit 31

House involving the "Moving the Penticton Wastewater Treatment Sludge Compost
Facility" to across Spiller Road and "Siting of a Regional Food Waste Compost Facility"

to either Marron Valley or Summerland Landfill. This letter also stated: "Water coming

down the mountain can flow through the soil into the Landfill property. If allowed to

come in contact with garbage or compostable materials it can pick up contaminates.

This ground water, mixed with any surface runoff, can then leave the site
contaminating properties down slope. The RDOS has confirmed that traces of

contaminated ground water has left the Campbell Mountain property. The main

contaminate found are salts, that are an indicator that other, more serious, materials
may be moving downhill. The RDOS has informed all affected property owners.".

29, On April 24, 2017 area residents attended the Open House and after hearing the Exhibits 32

presentations made by Liisa Bloomfield, Engineering Supervisor, Cameron Baughen,

Solid Waste Management Coordinator and Janine Dougall, Public Works Manager,

regarding moving the PentictonWastewater Treatment Sludge Compost Facility to

across Spiller Road, all in attendance were 100% opposed to their proposal. Open
Houses for Marron Valley and Summerland revealed the same results -100%

opposition. Four (4) news articles stated the residents opposition.



30. On August 30, 2019 a Pentlcton Western News article stated "„. the odours associated Exhibit 33

with hauling the raw dewatered solids could only be adequately addressed by

undertaking mesophilicanaerobicdigestion of the fermented primary sludge, which
would mean an added capital cost for the city to consider .„ it is difficult to find facilities

that will take the compost produced by the facility.".

31. The "in-vessel" trucks that currently bring the wastewater sludge to the CML

consistently smell and leak their sewage sludge onto Spiller Road, This will only be

exacerbated when more trucks are added to bring the wastewater sludge from the
surrounding regions.

32, On September 27, 2019 a Penticton Western News article stated "In 2017, the regional Exhibit 34

district considered a facility to be located at either the Summerland Landfill or the

Marron Valley Landfill. Both sites were rejected and both were the subject of

considerable public opposition. Reader has raised concerns ... the Campbell Mountain
Landfill has a biosolids facility, but this facility does not have odour control and will

affect neighbouring properties, he said. He added that the existing facility at Campbell
Mountain does not meet the province's regulations for leachate management".

33. On January 6,2020 a Castanet Penticton News article stated "the Regional District of Exhibit 35

Okanagan Similkameen is eying a parcel of land near the Campbell Mountain Landfill for

a new organics and biosolids waste composting facility. The board will meet Thursday
to discuss the purchase of an unidentified ALR property next to the dump ... 'The

proposed land purchase will buy lands that are currently impacted due to nuisance,

thus eliminating a source of complaint and liability," the report continues... It initially

selected a property in Marron Valley in 2017, but reversed course after outcry from
neighbours and the local MLA. The District of Summerland also refused to host the

facility at its own landfill later that year.".

34. On January 7,2020 our neighbour Alix MacDonald emailed us regarding a telephone Exhibit 36

conversation between neighbour Pam Willis and Area E Director Karla Kozakevich which

stated "... She explained that she couldn't say what property they were considering

because it was at the in camera phase ... It is possible that the address for the
composting site could be the old Spitler Ranch but I really have no Idea.".

35. On January 8,2020 our neighbour Alix MacDonald emailed Cameron Baughen at the Exhibit 37
RDOS regarding the upcoming meeting that stated "The RDOS board will discuss the

actual purchase of the property in a closed session Thursday morning, but later in the
afternoon will debate applying for the required grants and required ALR exclusion
during an open session." Cameron Baughen's reply email stated "You would be looking

for the Board Meeting in the afternoon. This is not an interactive meeting but the

public are welcome to attend in the gallery.".

36, On January 9,2020 an Infotel.ca news article stated "Newell said discussion with Exhibit 38

landowners for a possible property purchase also needed to be initiated." To date no

discussions have taken place.

37. On January 9,2020 an Administrative Reportfrom B. Newell, Chief Administrative Exhibit 39

Officer to the Board of Directors of the RDOS states:



"became clear the Campbell Mountain landfill would be the preferred

alternative. It is also clear that combining the biosolids and organics

composting operations will be significant cost savings

The Regional District is required to provide a site to the City of Penticton for
bio-solids treatment and composting. The current site at Campbell Mountain is
non-compliant

Longer hours will assist in receiving biosolids

Dramatically reduce existing nuisances

An appropriate land parcel has been identified. The Agricultural Land
Commission is changing ALR exclusion rules after January 30, 2020 that may be

problematic

The proposed land purchase will buy lands that are current impacted due to

nuisance, thus eliminating a source of complaint and liability

build a combined biosolids/food waste composting facility near the Campbelt

Mountain Landfill

Opportunity to use the Landfill scales

Move the facility away from neighbouring properties

The purchase of land will give us room to grow should additional treatment

trains such as digesters or as the population increases

There will be large areas for compost storage should there be a down turn in
compost sales",

38. On January 9,2020 two neighbours Roslyne Buchanan and Stefan Ermair attended the

City of Penticton Board Meeting and an email dated January 10, 2020 from Roslyne

Buchanan was forwarded to all neighbours stating:

• "thrilled it was the least expensive route

• no mention that human waste from the waste treatment centre is in the

equation

• they were only looking a household organic recycling

• no mention of the blight it places on the region's landscape

• they are totally sold on the idea that "in vessel" mitigates the odours

• Apparently, the/ve never driven by "stinky truck" from waste management
where the waste is contained "in vessel"

• Staff were given the go ahead to pursue grants and look at purchasing land

• Directors view it is our NIMBY problem and just don't get it impacts so much

more broadly

• Or if they get it, they've chosen to put blinders on for their short political term
rather than consider future implications.".

39. On January 10,2020 Oliver Daily News article states:

• "RDOS has voted in favour of applying for a grant to construct an in-vessel

organic food, yard and biosolid waste (waste water treatment sludge)
composting facility nearCampbell Mountain Landfill

• The construction of the composting facility will... move the process away from

neighbouring properties".

40. On January 12,2020 our neighbour Alix MacDonald emaiied the neighbourhood
regarding a telephone conversation she had with Area E Director Karla Kozakevich

which states:

• "a future composting facility on an 'undisclosed' location near the landfill

Exhibit 40

Exhibit 41

Exhibit 42



• grant to construct an in-vessel organic food, yard and biosolid waste (waste

water treatment sludge) composting facility near the Campbell Mountain
Landfill

• the RDOS could submit an offer to purchase the 'undisclosed' land, with ALC

application approval as a subject, or buy it outright

• If the latter, the land could be resold or used for other purposes should the ALC

deny the RDOS's application

• Ultimately something will be done but whatever happens, it will not go ahead

without public consultations such as open houses."
NOTE - no public consultations have been done to date.

ADDITIONAL CONCERNS

41. We consistently encounter long lineups when scale traffic is backed up hindering our Exhibit 43

access to our residence. This will only get worse as previously stated above, when the
RDOS wants to share the weigh scale which is on the west side of Spiller Road with the
biosolids facility which will be on the east side of Spiller Road. The large trucks will be

crossing Spiller Road going to and from the weigh scales to the facility on a daily basis.
If it is already affecting residential traffic just imagine what it will be like with the

biosolids/composting facility being implemented. On March 26, 2020 the RDOS posted

an Update: Landfill Traffic Creating Safety Concerns which stated "Lineups on busy days

are stretching outside the landfill and blocking traffic. This affects landfill users, and
residents who live near the landfill.".

42. As the Exhibits clearly show, on several occasions, when the RDOS was asked as to the

location of the property they were looking at for a composting/biosolids facility, they
refused to disclose the location.

43. As the Exhibits clearly show, the RDOS frequently referred to the proposed property as
being a "nuisance" property which is hard to understand in that the property was a

cattle ranch. We are not sure what type of nuisance cows would be except perhaps

getting out on the roadway but they are certainly no more nuisance than the numerous
deer that are consistently in the north end of the CML

44. As this biosolidsfacility is to cover a greater area than just the City of Penticton there

will be an excessive amount of large heavy trucks bringing sludge up a road that is

already too narrow, contains a switchback, has heavy traffic, a very steep incline, a
blind corner and winding, There are already too many close call accidents waiting to

happen with the existing road and it is in terrible disrepair all year long.

45. Should the biosolids/compost facility be placed on the east side of Spitler Road with the Exhibit 44

existing CML on the west, residents who live on Spiller Road, Pinetree Way, Falconridge
Drive and Vista Place will have no alternative but to DRIVE THRU THE DUMP to get to

their properties. This will have a huge impact on the Residents mental and physical
well-being, the aesthetics of their drive home and a huge decrease in property values.

Will the RDOS be compensating home owners for these losses?

46. We are concerned about the additional noise from the trucking, mixing the biosolids,

exhaust fans, product curing, optional screening and/or bagging and storage of



pre/post finished product. The RDOS will not disclose what type of facility they are

planning to build.

47. The Environmental Protection Agency "Biosolids Technology Fact Sheet - In-Vessel Exhibit 45

Composting of Biosolids - Disadvantages that must be considered - states:

• It is more mechanized, more equipment maintenance is necessary

• A significant drawback of composting... is the potential for fires

• The large amount of carbonaceous material stored and used at composting
facilities creates the potential for fires in storage areas as well as in the active

composting mass

• Sufficient aeration and moisture are necessary to avoid fires

• Can result in environmental imparts if the facility is mismanaged

• Storage, distribution, and use of the resulting product can also result in

environmental impacts if not performed properly
• In-vessel composting facilities can impact air, water, and soil

• Primary impact to air is nuisance odors if process air is not properly treated
before emission to the atmosphere

• Odors can result from several possible constituents in the air exiting a

composting vessel

• Bioaerosol is a fungal spare ... are primarily of concern to workers at the

composting facility

• Many early composting facility ... experienced a variety of operating problems

• Odor complaints from neighbouring residents have caused facilities to operate

at reduced capacity or to shut down for extended periods of time for system
modification

'• Lack of available spare parts also caused extensive periods of downtime at
some facilities

• A system ... was shut down when ... determined it did not meet temperature

requirements for Class A pathogen reduction.

48. A June 10, 2014 article "Chemicals from Land-Applied Biosolids Persist in Soil... The Exhibit 46

biosolids, soil, and crop were monitored for a year and a half, which enabled the

evaluation of the persistence and movement of contaminants from biosolids into the

soil column after biosolid application," Has the RDOS even considered who will be
purchasing the end product from this biosolids facility?

49. In 2017 the RDOS designed and built a leachate capture system and drainage diversion
infrastructure along Spiller Road that immediately sluffed in and was not effective and

in fact is no longer there.

50. The Campbell Mountain Landfill has been in operation for 48 years (established in

1972) and when we purchased our property in 2010 we were told that it would be

closing in 7 years - 2017. Other neighbours were told when it was built in 1972 it would

only be there for 10 years -1982. Other neighbours were told when they purchased in
2002 that it was closing in 10 years - 2012. It is now 2020 and the RDOS has stated in

the April 4th, 2017 invitation letter that "The innovative design will allow the Campbell

Mountain Landfill to stay open until 2104." Another 84 years! Why extend the life of

something that does not meet provincial guidelines, is unethical for the next
generations and will only get worse as time progresses?



51. The ALR comprises just 5% of BC's total land base and is the area with the greatest
agricultural capacity. As a finite and valuable resource, the province must protect this

land.

Please note, all of the residences that are beside or above Campbell Mountain Landfill and that

were able to be contacted due to Covidl9, are 98% opposed to this Notice.

So when you review all of the documents, the RDOS:

1. was clearly told in the April 2017 public meeting by all area residents that they did not want the
Biosolids Facility across Spiller Road;

2. now 3 years later, while we are in a Covidl9 Pandemic, the RDOS posted the Notice sign where

only 3 property owners would see it;
3. posted the Notice in the local newspaper on the last page stuck in with all of the classified ads, not

where it would be readily seen by the public;
4. gave an extension date of a whole 3 business days when we are in a Covid 19 pandemic crisis;

5. did not notify all adjacent land owners;

6. indicated in their emails and on their website that they had completed the application to the ALC
and was waiting to hear back from the ALC when in fact the ALC has heard nothing from the RDOS

in regards to 1313;

7. has not been forthcoming or accurate with information they have provided to the public in
relation to this Notice of Exclusion;

8. have not consulted the public in any way regarding this recent Notice,

Due to the way the Campbell Mountain Landfill has been operated and the lack of transparency from the

RDOS, it is very hard to have any confidence that this project will be managed any differently. THE BEST
PREDICTOR FOR FUTURE BEHAVIOUR IS PAST BEHAVIOUR.

THEREFORE, WE ASK THAT YOU PLEASE LEAVE 1313 IN THE AGRICULTURAL LAND RESERVE AND
PRESERVE AND PROTECT THIS FRAGILE AGRICULTURAL LAND.

Please keep us informed on this or any other matter relating to 1313 going forward.

Sincerely,

Jim and Jacquie Jackson



mX
03
-I

NJ

mx
I



EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 4

11



EXHIBITS

EXHIBITS

12



CD
-i

co

x
3:
03



x
I
03

mx
3:
00

U3



EXHIBIT 11

15



OKAHASAN-
SIMILKAMEEN

Legend
Q Electoral Area Boundaries

Major Highways
Indian Resen/a

Parks

Streams

Q Major Lakes
SmaB Lakes

Outside Pick-Up Days
Cllaltons

Thi& is a coosoliaalad map compaed from repnsantelonal data
to be us»d For convcnlwce only and has ro tegat aneUon, The
Rsglonal District <rf Okimagan-SimUkamesn mstea na ^•anaiity

to Bte carrednBss or accuracy of Iha infctnatxxi an Ihis nap.
WGS_1984_Web_Mereater.AurilaiyJSphaiB
© Regional District Okanagar^SimBkarrseen xI

N)



.<,•

ALC NOTICE OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION
Regarding Land in the Agricultural Land Reserve

c
n

I

I
]

1313Greyb3cl(
Mountain Road

[BiKX OUSS WTOfiD Afl£A)

ntain

dfill

i

I
./

4H-

I
1®IE»L,»,

-"uvujii, ^^-—^

The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS)
(fun name, or names, of regislered ownfir)

of 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9
(mailing address)

intends on making an application pursuant to Section 30(1) of the Agricultural Land
Commission Act to exclude from the Agricultural Land Reserve the following property which

is legally described as:

Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8, District Lot 2711 , SDYD
(legal descnptton from the Ulte certjficale)

and located at

1313 Greyback Mountain Road (Electoral Area "E")
(street address!

Any person wishing to express an interest in the application may do so by forwarding their
comments in writing to:

RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9
Onnia an) mnBna address at Bw bed giMmmenl)

by: April 3,2020

NOTE
• This notice and the application are posted on the subject property.
. Please be advised that all correspondence received by the local govemmenl andfor the ALC fomis part of the public

record, and is disclosed lo all parties, including the applicanl.

mx
3:

1->
LU



8T

jniv 'vpunj ;ujui.i/);ji M) 'unil in JCi .'/ri/x llj */wi^f/(/rjs\? .'^n ,<^m>/ Jvnifi{ni

/i;un pun .vw/un ^.\n.i^/f,i ^piiui Mf 11111 \tnu i/w»»/ /H^IU^/MJI

pwnliuil ill umioi^j in (J) MI lij) (;) uniiWt]H\ ^fnin uiwfuuum.i 31/1 fn uiifvnsp v(l's)

•Ul;I;l» II/I/JH /tfl 01 ;.>.>A,)J 1/;(M (/OKffKflUO.I J(/) 1//I.M HllllJSW n .',«>!/ <)< IU^W.'JMh.fJ

.iifl fwn .':)ij<n< fwfnh.u .iifi ,i,tipw \mu UIH\MUHHH.I .'ifi' lUn-'niliSii -'ifljr 1'i^nluj ^ifi iy(^)

•fplini lu^unfu.iv jtfi j.'.w

MUiHfinn /,ii(f)/tl)i'-'/ \inf nnfi umim iniffin fn iu.num^MiH uoiim i\Ml ,'lfl /" •lw; '' .<'/ /'.»;i^"if(m'

iv->;un p.n.nutt tiiu ,\rw sfMti] lUfui^in.if i)j tltiiwpj ui IHHIMV \^t j^»in nnlin.niililn K^( /•(•)

•,Hn/.\(/ Hwiin: R J<> ?/(/ mwdni^Afp ini.nffn un 'UR/J f.nunwum.t

I'wiffn un 'unii! nifitiiiujv ini.nffn vn i>l wawfnifum un •p.is.Hud nl lapin ui '\MinhM(if)

jn •mi IUM'I iiwjjd 111 .MI?/A</ A(/ pwul 17 wi/< /wn/ w i.>)/(/</n/r>)

nnflD.HfUitn Mji '.'innn \; nniin.nfilitn

•>HI Wp »ljl tir 'fl lu.'iwj'fM'S /DJ<»/ •'HI ft' t/oon/m.y i> u; /u;u;<i/;m> A i^rn p.'f.'xud 11111

,\nw 'tii^iuiuj,u>is timinu i\\ii/ n wiuf unifp.ffitltjn un i<h.>\.i •nnn.w iri/i japun un;in.n)ili]n uvlpl

'.l/t/tMM/W \JJpl\>ll>.< If \IHHIIpUH.I

Mi Miiufi .widliu ,\i>ui i; '(.i) MI <qH!> in>!l '.'«}»"• J'pun innvi.up n i^iw nn^\iuiuii>.i .>t/( //((-)

'pinif -'if i In nni\!,\;p^n\

in JIM nil jii /iirt-'.'vn fmnnpiw ftuu^pp-unn''i\'n itijol UIM n MI/ uni\fiumtl lln'jHf.il

:M^M,U rmi ii'Miin.'uVt) .11,; wmf p^pniM.i pun) AIKI/ 111 uin\.\iumtl ;uwA(y)

;.>i>.; ,>i.u {imi iMmin.mSn .1111 wfuf p.ifWfM'.i {nipj -I.MHI ni Hfnv.'iiitij.iil Mitsjln)

.•filtiMnllnf ^1(1 I'll Miiuif'.wiu liim^iuiw),) ^i/;'(/) umi:m<]n\ J.ipiin iimin.nicldn un Mf^i')

•^UMM fMi>i fnjnijnnuSn

.lift unu/'/w/wi/.u^ pMttj ^l^yi Minj i>t innvsiwwn i ,>i/,i <»; i\](Iih> ww fnin/ /n JM.WI iivl/f i)f

JWMH fiif unnn.nftltln uuwi) ir.j

;l.i\.' UOKSHUUIO.^ piic'l [Eini|n.')inlv •H|l ><)tTxH tKi'l.ws'

ss3.'H^ja-nonr^i|aai?,'^unisi.'up pup ^iH^iir'ti(ci<TC;'iu?iuo'»>'.'>fi,'TT.Tq'Aft?'^|ff'MAiMi',i:sau^

oi j»)ai MB»Kl 'uoiruuoiui woui jo,| •SUOIIUMUI naqi ini>q» ai|qnd

31(1 alUI<jl)"U '•I pUB H(ll)ni|(ldE ui»nnt;»3 ui itllt^BUl tni jluiuiii!|<l <il iuaniiuaAuit \fMi\ ai|| )n ja<l»in

s^\ m\\ suraiu sti|i •a.uy.ay puir] |uni|n3Uilv im "iuJJ PUB) 3pn|.-»io 111 SuiX|ddB <i auo U.-H|M

iiijiujnnltji » M inMK.ifiddv u<n\n|ix--l j» J3i|»i|s;., iluiw- uHn v •.(jinbui jn»< j»| nn< lUK>i.|

•Sununui P<K)D

it/'ijini.fl' ."ift-rfij*-uoapT nnboT .01

wvccdwoaK'otMwn i»a
uoq»3tli(yuinnia(a»o«i<ON.og'ui)twi^'pioyu|»»unon)|»fl(wociCt'aU ' 'ws

.,.1,.^, '-'-'••i.i ,rln!3lvwnpuriinBmjnf03TV .^j

nnaiHXH



EXHIBIT 14

(h)lhv first iitiliun government in relation to those xeltlemenl hmds cnact.t a law apprnvm^

7/ie conutiix.'iidii '.v dvcision and prnvidex a cerlificil copy of the law Id Ihe commission.

(5.2)Unlvss ci decision under imhseclion (2) (b) or (i:)Jirst hecumcs effective muter siih.wctinn
(5,1), this clcci.wm expires on the earlier of the following clali's:

(n)tlie date the decision rxpirex according to its terms;

(b)tlie date a notice to suspend negotiations lakes effect,

(6)The commission innsl deliver its written decision to the owner.

As smted on Ihc Notice of Exclusion Application sign, please send ;my comments on the
application la Ihe RDOS. The ALC will not see the iipplication until/if (he RDOS forwanls (lie
application to the ALC. The RDOS will include public comments associiitecl witli the Notice ul'
Exclusion in the application materials.

Sincerely,

Katie Cox I Land Use Planner I Agricultural Land Commission
201 - 4940 Canada Way, Bnniaby, BC, V5G 4K61 236.468,2041
ALC.Okiinagnn@gov.t)c.C!i I www.rilc.gov.bc.ca

If you are 1101 Ihc inleiitleil reciplcnl of llils e-mail and allachmcnls please notify llm scmler by reliirn e-mail and delete llic
r-KK7»7 ami aUuchniL'nls lnnnniinlrl)'. This c-nwl and nltuclmienls may be rpnfnlvnlinl nml privltrr,rd. Cfinfidenlialily imd
privlicsti are. not lost by {/lis d-nwif wd {innchitMifs futvhiy IH'O) sc'nf fo ihe wrong pi'rwn. Any n.w ofth'tf t' nwllanJ

allachmenls hy an miinlenclctl reclplml isprohibilcd.

From; Jacqule Jackson [mailto:jacqulej62@gmail.com]
Sent! Thursday, March 19, 2020 2:30 PM
To: ALC Okanagan Land Use ALC:EX
Subject! 1313 Greyback Mountain Road, Pentlcton, BC - Notice of Exclusion Application

Hello,

We have an inquiry about a "Notice of Exclusion Application" regarding land in the ALR
that involves a property adjacent to ours.

We have searched the RDOS's website for any information on this application and can find
nothing,

There is a sign posted at the end of the driveway to the subject property stating the
following:

"Notice of Exclusion Application
Regarding Land in the Agricultural Land Reserve

The Regional District ofOkanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) of 101 Martm Street,

19



EXHIBIT 14

'fenticton, UC V^iA Sjy intends on making an application pursuant to i'iection W(l) ot the
Agricultural Land CommissioaAct to exclude from the Agricultural Land Reserve the
following property which is legally described as:

Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8, District Lot 2711, SDYD and located at:

1313 Grey back Mountain Road (Electoral Area "E")

Any person wishing to express an interest in the application may do so by
forwarding their comments in writing to:

RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9 by April 3,2020."

Would you please answer the following questions:

1. What exactly is a "Notice of Exclusion Application"?
2. Could you provide us with a copy of Section 30(1) of the ALCA?
2. Who else do we include in our expression of interest in this application other than

the RDOS?

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

Jim and Jacqule Jackson

20



EXHIBIT 15

—Original Megsage-
From: Karia Kozakeuich <khozakeiA:h®nJos.bc.ca>
Ssnl: Friday, March 20,2020 10:38 AM
To;A<xMacDonald<
Subject; Re; 1313 Gi

h 20,202010:38 AM
jj
GrevoacK Mountain

HIAHx,
My underatandlng la that thera are legal issuoa right now and tha property
cant tie sold, Howaver we proceeded with the appltealton lo excluda wNh the
ALR 80 WB can tlfnf out It they agree or not, then II property becomes
auailabla for sale wa will know how to proceed. If you would like more
Infomiallon, ploase conlact Andrew Reedar al areedsr@rdo8.bc.ca Thank you,
Karta

On Mar 20.20201024 AM, Atlx MacDonald <allxmac®letus.net> twote;
Good morning Karfa,

I hope that you are wet) In (his strango lime wft're all in.

A neighbor notload Iha "Nottee ol Exclusion Application" (below) algn poslad
at 1313 Grayback Mountain Road. Doss Ihln mean that the RDOS has purchase
Ihatland? OrperhapathislsacasBOfprefirinaiyprep»ednB»8. A few
waste ago I had a conveisalton with tha gal thai Nvd Ihere and, (rom that,
I undanlood that there were some legallliss that had lo be sorted, that
Ihera ware to ba soms sort of court proceedings. It seams unlikely, glvsn
Iho amounl ol lima that has passed, Ihat Ihla has boon soHlod so wouldn't
any tianancllons be auspsnded until there was feeolullon?

The Nollca will bB broadcasl to a numbar (wo do not have etsclronlc acceas
to everybody) ot tha resldenls abng Splllar Road and Sreyback Mounlaln Road
by a neighbor In Fakonridge. II Is believed that most peopla will not have
seen tha noltea, especially Ihoso who do to Iravel Oreytiack Mountain Road,
so doing this will provida them Ihe option to "express an Inleiesl In the
Application... by lorwaiding Ihalr commenls In wrllhg to' tha RDOS.

Any (wwa you can share would be most appreclalad, Kaila.

Thank you,

[cid:lmngo002.jpg d>01D6FEA1.C69713a]

Allx

21



EXHIBIT 16

From; Jicqul«jBCk«on|^B^—^a^B
Subjoct: Nolice of Exclusion Appllcalton -1313 Qreyback Mounlaln Road, Panllclon B"i

Bale; Maroh20.2020at2.58PM
To; H)nr<1"l^lnlu^lr!:,'\i

Hello Mr. Rneder:

Karia Kozakavtch aArfted that you couki provide ua wilh more fntonnalion regarding a'Notlca of Exclusion Apptteat'on" for 1313
Qnyback Mountain load, PenUcton.

As our property la ncjaconl to 1313 Qreyback, wo haw tha following quontions:

1. As ad|nccnl land owner why WCIB w« not nolllied Ihal Ihe R003 Is miking applicallon to have lhl» BO-acia pacel ol land
nmovod horn tha AIR?

2. Why Is tha RD03 wanling lo exduda this land from Iho ALR7

3. 1« the RDOS Intending lo purohasa Ihls luui or will It be going for sale to the public?

B. It this land the htanded paical (or Ihe UosolldB (acilily?

S. II purchased by the RDOS, whul does Ihn RDOS Intend to ua« Ulla land lor?

7. Whal will the RODS be doing wllh any opposlllon It may gel from aiea nskjenls regarding Ihls uppllcallon?

8. How formal dots any oppoalllon need to be (l.s : eloned pallllons, 50% of Ihe area resklenH. elo.)?

9. Would tho RDOS requlro actual aignatureB w would emaJla suffteo?

We look forward to dearing (rom you and (hank you.

Jim & Jacquia Jackson
130 Falcon Rldgo Driva

22



EXHIBIT 17

^

HI all,

I have fiflnt this emaJI to ovoryone on our Fnlconridge Nolghbourhood List as well as to 1 residenco on Greyback Mountain Road
and a roskiances on Lower Splller Road.

Hope evoryono is ilaylng acla and doing linn In these trying llmesl

A "Nolteo of Exclualon" sign has been posted at Ihe enlranca lo 1313 Oreyback Mounlaln Road which ia Ihn property Ihal Iha RDOS
Is aupposodty looking at (or a blosotkts facilfly. A copy of tho sign Is below.

This 80-acre property la directly south ol our subdivis'on on the cast aids of Spillor Road acrosn from the Campbell Mountain
Lnndllll.

Our RDOS Area E Director, Karla Koznkevteh haa Indlcnlod Ihal Iho RDOS la procwdlng with thfl application to find out II the ALC
agrees or not, Ihan il Iha propariy becomes nvallablo (or sale, Iho RDOS will know how lo procead.

Tho sign stales that anyona who wishes to flxproaa an Interest In the appttoallon must send thoir comments In wrhlng to Ihe RDOS
by April 3,2020.

I also conlnclad llia Provincial Agricullurnl Land Comm'uslon tor a copy ol Sectton 30(1) ol Ihe Act and their reply la bfllow.

II you know of anyone else who might havo concerns about this appltenllon plaaso (omard this Infoimalton lo them.

Thanks,

Jacqule Jackson

NOTICE OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION
Regarding Land In the Agricultural Land Reserve

Iho Roa-Mial Dnlncl ol Oknnaq.in.Sloi.HnmHin (ROOS)

of 101 MarUn Slreol. Pw«loo. 8C, V2A-5J')

lnt.<>Htnn^<^*in((-^-*xi(*nu-f>lk)»x.t.nVl<T)trfth«<tyFTu»tXa(t*wr
Cwnn •Ao Acfto •icJUA» »iT-n (ha Affrlcultunt Land Rmm th" »u*<m<»j ^op»*^ wT*f »>

n k<>*»f d'-Knt^d B*

nin KAP 1190. SuUol 8, Dillfid lol 2711. SDYO

»>1 bv-ritrt rt

1313 Grayback Mounlnln Rand (Eloclot.il Arcn •E")

A^ p»<vn *^^<^ b prpw^ m k*»^ml in r» ii^c^^xi »Txr/*^ «o by (prw^or^ u^«
mrwf/n d WT|(<K] kt

RDOS. 101 Martin Sliwl PonUdon. BC. V2A-SJ3

23



EXHIBIT 17

Ftoyin (nrwardod mossrtQto;

From: MALC Okanagan Land Uso ALC;CXM <ALS,Oi^^a5t(p^>qov.bt.<;a>
Subject! RE: 1313 Greyback Mountain Road, Pantlclon, BC - Notica of Exclualon Apptlcallon

Good morning,

Thank you for your inquiry. A sign stating "Notice of Exclusion Application" is a
requirement when one is applying to exclude land (rom the Agricultural Land Reserve.
This means that the owner or the local government is planning on making an exclusion
application and is notifying the public about their Intentions. For more Information,
please refer to;hltps://www,alc.gQv.bc.ca/alcfcontent/appllcations-and-
decisions/aDdication-QiQCfisa

Section 30(1) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act;

Exclusion application by owner
30 (1)An owner of land may apply to the commission to have their land excluded
from the agricultural land reserve.

(2)0n an application under subsection (1), the commission may do one of the
following:

(a)refus9 permission to have land excluded from the agricultural land reserve;

(b)grant permission to have land excluded from (he agricultural land reserve:

(c)grant permission for a non-farm use, non-adhering residential use, soil or till
use or subdMsion of the land.

(3)lf the commission makes a decision under subsection (2) (b) or (c), It may impose
limits or conditions it considers advisable.

(4)An application under this section, except an application from a first nation
government, may not proceed unless authorized by a resolution of the local
government If, on the date the application Is made, the application

(a)applles to land that Is zoned by bylaw to permit farm use, or

(b)requlres, In order to proceed, an amendment to an official settlement plan,
an official community plan, an official development plan or a zoning bylaw.

(4,1)An applkatlon under this section in relation to settlement lands may not proceed
unless authorized by a law of the first nation government ol the first nation that has
leaislallve authority over the settlement lands.

24



EXHIBIT 17

(5)At the request of the applicant, the commission may waive the required notice and
the requirement to have a meeting with the commission with respect to the application.

(5.1)A decision of the commission under subsection (2) (b) or (c) in relation to
proposed settlement lands may not be made effective unless and until

(a)those lands are established, in whole or in part, as settlement lands, and

(b)the first nation government in relation to those settlement lands enacts a law
approving the commission's decision and provides a certified copy of the law to
the commission.

(5.2)Unless a decision under subsection (2) (b) or (c) first becomes effective under
subsection (5.1), the decision expires on the earlier of the following dates:

(a)the date the decision expires according to its terms;

(b)the date a notice to suspend negotiations takes effect.

(6)The commission must deliver its written decision to the owner.

As stated on the Notice of Exclusion Application sign, please send any comments on
the application to the RDOS. The ALC will not see the application until/if the RDOS
forwards the application to the ALC. The RDOS will include public comments
associated with the Notice of Exclusion in the application materials.

Sincerely,

Katie Cox I Land Use Planner I Agricultural Land Commission
201 - 4940 Canada Way, Burnaby, BC, V5G 4K6 I 236.468.2041
ALC.Okanagan@gov.bc.ca I wm^ls.goi

It you are not Iho intended rsoiplont ol Ihia o-mall and attachments plgnsn nntlty the sender by return e-mail
and delete the e-mail and attachments Immediately. This e-mail and attachments may be conlldenllal and
privileged. Confidentiality and privilege are not lost by this e-mail and allachmenls having been sent to Ihs
wrong person. Any use ol this e-mail and attachments by an unintended recipient Is prohlblled.

25



EXHIBIT 18

From; Victoria Kiyanovnkl I
Subject: Rdoa

Date; March 24,2020 at 12:03 PM
To; |acqule|62®gmall.com
Cc

I of th*
?v<a(bi»io.«<M»*Y°u

irnd
inoid,

Senl (rom my IPhona

26



EXHIBIT 19

From; Allx MncDorrId, Crooktd Tree I
Subject; Fwd; Attenllon: Clalre

Dole: March 24, 2020 al 4:35 PM
To; Jacqule Jacktor

F/l - (rom Ihe ALC

Allx MacDonald
Crooked Trae Guest Sul'gs
Sanl (rom my IPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "ALC Okanagan Land Use ALC:EX" <ALC.Okanagan®gov.bc.ca>
Dale: March 24. 2020al 4:15:59 Pf
To; "Aljx MncDonald. Crooked Treo'l
Sub)ecl: RE: Attention: Clalra

Hollo Allx,

Thank you for email.

Based on oui records, llie appllcalion hasn't been submltled llirough Ihe ALC portal al Ihls lime. Per exclusion applicallcn
instfUcUons, In addition lo llie geneial documants required (or an appltoallon, exclusion appllcalions lequlre public notilfcallon us pei
Spctlnn lf>. Rertjnn 1(, ,-ttifl SMtlnn iri 1 of th<- Ayficnltutrtl I tind RP^^H Finn^^l Ri'(ju)ntk?n (s^l<;lli<;ulty 11 nnw^piip'jt

adverlisoment, serving nollce (o owners o( land Ihat share a common boundary with Ihe property, and ihsn pholograptite prool of
slgnaga), As such, flppllcanls am rcquirod (o oblsln these documenls prior to cubmnilng Ihelr appllcallon through Via ALC Portal.

Based on Ihe Informalon I have, I suspect Ihe applicant la In Ihe process of preparing Itiolr application nnd IhB ndditlonnl
ilocnmonlnllon piior 1c .•iiibmiltlng Iholr appllcallon Ihrough the ALC Apptcallon Portal. As such. al Ihla limo 1( you ViouU llka lo glvu
apccllB lcedback, I would recommend subniltllng lliefn as dlrecled on Ihe slgnage advisory.

In (lio fulurn, whnn Ihn npplk^allon has bBnn submlHRd through tho At 0 Portnl. you fRn sno the nppHcntlon by sonrch'ng tho ALC
Appllontion f'ortnl here: http://a100.gov.bc.ca/pubtoQtsp/ilst?oxccution=c232 (sclcdion ^Application Search"),

1( you hnvo nny fufthof qLJR".(k)n<?, ploaso rion't hGsilolo to contact mo.

Bosl.

Clalre Buchsnan I Land Use Planner I Agricullural Land Commissjon
201 - -1940 C.'inadn W.iy, Bnrnnby, BC. VSG W6 I T 236,468 3284
nffilro, buchanan@gov.bc, co I wwv/.olc gov.bc.ca

II you aru notIho lnlondcd reclpienl o( llils e-mail and attachmenls plense nollly Ihe sender by relum e-mell nnd delete Ihe e-mail
and nllaclimenls Immrdlnlnly This a-mnll and anachments may he conlidfinllal nnd prlvitoged. Conddflntlnljty nnd ptlvllege nro not
In-il by this o-mnl) nnd nHFinh»nftn)t? h^vino twm fwnt In Ihn wrnno pprfinn Any u^fi nt this fl-mnll nnrf nttnrtimRnlR tiy on unlnlnnrtnd
recfptent is prohibited.

—--Origlnnl Mnssaga- —

hrom; Alix MacDonald, uronkBd In
Sonl: March 2-1. 2020 11:32 AM
To: ALC Okanagan Land Uso ALC;EX <ALC.Okanagan@gov.bc.ca>
Subjecl; AHsnllon: Clrire

HiClake,

Thanks for llia phone call just now. Here is Ihe sign posted nl 1313 Greyback Mounteln Road In Pentlclon. Any Inloimallon spccllk:
to this Application that you can forward would be greatly appreciated.
Thank youl

27



EXHIBIT 20

From: Jacqule Jacluof
Snh|Rct: BIOSOLIDS FACILITY IN YOUR NEIGHBOURHOOD

Onlc: Much 25, 2020 at 10:18 AM

Hello.

You may be aware that the RDOS is applying to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR, They hope to locate a BIOSOLIDS WASTES
COMPOSTING FACILITY that would process biosolids/waste water sludge, etc. (or
the ENTIRE RDOS AREA (see attached map "Entire RDOS Area"). The property Is
1313 Greyback Mountain Road and is shown in the attached map ("1313 Greyback Mtn
Rd"),

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS, To read more and to
"join the tight", read the attached document named "Protect Agricultural Land" and
follow the directions below.
Please forward this to everybody In your network.
ACT NOW and thank you!

ACTION REQUIRED:
Reply to this email before April 1st! Cut + paste Die aentBnuy byluw and add your
contact information at the top.
Add separate sets of contact information for each person that replies with you.
This information will be added to a master list for a group submission prior to the
deadline of April 3rd, 2020.

I am oppDyt'd to tlu"' application by the RDOS to the Aijficuitiiral L.ind Coinini'.i'.iion id
i-iavn 1;l1;< C.rR'/l);-in!( Mnm-itflin HO;I(I rcniDVf'cl froin iho Adiic.llltnral l.;'n«.l Rr'Si;i'Vf.

Addn.sK

'If'lcpliono Ml inbm

C-jiii.iil Addica:;

TOGETHER WE CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE!

28



EXHIBIT 20

Contact the undersigned should you have questions.
Thanks agalnl

PROTECT AGRICULTURAL LAND

DATE: MARCH 25.2020

ADDRESS OF EXCtUSION APPtlCATION: 1313 GRE^BACK MOUNTAIN HOAD
PEHTICTON, BHmSH COLUMBIA

TOl THE REGIONAt DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-51MIIKAMEEN (ROOS)

Wo, thn undiraigned, In whrenc* to th» NOTICE Of EXCLUSION APPLICATION regarding land In the

AfiTtcuttural land Rexerve and legatfy described as:

PLAN KAP1190, SUBtOT », DISTRICT IOT 1711, SDTO (M) iau|
and focsted at:

HU GREYBACK MODHTAIN ROAO (EUCTOIUU ARE* "E")

do hrrpby URGE THE PflOTECTION ol atricultural lands and accordingly PROTEST AGAINST the eiclUiion of
the (andi from the Agriculhjrsl Land Reserve for the purposes of a composltng facility.

The reasons far our protest ate:

• Together w need to prolect this agricultunl land pafUculaily when we we In an era where
food iftcurity Is a growing global t"u<a and the ALR land must b« preserved for its highest
and best use - agricullural prcductlon.

< Land In the AIR ft to be proiect&d 10 British Columbfans can access tocally grown food^ and

comnwmtles and local economies can prosper through farming, ranching and agrtcuilure
buslneitet, uich ai B.C.'s growing lood.processine sector.

• The City ot PenUcton buflt a parking (01 and established hikfng amd fatlung tralti on Campbrit
Mountain which is acrots th® road (rom the above lands and the pflitfne beauty of this area
need! to be maintained.

• loss of existing wildlife (herd of 30i California Big Horn Sheep, hard of 100< elk, deer) and
their wHdiJfe corridor and tenhine grounds.

* Fractured bedrock can directly contamhate runoff in any direcHon and uftimately pollute

well water and the existing water wells in the area are Allied to depths In excess of 500'.

A composting (acilltyhas no plac* an agricultural land that has a known b»ie of undy sml,

as well as the added noise, air and environmental pollution that goes along with this type of
lacKKy.

PRINTED NAME , ADDRESS TELEPHONE EMAIl

CONTACT: CAMPBEU MOUNTAIN AKEA RESIDENTS TEIEPHONE: 25&-4W-6269

29



EXHIBIT 20

Entire RDOS Area

, • .-- r, • • •• .

"-"WOr-^TiaaaC—

1313 Greyback Mln Road

30



EXHIBIT 21

PROTECT AGRICULTURAL LAND

DATE: APRIL 3,2020

ADDRESS OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION: 1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD
PENTICTON, BRITISH COLUMBIA

TO: THE REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN (RDOS)

We, the undersigned, In reference to the NOTICE OF EXCLUSION APPUCATION regarding land in the
Agricultural Land Reserve and legally described as;

PtAN KAPUSO, SUBIOT 8, DISTRICT LOT 2711, SDYD (80 acres)
and located at:

1313 GREYBACK MOUNTAIN ROAD (ELECTORAL AREA "E")

do hereby URGE THE PROTECTION of agricultural lands and accordingly PROTEST AGAINST the exclusion of
the lands from the Agricultural Land Reserve for the purposes of a composting facility.

The reasons for our protest are:

* Together we need to protect this agricultural land particularly when we are in an era where

food security Is a growing global issue and the ALR land must be preserved for Its highest
and best use - agricultural production.

• Land In the ALR is to be protected so British Columblans can access locally grown food, and
communities and local economies can prosper through farming, ranching and agriculture
businesses, such as B.C.'s growing food-processlng sector.

• The City of Penticton built a parking lot and established hiking and hiking trails on Campbell
Mountain which Is across the road from the above lands and the pristine beauty of this area
needs to bo maintained.

• Loss of existing wildlife (herd of 30+ California Big Horn Sheep, herd of100+ elk, deer) and
their wildlife corridor and blrthlng grounds,

• Fractured bedrock can directly contaminate runoff In any direction and ultimately pollute
well water and the existing water wells In the area are drilled to depths in excess of 500'.

• A composting facility has no place on agricultural land that has a known base of sandy soil,
as well as the added noise, air and environmental pollution that goes along with this type of
facility,

1
2
3
4
5

PRINTED NAME
Steve Boultbee
PhllGuertln

Jacqule Jackson
Jim Jackson
LorlGuertln

ADDRESS
1101 Splller Rd Penticton V2AU9
inFatconridgeDrPentirtonV2A8T4
130 Falconrldge Pr Pentlcton^2A8T4
130 Falconrldge Or Pentlcton V2A8T4
Ill Falconridge Dr Pentlcton V2A8T4

31



EXHIBIT 21

6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

Elalne Price
Julle Nurse
Lorralne Nagy
Cory Rhodes
Dave Morgenstern

Stefan Ermalr
Michael Ermair
AdolfErmalr
Maria Anna Ermair

15 j Allx MacDonald
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
2S
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54

Ken Hampson

Qulnn Dagneau
Spence Dagneau
Victoria Kryzanowski
Katie Fortuna
Alexandra Gray
George McLean
Coleman Jackson
George Niddery
Chad Nlddery
Philip Robson
Gillian Robson
Kelsey Robson
Christina Staden
Dean Hudson

Deborah HyiJHes
Thomas Campbell
RyanMcNlchol
Darrell McCtarty
Karen McClarty
Marcus Ansems

Mlchelle Parry
jlmj>arry_

Byron Lutz
Jennifer Lutz
Dave LaBerge

Laura Galata
Steve Galata

1425Greyback Mtn Rd Penttcton
].266SplHer Road Penticton V2A&19
1201 Splller Road Pentlcton VZA8T3
101-637 Van Home St Pentlcton V2A4L2
1550 Reservoir Rd Penticton V2A8T3
102 Vista Place Pentlcton V2A8T4
102 Vista Place Pentlcton V2A8T4
102 Vista Place Pentlcton V2A8T4
102 Vista Place Pentlcton V2A8T4
U78Splller Road Pentlrton V2A8T3
U78 Splller Road Pentlcton V2A8T3
l278Splller Road Penticton V2A8T3
1278 Splller Road Pentlcton V2A8T3
202 Van Home St Pentlcton
1489Balfour5tPenticton
101-637 Van Home St Pentlcton
1257 Splller Road Pentlcton
130 Falconrldge Dr Pentlcton
UGZGreyback Mtn Rd Pentlcton
13j62G^TeYbacl<MtnRd^entlcto^
UBSSpillerRoad Pentlcton
1185 Splller Road Pentlcton
USSSplll^rRoa^Penticton
1059 Spiller Road Penticton
119 Plnetree Way Penticton V2A8T4
119 Plnetree Way Penticton V2A8T4
118 Vista Place Pentlcton V2A8T4
101 Plnetree Way Pentlcton
122 Vista Place Pentlcton
122 Vista Place PenUcton
130S Smethurst Rd Naramata VOHINO
762 MacCleave Ave Pentlcton V2A3C3
762 Macdeave Ave pendcion V2A3C3

1117 Spider Rd Pentlcton V2A8T3
J^l^EJIte^RdPentictonV2A8T3
J^33^1netreeWaYPenticton
1199 Splller Road Pentfrton
1199 Splller Road Pentlrton

Stephanie Galata_! 1199 Spllter Road Penticton
Herb John Cattee
Grant Pierce
Gall Pierce
Tyler Pierce
Teal Crosson
Matt Pierce
A[aynaPIerce
Bran^Ramjiawan
AngelaJ.aBerge
Cassl Petersen

164 Falconrldge Dr Penticton
19 Blue Wing Place Wlnnlpeg R3YOC1
19 Blue Wing Place Winnlpeg R3YOC1
285 Brooklyn St Wlnnlpe^R3JlM3^
285 Brooklyn St Wlnnlpeg R3J1M3
65 Keonaona lane Walluku HI 96793
65 Keonaona Lane Walluku HI 96793
SSlTache AveWinnipeg R2H2A6
133 Plnetree Way Penticton

1^7seilieLR.p?l.f?.c9i?.?.!1-yA^?l?-

32



EXHIBIT 21

55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73

74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

Michael Sean Hill
^ndleMarleHIH
Thomas Pango
Lana Schultze
Michael Woods
Roslvne Buchanan

Mark Blnsenberg
Grant Willls
PamWHIIs
James Denton

Julle Fortln
TroyFader^

David Klemchuk
Andrea Klemchuk
Henry Cralg Morrlson

Kassla Morrison
Margo Boult
Eleanor Papp
Michael Papp
AnetteEngel

T5.rnmYjiarlsel.
ErlcHansel

Sydney Hansel
Roman Hansel

Kyle Gratton
Catherine Lavole

James Thumm
Denise Thumm
Trlsh Plcherack
Kelly Farley
Jake Farley
Russell Hubbard
Marc Hubbdid

WendyCary
Keith Payne

BrentRyJL
Susan J.Seddon

Keith J. Johnstone

Peter Osborne

Kelly Schultl
Dan Schulll
Nancy Dycharme^

795 Ontario St Pentlcton
795 Ontario St Pentlcton
106 Falconrldge Or Pentlcton V2A8T4
106 Falconridge Dr Pentidon V2A8T4
119 Vista Pl Pentlcton
127 Falconridge Dr Penticton V2A8T4
127 Falconrldge Dr Penticton V2A8T4
1241 Splller Road Pentlrton
1241 Splller Road Penticton
158 Falconridge Dr Pentlcton
J756J>[)illerM Penticton V2A8T3
1256 Splller Rd PentictonVZASTS
1238St[IJerRd^Pentkton
1238SplllerRdPentlcton
133 PlnetreeWay Pentirton V2A8T4
133 PinetreeWay Pentlcton V2A8T4
1.07 Plnetree Way PentlctonV2A8T4
147 Plnetree Way Pentlcton V2A8T3
147 Plnetree Way Penticton V2A8T3
948 Naramata Road Pentlcton
1100 Splller Rd Penticton
^100 SplHer Rd Pentlcton
204,403 Churchill Ave Pentlcton
709 Okanagan Ave E Pentlcton
204,403 Churchill Ave Pentlcton
1290SmethurstRd Naramata
1220 Splller Rd Penticton
1220 Splller Rd Pentlcton
109 Flagstone Rise Naramata VOH1N1
1410 Greyback Mtn Rd Penticton
1410 Greyback Mtn Rd Pentlrton
Vernon, BC

1400 Greyback Mtn Rd Pentlcton

5615 Deadpine Drive Kelowna^

1557 Reservoir Rd Penttcton V2A8T3
PO Box 16 Naramata VOH1NO
Pentlcton

Penticton

76 Huth Ave Penticton V2A2Z8
152 Falconrldge Pr Pentlcton V2A8T4
152 Falconridge Dr Penticton V2A8T4
22 Abbott St Pentlcton V2A4J2

CONTACT: CAMPBELL MOUNTAIN AREA RESIDENTS TEIEPHONE; 250-490-6269

33



EXHIBIT 22

Allx MacDonald
Crooked Trea Gueal Suites
Sent Irom my IPhoiu

Bggln foiwarded message:

From: Christop'irr Gar[i?h •-cy<nn;'.hrt>fdot. lx;c;i;-

Dnlo; Miucli 25,1020 ul G:M;.15 PM POT
To; "J
Cc: JoAnn Ptiocltty-^Fmlmymdns L'c.cn^
Subject; RE; ALC Exclusion (nqutry-1313 GroybLick Ro;id

Hi Alix,

Further to JoAnn's email of earlier today, I will be in the office on Monday, but wanted to
let you know that a web-page was created on our site this afternoon in relation to this
application and can be found at the following link: ,hyps://www.icfos.l-)c.ca?ve!opmpji^
3etvices/planiilng/ciirreiit-appllcjtioi)S-deuiBiony/elHctoial-arca-e/e;''02iiuaiJ-yLQ/

I am anticipating that we will have the application documents linked to this page
sometime tomorrow (Thursday) and that these may answer some of your questions.

Sincerely,
Chris.

Christopher Garrish MA, MSS, MCIP, RPP ' Planning Managor
Regional Dlstrid of Okanagan-Slmllkameen

^'.L>rJj I 101 Martin Street, Penticlon, BC V2A 5J9

p. 250,490.4101 I tl, 1.877.610.3737 11. 250.492.0063
www.idos.bc.ca I cgarrish@rdos.bc.ca I FACEBOOK I YOUTUBE 1 Sign up )or

R EGIONAL COJMNE_CT1QNS

Thin Cnmmunicnlinn b Inlamhid for (Iw uau oHlw taclpienl to which it Is addressed, and mayconlaln conlldenllal,
pwsrtnn/ and/ cy pnvHegecl {nformnHon. f^fr'nnn contna tno sL'ncfor fmftw UltHHfy l! yuu ary nut tfnf littvnUtiJ u'cfpltfiil of

Ihls communkfiion nrxl dn not ciifiy, dlshibute or tolm acdon inlynv un il. Any communlcnlion incnlvf.d In onor, or
subsequent rop^y, should be deleted or destroyed.

From; JoAnn Peachsy <jpeachey@rdos.bc.ca>
Sent: Marcn 25, 2020 12:04 PM

-^,_inish@rdos.bc.ca>
Subject: ALC Exclusion lnquiry-1313 Greyback Ruail

Hi Alix,

Thanks for/our inquiry about the ALC exclusion application cit 1313 Greyback Road.

Unfortunately, the file manager is aWciy this week but I have copied him on this email so
he is aware of your inquiry and can follow up with any questiony you may have.

34



EXHIBIT 22

In the meantime, I have attached some public information, which is from a report
reviewed by the Board on January 9, 2020 providing direction to apply for the ALC
exclusion to facilitate an In-vessel organics composting facility.

Regards,

{IfiEsI

JoAnn Peachey • Planner I
Regional District of Okanagan-Slmilkameen
101 Martin Street, Penliclon, BC V2A 5J9

I'rtttS? P. 250.490.4384 . tf. 1.877 610.3737. (. 250.492.00G3
jpeachev@rdos.bc.ca • RDOS

?lKALIiS?KNl FACEBOOK • YOUTUBE • Sign up for REGIONAL CONNECTIONS

35



EXHIBIT 23

1. Select Application Type

Exclude land from the ALR (Example of a single land owner)

2. Primary Contact

Agent

Name

Christopher Garrish

Organization (Optional)

Regional District of
Okanagan-Similkameen

Mailing Address

101 Martin Street
Penticton, BC, V2A-7R9

Phone Number
250-490-4101

Email: cearrishfardos.bc.ca

3. Parcel(s) under Application

Ownership Type
Fee Simple

Legal Description
Plan KAP1190, Sublot 8,
District Lot 2711, SDYD

Owner#1

Name

C. Cheveldave & Associates
Ltd.-Receiver of Sather
Ranch Ltd.

Parcel ID (PID)
011-781-441

Area

31.8 ha (approx) VOc'cree

Purchase Date (mm/dd/yyyy)
02/06/2017

Farm Classification
Yes

Mailing Address Phone Number

Mobile Number (optional)

Email:

4. Land Use

36



EXHIBIT 23

Land Use ofParcel(s) under Application

Quantify and describe In detail all agriculture that currently takes place on the pareel(s).

Ranching Operation (seasonal cattle feedlot).

Quantify and describe in detail all agricultural improvements made to the parcel(s).

Stock corrals and related fencing.

Quantify and describe all non-agricultural uses that currently takes place on the parcel(s).

Existing dwelling unit for residential use.

Land Use of Adjacent Parcel(s)

Primary Land Use Type

North

East

South

West

Residential

Farm

Vacant land

Industrial

Specific Activity

Rural Residential subdivision known as

Falcon Ridge. 4.0+ ha parcel sizes.

Assumed to be a ranching operation based
on "farm" assessment.

None (native vegetation)

Sanitary Landfill and buffer lands. Zoned

"Major Utilities (P3)"

5. Other Parcel(s) of Interest

Not applicable

6. Local Government

Regional District ofOkanagan-Simitkameen (RDOS) — Electoral Area "E"

7. Proposal

How many hectares are you proposing to exclude?

22.56 ha (approx.) 5"s-.7<" acres.

What is the purpose of the proposal?
The site has been identified by the Regional District as a preferred location for a In-vessel

37



EXHIBIT 23

composting facility that is in close proximity to the existing sanitary landfill operation at

Campbell Mountain (approximately 300 metres to the west).

The proposed in-vessel composting facility would serve the City of Pentlcton (CoP), the Town of

Keremeos and Electoral Areas C, D, F, G within the Regional District of Okanagan-Slmilkameen,
There is also a possibility that the District of Summerland and Town of Oliver could choose to be

a part of the program in the future.

The facility would manage food waste, yard waste, wood waste and potentially biosolids that

are generated by the CoP, Okanagan Falls and Town of Keremeos.

In seeking a new location for its composting operations, the Regional District Is attempting to

address existing space constraints at the Campbell Mountain landfill. There are minimal

opportunities to use closed space for future organics collection and transfer operations at
Campbell Mountain.

This has direct implications on the amount of space available for composting operations, as it

will affect the space required for siting additional recycling/transfer or composting operations

at the landfill. This will be further exacerbated as the region moves towards implementing

source-separated organics (SSO), as this will require the development of additional space to

facilitate a neworganics processing facility,

A new in-vessel composting processing will require approximately 2.04 ha of land area and the

subject property features adequate flat areas to site such a facility and there are not expected

to be any spatial constraints with this property.

Additional odour controls that would result from composting organics and biosollds in an In-
vessel composting facility and to show how the odour dispersion surrounding the CMLF would

be reduced with the updated design and being located on the Greyback Mountain Road

Property by approximately 69%.

Finally, the diversion of organic materials from the Campbell Mountain landfill are anticipated

to extend the lifecycle of the landfill by approximately 11 years. The Regional District further
believes thai It would be very difficult and expensive to site the composting facility elsewhere

within the region and that there are efficiencies to be gained by co-locating any new
composting operation in close proximity to the Campbell Mountain landfill.

Explain why you believe that the parcel(s) should be excluded from the ALR.

In addition to the benefits of the location outlined above, the Regional District considers that

development of this property for the purposes of an in-vessel composting facility will likely

preclude Its use for future development. Exclusion will further provide the Regional District
with the latitude to site complimentary land uses related to the operation of the Campbell

Mountain Landfill at the subject property.

The Regional District is aware that the Commission has previously supported similar operations
within the ALR, such as the City of Kelowna's composting facility on Glenmore Road (Resolution

ff25/2007).

38



EXHIBIT 23

That said, the Regional District is also open to consideration of other options by the
Commission, such as:

« a non-farm use approval for the in-vessel composting facility; or

• a partial exclusion Involving only that part of the property in the ALR that is required for the
In-vessel composting facility.

In the event that the Commission opted for one of these other options, the Regional District

considers that there may be an opportunity to enhance the agricultural use of the property,

including that part not currently In the ALR (which represents a land area of approximately 9.54 «i ?,s7«/rr &

ha) through the placement of topsoil generated by the composting facility.

Food and yard waste compost will be kept as separate stream of compost from the biosolids

and the Regional District may be able to have this certified as organic. Such compost would be

an important soil additive that helps to trap moisture in the soil, saving water, and traps carbon

that would otherwise be released as green house gases. While these are not immediate

benefits to the agriculture they are important long term benefits.

The Regional District would also be open to making the remainder of the property available for

continued grazing purposes through a sublease.

The Regional District would also be open to the Inclusion of the northern part of the property

Into the ALR if it is seen to possess agricultural values.

The Regional District would also be pleased to conduct a site visit/tour of the existing Campbell
Mountain landfill operation as well as the subject property with Commissioners in order to

provide an in-person overview of the proposal.

8. Attachments

Mandatory Attachments (pdf or jpeg)

Proposal Sketch 53224 proposal_sketch_example.pdf

Certificate of Title 000-11 1 -222 certificate_of_title_example.pdf

Proof of Advertising 53224 notice_of_exclusion_application,pdf

Proof of Serving Notice 53224 exclusion_proof_of_serving_notice.pdf

39



EXHIBIT 23

r^ Proof of Slgnage 53224 exclusion j)ost_sign.pdf

Optional Attachments (pdf or ip^g)

Site Photo Site Photographs s'itej?hotograph_example.pdf

/-•••>,

40



EXHIBIT 24

•IM/2020 Appllrallon Inslniclioni - ALC

STEP 3: ADDITIONAL EXCLUSION DOCUMENTS

In addition to the general documents required for an application, exclusion applications
require public notification as per Section 15, Section 16, and Section 16.1 of
the Agricultural Land Reserve General Regulation. As the applicant, you are
responsible for ensuring the notice requirements are fulfilled prior to filing your application
with the local government and for all costs arising from providing the notice.
1. Copy of Newspaper Advertisements
Your application must be advertised on two separate occasions not less than 7, or more
than 14 days apart, in a newspaper in general circulation in the municipality or regional
district where the property under application is located. The wording of the notice must be
consistent with the text of the Notice of Exclusion Application Document.
Notice of Exclusion Application Document Template (download fillable PDF)

2. Exclusion Proof of Serving Notice
You must serve a signed copy of the application and Notice of Exclusion Application
Document to all registered owners of land in the ALR that share a common boundary with
the property, including owners ofALR property separated by a public road. The registered
owner of the property may not necessarily be the occupant. Your local government office
may be able to help you determine who the registered owners are that must be served
notice of your application. In addition, you must submit an Exclusion Proof of Serving
Notice declaring the names and addresses of adjacent property owners served, the date of
service, and the method of service with the application.
Exclusion Proof of Serving Notice Template (download fillable PDF)

lHtps;//www,nlc.gov.bc.cn/atc/contcnt/flppHMilions-and-dectsloru/uppliciidon-lnstmctiuns 1/1

41



ii.penfictonwestefnnews.com Pentirton Western News Wednesday, Mardi25,2020 A19

Les'al Notices Legal Notices Legal Notices Le&l Notices

NOTICE OF EXCLUSION APPLICATION
Regarding Land In the Agricultural Land Reserve

Tha Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS)
Mm»—.^.».m ' fl

of 101 Martin Street, PBnletun, BC, V2A&B

Irtmito nn maMng onipptollon puaailBSadlon3ll(1)dft«<s*rtua'laid
CommttatoArf In eadude from ite Agricultinri Imd Resarve Ihe fcUowhfl prap^ wN^

Is legally daadbd as:

Plan KAP1190. Subtal8. Disllict Lot 2711. SDYD

aidteaudat

1313 Gisybact Mountain Road (Electoral Area •E-)

Any pereon wteti^ to txp!»M »Inters in the appttatai n^ do so by biwarding ihc^
commenuinwUnglo:

RDOS, 10) Martin Street. Penu'ctm, BC, V2A-6J9

by:AplHB,2B20

ladbrtN AUCtamimld to ptfc

I Merchandise for Sale I Merchandise fniSale I Rentals

Misc. Wanted • Misc. Wanted • Apt Condo for Rent

SS$WCasti Paid for
GOLD tiSLVEH coins.
bare. bullion, tngots, coin

nlecfons. Isweln
nuggets, plaster gold,

wnik, old staling
stffir.sels.scrapt.

gold.sihw.ptalnumelc-
ToddTtie Coin Guy.

25M6W521
Chrtetlnelal

COIN I
VfmagsJeweky.Gcild,
Sikwaeitnft'Ch'na.
Slates. Aidiaues++

1.778-181-003])
I can make House Calls

SCCXN COLLECTORS
BUYING Coins.

GoldtSihm-l
Canadian, US, Worid
Cnns.RCM Mint Sets.
Cans Any ColaA'nn!

Chfld.TheCoin
Btpert

250463-3082

SSCohCollador

I wins, coin

•money, pre19ES
rcdns.buHnn.

bais.worid money
adlecSons.* ANY-

THING GOlfl 8 SILVER
ToddTha Coin Guy

2SIW6M5Z1

Real Estate

Commercial.

Industrial Property

Office Space
For Lease
Prima Down town

location. Range torn
4S11o3267sqA
Forfurtterrio

contact Lome Dennis
Sbxte Property

Prlnceton
1 Bedroom

Apartment for
Rent

S70U/ month +
uUIUes.Nofets.
Damage deposit.
250-295-1006

Ttansportatlon

Scrap Car Removal

»1 SCRAP Vthidef torn

WnmrtorbcaUSStor
ca>s.77Mai-C*RS(2277)

.&
N>

mx
3:
03

NJ
U1



us
FM

ca

I
X

m<*

^^^^^^;^'^<';^:^^^^^?^^y::?^^

%^^P^^j^^S^^^^^^^^^^^%^%i^^w'^?^rt^i^;^awi^^^^ft^^^^^^^

^||g|||||gg||g|g|j||||||ggg|Jg^^

SiIMiiiSIUIiffiS^NUBiillBiMMd
;^M^^^^:l^ii;l>ili&^]^^^^-;^^

l^^^^^^^-)^^.^^^.^

fiSSS8SiS3ESSSUSSSSSiSi^^!iii!Siii^iSi9SSSSS!iSSSS^
r^tlt:^^if^^^:^^^^w^^l^^i^)p^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^i^^^^^^i?s^^^t^^

gji|s|Sji«niil

liuSSiMSiiMniBiill8KB88BSUUB

ifS^iWT'i^-^rSf'fj"^^^/^^ ^ ^;i;^^; ^iQ^i^A^^; •^i^^S^ ~:.': ^]:^^"-?^;-;\:;'-?'i •^'^^.^-.-^^ :j ^^^^::^^:^^1^-.:^: ;^;^^:^^;:^^ ^^.^^•^[^i^^JSSSiSSSSSIiSSiSiSSSSS^^



EXHIBIT 27

Stop an 80 acre cattle ranch from turning
into a Biosolids Waste Facility, PLEASE!
Published by Jacquie Jackson on 30th Mar 2020

The RDOS (Regional District of the South Okanagan) has applied to have an 80-acre parcel of land
removed from the ALR (Agricultural Land Reserve), They hope to locate a BIOSOUDS WASTES
COMPOSTD^IG FACIUTY there that would process blosolids/waste water sludge, etc. for tbe ENTIRE
BDOS AREA (from PeacMand, to Manning Park, to Anarchist Mountain, to the US/Canada Border
and everywhere in liatween), The property Is 1313 Greyback Mountain Road, PenUctonBC, This is
literally In the shadow of Campbell Mountain where lots and lots of people Mice, walk dogs and
mountain bike. Who wants a "stliAy poo processing plant" there?

Many MANY people are opposed to this application by the RDOS. To read more and to "join the
fight", PLBASS sign this peUUon and SHARE It with eveiyone in your network. ACT NOW! Together,
we can make a difference.

We, the undersigned, oppose the appUcaUon by the RDOS (Regional District of the Okanagan
Simflkameen) to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) to have 1313 Greyback Mountain Road,
PenUcton BC removed from the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR),

Powered byGoPetitlon

44



iiteefcan i 3725 3rd sirost
,2

!3

u
!5
ii.
,7

'8
!9~

Ms.
s

UXT

as

Ms.

joanoe Fuus
> tta WRONG place to Has!

'soasy

^aucy
C«c

,tan
Alice

.Dawn

iBobr

NyJhiS
ItaUaveU

tougas
StrohnaalBr
'"in'*

NHssoa

WBSmsdiPJ.

i66S kkeshoradrw.

|1C Ash K

jCanada iWMlNO
BriU^h CoUunIua :VOU1NO

I Canada

[Peaticso ]BC;

tMar31.2020!

(Mar 31.2020'

IWuatxg CnTt^jg |Mar31.2020

jllSOiscpIieeicad
1110-910 OdaiBe St

13005 Naramfflaltoad

IHaOManoBValteYM

narassta
Pendcton

Naraffiata
Pe&EtCton

._!t£. vOtlal

IBriUsi ColunUa |WA 8J6
JBC
!BC

VOUtNI
V2AOE6

Canada
jCacada

Canada
Canada

IMiU-31.
.Mm-31.

!Mar31.
(Mar 31.

2020:
2020.

2020;
2020;

]A . @^ectUk& thitf should be in a fore^ed area &atBiitO wfc^jBe^d^ffiiui^raEddntikiy^ tawiL
lMn> Dawn [LunIiU 11^1^— ^12-100 UkE.iiare ;PniUcton

ji>rt»a^-~^ i
!MaT31.2ISO;

25
]26

(27

r
;28

1_
i"
IiT
il3

E
[15
!16
ilL
iia
lia-
!20
5i~

TltB is tte wroxg liwatbn for tiris fac^iyi I di^e by u» one i»arVen?S aU UM Elme and it biK aa <^
beautiful parcel of lead la- usaJbls lay Bflyoce bat Uus cofflpany. Grey bsds.'K a beaamul area dose to Pecticicn aadl Nammato a.od ^mltzedjsy Wars all, iheUffi<-

Ms

[Or

Mr
;Mr

,Dr

Ms

Ms
•Mr.

;51uma

iCasaidy

;Undl»y
^BeynuB

;Byu
Kylaa

iKaUy
uiT
!T*ny
!Sa)Bftfttitii&

Wayne

MBtor

McDunuU ;<
Grangar
Inkster-HdflcitiQ i;

Etert ______ Ij
Verimcglu
Ssnyoa

Singtetoa
Main I
KlBB
UBveUya s1

ISoatfe
]1688Ead9«<Meaw
iBBamnySt
lezoCpiu-BadiRd.
iNorti
!?G3ecIdianltBW8ast

1480 orelaud »w
U951o»iBrBmcli8d

lUdllB
!l79 Wsstvien Br

r

VwVctaa

•Paatinon

iPeuttttoa
Ipeudctosa

;iPentictoa.
'Peattctoo
'Peatlftoa

JPmUctoa
JPuUcton
jPcatirioa
l?eaactoB

British Coiiuzibia

Be
BC
BC

Sc
Be
BC
Be
Canada

iV2Aan

vinas
;V2Atf9
.V2ABV2

,!V2a2»l

JV2aly2
V2A1B2
VZAlai
IV2A3Y8

BriUskCdunbia|V2A7V9
Cacada IV2A8M1

Canada
Cacada

Canada
Canada

Cacada

Ciinato

Mar 31.2020

Mar 31.2020
Mu 31.2020

Mar 31.2020;

War 31,2020
Mar 31.2020

Mar 31,2020.
Mar 31,2020.
Mar 31.20201
Mar31;2(KI)i
Mar 31.20201

,TIiis Is cot Use best locaticc. Tfcere were two
. originally proposed, in Use Maroa Valley aree
:Us iduuUa lUsimByii

o&er stees tfc<A were pnvuusly deaoc^ jropejtor but oiily ^t stopped becau^ of a lade of poUtical 1^ D; shouhl ail^
_6rsome oEher Iqc^cn tbaC^s far away from a laTgiejFroyp of resulecis such asic PeattctoiL

ilMLatelPl IBriUdi Columbia !V2A BHl
Idutd G&ole&
Bruce IFairweather illlSUoMmRd

IPleasB do not allow tfcis to go alxsad so dass to.
•Ms.J. Dao

!Britlt?ti (""Hmt'mj ^

iBrtUsb Cblumbia iV2A 087 teasatla

01.2
01.2

lApl01.2020i

D&vs IHOjUBS
Wo'. a» riflhl place tte busmca.
iMs Pamela [Bafu-

1102-296 UuieyA»e IPenUtton

ION iiw wo
iBrittsk CblBUbla iV2A3N9 Caaadu

[Apr 01.2020 I

IAPT 01. 2020 ;

!MOas BsMitn Rd ISprinilSdd ICaoada

i29
'30'

'I vacation Ja Nanuaaa and Jaave laaiMy who
:Ms ,Rwdyne IBachaaaB.

! See some backgroand oa wwwjozsroaJl&yj
'Mr Tony tbtun

Short

!I27FaUBnnlBeDrtra IFBnBdoa ;V2Agn [canria |A(ir Ol, 2020 i

; 1.112 aau.fcdmii ;V2a6B
ICacsda

[Apr 01, 2030 i
IAprOl.2020;

Powered by GaPetttlsm

6

mx
I
co

r^>
^



ên

31
•32

33
31

Ml
Mr

iBnlart
Aninw
Iteitfa
Baibara

Ports
Broin.
Bales
LauUben

Tlus is a <tes&a^^ t6ceihl6 Uea. - tf» Imiilffll is ttoai^ Uireat®^g H» aii a^lity oad hsato
Peoticton to become the dumpmg ground the sotitfaem Okanatisn? Rcase VXfQS Uuak a^sm.

jAp- 01. 2020

Not enough coaCrals on this system yet Too many ucJaiflwas asd wfcat is iswwo ten's wocderfal.
Mr. IMaA
Tourisis woct returo after tba pacdntruc to vacation at a dump. Back to the think tank, HDOSt

|127FafcQMtlg«Dri»e .PaaUOm ~iBrtttsh Cotucbla IV2A 8T4 ICuada tAprOl.iIBO!

What a terribie ideal! Thjs operation should cot be within 15 miles of i
~Ms Ted jSamuelsoB

i620 MUNSON MTX. BD TENIICTON
12250 NeWonBd ;CawsBB
!1890TaUflns>Tnul Ketema

PantictoB
iM6° Long Ndge Dilm .Kdoam

BC
British Colaabto

BC
BC
Btittsh Colunlito

V2A8SS
VOXIC1
V1P1TS
V2A8S5
VIV2R3

ICuada

ICamda
lOmria
ICauula
lCficfida

(Apr 01.2(BO ]
[Apr 01.2020]
lApr 01.20201
[Apr 01. 2020
|ApT01.2020;

|I70 Hteihlasd place Pcn.tiAon

Sb-ocgly dlsagr&< w& tbis bappeJiing to our dSBSs nicTOaapcalaisa.

•Apr 01.2020 i

|VOH IK1
TIuas are soTBlybettEf areas feu-Siis

!57
i58_
S3
;60

;61
'ei

Ms
.Ms

a-uss

Lftooa
Oeasca

iShiriey
M

Itmlc

Cebhs
ICatom

;Stcp BiasaUde WastFadUly&uD csura

iSusan
(Colt

ylor
ICash

where it wxa't aCect:

lAprOl.2020!

;399SUgfawiy33
1511 EBAB> ST

BeamnteB
yENTCTON

450 Bromley st mat 2(0 CcquiUsm
Sin Street TenUctnn

Be
SrUssbCoka
Cboose^.

BC

!VOUaO
rfua]V2AflO

iv3i;6s5
;vauu

Smada

Canda
Sanula

01.2020;
(Apr 01.2020

iApriK.2020
lAprOZ.2020.

Powered byCaPetition

l-32DmanAveW
iVema
(psntictiin

BC
BC |v2a2y2

ICamda |Al>r02.202Qi

]Apr OZ.2B20]

xI
00

1^-1
~>J



EXHIBIT 27

47



1103
1M"

1105
1106

]l07
1108
[109
iIIO

:Ul
;U2
,113
;U4
3l5~

us
117
118
:119

ate
TMT
iMr
iMs
•Mr

iMtes

lHc
'Ms

-!MF
.Mr

iMr
Mr
Ms

iMs

1£VM

y<s»
Mktada
HBaAnr
iBte

Js^a.
!Tkon

;aidre

j.
!Dnat
'Loofe

tAajon
Scliuss

;*cton
:DaaieUfi

.Sysn^

:Ji«&.
JS-.

^ftopyin

Birid
Duncns

Hnfi*y
RdBriU
Weyraucb
Sear

Aageu
Busch
BaaUr
Cariton
HoUer
SctBK
Mulliu

Korplsto
Kictds

120
.121
;U2
;U3

!U4
1125

;We h«v« to deal irith th« •st?d oa the bench'd^t aow and I kaw m faltk Oils i^ inda it b«n^ Ato. kwp tU» land to th* AUairi 0^
.Comtryt

~w Caitiu
|]onu

'IMF
TKllw
I Bodes

1"^ [Korpisto
iALRAuU NOT bn us«d hr IMs. fut It un a

Jto:

1142 ash pl
201-lOlVaBHmnSt.
11607 TaastoDr

PecUctoD.

PeaUODB
TtattOan

CoUslream

iliritisli Columbia.
•Brtttsb ColunlUa IV2aSs7

lBC-~-r—iWA»2~

JBC______^V1B?3_

Cuum
Caaada.

Canada

[Apr OS, 2020
lAprOS.2020
!Apr05,2020^

iAprB5,anO

IWiUnns

IHjrlmd
JK:
~]K

(I opposa&cr&m]^ of tbds land torn ^ noads to bo far &om even low density ureas
ittrisu

[WAWF

lite IMA'
{I am ftgatost the locatioc
]Mr& ;&n>rges& Ija
jtte •ttuyl

IV2A3W1 ICaaada iApT05,2020

i30S-3313Wns<i«a Tenttcton ]BriUshC»lumliia]Y2A8J3 •05.2020

•UB

1129
'130

;C&bJtt coioc oa. You <au Kfff^ a Eaoro remoSfi

Sl
i

J_

:Man:
.Albert
:Ganyaad
:l?&

;ard
BETSCHAKF
CcassweUsf

ana a»n uexfc to ft toirisl attn^ma. zaitoas t^ acres to B^;. vAy aeatt k) a parid
lUOOGreylsckMaid tFmaam
S2052 NarajcataRoad lii^ttacffi'
|10I224SAtldasonSt
I

P^ntteffn

BC
Caoada

JV28JM3
"'musss

'V2A8B7
!

ftpr05,2020
Apr 05.2020
Apr 05,2020

jWeare oppostng tfais bcsoUds waste facmty at 1313 Grevback&touatate sy-A^do&XBptffBdatotiayfldtofaaad^waytl^^iK^
J370LmrBtndlItoa[l|Puittaoa ;BC !v3SvTil31

I
!l32
'133

.131

5taL IJaie
LAdJaceaEtoPafkiand

1
I
jMr

iLpida
'Judy
:Boss

jCBady"

~SaS~

"tow'
iAnut

-Not waited. DOT nwdsd in, this araa-

|Apr OS.ldM'i

1

goiitnacuuAre
1101-3313 Wteui st

Pdcclciou
PB.TCTOil
Pecticlan

IB.C. I
_jBltU5l» CobBBhB i,V2A 2M4

]BC _JV2A8J3

i
[Canada

lAy OS. 2020

lApr 05.2020
|Aer06.2020

42>
00

Powered by GoPctatioa

m;<
I

NJ
^1



|I3S,

[We do Med to uaa^e wr nraa^ That is a ghreL Bat a s^ d^ dose to act^ recreatto^ lantoa^e^
jcoropostting facility is a cionsjsalated area that does not. aanproz^ss our r^reafiocal land or onriratersfaeds.

IJMV
;-9

jAveoi

|BC IV2A433 [Canada
,1G7-

|l39-

ISeanor

^bs-_
Mrs EKaUierine

life,

McEachme

fTw dose to Vineyatds and Ordanls.
Gwen

ILyon

|e>^u.

|970 Pimiphocse Sd.
142-3400 wUsoa street

160 Middle Bench Bead SIFenBcha
[pctttlcton

101 WUtan Crescent

662 Ccrtn It Drive

IBC
IB.C.

CitWfd?

[via ?9
British Cohmtla JV2ABS7

jAtr06.2U20
'Canada [AtT 06, 2020

|AprOG,2020

IPestictan IBritisb Cafauabia h/2A8H3 iCanada
^r 07.2020
'AIT 07.2020

|U3

1144

|No. 1 do not wact teohaaani/Iiiosolids

IMr. B": l&eoit
jl am a frequent user of Campbell Mountain Paric.

a aim

w
IFrice

IMatthew ICanee

leKCwUUDriw (hutfctoa s: IV2A8H3 ICaaada |ATT07,2020

164 Pdroa Ridge Dr

^c

IPeiitietaa

[VIA 6)6

IBC

I Canada

|V2A6T4

|Apr07.2020

ICaaada |Apr08.2020
IJferilydis.qqain^oft^facto^ioradugoiurlt^ecjCTaofp^tactimimtaAlxts.Uisbe^^
jatroslty and Most Ifiady the swcel
jpaasers by.ThaalcnforfindJB^a HCTT Ioc<lionl

-Tagd- 1348 Naraaata ftal IPentetoa -TBC- (V2A8V1 ICanada |AprOa,2020IMts lAaena

II am oppcsed to taking the 80 acres property 00 1313 GreybacfcWcnutais Road oat of tbe ALR. T3ae BDOS h&s Already teen faricglng aU tbat slodge to tile IfiBdfiH anti processiag tt oubdoois, not Bcaadtag to
[stmdaid. rinht? ]t was SBI»O»^ t» be u axpuinuA and now it ^uU te a pcnuueat sohiB<a7 Ilrt ha bem cnaaig
fWUl the asaawnt ofsiudgs iocrease over the years? Howrmocb more sfaoald tliis plans prtttcss? What dtout EraGBc going fty vtoeries, orchaTds, a iBgh scbool, a seniora iioaie? WiS that iacrease? The 80 acres
jat 1313 Greybadc Mountato. Soad have be&a raach-tond forioany years. Tbe property is dose to Campbdl Moaatala recreafloa area and TIaree Blind Mice, Jt is a corridor for wUdUfe betweea these two areas.
|A haid of abenit ? dk Ures flwre, cwteinty also iro^v^ fyan^ ch~ I do&'t thiofc U» wb<^ proper
l&dBty.aisnanaspoalUe.T^restahouMst^fntheAIAorbtUiniep.rtlaadftTranaUoil.hai^.Uit^cfc^
prfsjust add paBatton to m arm dOM to a »<^ld ana. But wtaa so we stop with flte? When Is te UnU? Qore by on SpBbrBaail a demlqw (C^
|hoases Ulce tfaeydld at Saadero CaayoiL Iaea opposed to aiat, as nsll, fcrt&e same reasons. GtveDatUTB space!

PowredbyGaPeUUon mx

4^
<0

03

ISJ
~<J



EXHIBIT 28

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN

Fact Sheet

April 3,2020

Proposed Organics Composting Facility

-.-^^•V^r-fr^€a?Si
OKANAGAN-
SIMILKAMEEN

Project Overview

The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Solid Waste Management Plan has

identified composting as one of the best means to divert waste entering local Landfills. Food

waste and other organic materials account for approximately 40% of waste entering landfills

in the Regional District by weight.

There are several distinct advantages to building a composting facility near the Campbell

Mountain Landfill:

• The cost of composting is much less than landfilling waste.

• Diverting food waste helps extend the life of the landfill.
• There is a strong demand for food waste compost In the south Okanagan and compost is

a valuable soil additive that helps plants grow and conserve water.

• There is the potential to have equipment and personal shared at the Landfill and the

compost site.

The proposed facility will create locally available compost local agrlculturists
• Feedback gathered by the City of Penticton in 2018 indicated strong support from local

residents for the establishment of an organics composting facility.

All composting will take place within a building. This will allow for strict odour controls, The

entire site will be lined so all liquids can be collected for recirculation on site. The RDOS has

applied for a grant that would fund food waste diversion and the proposed organics

composting facility. Even without the grant, the RDOS Is confident the current economic

model makes good fiscal sense. The RDOS has also partnered with the City of Pentlcton to

look at developing a new compost site to replace their existing waste water treatment

sludge compost site at Campbell Mountain,

This partnership has the potential of saving millions of dollars, while permanently removing
the odour and leachate associated with the existing Penticton facility.

duonl

Serving the citizens of the Okanagan-Similkaineen since 1966.

www.rdos.bc.ca

50



EXHIBIT 28

Proposed OreanicsComoostine Facility ; :
/-^ • ••••••••• • "•.-•- •..^^;^::.? •;;:-..•.-• , . . ,.

Freauentlv Asked Questions I j 1 ,

Wi^locali^sidentsAetpniSi^djaboHt^es^
Yes;^lTeRDOS^as;deyelopeda<Qi^
oppiprtunJties tpiprpvide feedback ancijget^dltioiwJjinJFo'i^^

Cdrr)inlsslon(ALC). "I ; i
In addition, a solid waste management and rezffnlng.prpcss? will alsotakeplacft ;

Should I be concerned about leachate? i

The Province of BC strictly forbids compost sites frorn polluting ground water. The prppo^^

composting facility must have liners and innpermeable surfaces ,to trap anyfipissible;
leachate. Liquids will be reclrculated onslte which will also reduce water consuniRtion.

Will there be any Increased noise or odours?
Even with more materials being composted, odours will be reduced by aRprQximately 7^
over the current City of Penticton compost site. ft/ljxlngarid primary c()roRp^l%awfll;|take
place;inside buildings designed for odour control. Any equlR'ment operating outside would
be done in the daytime, during regular business hours.

What about traffic?
The compost site Is intended to help reduce wait times at tlie landfill. Vehicles with yard
waste will go to the compost site, and not to the landfill. Th|s will reduce line ups at the
landfill scale, especially in the spring and fall when traffic volumes are muchihigber.

Areyou mixlng,foQdwa?te and waste water sliidge? ;
No;Jhere will be separate areas forfcod waste conifip$tancf waste water treatment^lydge
composting. Waste sludge compost; will be usedto create a;lapdscap!ing ptoilwt^ViVieloadi
and yard waste can be used for agricultural conn^ost^t^put the us^fwastBjslyjdlge.iThe
City of penticton is lookingto upgrade the existlng^ste;watertreatmentslucl^;facll!tyat
Carnpbell Mountain. The two facilities will be able tp share equipment, emR!pyses,at»d
Infrastructure which wilt help save millions of dollars in construction, land and operating
costs. It makes good fiscal sense for the City of Pentlcton and the RDOS to be working
together on this project.

;2;

51



EXHIBIT 28

Proposed Oreanics Compostine Facility

Next Steps

The RDOS is currently awaiting feedback from the ALC regarding siting of the proposed
composting facility. Alternatively, the facility could be sited on non-ALR land,! This presents a

moreteostly option that is still viable,

Due to the COVID-19 crisis, open house events and public meetings are not being scheduled

at this time. In the coming weeks, the RDOS will be launching an online engagement

webslte similar to Shape Your City Pentlcton. This new Interactive website called Regional
Connections, will allow you to contribute your Ideas and feedback on RDOS Issues and
projects.

Thanl^ you,

iv'4^ ^<^.'x
Karla Kozakevich, Chair

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen

For further information, please call 250-492-0237 or email infoOrdos.bc.ca.

ClvlcReqdy* Mass Notification System - sign up for routine and emergency notiflcattons: ^p.s://?mL>rRcncy.rdo';.hc,c^/ciyjc-i esdy/

52



EXHIBIT 29

From: ALC Okinignn Land Ur ALC:EX ALC.OI<,n]ni]an'L"q<w.l)i; ra
Subjrct: RE: 1313 araytacK Mounlnin Road, pentteton, BC. NolkM ol Etduston Apfillcatkin

Dale: Apdie.EOZOall
To; JocquioJacl

Ill Jncqiiie.

To cluril'y, the ALC IKIS not yel received un iipplicntion I'or exclusion fbrtliis property. I will keep

ynnr cin.iil on file -'or if/when an nppticnlinn is submitted lo the ALC in the luturu, but nt this lime

nil coinnicnls slmuld be .senl to the RDOS.

If the application n submitted (n (lie ALC, (lie Commissioners will review nil file material,

hicliuling public I'u.-dli.'ick,

Sincerely.

Kaliu Cox I Lund Use Pliinncr I Ai.iriculluml L;md Coimnissiun

201 - 4940 C;m;id;i Way. Bnrnnhy, BC, V5G 4Kh I 2:Ki.4<)S.2041
AJ .C.Ok;uiiig,ui("'i:<)V.I)c.ta I ivivw.nli.' ynv.bi.'.cii

Ifwu «/(• fun //ff in{<-ni!n{ ft-cipu'nt nf{fn\ t'-nmU (imf nlim fmu'nlv /;/f^.u- tiutify //((' ,V(';f(/t7 /^1 /t'/(f//i c-Dinif iWf <lrl<'h' ifii1

i1-tn/iil anif/i(itn'hn\<'nht'nnn<'tlhif{fl\\f!ih i* nun{ niu! (illi«llun<'nl\ mdv hi' tfit^h{t'ti{Kil<nntpnv!li'^'<f.{'<'^if!^iift<ilifyfuul

prh'Ut'^t' (//»' w'l //^fin fhi\ f niitil un<i ufltifhfiffttx fidvini; /'('CM \i'm [<t tilt' wnnnt ftt'r\nti.AnYH\t'uflhis t: nitiHiwi

nitin •hfnfnl\ hy {in tinhi't'wft'ff /t'c-i/t/i'/K /A fn^hUiifc<f,

From: JacquleJacteon [mailto:Jacqulej62@gmall.com]
Sent; Friday, April 3, 2020 3:29 PM
To; ALC Okanagan Land Use ALC:EX
Subject: Re; 1313 Greyback Mountain Road, PenUcton, BC - Notice of Exclusion Application

IHKalle,

I have some concerns regarding this Notice of Exclusion Application by the RDOS for the

above property.

The Notice sign initially had a deadline dutc of April 3, 2020 but on March 25, 2020 the
RDOS extended the deadline lo April 8, 2020.

In your Application Instructions, Step 3: Addilional Exclusion Documents

# I. Copy ol' Newspaper Advertisements - it states that the application must be advertised on
two separate occasions not less than 7, or more than 14 days apart,...

To dale, the RDOS has only posted one notice in the newspaper and that was on Marcli 25,
2020 and now next Wednesday, April 8th is the deadline date. How much notice docs that
actually give the public to express any interest in this Notice?

53



EXHIBIT 30

Cana February 7,2017 7:19 pm

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen purchases home near
landfill for $500k

By Shelby Thorn
Suulli Okanuyan Vkluu jQunitillsl Global News

The Campbell Mountain Landlill, located 5 kilometres east of downtown Penticton, has been operational for 45 years.

It was built long before there were requirements for a special liner or membrane beneath the soil.

That's why contaminants from the garbage ara now leaching beyond the dump's property line.

"It Is a landfill and it was constructed In 1972 so Ihere is going to be leachate. We've been testing around the landfill for years
waiting to see if It was going to start moving down towards the lake and in oarly 2016 we got our first Indicators that it was
moving off-site," said Bill Newell, CAO at Regional District of Okanagan Slmltkamsen (RDOS),

The RDOS is attempting to mitigate the problem.

The regional district purchased the property at 1655 Reservoir Road for $600,000.

Engineering Supervisor Lllsa Bloomtield said it's partially becauss the property is within a 300-mstre buffer zone from tha
landfill.

Bloomfleld said thers are also signs of "leachate-type indicator contaminants" in the well, which was not used as a potable

source.

Those materials, also discovered in on-sits monitoring wells, contain higher than normal levels of sodlum and chlorlde.

Some residents In the area say they aren't worried about legchate migration,

At least one property owner residing al the base of the landfill said their drinking water comes (rom a domestic source and area
residents use irrigation systems for their wineries and orchards,

The RDOS said It will bs Installing a leachate collection system to ensure contaminated ground water does not reach
Okanagan Lake.

"It will put it into a lagoon and will treat the water there and dispose of it," Newell said.

The regional district said the new collection system will be implemented this summer.

Newell said the system Is in the design stage therefore the cost has not been finalized.

Get daily BC headlines and alerts

Email Address

Sign up
© 2017 Global News, a division of Corus Entertainment Inc.

54



EXHIBIT 31

^DrJ^

April 4, 2017 File No.: 0620.07 OKANAGAM.
Solid Waste Management Plan SIMILKAMEEN

JAMES JACKSON
JACQUELYN JACKSON
130 FALCON RIDGE DR
PENTICTON BC V2A8T4

Re; Invitation to Open House about Campbell Mountain Landfill

The Regional District of Okanagan-Slmilkameen (RDOS) Invites you to a public Open House on Monday
April 24th, 7.017 from 6:00 pm to 8;45 pm with a presentation at 7:00 pm at the Pentlcton Library
Auditorium, 785 Main Street. This public open house will go over upcoming major capital projects and the

potential for the use of blocover In for Campbetl Mountain Landfill, Other Issues to be discussed Include the
siting of compost facilities and cart collection In rural areas,

A public webslte has been set up at www.rdos.bc.ca/deoartments/oublic-works/solid-waste/DUblic-

consultatlon-oreanlcs-carts-landfills with detailed Information.

In 2016, the Regional District developed a new Design, Operations and Closure Plan. The Innovative design
will allow the Campbell Mountain Landfill to stay open until 2104. In 2017 and 2018 the Campbell Mountain
Landfill will be undergoing some large-scale capital projects to help protect the environment.

Blocover Testlne

The RDOS Is working with Sperllng Hansen and Associates, Metro Vancouver and the University of Calgary
to develop blocover test plots on the Campbell Mountain Landfill beginning In the Spring of 2017.These
plots will test the effectiveness of blocover to break down methane as it is released by the landfill.

Methane, a powerful greenhouse gas, makes up about 40% of landfill gas.

In 2008, the Province of BC required larger landfills to install landfill gas capture systems, This Involves
capping and sealing the landfill to contain gas and then removing the gas with pipes. Analysis shows that
the Campbell Mountain Landfllj will never capture a significant amount of landfill gas. All the gas collected
would be flared.

As an alternative, the RDOS has applied to the Province to install a blocover system across the entire

landfill. Biocover works by using a mix of wood chips, organic matter and sand to create an ecosystem for

methane eating bacteria. Blocovers are In place across BC but this would be the first use on a facility of this

size for primary methane destruction,

If the plots are successful, the RDOS will cover over 8 hectares of landfill with an active biocover In 2018. If
they are not successful then the RDOS will be required to Install a landfill gas capture system. The biocover
option has been estimated at saving over $13 million over the life of the landfill as compared to landfill gas
capture.

Drainase Prevention and Leachate_Contro|

Drainage through the landfill property and leachate leaving the property are Intertwined. Water coming

down the mountain can flow through the soil into the Landfill property, If allowed to come in contact with

55



EXHIBITSl

garbage or compostablc materials it can pick up contaminates. This ground water, mixed with any surface

runoff, can then leave the site contaminating properties down slope.

The RDOS has confirmed that traces of contaminated ground water has left the Campbcll Mountain

property. The main contaminate found are salts, that are an Indicator that other, more serious, materials
may be moving downhill. The RDOS has Informed all affected property owners.

In 2017 the RDOS will be designing and building a leachate capture system and drainage diversion
Infrastructure. The drainage diversion will be along Splller Road. The leachate capture system will be at the
base of the landfill. Water collected will be stored in a small lined pond. Depending on the quality of the

water collected, the water will either be removed for treatment or used (or Irrigation on site.

Mov_lna_the Pentlcton Wastewater Treatment.StudRe Comoost Facility

The RDOS has commenced survey work to look at relocating the City of Pentlcton Wastewater Treatment

Sludgc composting operation from its present location within the Campbetl Mountain Landfill to one across

Spllter Road. The site would be accessed from Splller Rd and would be within the Campbell Mountain
Landfill property. Moving the site will allow for more room within the landfill area for storage of recyclables

and future landfllllng space.

Sltinaof a Realonal_FoodWaste_ComBost Fadlitv

Two locations have been determined as the best sites to potentially locate a large scale Regional Compost

Facility. One Is located along Marron Valley Road near Highway 3A. The other Is located at the Summerland

Landfill. The RODS Is commencing public consultation to discuss these sites.

The Regional Compost Facility would be able to compost residential and commercial food waste, yard

waste and wood waste. Wastewater treatment sludge could also be composted separately at the site,

Your Feedback and Questions

If you would like to submit any questions or concerns please contact Cameron Baughen, RDOS Solid Waste

Management Coordinator, at 250-490-4203. E-mails can be sent to organlcs@rdos.bc.ca, fax to 250-492-

0063 and mail to 101 Martin Street, Penticton BC. We took forward to seeing you at the Open House.

Sincerely,

Llisa Bloomfield, P.Eng.

RDOS Engineering Supervisor

56



H-K
• -^

f ^

' . i.'^'1

''»..'.y

'^9^-^^i^sm^^lSilgi^i^^^!^^^ .
^ t i if} '.' . ; , •> r

^»

\ I '»'

Sj^^^^^

^'

ri-

^'1"
^:.
fcMR-'

-•'..'••-A' >.

•<wtr'>

"k '-i>i

^yp ..-v^, "<.• . . , <-^T. ^

~^^/: '^:**'
•-»<Cf--*l-'i' »v

^•''af-

.^r;**
I'.-tWil*.

i'-ju- jac .-sc -fc. .aAt-.ra;
^^^••s:s^'y
as .^fc'A, S'.t .*

IN
iK

-*?'.<

^
M.t!M'

,<n'(^

U1
•^

X
I
00

u>
NJ



EXHIBIT 32

wwwpcnlictanwcHt'mncwicom P.nttitonW.ifmNmn Friday. AtofU/2017 AS

Property owners speak out against organic site

MBnth>n1BaBdihiimUunh<«<iimKrt|wM)coptiilimBtitK«ltihn
(Miinuiii>yHdlWt<ln«ri>»NljM.U»l«y«(lhtitiMtBUI!i«iHhtridrity«l«n*o»
ft* fnipaud dm h Itanwi Ihlhyurf in (OTunu* >boutnltB(i In |in»trt|( nluu
btumttr«ifaui,lMdut(*n<u«ttrquBty.

wnwwwnMxffvas

Residents fear odour will affect property values

TurtBwlt
BbdiPrn.

Landowners in Mar-
ran Valley arc con-
ccmcd properly values
arc going to decay as
talk continues around
building a regional
compost facility in
llie arta.
Cnnnie CKthe-

lin'Caalfc who owns
a 20-acre properly
lliiil backs on I" the
proposed site said
us soon as poieniial
buycrahear about the
urgaiiies facility lliey
walk. Along with her
husband, Rudy Cas-
tie, tluy hwe spent 20
years wirUng the land
and mauicuring it to
be what they call the
most beautiful prop-
eiu'es in the valley.

"We've had a lol
of people look at it.
fbcjt low it and nrc
really intenstcd until
they hear about the
organiu." she said
after a public mccl-
ing in Kalcdcn on
Wednesday about ihc
proposed I'adtity.

They Fear if the fa-
cilily goes ahead and
is buill on locales
property awnctt by a

manbtfofthcfcntic-
toil Indian Band that
their home wilt never
sell. The couple have
had the home for sale
privately for the last
few years, conwiaua
of (he rcatily ihat a»
ihcy age they might
not be ublc (o mmn-
Kin tin: property.

Thtyoindiillylistd
il lur sale with a red-
latjlcitarewmontht
ago aflcr rcdUL'ing
their asking price
signfficauily.

"We've ulreiitly re"

tiuced our price. Peo-
pie are interested. It's
a great propeny. But
as soon as they hear
about Uie comrover-
sy over the site they
aren't interested. 1
certainly understand
tlielrl'iselingCCallie-
llu.Castlc laid.

Monsttian 100 pea.
pie, moitly I'rom the
Marron Valley corn-
munity. attended a
public meeting about
the development.
Many of the 31 pmp-
crty owners located
within an odour con-
trol area, determined
through a feasibility
Mady by the Rcgian-
al Dislricl Okana-

gnn-Siuiilkftmecn,
expressed concerns
about property values.

Amy Jo dark who
owns property witliin
a two minute drive of
the proposed Oicilily
questioned whether
the RDOS had pluns
>o compensate nsi-
dcnis for last ptdpetty
vatusi,

She pointul nut that
it would he (hree to
five years until the fa-
dlity wa* in aperalion
and several yeara be-
fore it caultl be prov-
en that llu area was
not nqsilncly aJl'ect-
ed by odour or other
probtems while in tile
meantime property
owners must wail in
limbo.

"Tlnns'anoqiuatlon
you've reduced prop-
eny values by 100's of
(tiousanda of dollars."
she said.

The longtime resi-
dent also raised con-
co rosragBfding teach-
ate. water quality aad
the number of tmcks
ihaiuuuklbegaingup
and down the Marron
Valley Road,

Camcron Daughcn,
solitl Waslc nianagc-
inenl co-onlinaior

forthcRDOSaaidat
this point the regional
district had not setup
anyn'ny to coropematc
property owners and
encouraged raidcnHi
several limes Ihrough-
out the mating (o slay
involved by sending
in comirtcnts Or con-
iSrttttoiheRDOSor
talking to Ihcir elected
ulTiciaK

SwfT ai the RDOS
have worked over ihe
lust seven yea» on sil-
ingaaofgwiiufadlliy
lliat could take yard
and food waste, wood
chips and treatment
riud^e For the region.
During ih.n time IS
sites were considered
and six, including
Summcrland. under-
went further study-
after the RDOS re-
ceivcd a federal grant

The fcaability study
looked at factors in-
eluding odour control
and potential proper-
ties allectcd. cost. im-
pact on the Campbclt
Mountain I-nndnil
and transportalion
lo and from the site.
During I he studies
31 propertiw were
idcniilictl in Marrun
Vultey as having Uie
polcntiiil lo be alTccl-
cd by oilouf ai poinis
lllroughuill the year.
Tlie modelling sliowil
Hut no properties
would be alftcled by
odour if llle Sum-
metland Landfill ttins
chosen.

Odour control is top
of mind tot stalT at
RDOS.Biughensuid.
adding although the
operation of ihcl'acil-
ily will be contracted
out the regional dia-
irict will have atriet
monitoring in place.

To control odour
and lcachatc the
composting will lake
place inside a build-
ing and on concrete.
The finished compost
will also be stoned in
u buiMing. By having
ihe compost contained
il will not be exposed
la the ebmcnts and

lciichalc will be able
to be captured and
reciroulatcd.

"We want to do this
right (he firsl time," he
snid,
fackic Goodfcl-

low and her family
moved lo His urcajn'.l
six month* ago. Her
home is in ihe odour
zone but her majnr
concerns surround
the Iarg< irucl.s thai
would now he (load-
ing tlw mad.

"In my experience
tltlsisawttding.sieep
daugeroua road that

you're now going (o
send large trucks
down. And then thore
is the junction locon-
sidcr. There are lime!.
[spend 12 ininulcs
siding Ihcrc trying to
Inm and now you're
going (o besicndinjj 25
Irucka a day Ihrougli
Itere," die said. "On
paper it may look like
a good tbo ice but the
iwlily is (hat it's nul."

Tile major conceru
with tile Suminer-
land Landfill is thai
trucks would have to
travel tlu'ougli seven

kilometres of road
mainly through reai-
dcnlial areas and past
a school.
The next public

meeting on Ihc ar-
ganics compost fil-
ciliiy will lake pliiee
in Summcrland on
May I7al6;30p.m,
al Odd Felluws^Re-
bekah trail,

SlilfT Will incluile
comments at public
infurmaliun mtellng's
in their reconuneiuto-
dun lo ihe board of
the RDOS someiiuie
in June.

*_y/^r^il/r "^'^

For your vote of confidence and I promise to
continue to represent all the cituens of this riding

to the best of my ability in the Legislature.
Together, we will make a iliflerence in ensuring our

regions' success!

STRONG BC I
FUTURE

DANASHTON

B1EISIISBIR

KfERlENGiPERgEiTJQN

/ Buy I ar2 eligible appliances and leceive 10% INSTANT SHVINflSI'

/ Buy 3 or4 eligible appliances and receive 15% INSTANT SAVINfiSI*

/ Buy 5 or more eligible appliances and lecelre MS INSTANT MVINOSI'

'Plus* ue in-stTO (orlul ifcli-ls.

•Sa kwniyKAsodn hi Ml *tafa

58



x
3:

Ln
U3 (A)

NJ



EXHIBIT 32

•^Qneei'i^ii^li.Bei.al^.it
ecmip^iiite

^ motion; aboyjltli^ Ri'oRGis^^lasiJit'^t^si fc)i@n^
schec(uled;tQKC(3j^tii^

28 • :te^S^SSS:S^<l
JOHNARENDT / Aua,25;,20^4:^P.m<^y3e?I'li^i4JNi^y ,

Closeto 90 Surnmer|andei%i^it^c^c@m^abou^£^ RrQRO^

regional compo^ifa^lityro^iQniFricla^e^jngl^:^
to take action.

The meeting, ata homeioi^ l^itc(?ll/Wgny@,^^o^

people living near l;he;$ite ofrthe;RropQ§edt facility^

Kathy Smith, one^the organizers se^d in Ma^sl^aRdp^

had asked Summerland council toi tollthem ahQUt the Regional

District of OkanagariSimilkameen'&prciposal to havsthefgcllity

located in Summerland.

They wrote letters tQitheiregiQnaldistric^aodithenriun

expressing concerns about water, air, traffic and the local

economy if the site were to be located in Summerland.

At the time, they were told any depislon WQyldl^ and

detailed consultation process.

A motion about the propQsectifacjlity ha&tieeffischedyliad^to

come before municipal council on Aug.28.

In addition, the regional dj^rirt ha;? RassiBdg.n'io'tlpiritous.e

$63,000 for on-site tests. T^iBrecijojTal district h^

Summerland council to pas>s a mptjpritebegjn^te^^^

for the future building and;Qpereiti(3n.pfl1;he|ptORQsed|§ew@ge

id compost facility.

"This will be a binding agre^iTientiandco^ta^paygi^t^py^n

to alter or rescind," Smitl'ilsgid^^ ^

60



EXHIBIT 32

Ittbfti^giprial.iCQmRQSt^ciHt^s^apRR^^

regional dlstri(^|wiliimn:the;QR@ratlQn;andiSu^ '^.

relinquish its$ontrot;pYe^the;le^i8cl;8ite^,i^^^^:^^^ :^; .•'•';':::, ;

/^~\ •'/':;. ":"• ':. :• . • ,.i"-:;';.::':- • . '•;

ahe would Jjk9:)T)uhtefpaticpuncJtA?!tak^mNtffi<%^

effects before;rnaldpg;aide^islQn,(?nflhi5^o^^^ ; ,\

"What is the hurr^";she^^|^d.^]hy^(:iiSp[:i^

residents know about thi$?" , ^ ; ,

She urged residgnts^ ^iteAo<!oyn^l,^att^a

meeting, talk:wtthi?ipi]^neighbQurSt;p6st'slgns^or;t^

assist with lnformation;groups to^qyestiQn,;coyncil.:

Those present at the.meeting express@d^theincpncei'n£.;about

the proposed facility.

"What's going to happen five, 10 or:20;yearMotW)1:ti&rpad,"

asked Mel Kozun, wondering if th@facIljty;wpulHieyerrtuaill^l<e
^-^ ^. - - • .•.••••....-;.•. •-.,...•..";;,,

•i compost facititie? from the entire valley, not just from the

regional district.

Marilyn Hansen suggested the,BrBndaNlne;site;:as a bietter

location. She said lbis;slti9^hasl30en^CT)mrne(ided^

Siddon, a diredo^aftheAegiQnal;dJstrict. ;

Coun. Janet Peakesaid members of couricil.needto.cpnsjder

the decision carefully before the vote.

"Our landfill isao; asset, and.vw;shpuldAe;car^l;iv^h,ouir

assets," she s^jd.-'l thinKithere^^omerialcTOiar^gem

involved in having^landfill."

A resolution at the;:councif meting Js;fw the rnunicfpality^to
<"~\ ^.-...... .... .^ . • i-\"; ';.;/';';':':t'^:%'v^::':,

.ovide the nBg!Qnal;districrt;with,gcces?t&lbeilandfHL|site,^

the purpose of carrying outtechnicat studies related to;the

proposed facility.

61



en
M

m;<
3:
03

tu
w



-t-

wwwpenrtcronwesremnews.rom hntkton Wastem NMU

composting sites

.lOughtx'WipttfCTt
of waste CP7"Cl1^Jn "^Wf 4ft*difl
IBgUU* • ; • :-'• ... '. ••

Diverting these materuls has
benefits indudmg Extending the
life oEJandfiilii rsdudflg grem-
house gas cmissoBB and creaiixig
compost fm-agricultural produc-
tiOD.

This is not tbe lust time a com-
posting facility has been consid-
cred by thcrcgioDaI district

In 2017i'than»ona] district
considered a facility to be located
at dther the Sluxtpaertand LaridfiU
or the MitCO^Ifal^ylAndGtf:,

Bolh a'tet were rejected and

^aiSwBlSlKiii^h-.^tohhtemi^a^a;^^^^
both were the subject of cunsid- He added thai the ua'stingfa-
erabfc public opppsilioa. dliryalCanipbeB Mountain docs

Reeder has raised concerns not meet the prCTincc's regula-
about both of thesitts now under tions (bt lcsichsle mnnaBCmfnt,
coflddeiatioii. Tie sila. atjOkaflagan Falls is

The CfUBpbdBMonnUun Land- EmaB and is not as affidaal as
BD has a biosolids fadliiy, but this Campbcll Mountain. Pulling a
facflfty does not haveodourcon- compost facility at Ihis site could
bcland^villafi'oclneigbboimng also result in some piihlia oppp-
properties, lie said sitian,hcsaid.

J/tliEocucpostmgfaalii^wBB
to be'located at die CMcauagsui
Falls site, the landfill itsdl may
n66<^tp)?e dosed to accommodate
tlUS,pP^iOOr

IFriBtthnr of lie tro site under
consideration proves to be fea-
sible, regional djstrict staflT will
conader'whether fufHiar site m-
views are warranted.

\ JKSeptanber27.201910

r..<.nrt/-4. -mcrt^t-Q^I

CT1
UJ

x
3:
co

w
-p.



EXHIBIT 35

3/ZIU020 RDOS eying property near Pciltlclon landfill For new organica nml bioaolida compi

<
Saturday, Mar 21 \

< city > Pcntlcton's Homepage Gwale castanet '•:Fiy*is fll/

Home ;'i < n.ni.i ^'.llii^ 1.1.11.'. .|.n;r l.:.l .'.I't-. i-.j. ,;!! ••1. P< ,r

GREENGpiR'
CANNABIS CO.

NOW 0
IN TWO LOG

9ftM-8pM | 7DA1

Pentlcton

Compost location found?
RDOS eying property near Pentlcton landfill for new organlcs and
biosolids composting facility
Co«nUitr«.lant,»M/1l;no..

Ptiotu:CooBt<;M*pi

The Regional District of Okanagan Slmllkameen is <iy1ng a parcel of land near the C-ampbcll
Mountain Landfill for a new arganlcs .inri blosollds waste composting fadllty,

The board will meet Thursday to discuss the purchase of an unidentified ALR property next to the
dump. I he location nns been selected artcr a review or campbcl) Mountain and itie OK Fdlh
landnils, the latest part of a mulll-year, someUmcs.conlrovcrslal search for location for a regional
composting facility.

The RDOS has been struggling slnre 2017 >u flnu a place lo process blosollds from the PmUcton
Wasiewater Treatment Plant as well as food and yard waste. The current outdoor facility at
Campbell Mountain Is not.compllant wllh regulations and has drawn tamRlalntsJmm
afil(;btiflU!3i.

An KDOS report says a new grant program has been Idenlineil llm tnuld fund up to 83 per cent
of Uie expected $l7.2-mllllon price tag for the facility, which vwuld uuitee ln.vessel" composting
lo minimize odours.

'A recent business use comparing a currently designated site at Campbell Mountain and the
proposed site has determined, a potential advantage of <H.7 million to purch.isc the new site
rather than build on the Campbell Mountain Landlitl site due to gcotcchnlcal considerations," llie
report says.

The movement of the composting site off the current property will also ftce up between »11
million and S16 million worth of (andftlt space.

"The proposed land purchase will buy lands that are currently Impacted due to nuisance, thus
eliminating Q source of complaint and liability," the report continues.

Should tlie grant .ippllutlon ba successful, the RDQS would he required to contribute Just t2.9
million to construction, plus the cost of land.

Studies have found that up to 2C pur cent of the total waste stream could be dhicrtcd from the
landHII should a regional cumposllng facility be built and a curb side food collection program be
rolled OUL

The RDOS has buen tiylng to llnd 3 locadon for such a facility for years. It Initially selected a
property In MorronValtcy In 2017, but reversed course after outcry frotn neighbours iipt) thq^local

hUpa;/Avwiv.cnsl]mcI.ni:l/ni:wa/Pcndclon/273978/UDOS-i:ying-i)ropcrty.ncar.PcnUclon-l;uidllll-for-ncw-organlcs-]

64



EXHIBIT 35

WUIWW RUOS eying property ww Pcnliclon lamlBII for new orgnnic.s nnd liiniolids compoiline fncllily - Pcnltaon Ntw - CmimcUiel

ML*. Th« DIMflri IX Sumnuriind alio mfui«d to hsilUr fBdlin nl Ir cwi HndUI laler thil ynar.

Th* RD03 b^nrd wW d!*cuu Uw Bdunl purdiu* of Ihft prtperty In a cloxd taulw Thunday
morning, far ~v In (h* •ftem&on will d6bB<» <pptylno for Uia nquind cranla and m)uif<id ALR
*xc)utk>n di. , jn open union.

/ —Backto^onrpapt

-ondNowaTlp Report TVpo D|KU*I n Forumi • f ^[n +

B

Mom Pentlcton News

nWHtfaffnf'ElilIs
Getting ^ou flown?

SftteSobTsdiUi),'^
CLICK HERE pan FMeoMUULUTWH

BaldyRaiortclosIna
. Sunday

£ F*rtUon.'3'?<pm

Arreslsd for not
quarantining
QurtiBCty.lflDpni

The latest COVID
numbere
cintdN.^oopm

Quaranllne order
enforceable
BC.tjOOpm

la thai you allha Civic?
Wimon. 17 00 fill

hllp3://m\w,ciulnticUict/newt/I\!nlJcton/273978/RDOS-cyine-propurty"iicarJ\^lkton-lnndni|-ror-ncw-organlcs.and-bio8oHds-coropy^^ 1/7

65



EXHIBITS?

F CamTon •auah»n cbauQhon'ii'rdosbc.ua ^
Sub,..,: RE; Open Snuton ngudlng •RDOS •ylng plopgrty new Ptnttolon landHI loi n»w organks and bkimlkta compotllng

(acllty
Dale: Januuy 8,2020 0111:10 AM

To: AllxMacDonah
Cc: Jncqula Jacl<m|

The Board Agenda is available here: hflps:/Avww.rdos.bc.ca/regional-government/board-
meetinas/2020-schedule-of-meetlngs-agendas/

You would be looking for the Board Meeting In the afternoon. This Is not an Interactive
meeting but the public are welcome to anend In the gallery. The RDOS office Is at 101
Martin Street. Parking can be an issue and the closest free parking Is down on the lake
by the Peach concession stand.

Cameron Baughen, RDOS Solid Waste Management Coordinator
101 Martin Street, Penticton BC
Ph 250-490-4203 TF 1-877-610-3737
cbaughen@rdos,bc,ca iwmjilasJac^a

This Communication is Intended lot Iha use of ?is teclplanl to whkh II Is nddiessed, and may contain conlldenllal,
pefsonsl and/ or pMlaged Inloimntlon. Plume canlscl lh» snnrfsr Immedlalety il you SIR not Ihfi Inlmded recipient ol this
communication and do not copy, distribute or lake actton refyng on it. Any commumcaUon rowivod In orror, or eubsequont
reply, should be delofed or cfestroyed

From: Allx MacDonald, Crooked Tree
Sent: January 3,2020 11:05 AM
To: Cameron Baughen <-/<hnii"ha^<ra^»^ ^ -,^

Cc: 'Jacqule Jackson' <
Subject: Open Session regarding "RDOS eying property near Pentlcton landfill for new
organlcs and blosollds composting facility"

HI Cameron,

This Castanet article - ht!ps://www.castanet.net/news/Penticton/273978/RDOS^syJng-
PJ'ORerjy_near-Penticton-landfill-for-new-organics-and-biosollds-compostlng:
facility (1273978 - slates Hint "The RDOS board will discuss the actual purchase of the properly in a
closed session Thursday morning, but later in the afternoon will debate applying for the required aranls

and required ALR ejtclusion during an open session", Mnny residents of the Fnlconridge area ore
inlcrcsled in nllcn.ling. Would you please lell me when and where lliis meeting will Inkc place so llint 1

may inform (lie ncighbuurliood?

Thank you,

Alix

Atix MacDonald, BID, BFA(Hons)
Crooked Tree Guest Suites

67



EXHIBIT 36

F : Allx MacDonaId, Crooktd Trf
Sub, .: RE: RDOS eying property noar Pentteton landlill for new organtas and biosolids composling faclllly

Dale: January 7,2020
To; Jacquie Jachaon

Maybe it would be timed with the new road?

Here's what Ram Willis just sent me:

I called Karla Kozakavitch yesterday and had a long, cordial and interesting
conversation. She explained that she couldn't say what property they were
considering because it was at the in camera phase. They would also then liave to
go through the ALR rezoning process with the provincial government. We
discussed a huge range of issues up here including Gil and his access through
your property.
It is possible that the address (or the composting site could be the old Spiller
Ranch but I really have no idea. She did say that tliere is a public portion of the
meeting on Thurs afternoon. I may go to hear what they have to say but I told her
that I wanted my protest to be known regarding conversion of ALR land to non
agricultural use.

Yours in protest
Pam

Gotta run ... first trip to town today (yes, 4 yesterday '-'.) coming up,

Alix

66



EXHIBIT 38

3/21(2020 I'cnllclon dlrcctora voice approval far regionul rompoiling inldndvc - InfoNcwi

\'0^|r ,U(l !. in i (<>[ your hirintT

CAN THEY - ' YOU?

Business, News, People and Reverse Search
for Penllcton, South Okenagan & Slmllkamean Amas *?

ruir.'nl CunilUlm

(.l.;itilySuiu;y
M.II'I;

Home I-ILW-. ':nVlU iy It'h'.'tni.' V/eiilli^ Hittiq^iuDt? Dpunnn r,[Kjrri Fu<''ri'-ilnm: "1 Fvfnr nit^nr-.-. OirrriOiy Ahnnl M'/Infotfl

^^^ Bra^^!,
^g|py - ScwAqreatsertlCA!

PenUcton directors voice approval for regional composting
initiative

StevsAfStad I'
^.

SPIR ITLEAF

?nts_Fit5t-LeaaL
ietail Cannabis

^OWOPB^

ARE YOU 1 9+?,
LB

Pnput^r P^nUrton Nfws C'-rtnuiiliUl

CondiKd about your wpowMttfM to ttay
hcmcTDr. Donnta Hwy dtatlfies

Atwrtfaxwfrwrti

Tm rut tovfno my doo;' V&rwn coupfc In r-todos
wait for flight home AUn^ aft »»r.jo AM

Dc ftonnte Hairy wry dear on dOtureofd.L
tafons, aroomfno burincncs: TTili fs not
opOonaT M^fso.wsti'-i-iop^

One Okanaoan ski hiU iwulns oocn descite
COVID-19 protooote hiMchiu.sMtMW

venwn woman duooowl wih coviD-19 13/1 ihe
was rtfliMd ttat MnctfW.wwe^w

Advertising
TOJRKSF}iawiyOf,Jlsa •turn

Regional board dlnttors and (Mitlcul.lrly PmUaon directors voiced their collective enthusiasm over a staff
recommuidaUon that would provide bnpchis ror a composting raclllly.

A staff recommendation calling for a grant application for funds to build a regional composting fadtrty vres
approved at todayt, Jan. 9, regional dislrkt bond meeUng, - ' - ' ; lOp Nens

Rcotoml Olarlct of Okaruigan Slmlllumcm d.ter cxecuUvc omar Din Ncwcll told the bonrd ihi! regBmil ; l^!5lmd°'r' cyn1'ari °l""m;,ra,SS ^,
dtolct had b(Mn studying po^bta site for a lcglonalcnmposUnn facility for Mwral»«aB and bad nm^ ' ""°°" »««.ai,:

[ approved a site for CMIver<

j A seaicli for another more nortliem site has cenlied around Uie Campbell Mountatit (andntl, wllh Uie
1 regloMl district looking at several properties In the area.

Newell said board authority was required In order for Uie rcgkmal district to apply for a grant that would
I fund up to 83 per cent of capital costs, If successful,

NCHCU said dlscuaton wMl landnwnere for a possible pnpcity puichase atsu nwdcd to be InlU.sted.

c'~toiilrtftnwc^l' r • •...

i^^-H
;i <<Niteistelrtltt*AilttJ'iyJJ"

I

litotor Haatth anwunoes diangea to (WciUrt
aailtn amW COWD-U pandanlc

u»diai,ao»m>wf

Tnmuu uy» Caiuila vinMnc lan), but viw't be
nUeUtKt a CiaMns hair

U*vh».&W3X)PM

TTie blest numbers of COVID-19 cases In Canada
U»th2l.lCW3I6PU

Some KOTtooftt, okanagan gotf coums open and
takina pmcatrtkmE aoatdrt COVID-19

M»rfi2t.iO»2»PM

hUpay/lnrolcl.ca/newsilcnVpcnUcloil-dinctora-voicc-approvnl-for-regionnl-c<)inposling-inillative/il69281ff.Xhfo2R<IUVM).facehook 1(3

68



EXHIBIT 38

3/21/2020 Pcnliclon dln-clora voice npprovnl for regional composting inillnlivc - ItifuNclti

RDOS managef of opcraUons Andrew Rccdcr bold the board tieneftts of a composting facility Included a
potential 25 per cent reduction In landfill use, and Uie production of mmpast (or local agricultural use.

—.CcnUttnn dlredor Julius BlMmfltld voiced his •lull suppnrt" for UIB InlUathe, wlille PenUclon director Katla
•oblnson called It "really (ortfl overdue '

Pcnllrton director Jake Kimberley aid he was In support of exlcndlng tin life at the landBII,

•Anything to do w]Ui landnn Is going to tw enpenslw- he said.

PenUcton director Frank Kegehr also expfcsscd his support.

Nat stepi wW dtpend on Uie regional dlstilctls success In nlnlng a grant, Rccder »ys If successful with a
' grant award tilts fall, It would take between six months and 3 year to build Uic faculty, following which tho

regional district would Imptement a ourteide progrBm.

iNFP,,.,,
Tags! EentlctonjBBS, PN1AN2D20. Rnns ima. RODS cnmpasllng^dniv. Shlm Aishid

Add a comment.

SDft by Nowoat

r--.^,),r<^->r,t,pK^n

Moi.'-Hiw,...

Drug wfiotaNlars
Hmlkinfl supply to
phnrmpctu to
prevant boarding

If you're trying to
stock up on
mnlauoiu likt IFs,..

>(

rum^
Trending Now

You cnn nlio aubmilTo conuwl n rtportcr for (hii story, ciqall Slcrc Antail or cull 250-4B8-3063 or
fltulfll, vidcn* ni ncwa Iip* tu HM<t*i(r)wwt q and be entered lo win • monlhly prize draw.

Wo wckomo your eumincnl* and oplnloiu on our iloric* tint play nice. We v>un'( ccaior or delete comment* nnlcit

(hey conlaJn off-lopic itatcmcnli or li(A*. unneccnuy vulyarity, ful»c fncli. fpun <H ubwoiuly fiikc pmfllci. If you
Imvc nny concern* nttnut \vtut you ace In coiiuncnt*, cinitll the editor tn llie linl nliuvr.

News from ® INFOnews, 2020 TRENDING NOW; Conan's guide to
making hand sanlUzw

THE SHOP FRIENDS RECOMMEND

^PENTICTON
f 'T f' Collision Centre

wxm cowruTEAtfTO aopy AMD nuw cnnn.

B.C, farmw'

marketa hoping l
ontlna daflvBriu
wllloffiiatmirkat I
clonjm during
COVID-U ~ '

One wki Uut we I

INTEGRITY ^UTO 'i
REPAIR LTD. s'

\
Auto Rfxik, />lr CondHkmlna, Tlri^ i

^1—Ing. Dln.1. •iVli—l Bolaoclna.;. '

.^"'

CONTACT USI

K.imlnopr Kctcjv.'in I'ffHil.fOll

N.n

n.^,i~i.pjr,.-:in
Thing* to OB

l]tlp»://infulcl.cu/newillcm/[)cnliclon-diru:tois-voicc-»ppn>vnl-for-n!gioi]nl-compoaling.mlliulive/il69281#.Xhfn2E<HJVb0.rnccbook w

69



EXHIBIT 39

'•vswy
OKAHAGAH*

, CIHILKAHEt

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

RE:

Board of Directors

B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer

January 9th, 2020

Organic Composting- Proposed Scope

Administrative Recommendation:

THAT the Regional District apply for an "Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program- B.C." grant In

order to construct an in-vessel organics food, yard waste and blosolld waste composting facility;

AND THAT the RDOS submit an application to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) for the
exclusion of lands required for the purposes of constructing an organlcs composting facility from

the Agriculture Land Reserve (ALR); or, failing that, for a non-farm use;

AND THAT the RDOS enter into an option to purchase agreement for land suitable for the purposes

of constructing an organics composting facility; and, once the land is compliant with regulations

for that use, proceed to purchase the land.

Purpose:
To locate and acquire property for the construction of an in-vessel organics waste composting
facility to accommodate food waste, yard waste and blosolids from the City of Penticton Waste

Water Treatment Plant.

Background:

In order to further divert wastes entering the landfill, the Solid Waste Management Plan has

identified organics diversion as the primary means of achieving this goal. Food waste and other
organic material accounts for approximately 40% of waste going to landfills in the RDOS. Previous

studies estimate a diversion potential of 26% of the total waste stream should a curbside food

collection program be put In place. Further, previous studies have shown that the costs to process

wastes through composting are lower than that of landfilllng.

On September 19th, 2019 the Board authorized staff to pursue a compost siting study. Specifically to

look at the Okanagan Falls landfill site and lands at or near the Campbell Mountain landfill. Upon,

review of these two sites it became clear the Campbell Mountain landfill would be the preferred

alternative. It is also clear that combining the biosolids and organics composting operations will be a

significant cost savings.

C:\Users\Jpeachey\Appdata\Local\Mlcrosoft\Wlndows\lnetcache\Content,Outlook\OlSWM60Z\D,2, Composting Board Report.Docx
FlleNo:C:\Users\)peachey\AppData\Local\Mlcrosoft\Wlndows\INetCache\Content,Outtook\01SWM60Z\D,2,

Composting Board Report.docx Click here to enter text.
Page 1 of 4

70



EXHIBIT 39

'."-I'J'-J

These advantages are:

• The Regional District has submitted an application to the Ministry of Environment for a Bio-

cover methodology to meet the requirements of the Landfill Gas Regulation. Approval and
successful implementation would be assisted by removing organics from Campbell Mountain.

• The Regional District is required to provide a site to the City of Pentirton for bio-solids
treatment and composting. The current site at Campbell Mountain in non-compliant.

• The organics composting facility leachate control system could be combined with the

Campbell Mountain landfill system.

• The Campbell Mountain landfill is open more hours in the week than that of the Okanagan
Falls landfill. Longer hours will assist In receiving biosolids, organic amendment, and food

waste and will assist with the sale of finished compost, It is also more convenient for the

majority of residents in the Service Area.

• There is no water source near the Okanagan Falls landfill where the Campbell Mountain

landfill site has an active well on site and the ability to obtain additional water from the City
of Penticton.

• The Campbell Mountain Landfill currently has a biosollds composting facility where Okanagan
Falls does not. The Okanagan Falls Landfill site is closer to residential land use where the new

Campbell Mountain landfill composting facility is a consistent use and will dramatically

reduce existing nuisances.

• The driving distances for curbside collection vehicles dropping of garbage and organics will be

much lower at Campbell Mountain.

A number of recent events have increased the opportunity and urgency to establish a composting

facility. Specifically, a new grant program has become available that could fund food waste

diversion, and the proposed organics composting facility. The grant, if successful, would fund up to

83% of capital costs, not Including land, but must include a predesign of the facility. The submission

deadline is February 26. An appropriate land parcel has been identified. The Agricultural Land

Commission is changing ALR exclusion rules after January 30,2020 that may be problematic. Any

application prior to January 30, 2020 will follow current rules.

A recent Business Case comparing a currently designated site at Campbell Mountain and the

proposed site has determined a potential advantage of$1.7M to purchase the new site rather than

build on the Campbetl Mountain Landflll site due to geotechnical considerations. Also, the

movement of the composting site off the Campbell Mountain Landfill property, will save landfill air

space, estimated to be valued $11M to $16M over the life of the landfill. The proposed land

purchase will buy lands that are current impacted due to nuisance, thus eliminating a source of

complaint and liability.

Total capital costs for the project are expected to be at $17.2M plus land costs. Should the Regional

District be successful with a grant application ourshare of the capital costs will be $2.9M. This will

enable a significant reduction in the aggregate blosolids and food waste composting per tonne cost

of $100 to capitalize and process organic wastes.

C:\Users\Jpeachey\Appdata\Local\Microsoft\Wlndows\lnetcache\Content.Outlook\01SWM60Z\D,2. Composting Board Report.Docx
FlleNo:C:\Users\jpe3chev\AppData\Local\Mlcrosoft\Wlndows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\01SWM60Z\D,2.

Composting Board Report.docx Click here to enter text.
Page 2 of 4

71



EXHIBIT 39

vw-j'

Analysis:

There are several distinct advantages to build a combined biosolids/food waste composting facility

near the Campbetl Mountain Landfill. These advantages are:

• The cost of composting is less than that of landfllling wastes

• Combining biosolids, food waste and yard waste composting in the same facility is shown to

reduce costs compared to running multiple sites. This Is due to less capital and operating costs to

operate one facility versus several. The consultant has Identified a $20 per tonne savings,

• The Biosollds composting does not appear to be eligible for the current grant funding where a

combined organics composting facility will be eligible.

• Diverting food waste furthers our objectives to divert organics entering our landfill and helps to

trap Carbon that would otherwise be released Into our atmosphere.

• Diverting food waste helps to extend the life of the landfill which is currently the most cost

effective refuse disposal method. A 26% diversion means that the life of the landfill can be

extended.

• Food waste compost will be a separate compost stream than that of the biosolids and can be

used on farms.

• Compost is a valuable soil additive helps to trap moisture and conserve water.

• The addition of strict odour control in the new facility will reduce existing nuisances dramatically.

• The City of Penticton must improve its leachate management and odour control in order to be
compliant with Provincial regulation

• There Is an opportunity to use the Landfill scales and leachate control systems.

There are several distinct advantages to purchase the land near the landfill. These advantages are:

• The capital cost to construct the composting facility is less than the cost to purchase the land,

and represents a net savings of$1.7M
• The construction of the composting facility will move the facility away from neighbouring

properties, create a strict odour control system and reduce risks of complaints.

• By moving the composting facility offsite, we create between $11M to $16M worth of airspace
for the landfill

• The purchase of land will give us room to grow should additional treatment trains such as

digesters or as the population increases.

• There will be large areas for compost storage should there be a down turn In compost sales,

C:\Users\Jpeachey\Appdata\Local\Mlcrosoft\Wlndows\lnetcache\Content.Outlook\01SWM60Z\D,2. Composting Board Report.Docx
FlleNo:C;\Users\ipeachey\AppData\Local\Mlcrosoft\Wlndows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\015WM60Z\D.2,

Composting Board Report.docx Click here to enter text.
Page 3 of 4

72



EXHIBIT 39

I^SS
.?.1

'ilbj^'

Next Steps:

Should the Board agree to the above recommendations, staff will bring back an in-camera report on

the land purchase.

Respectfully submitted:

Andrew Reeder, Manager of Operations

C;\Users\)peachey\Appdata\Local\Mlcrosoft\Windows\lnetcache\Content.Outlook\01SWM60Z\D,2, Composting Board Report.Docx
Fll8No:C:\Users\)peachey\AppData\Local\Mlcrosoft\Wlndows\INetCache\Content,Outlook\01SWM60Z\D.2.

Composting Board Report.docx Click here to enter text.
Page 4 of 4

73



EXHIBIT 42

ff~>: AllxMacDonnUl, Crooked Trees
SUL. ,] Landflll/Composllng-tHB scoop (romnuzaKBvicn

Date; Januw -< '•* nnnn^--"— -'•

Tl

Hi Neighbours,

There has been a lot of fear, confusion and general upset, not to mention some
misinformation, swirling about recently vis-^-vls the Campbell Mountain Landfill and a
potential new composting facility near to It. As such, I called Karla Kozakevlch, RDOS
Chair and Director of Electoral Area E, Friday morning to find out what I could about the
situation. A recap of our chat is below.

Firstly, nothing has been finalized - far from it, actually - but, as you know, things
have been set In motion. Regarding a future composting facility on an

'-'"^ 'undisclosed' location near the landfill, the RDOS Board has decided to submit an
application to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) to see if they will provide
an exclusion of ALR land approval for a compost facility or a non-farm use
approval for said land. As well, the RDOS Board voted in favour of applying for a
grant to construct an in-vessel organic food, yard and biosolid waste (waste water
treatment sludge) composting facility near the Campbell Mountain Landfill.

The ALC "fe an independent administrative tribunal dedicated to preserving
agricultural land and encouraging farming in British Columbia". It Is absolutely
autonomous and is not influenced in any way by other governmental bodies,
businesses or individuals. The ALC makes an unbiased and objective ruling on
every application it receives and reviews. A recent application to the ALC by a
winery in the Ollver/Osoyoos area was denied which apparently surprised the
RDOS. I Include this example to illustrate that there is no way to.know or even
guess how the ALC wilt view the RDOS's application. I am told that the ruling for
the RDOS's application will not be known for 3 months or more.

While waiting for the ALC's ruling, the RDOS could submit an offer to purchase
the 'undisclosed' land, with ALC application approval as a subject, or buy it
outright. If the latter, the land could be resold or used for other purposes should
the ALC deny the RDOS's application. Either way, something HAS to be done,
Siding a composing facility near the landfill makes more sense In general to the

^~\ RDOS; however, they are looking at other locations further away (ones already
considered or completely new ones elsewhere In the RDOS) which are still
possibilities should this present idea fall. As an aside, the RDOS has been
nlanninn tn imnlfimfint nthfir imnrnvnmfints tn the tanriflll sitfsh a nfiw annfiRR.

77



EXHIBIT 41

Grant applied for - to establish a composl faciliiy al Campbcll Mtn in Pcnticlon

The RDOS board also supported a staff proposal to submit an application to the

Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) for exclusion of lands required for the

facility, and to proceed with the land purchase once the land Is compliant,

"There are several advantages to building a composting facility near Campbell

Mountain Landfill," says RDOS chair Karla Kozakevlch.

"The proposed facility will reduce casts, extend tliu li<s of tile landfill,

•ind reduce greenhouse gas umissioiis and nuisance odours." Previous

studies estimate a curbside food collection prorjram could potentially

divert 26% of the totiil waste stryiini.

The primary advantages of the proposed program and location include; D

The cost of composting is less than acldlnq to the laiitlfill. D

Combining biosolid, food and yard waste in the same facility is shown to

reduce costs r.ompared to operating multiple sites, a

Diverting food waste furthers RDOS objectives to divert organics entering the

landfill, n

Dlvurling luod wdste will lielp extend the life of the landfill and rucluct: tineups.

New, locally-available food waste coniposl will be avdllcible for both agricull'ural

and residential use. a

Compost is >i valuable soil additive that helps trap moistnrR and conserve

water, a

The construction of the composting facility will establish a strict odour control

system and move the process away from neighbouring properties, a

A -itrict Ifriclidte management plan v^ill also be established, a

s
Purcliaslng land to construct t-he composting facility is more cost effective and

represents a net savings of well over 1{;1M.

On September 19th, 2019 the RD05 board authorized staff to pursue a

compost siting study. A number of recent events have Increased the

opportunity and urgency to establish a composting facility. Specifically, a new

grant program has become available that could fund food waste diversion, and

the proposed organlcs composting facility.

LEAVE A COMMENT

76



1/2020

EXHIBIT 41

Granl applied for- In eslablisli n compost fadlity al Cmnpbcll Mln in Pcnllcton

B f f,\ »

Admln Login

Oliver Daily news
10 years In business

HOME BC PRtSS RiLt/>5ES CBC TOP CTORIES FREE CUSSIFIEDS
'•'JfthJ it\ .ie.' •i

^IUMH-Ur20ZB--

Grant applied for - to establish a
compost facility at Campbell Mtn in
Penticton
MHUW 10, 2030, 0!26 AM

CampbBll Mt. Landfill ilto HE or Pentlrton

Organic Composting Site Update

The board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Slmllkameen (RDOS) has voted

In favour of applying for a grant to construct an In-vessel organic food, yard

and blosolld waste (waste water treatment sludge) composting facility near

Campbell Mountain Landfill,

Local, Reliable

Window Cleaning

CLEANOLASS.CA
2010.2020

OioyoM.BC

g
0-

"C mnd:)fflUZ2!imai
Guil:35t.mll

Un
•«ss A* "a

aaitHH
<a

tfWrowwnl ('nvlfwumnl

75



EXHIBIT 40

: RE; Into ra- Open Session rogafdlng "RDOS eying property near Pontfcton tandtilt (or now organlcs onif biosoHds
compostinQ"

Hello again:
Quick recap on yesterday afternoon's meeting.
Stefan and I attended knowing fully well it was an exercise in futility. Glad we did though
because it was interesting to see how they positioned It.

Directors spoke in favour viewing it as wonderful to get organics recycling going In the
region. They were thrilled it was the least expensive route.
There was no mention that human waste from the waste treatment centre is in the
equation - it was as If they were only looking a household organic recycling.
Absolutely no mention of the blight it places on the region's landscape.
Also, they are totally sold on the idea that "in vessel" mitigates the odours. Apparently,
they've never driven by "stinky truck" (rom waste management where the waste is
contained "in vessel".

Staff were gh/en the go ahead to pursue grants and look at purchasing land.
ll|t|l'.://t'li'/l'l'!.lilyl'<'V';.,l;lllll/(j!;>llt-iI|.'|'!il'l'l-(l'l' ll-l I-";.l3l.');i;:;ll-.'i-l'l' I'|l|n); i l.l':lliiV ;'il r-,liunl)i.!l

i]iin-iii-|)i;iilii_,t<^^Ml'l-l'.vAR3JOF'pi'rxkAruv;ir-wht/.llMV;<iiti^

QK:'Wr-\J(^/(jl^!So

Clearly, directors view it is our NIMBY problem and just don't get It Impacts so much more
broadly. Or il they get It, they've chosen to put bllnders on for their short political term
rather than consider future implications.

Still going to share my post further, for selfish and altruistic reasons.

Thanks,
Roz

74



EXHIBIT 42

better traffic corridors in general, a new and/or relocated scale and etc..

Secondly, 4 years ago the Ministry Environment mandated that the RDOS
upgrade the overall dumping facility. The Ministry's requirements should have
been met by the RDOS by now but, since the RDOS has been working very hard
on this Issue ever since, It has been given time. Nevertheless, time is nigh that
something be put In place. There have been, as you know, many proposals put
forth; there has, as well, been testing of various methods going on. Ultimately
something will be done but whatever happens, It will not go ahead without public
consultations such as open houses.

Hopefully this information will provide a bit of relief, in the meantime anywayl

AIix

Alix MacDonald, BID, BFA(Hons)
Crooked Tree Guest Suites

78



EXHIBIT 43

4/2/2020 MyNnramnla: rrinl Version ftl^gcH j£>, ,20.^0

RDOS Update: Landfill Traffic Creating Safety Concerns
RDOS

An increase in spring home and yard cleaning has resulted in safety issues at landfills operated by (lie Regional District ofOkanngn]
Similkamcen (RDOS).

Tills past weekend, there was a large spike in the number of people visiting InndSlls, Due to Ihc COVID-19 pundemiu, residcnls iu-c]
asked lo use cnrbsidc cotlcclion nnlil further nolice. If you are self-isoluting or displaying symplonu ofCOVID-19, STAY HOME. |

Tile Campbcll Moimlain Lillldrill Iiiis been especinlly busy. I.ineups on busy days arc stretching outside the landfill and blocking
irul'lic. This affecls landlill users, and residents who live near llie landfill. For tlie health and safety of the public and to prolcct slnfTj
llic Regional District of Okanagan-Similkaineen (RDOS) is requesting the following:
• Use residential yard waste collcclion. Most residential homes have bi-monthly yarel wasle colleclian. The City of Pendclon is
collecting unlimilcd amounts of property piickngcd yard waste next week. Please conlucl your locul govemmcni for inform.ilion or
check your curbslde calendar.
• Uuldtill Customers aru asked to bring a credit or debit uunl fur paymunt. Cash will not be accepted.
• If you ;ire sclf-isulaling or displnying symploms or COVID-) 9, follow tlic order from tile
Provinciiil Hcnltli Officer and slay home. This includes anyone returning lo Canada.

"We undcrslaiitl many people arc rclunilng from tlreir winter liomcs or sitting at home in isolalion," says RDOS chair Kiirtn
Kowikcvlcli. "Bill iin unncccssuiy visil lo llie landlill can place slurf anil utliers at risk. Please listen to llcallll professionnls and foll<j
sclf-isolnlion mid physical dislancing pruccdnrcs,"

If Inndlill nttcndnncc and llie nssocinled .risks cannot be mitigated, the RDOS will need to consider increasingly rcslrictive measurefj
for inunaging unnecessaiy exposure, up to and including closing llic fncilitics (o non-commercial customers. If additional actions
ticcoinu necessary, advance notice will be posted on tlic RDOS wcbsilc and shared with local meilia. For now, all RDOS landRlls ill]
open during rcgulnr hours.

hHpi:/Avww.m)'nunimuin.coni/cgi.bin/show_pop_nrtlclc_prinl.c(i?ID-8557 1/1

79



Lauri Feindell

From: Info

Sent: April 8, 2020 4:30 PM
To: Planning

Subject: FW; Opposition to Notice of Exclusion Application - 1313 Greyback Mountain Road

Penticton

From: Jacquie Jackson]

Sent: April 8, 2020 4:1C
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>; alcburnaby@victorial.gov.bc.ca; Ale Okanagan Land Use Alc:Ex

<ALC.Okanagan@gov.bc.ca>; arg.minister@gov.bc.ca; dan.ashton.mla@leg.bc.ca; richard.cannings@parl.gc.ca;

council@penticton.ca

Subject: Opposition to Notice of Exclusion Application -1313 Greyback Mountain Road Penticton

Alliicliuienls ;i\';iil;ihlc nnlil M;iy 8. 2020

TTdlo,

Attached are the following:

1. Protect Agricultural Land Petition with 96 signatures and confirming emails opposing the Notice of
Exclusion Application for 1313 Greyback Mountain Road.

Please note, that of the area residents thai live beside or above Campbell Mountain Landfill and signed this
petition, there is 98% opposition.

2. Online GoPetition with 145 signatures opposing the Notice of Exclusion Application for 1313 Greyback
Mountain Road.

Jacquie Jackson

Hk'k lo l)in\nlo;id

I'rnu'L'l Ap.ricnllur.il I.,!iinl I'ctition and F.m;iils.|Hll'

217.d Ml!

(.'lick to I1o\\nlo;ul

CloPL'lilioii Rc.siills.pdl'

27.') Ml?



EXHIBIT 46

.1/2/2020

SUSGS
scicncf for i) cliniifjiiKi world

[ •ih]]V'S>'>i>itim:liili:>~ili (li- ,jf!'(r

Cltcmicals from Land-Applied Ulosolids Pcrslat in tiuil

n. '.h: '.^nLcfc.i;m«;;;'.: i3v«1i'«.iini('i/ ii'„•<." fDtii'

Chemicals from Land-
Applied Biosolids Persist
in Soil

A study by scientists Irom UK U.S. Gealogkal Swvey (USBS) and Colorado State
Unh/ersitv-Puebhj shous that some chemkats In fttasuffife that am apallad to
mmfni^trt ftnnfand am sufBdtoUy pustetent and mdbUa (o mow ftrto tfw aoff
beneath farm fields. BlosoSds are the treated solld-waste component of wastewater
treatment plant effluent; about SO percent of the blosollds produced In the United
States are applied to land as a fertilizer.
The flcld-scale study was Initiated In 2007 In a seml-arld environment In eastern
Colorado on land with no previous history of blosolld application. Typical agronomlc
practices were employed In the study, Ths blosollds, soil, and crop were monitored for
a year and a half, which enabled the evaluation of the persistence and movement of
contaminants from blosollds Into the soil column after blosotld application.
Measurements Indicate that nonylphenols (commonly used In detergents and other
manufacturing), benzo[a]pyrene (a polycycllc aromatlc hydrocarbon and byproduct of
Incomplete combustion of organic matter), dlethyl phthalate (commonly used In
plastics), d-llmoncne (a solvent obtained from citrus fruits), HHCB (galaxollde, a
polycycllc organic musk used in fragrances), and trlclosan (an antlmlcrobial) had
migrated downward through the soil by 468 days arter application. The study also
showed Indications that uptake by mature wheat plants was minimal. Soil and blosolld
samples that were collected before and after blosollds application and Incorporation In
the soil were analyzed for 57 chemlcals of potential environmental concern. During
harvest, wheat samples were collected from control fields and from Helds on which
blosollds had been applied.
This study was supported by the USGS Toxic Substances Hydroloay Program.

Reference
Yager, TJ.B., Furlong, E.T,, Kolpln, D.W,, Kinney, C,A., Zaugg, S.D,, and BurMiardt,

M,R., 2014, Dlsslpatlon of contaminants of emerging concern In blosollds apolled
to nonlrrlaated farmland In eastern Colorado; JAWRA Journal of the American
Water Resources Association, v. 50, no. 2, p. 343-357, dol:10.1111/jawr.l2163.

More Information
D Emerging Contaminants In the Environment Invcttlgatlon

o l.aari-SpRflC9.t|sji_oLfc)un!clR.gLBIfisa!lds Emerging

o For more Information contact I@£yJ(ra8£0 USGS

;Contamlnants Investigation

ICfiloca.doJfKalsr.S.dejLceCepter

palth
This article was featured as an artlijl

Related Science Features

° MultkStatS-SynsV Measures Parabens In Munldrj.il Wastewater Blosollds

o BfiffU'.Sty-QLSteafflLanslLAdJaccnt Groundwatcr /ijftcr Wastewater Treatment Facllltv Closure

o Pharmaceutlcals and Other Chemlcals Common ll

llfiLmjmcsJiLlajid^finiilieiLBtaaallds-Cfliild-fifEei.t
Blosollds. Animal Manure, and Earthwormsi Is Tl)

o Household Chemlcals and Drugs Found In Blosol

Soil sampllno In Eastarn Colorado indlcotcd
Uiat some chemlcals Introduced to

ngnln-lBated farmland UirqughJ)lusollds
appllcallon persisted Ihrougli 46B days, and

some chcmlcals were sumclently mobile to be
detected In soil as deep as 126 cenlimetfirs

below land surface. Photo credit; Tracy Yaoer,"U'SG'S,"""'" """' '"""'

Ie In the USGS GeoHealth Newslettcr.^Vol, 11, No, 1, 7.01A

o Commonly Used Chemlcals Transported to Agitel|lt!jrd.E!eld-tteughJ4MLclpM-BLQ.sfi!!dsARHll£atlon

o £ysllcatJ>1obllizatlon and Attenuatlon of Naturallv|0ccurrlna Arsenlc In an Under.gtOiJiOd.PetCRLc.UBLElumQ

landfilLWasts
lAauatlc Organisms

icre a Connection?

!li&Is from Wastewater TreatmenLElants

hllpa:moxiu,uaE8,gov/hl6hlighlsaOI<l-06-10-blu?li<l»Ji;ucli.liU)il?nidld=IivARIccCin_i!r7K35NuNBr'iyybX>vddslim!(nQDXx(|cK7vY,SWHi»l,i3BI'ini|U_ti 112

88



EXHIBIT 45

facilities to operate.at ;re(iuceAca})acity.;orito shut
''~^)wn;;foR<: extended :?peri6as;:^oft;itime i;fi)r;:system

•iiodificatibn; For example, a horizontal plug-flow

'"~v, system in Hickory, North Carolina, was,shut down
for more than a year while an odor issue was
addressed. The system reopened after the addition

of air pollution control equipment. ^ffie;?lacfc''Q(:
?availaye^pare,parts;Aas^lso:icausedBis?(tiensi^
tperiQds;Qf;i:downtime^at^some;jfacilities;^ ^Design:
configurations have caused somefacilities.pninanly
vertically oriented plug-flow systems, to experience
month-long periods of inoperation while routine

maintenance was performed. DifBcuIdes in

emptying tlie vessels haye been cited as a reason for

significant roaintenaiice requirements (O'Brien,
1986.) ^Atsystemfin/Lancaster, Pennsylvania,iwas"

shutiaownswhe!'i.,5(ate;regulators determined Jfcdid
nQt^iTieet@tem!Ret^?:;'requiremenfs :?r;?Glass;;A;:

yathogen;re<iuctibh;

There are three basic compost market strategies.
The first is the use of compost areas used by the
public sector, such as parks, ball fields, landfill

cover, and urban reclamation projects. Second,
direct'marketing to users maximizes revenue and

"'""^ imprqyes the public image of the producer. This

strategy could include distribution centers run by the
comppst facility where customers, such as

homeowners, greenhouses, landscapers, and
nurseries, can come to pick up the compost. The
third strategy is to use a compost broker. This may

result in lower revenue but removes the
administrative burden of compost marketing. About
25 percent of composters employ a broker. It

should be noted that revenue from compost sales
will not cover production costs but should:offset

market development costs. Sale prices range from

$5 to $60 per ton.

COSTS

Costs associated with in-vessel composting systems

vary considerably from facility to facility, Site
specific factors and the many configurations and

equipment choices make it difficult -to provide

general costs for this technology. Annual operation

<—-•, and maintenance costs as low as $61 and as high as

$534 per dry ton ofbiosolids composted were cited
in a 1989 survey (Alpert el. at., 1989.) A more
recent assessment estimated costs for composting

between $100 and :$280^per|[liy|1gil|^(l:uosolidiS;
processed; 1ta-vessel;s^^ms^enerall^i|^|ei)t?tUe;
Ugh;end.bfsuch costjanges^i(Q1Ditteilg^)^

The ^foUpWing : items must .be^^ppsidered fwhen

estimate costs for a specific in-y^sel .composting.
^.facility; '"'? i ::'^,^:

;C , .(Land^acqqisition, '••; ...?,j j;;;'/ „

C Equipment procurement,:! 4{D]cliujing the
composting vessel, ^oaduagljJeqiuiRment,
conyeyors, air ^up^ly|;sequipment,
temperature monitcin,ng^|ec|UJRment, and
odor control equipment,^. ^ |^;::':

C Operation and maintenance labor.

C Additives, such as .bulking;, agents, to be

used in the specific vessel selected.

C Energy (electricity and fuel for eguipment),

C Water and wastewater treatment.

C Equipment maintenance anAupkeep.

C ProductdistributionexpensesandmarkeUng
revenues.

C Regulatory compliance (expenses such as
permitting, product analysis, process

monitoring, record keeping jand reporting.

C Preprocessing eqwpmentfoFbulIcing agent,

REFERENCES ;

Other Related Pact Sheets

Odor Management in Biosolids Managfement
ERA.832-F-OQ-D67 U ?
September2000 ;;

CentnfugaliDewatemng/Thickening; ,;
ERA,832-R-QQ-053
September 2000

87



EXHIBIT 45

stabilization. Provisions to monitor the degree of
stabili'^~;on allow operators to determine when the

biosoliua are adequately processed and ready for
removal to curing piles.

Features of the site on which the in-vessel

composting facility is to be located must be
considered during design, including size, relative
position to residential areas, availability of

wastewater treatment, drainage, and access.
Examples of optimum locations for in-vessel
composting include a large tract of land in an

industrial area or a site near a municipal solid waste
landfill. One needs to determine the meteorology of

a potential site so that odors can be adequately
treated, diluted and dispersed.

PERFORMANCE

According to a survey conducted by BioCycle,

Journal of Composting und Recycling, in January
1999, there were 54 in-vessel composting facilities

processing wastewater residuals across the United
States (Goldstein and Gray, 1999) and 11 more

fiicilitieij were in various stages of design or
instruction. Since that survey, at leasl two
facilities (Portland, Oregon and Camden County,
New Jersey) have closed. The vendor systems used
at the facilities listed in this survey include:

C Davis Composting and Residuals
Management (formerly Taulman
Composting Systems.)

C Bedminster Bioconvcrsion (co-composting
with municipal solid waste.)

C US Filter/Intcrnational Process Systems.

C Longwood Manufacturing.

C American Biotech Systems.

C Purac.

C Gicon Tunnels.

C Resource Optimization Technology (ROT
Box.)

C Compost System Company Paygro.

C Green Mountain Technologies.

C Waste Solutions.

C Royer,

C Fairfield.

C Conporec.

C Compost System Company Dynatherm.

C Dano.

In addition to these, there are several aeraled static

pile systems contained within a building that are
categorized as in-vessel systems.

The above list is not intended to be a comprehensive

list of vendors who offer in-vessel composting

facilities. There are also many facilities in operation
which use non-patented systems and components.

The number of operating in-vessel composting
facilities for biosolids in the United Stales has
steadily increased in the last two decades but lias

leveled off in recent years. In spite of early
operational difficulties and challenges, many early

facilities have been upgraded and are successfully
operating today.

OVURATION AND MAINTENANCE

In-vessel composting systems can be relatively
complex but the skills required for successful

operation are common to wastewater treatment
plant personnel. Typical labor requirements include

heavy equipment operators, maintenance personnel j
and instrumcntation/comptiter operators. A cleait
understanding of biological systems is necessary)
Additional staff or consultants nre needed Id

manage end use and to market the compost, i

In-vessel composting facilities cun require
significant maintenance. Many early compostin;
facilities constructed in the United Statci

experienced a variety of operating problems. Oclo^-

complaints from neighboring residents have caused

86



EXHIBIT 45

C Provides organic nitrogen, phosphorus, and
'"^- potassium.

C Provides essential plant micronutrients.

C Can reduce the need for pesticides.

Other environmental benefits of producing and using,
compost include the recycling of a valuable

resource, reduction of dependence on chemical
fertilizers, and offsetting the use of natural resources

such as trees or peat moss as mulch material,

DESIGN CMTERIA

The following biosolids characteristics must be
considered in designing an in-vessel composting
system:

C Moisture content.

C Volatile solids content.

C Carbon content.

C Nitrogen content.

C Bulk density.

These factors are discussed in detail in Composting
Engineering (Haug, 1980.)

The following bulking agent characteristics must

also be considered;

C Size.

C Cost/availability.

C Recoverability.

C Carbon availability.

C Preprocessing requirements.

C Porosity.

C Moisture content.

Metals, coiitent .of-theAlupsplid^s ivyjllfeaffect the

usabililyotthe^nal^prcduct^d.ml^^
dunnggd^sjgn ;to ensure a. market;ifSft,the^inal
product. ; ^ |: ^

An.odoTiiControl system isian.in]hierent;,part df in-
yessel<iesign.'Th&cpst:pf|ai^O(ic^<:;o^

: operation;-and;;munten^^

^Uties^usually use; ieildie^^Aw^ciiMbbe^, or
biofiltBTSforodor control.:^e^ewel<)(9i);dQr.control

requiredjis a:functipn 6f^Ra^itylEU:l(]iSuantlty of
alr^^be treated,.; the ,,results^jc^iw^
modeling, and proximity to bccupieHi3vi'ell|ngs.

The most importOTtdesignfegtuu-eiof^cpmposting
system is the ability to maintain (imuform^aerobic
conditions during composdng.^Iie^r^distnbution

system may be controlled by cycle timers and/or
temperature .feedback control. 1he;flesign must
avoid compaetion of the compo.sting;mass to
maintain sufficient pore space ^r^aeralion. In

addition, provisions for routine; imonitoring of
temperatures must be included.

Equipment should be designed :. to ; provide
maintenance staff with safe access, pquipment and

inslrumeatation should be (ableito^^moved or
repaired without having to relocate composting
material.

Systems that minimize worker exposure to hot
exhaust process gases are.ypreiferable because

workers pan mMntain'tUe^ystem^a.controliodors

with;greatereas^mduding^numzing|the-YC)lume
of process air that musfbe treated. | :

Many in-yessel systems include |a water spray

system to add moisture to the comjnosting mass, to
control temperatures, and for fire protection.

Detention times, which vaiy;; with .system
configuration, will affect |many design
considerations, including equipment sizing.

Horizontal agitated bed systemsare|desijpied fbr21
days of aerated composting ^bllowedsby curing.
Other in-vessel systems use 10 to 21 days of active

composting. Some state regulations dictate
detention times for composting systems. In general ,
about 21 days is a good minimumfiihe for adequate

85



EXHIBIT 45

In comparison with other types of composting, the
in-ve?'~' technology offers the following

conveii.v-nces:

C The composting process can be more closely
controlled.

C The effects of weather are diminished.

C Less bulking agent may be required.

C The quality of the resulting product is more
consistent.

C Less manpower is required to operate the
system and staff is less exposed to the

composting material.

C Process air can be more easily collected for

treatment to reduce odor emissions.

C Less land area is required.

C Public acceptance of the facility may be

better.

Disadvantages

There are also disadvantages associated with in-
vessel composting which must be considered before
selecting this technology for wastewater solids

management. In-vessel composting is generally
more, costly than other composting melhucls,

particularly witli respect to capital eKpenditures. In

addition, because it is more mechanized, more

equipment maintenance is necessary. A significant
drawback of composting that must be addressed
during facility design is the potenrial for Ores. The

large amount of carbunaceous material stored and
used iit compostingfacilitics creates the potential for
fires in storage areas as well as in the active
composting mass. Sufficient aeration and moisture

are necessary to avoid fires.

Environmental Impacts

-'Several aspects of an in-vessel composting facility
can result in environmental impacts if the facility is

mismanaged. Proper design and operation can

reduce environmental impacts. Storage,

distribution, and use of the resulting product can

also result in envirorunental impacts if not

performed properly.

In-vesselcompostingfacilities can impactair, water,
and soil. The primary impact to the air is nuisance
odors if process air is not properly treated before

emission to the atmosphere. Most in-vessel

composting facilities treat process air with either ci
biofilter or chemical scrubbing system prior to
release to the atmosphere. Odors can result from
several possible conslituenls in the air exiting a

composting vessel. Much work has been done in
the last several years to characterize and control
odors from composting operations, Bioaerosols
(organisms or biological agents in air tliat affect
human health) are also a concern in compost
emissions. The most widely studied bioaerosol is

Aspergillusfnmigatus, a fungal spare. Bndotoxins
(non-living components of cell walls of gram-
negative bacteria) and organic dust (such us pollens)

are also bioaerosols. These contaminants are
primarily of concern to workers nt the composting
facilities and are generally not present in quantities

that would cause reactions in most humans, Henltli
effects to compost facility workers have not been
readily apparent in studies conducted to idenlily

such effects (Epstein et al., 1998.)

Impacts to surface water bodies resulting from in-
vessel composting arc unlikely. The enclosed nature

of the technology greatly diminishes the potential
I'nr impacts In snrfacp. wnte.r due to high nitrnge.n

concentrations in runoff. Buildings should be
designed with floor drains to sewers or holding

tanks. Any unenclosed portions of an in-vessel

composting operation, such as materinls receiving
and mixing, product curing, and product storage
should be designed with leachate/runoff containment

and provisions for disposal or treatment to avoid
runoff potential.

The use of biosolids compost as a soil conditioner

results in die following:

C Increases water holding capacity,

C Increases aeration and drainage for cliiy

soils.

84



EXHIBIT 45

Composting Basics

During composting, mlcroprganisms .break ;down
organic matter :lnwastewater .;splMs ^into;carbon
dlpxlitei^v^te^^hegti^apd^cprnpost.^^^ensui'e;':
optimal (»nd]tjor)sforrntax*largit^h,jcaFto^^
nitrogen must^e present 1n:the|pTppe^
the<;mb<tureJ;ibelnfii "comppsted;; '•': ^,The^1deal'
carbon-to-nttrogenTOtlpranges.|frpin26:h3i36,par1s
carbon^r;wch^ns^rtof.n)ti^enJbyiWeight;'A
^cwwfa^^^^w^^anv^^pc^^j^g^
ratlo.willflpt,crp^:optimal;condltipns^rti))crobial
growth :cay8lHa?%radaiUon^occurat^a^s|pw8r
rate ?and ^temperatures rtp'rernahi ;betow:3evels
required lfor,;;pathog6n destruction. ;flAtestewater
solldsaw.prlniaflly a source of ;nitrogen,and must
be mixed with a higher carbon-cpntalnlngmaterial
such as woodchips, saw dust, newspaperpr hulls,
In addition tosupplylng cartxwtotbetomposting
process,-the bulking ^gent'serves to^increaselhe
poroslty of the mixture. Porosity is important to
ensure that ^adequate oxygen readies the
composting mass, Oxygen can be supplied to the
composting: mass through'active means: such as
blowers arid piping orthrough passiverneans such
as turning (o allow more air Into (he mass. The
proper: amount of air along with blosplids and
bulking agent Is Important Haug (1?Bp)prqvldes
the basis for calculating the appropriate amounts of
these materials.

active composting and before use. A property
operated facility produces a stable compost which

can be easily handled and safely stored. Compost
enhances soil. properties, such as water holding
capacity, nutrient availability, and texture. In

Compost Engineering, R.T. Haug (1980) discusses
several ways to determine .the degree :6f stability

achieved during composting including:

C Oxygen uptake rate,

C Low degree of reheating in curing piles.

C Organic content of the compost.

C Presence of nitrates and the absence of

ammonia and starch in the compost.

Because this process results in a usable material, an

important and often overlooked part of any
composting facility is product storage and
marketing. Unlike disposal-oriented technologies,
end users and markets for the product are seasonal

with]wak^eTnandin:the,spniig;a]iidiyii^Tt^

sold.are necessary. Jn addition ,|pftKluclilnarketmg;
efforts : are; essential : to insure^thfltj^endxusers

:iu<i3e^taii(ttheniatCTal,TecQgnizeii^ivalue,an(iare

famiUar With proper applicationitecjinngues;

AEBLiGABU-rry

The;physical iCharactenstics o£:mpst,'biosdids,atlow
for^eir:Successful comROfiting.^oWever^inany

(AajactensticswlllinpacA<lesign^e<^ifl^
characteristics are discussed in!the;Desjgh:;Criteria
section.

In-vessel technology is more, suitable; than other
composting technologies in ^subiii-banKand urban

settings because the system allows for containment

andtreahnentofaJrto remove odors before release.
Thei; requirement for a relatiyelyismall amount of

land also increases its applicabilityin thesesettings
over other; types of composting. Bpwever, a
market for use of the resulting product will

generally be more readily available:jn:suburban and
rural areas rather than urban settings.

ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES

Advantages

Composting offers advantages and/iijsadvantages
that niust be.considered before seIect)ng;tMs option

for managing hiospljds. Rrst, coniposting produces
a.reusable^pToducfcas lpng;asAtie3ee(l:matenals are
suit.able.^ ;Use of the :^rodtictfti^tumsi;yaluable

nutnjents^,ta;the;soil and .enhance^cpjgditiojms for

vei^tatjye^rowth.^CtompostjcanibyiiaiuU
eas9}^than^spnie ptheirSbiosdids^pr^
digested^bipsolkls.; ,ItJs,yery;®ab)e;sin(};Aasthe
consistency of a, peat soil,, In^ayfditiion, compost,

unlilf.e p(lier,Class A.produicts.isjlQfsijtyect to end
uswestnctions. .Howeyef, icomppstmg}somewhat
increases the amount, of :materisl^be;managed

through addition of bulking agebl: to improve
aeration in ihs .comppsting^iiiass.^Typically, one
cubjc^yaid of cake will produce three tubic.yards of
compost.: Some bulking ageDt&can|be;screened out
andiijreused <to ^minimize \this,,(ilisa(ilyantage. This
"disadvantage" may also be an advantage ;because

the productcan be sold.

83



EXHIBIT 45

TABLE 1 MAXIMUM METAL
CONCENTRATIONS

Metal

Arsenlc

Cadmium

Copper

Lead

Mercuiy

Molybdenum

Nickel

Selenlum

Zinc

Celling
Concentration

(mg/kg)
75

85

4,300

840

57

75

420

100
7,500

Pollutant
Concentrations

(mg/kg)
41
39

1,500

300

17

NL
420

100
2,800

NL = No established limit

Source: U.S.EPA, 1993 and 1994.

tlie aeration systems and loading/unloading
provisions. The first two systems operate as plug-
flow, which means that biosolids and bulking ugcnt
are loaded on a periodic basis (typically daily or
weekly) while "finished" compost is discharged

''rom the opposite end of the system on roughly the
same schedule. The vessel is only completely
emptied for maintenance.

In vertical plug-flow systems, the biosolids and
bulking agent mixture is introduced into the top of

the reactor vessel and compost is discharged out
the bottom by a horizontally rotating screw auger,
Air is introduced in these systems either from the
bottom and travels up through the composting mass
where it is collected for treatment or through lunces
hanging from the top of the reactor,

In horizontal plug-flow systems, the compost and
bulking agent mixture is loaded into one end of tlic
reactor. A steel ram pushes the mixture through (lie
reactor. Air is introduced und exhausted through
slots in the floor of the reactor. Compost is
discharged from the end of the reactor opposite (lie
ram.

The agitated bed reactors are typically open topped.
The biosolids and bulking agent mixture is loaded

from above. The composting mass is periodically
agitated using a mechanical device and air is
introduced through the floor of the reactors,

Agitated bed reactors can be operated as either plug
flow or batch operations. In batch operations, the
vessel is loaded with biosolids and bulking agent,
processing takes place, and the vessel is emptied.

As with other composting methods, Uie resulting
product is generally cured for at least 30 days al'ter

EXHAUST AIR
TREATMENT

^
Proak—Alr

Blaaolldaand ,
Amandmenu MIXING

ENCLOSED
COMPOSTINQ

VESSEL

AIR
SUPPLY
SYSTEM

EXHAUST TO
ATMOSPHERE

~>

pmcwfMt
<>.

PRODUCT CURINS

OPTIONAL
8CREENINQ

AND/OR
BAGGINO

PRODUCT
DISTRIBUTION

Source: Modified from U.S. EPA, 1989.

FIGURE 2 FLOW DIAGRAM OF A TYPICAL IN-VESSEL COMPOSTING FACILITY

82



EXHIBIT 45

United States
Environmental Protection
Agency

Office of Water
Washington, D.C.

EPA 832-F-00-061
September 2000

oEPA Biosolids
Technology Fact Sheet
Jn-Vessel Composting of Biosolids

DESCRIPTION

Biosolids are primarily organic materials produced
during wastewater treatment which may be put to
beneficial use. Composting is the biological

degradation of organic materials under controlled
aerobic conditions. The process is used to stabilize
wastewater solids prior to their use as a soil
amendment or mulch in landscaping, horticulture,
and agriculture. Figure 1 shows an example of a
finished product of compost. Stabilization of
wastewater solids prior to their use serves to

destroy pathogens (disease causing organisms),
minimize odors, and reduce vector attraction

potential.

The Environmental ProtectionAgency's(EPA's)40
CFR Part 503, Standards for the Use and Disposal
of Sewage Sludge, (the Part 503 Rule) defines two
types of biosolids with respect to pathogen
reduction; Class A and Class B. The difference is
defined by the degree of pathogen reduction on the

solids. When federal perforniEUice standards are
met, composting insures full destruction of

Source: U.S. EPA, 1986.

FIGURE 1 FINISHED COMPOST
PRODUCT

pathogens to non-deleclablc levels in the
wastewater solids (i .e., to Class A standards.) The

Pai-t 503 Rule requires the composting process to
maintain a temperature ol" al least 55 degrees
Celsius for a minimum of three days to effectively
destroy pathogens and qualify as Class A.

In addition to performance standards for the
composting process, the Part 503 Rule established
maximum concentrations for nine metals which
cannot be exceeded in biosolids products, including

compost. These are known as ceiling
concentrations. The federal maximum allowable
metals concentrations are provided in Table 1. The
Part 503 Rule also established more stringent
pollutant concentrations. Biosolids products which

do not exceed pollutant concentrations, meet Class
A pathogen reduction requirements, and are
processed to reduce vector attraction potential are
often referred to as Exception Quality products.
Products meeting these requirements may be freely
distributed for a variety of uses.

There are three general methods of composting
biosolids; windrow, aerated static pile, and in-
vessel. Each method uses the same scientific
principals but varies in procedures and equipment
needs. This Fact Sheet addresses in-vessel

composting.

In-vessel composting occurs within a contained

vessel, enabling the operator to maintain closer
control over the process in comparison with other
composting methods. A typical flow diagram for in-
vessel composting is shown in Figure 2.

There are several types of in-vessel composting
reactors: vertical plug-flow, horizontal plug-flow,
and agitated bin. The primary difference involves

81



'y \ .. "<\
.-r". ^<\

"@ ^^^'@

''•''• •V<::''- .1

/i? /

HQO C-^<--_:'^- i^'ff^^yw.ie^.
Tnia is a consolidated map ccmpilea from repr&sentaticnal data
a? be used for convsnience only ana has no I&gat sandian. Th&

Regional District at OtanBgen^imiI-oriBen makes no warranty
to ?e ccrredness or accuracy cf Llie infcmation on 'this map.

406.40 l^^'cl°'"Sl2:8Melers

WGS_lS84_Web_lfcr=ator_Auriia;y_SFhe-e
C Rsglonat District Okanagan-SImiDcameen

-'-^ '-/•-•

OKANAGAN-
SIMILKAMEEM

RDOS Map

Legend
Parcel Hoote

Parcel Lines

C Parcels

D Electoral Area Boundary

Major Highways

Indian Reserve

Parks

Streams

1:16,000

Et.khasBbfi^ge
rTulanrSeriSunuri^land

PriSc etohRen CTc?on
EasifateC^to^''

?oyoos

00
0

mx

4='
4s.



Lauri Feindell

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:

Info
April 8, 2020 4:30 PM
Planning
FW: Opposition to Notice of Exclusion Application - 1313 Greyback Mountain Road

Penticton

From:JacquieJackso|

Sent: April 8, 2020 4:1
To: Info <info@rdos.bc.ca>; alcburnaby@victorial.gov.bc.ca; Ale Okanagan Land Use Alc:Ex

<ALC.Okanagan@gov.bc.ca>; arg.minister@gov.bc.ca; dan.ashton.mla@leg.bc.ca; richard.cannings@parl.gc.ca;

council@penticton.ca

Subject: Opposition to Notice of Exclusion Application -1313 Greyback Mountain Road Penticton

Allncluuciils ,iv;iil;ihlu until May 8. 2020

Hello,

Attached are the following:

1. Protect Agricultural Land Petition with 96 signatures and confirming emails opposing the Notice of
Exclusion Application for 1313 Greyback Mountain Road.

Please note, that of the area residents that live beside or above Campbell Mountain Landfill and signed this
petition, there is 98% opposition.

2. Online GoPctition with 1 45 signatures opposing the Notice of Exclusion Application for 1313 Greyback
Mountain Road,

Jacquie Jackson

CliL'k 1C 1)(1\M)|0;|J

I'rolrrl Ajzrir.llllnral l.nml Pctilion nnd Emails.pdl'

217.C> MB

C'lk'k to Dov.'nlo.ul

UoPylilion Rt'siill.s.pdl'

27l) MH



     

                                                                                                                

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/    Video: https://youtu.be/6kglbfHaPHg 
 
 

 
September 2, 2020 
 

Composting Facility Public Engagement 
 

 
The City of Penticton needs to upgrade its wastewater solids composting facility at Campbell 
Mountain. The site no longer meets updated provincial requirements and must be addressed. There 
is an opportunity for the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) and the City of 
Penticton to combine resources.  
 
The RDOS is planning to build an in-vessel organics composting facility located east of the Campbell 
Mountain Landfill (CMLF). The site is currently located within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). 
The property is located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road. The RDOS is applying for a grant that 
would fund a large portion of the project’s capital costs. This project is expected to streamline 
operating costs by consolidating equipment and staff. It will also help reduce odours by 70% and 
remove leachate associated with the existing Penticton facility.  
 
The City of Penticton has completed studies and community engagement involving options to 
upgrade the wastewater treatment composting facility at CMLF. Feedback gathered in 2018 
indicated strong support from residents for establishing an organics composting facility. A 2019 
study recommended introducing in-vessel composting (an enclosed environment), which minimizes 
noise and odours. The current CMLF service area includes all or parts of Electoral Areas B, D, E, F, G, 
and I, City of Penticton and Village of Keremeos. 
  
The RDOS is gathering feedback about the proposed organics composting facility at CMLF. The 
results will be submitted to the RDOS board for consideration as part of an application to the ALC.  
Due to the COVID-19 crisis, an electronic town hall has been scheduled to provide residents with an 
opportunity to learn more about the composting facility. The meeting will take place Wednesday, 
September 30, 2020 from 6:00 to 7:00 pm. Representatives from the RDOS, City of Penticton and a 
consulting and engineering firm will be available to answer questions. To learn more about how you 
can participate in the electronic town hall, please visit the RDOS Regional Connections website: 
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/ or contact RDOS Solid Waste. 
 
Watch the meeting on the RDOS YouTube channel or RDOS Regional Connections. 
 
If you have questions, please call the RDOS Solid Waste Department:  
Toll Free: 1-877-610-3737 ext. 4129 Direct: 250-490-4129   
 

##### 

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/
https://youtu.be/6kglbfHaPHg
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB7OI2JsrBH8yAwE97iSkig
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/


2 

 

 
 
 



     

                                                                                                               

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/   Video: https://youtu.be/IAkghVNRcR8 

 
Organics Composting Facility Update   
 

 
Hello, 
  
The City of Penticton needs to upgrade its wastewater solids composting facility at Campbell 
Mountain. The site no longer meets updated provincial requirements and must be addressed. There 
is an opportunity for the City of Penticton to combine resources with the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS).  
 
The RDOS is planning to build an in-vessel organics composting facility located east of the Campbell 
Mountain Landfill (CMLF). The site is currently located within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). 
The property is located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road. The RDOS is applying for a grant that 
would fund a large portion of the project’s capital costs.  
 
This project is expected to streamline operating costs by consolidating equipment and staff. It will 
also help reduce odours by 70% and remove leachate associated with the existing Penticton facility.  
 
Alternatively, the facility could be sited on the existing CMLF property with a portion on ALR land. 
This presents options that are still viable but more costly to develop. The proposals require 
amending the Solid Waste Management Plan (SWMP) and involve legislative requirements to 
determine the location, including Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) and rezoning applications.  
  
The SWMP has identified composting as one of the best means to divert waste entering local 
Landfills. Food waste and other organic materials account for approximately 40% of waste entering 
landfills in the Regional District by weight. The new composting operation would be designed to 
accommodate up to 35,000 tonnes of organic materials per year.  
 
Advantages of building an organics composting facility at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road include: 
 

 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions 

 Reduce wait times at the landfill by diverting yard waste to the new property 

 Reduce the need for agricultural community to burn trees and pruning’s 

 Create food waste compost, a valuable soil additive for the agricultural community 

 Offer commercial retailers another means to dispose of food waste 

 Extend the life of the landfill by diverting food waste 

The current CMLF service area includes all or parts of Electoral Areas B, D, E, F, G, and I, City of 
Penticton and Village of Keremeos. 

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/


2 

 

Community Engagement and Next Steps 
The City of Penticton has completed studies and community engagement involving options to 
upgrade the wastewater treatment composting facility at CMLF. Feedback gathered in 2018 
indicated strong support from residents for establishing an organics composting facility. A 2019 
study recommended introducing in-vessel composting (an enclosed environment), which minimizes 
noise and odours.  
 
RDOS Solid Waste Management Plan 
http://www.rdosmaps.bc.ca/min_bylaws/ES/solid_waste/SWMP/2011_RDOS_SWMP_FINAL.pdf 
 
The RDOS is gathering feedback about the proposed organics composting facility at CMLF. The 
results will be submitted to the RDOS board for consideration as part of an application to the ALC.  
 
Email: publicworks@rdos.bc.ca 
 
RDOS Office: 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A 5J9 
 
If you have questions, please call the RDOS Solid Waste Department:  
 
Toll Free: 1-877-610-3737 ext. 4129 Direct: 250-490-4129 
 
Due to the COVID-19 crisis, an electronic town hall will be scheduled to provide residents with an 
opportunity to learn more about the composting facility and ask questions. Representatives from 
the RDOS, City of Penticton and a consulting and engineering firm will answer questions. 
 

Composting Facility 
Electronic Town Hall  

Wednesday, September 30, 2020  
6:00 to 7:00 pm  

 
Watch the meeting on the RDOS YouTube channel or RDOS Regional Connections 
 
To learn more about how you can participate in the electronic town hall, please visit the RDOS 
Regional Connections website: https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/ or contact RDOS Solid Waste. 
 
RDOS | City of Penticton | Composting Facility video: https://youtu.be/6kglbfHaPHg 
 
Thank you. 

http://www.rdosmaps.bc.ca/min_bylaws/ES/solid_waste/SWMP/2011_RDOS_SWMP_FINAL.pdf
mailto:publicworks@rdos.bc.ca
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB7OI2JsrBH8yAwE97iSkig
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/
https://youtu.be/6kglbfHaPHg


     

                                                                                                                

RDOS Solid Waste Department: 250-490-4129 
 

 
Organics Composting Facility Fact Sheet 
 

 
The City of Penticton needs to upgrade its wastewater solids composting facility at Campbell 
Mountain. The site no longer meets updated provincial requirements and must be addressed. There 
is an opportunity for the City of Penticton to combine resources with the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS).  
 
The RDOS is planning to build an in-vessel organics composting facility located east of the Campbell 
Mountain Landfill (CMLF). The site is currently located within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). 
The property is located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road. The RDOS is applying for a grant that 
would fund a large portion of the project’s capital costs.  
 
This project is expected to streamline operating costs by consolidating equipment and staff. It will 
also help reduce odours by 70% and remove leachate associated with the existing Penticton facility.  
 
Alternatively, the facility could be sited on the existing CMLF property with a portion on ALR land. 
This presents options that are still viable but more costly to develop. The proposals require 
amending the Solid Waste Management Plan (SWMP) and involve legislative requirements to 
determine the location, including Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) and rezoning applications.  
  
The SWMP has identified composting as one of the best means to divert waste entering local 
Landfills. Food waste and other organic materials account for approximately 40% of waste entering 
landfills in the Regional District by weight. The new composting operation would be designed to 
accommodate up to 35,000 tonnes of organic materials per year.  
 
Advantages of building an organics composting facility at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road include: 
 

 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions 

 Reduce wait times at the landfill by diverting yard waste to the new property 

 Reduce the need for agricultural community to burn trees and pruning’s 

 Create food waste compost, a valuable soil additive for the agricultural community 

 Offer commercial retailers another means to dispose of food waste 

 Extend the life of the landfill by diverting food waste 

The current CMLF service area includes all or parts of Electoral Areas B, D, E, F, G, and I, City of 
Penticton and Village of Keremeos. 
 
RDOS | City of Penticton | Composting Facility Video: https://youtu.be/6kglbfHaPHg 

https://youtu.be/6kglbfHaPHg


2 

 

Community Engagement and Next Steps 
The City of Penticton has completed studies and community engagement involving options to 
upgrade the wastewater treatment composting facility at CMLF. Feedback gathered in 2018 
indicated strong support from residents for establishing an organics composting facility. A 2019 
study recommended introducing in-vessel composting (an enclosed environment), which minimizes 
noise and odours.  
 
RDOS Solid Waste Management Plan  
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/13958/widgets/54160/documents/36554 
 
The RDOS is gathering feedback about the proposed organics composting facility at CMLF. The 
results will be submitted to the RDOS board for consideration as part of an application to the ALC.  
 
Email: publicworks@rdos.bc.ca 
 
RDOS Office: 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A 5J9 
 
If you have questions, please call the RDOS Solid Waste Department:  
 
Toll Free: 1-877-610-3737 ext. 4129 Direct: 250-490-4129 
 
Due to the COVID-19 crisis, an electronic town hall will be scheduled to provide residents with an 
opportunity to learn more about the composting facility and ask questions. Representatives from 
the RDOS, City of Penticton and a consulting and engineering firm will be available to answer 
questions. 
 

Organics Composting Facility 
Electronic Town Hall  

Wednesday, September 30, 2020 

 6:00 to 7:00 pm 
 

Watch the meeting on the RDOS YouTube channel or RDOS Regional Connections 
 
To learn more about how you can participate in the electronic town hall, please visit the RDOS 
Regional Connections website: https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/ or contact RDOS Solid Waste. 
 
 
 
 

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/13958/widgets/54160/documents/36554
mailto:publicworks@rdos.bc.ca
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB7OI2JsrBH8yAwE97iSkig
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/


 

 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
INFORMATION RELEASE 
 

September 2, 2020 
 

RDOS Regional Connections public engagement website  
 

 
The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) has activated its new public engagement 
website. RDOS Regional Connections is an interactive portal created to share information and 
gather feedback about regional projects and initiatives. RDOS residents can sign up to receive 
project updates and participate in shaping your community: rdosregionalconnections.ca 
 
The 2020 Citizen Survey is the first of two projects on RDOS Regional Connections. The survey is an 
essential tool to evaluate service and program delivery provided by the RDOS. Survey results will 
highlight how communities are using regional services and facilities, gauge how satisfied residents 
are with those services and help identify areas for improvement. The survey will also help improve 
communication and community engagement throughout the region. Survey results and analysis will 
be shared later in November. Click here to take the survey 
 
The second project on RDOS Regional Connections focuses on developing an organics composting 
treatment and processing facility adjacent to the Campbell Mountain Landfill (CMLF). The RDOS is 
undertaking public engagement prior to submitting an application to the Agricultural Land 
Commission for exclusion.  
 
The RDOS has conducted several location studies to develop a facility, construction of which is 
identified within the Solid Waste Management Plan as the best means of reducing waste entering 
the waste stream. For many reasons, the most suitable site is adjacent to CMLF, identified as the 
Sather Ranch, at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road. The property is 80 acres in size and was listed for 
court-ordered sale under the supervision of a Receiver. Approximately two thirds of this land is 
within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). Click here to watch the video  
 

##### 
 
For further information, please call 250-492-0237 or email info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
 
  
Karla Kozakevich, Chair 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
 

 
CivicReady® Mass Notification System – sign up for routine and emergency notifications 

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/citizen-survey
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/citizen-survey/survey_tools/citizen-survey
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/13958/widgets/54160/documents/36554
https://youtu.be/6kglbfHaPHg
https://youtu.be/6kglbfHaPHg
mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca
https://emergency.rdos.bc.ca/civic-ready/


   

Organics Composting Facility
The Regional Ditrict of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) is seeking
feedback on a proposal to establish a new organics composting facility
adjacent to the Campbell Mountain Landfill (CMLF).

The City of Penticton has committed to replacing their existing wastewater solids
composting operation at Campbell Mountain. The RDOS is partnering with the
City for an opportunity to build a facility that can compost the wastewater solids
as well as food and yard waste organics.

Food waste and other organic materials account for approximately 40% of waste entering landfills in the Regional District
by weight, and the RDOS Solid Waste Management Plan has identified composting as one of the best means to divert waste
entering local Landfills.

The proposed composting operation would be located east of the CMLF at a site currently located within the Agricultural
Land Reserve (ALR). The new operation would be designed to accommodate up to 35,000 tonnes of organic materials per
year and would include odour controls and paving the site to contain leachate.

Residents of the current Campbell Mountain Service Area (includes all or parts of Electoral Areas B, D, E, F, G, and I, City
of Penticton and Village of Keremeos) are invited to provide feedback until October 2, 2020.

Your input will be shared with the Board at a future meeting as part of a decision on whether to support submitting the
ALR Exclusion application to the Agricultural Land Commission for the purpose of constructing the compost facility.

Due to the COVID-19 crisis, the RDOS hosted an electronic town hall on September 30, 2020. The meeting provided an
opportunity to learn more about the organics composting facility and ask questions. You can watch the meeting on
the RDOS YouTube Channel.

Please see the News Feed below for a list of questions and answers from the September 30, 2020 electronic town hall
meeting.

Register to receive updates and participate in the discussion.

https://www.youtube.com/user/OkanaganSimilkameen/featured?view_as=subscriber


Proposed Organics Composting Site

Wastewater Solids Composting Operation 



Q … QUICK … NEWS F…

   

   

   

Please see the News Feed for a list of questions and answers from the
September 30, 2020 electronic town hall meeting.

Please see the News Feed for a list of questions and answers from the September 30, 2020 electronic
town hall meeting.
6 days ago

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/compost?tool=news_feed#tool_tab

If the proposed t facility can accommodate up to 35,000 tonnes of organic materials per year what is the
current capacity? How long is the facility projected to be effective and what plans are there for future
scalability?
Picherack asked  8 days ago

The current City of Penticton composting facility receives about ~8000 wet tonnes of wastewater solids (sludge) per year from the
City of Penticton and the Okanagan Falls Wastewater treatment plants. Approximately 7,500 to 10,000 tonnes of green waste and
wood waste is either composted with the City of Penticton or stored on site and allowed to degrade. Other materials received include
seasonal fruit waste and pomace from the agricultural sector. Recoverable food waste coming to the Campbell Mountain Landfill is
estimated at more than 6,000 tonnes per year. 

Looking 20 years into the future, a common timeline for evaluating the life of a facility, approximately 27,000 tonnes of wastewater
solids, green waste, wood waste and food waste is estimated to be received. This is due to increased population within the Campbell
Mountain Landfill service area. 

In terms of construction costs, it is much more economical to have a larger site than having to increase capacity as needed. The
35,000 tonnes of organic material is an estimate for public consultation. The final design of the compost site will be dependent on the
materials that will received for the facility. 

In terms of future scalability, the Regional District would conduct additional public engagement before areas outside the Campbell
Mountain Landfill service area would be able to use the composting facility. This is a requirement of the Solid Waste Management
Plan process. 

What guarantee do you give us about this project that it won’t affect the health of the environment
regarding leaching and any affects on the surrounding area.As a former land owner of 1655 reservoir
road and one of the five properties that was affected and the rdos was never able to give us a proper answer about
a buffer zone so will there be a buffer zone. Will we have any knowledge about this? we do not want to be your

Submit

Ask your questions about the proposed facility

Ask a specific question...

Search

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/compost?tool=qanda#tool_tab
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/compost?tool=quick_poll#tool_tab
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/compost?tool=news_feed#tool_tab
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/compost?tool=news_feed#tool_tab


   

   

neighbour again! You should not be able to use farm land for this project.We really don’t want it here. In 2002 we
were told that the dump would be done in 30 years and no chance to protest, here we are doing the same again,we
are only a few people.Why not use the land you have already destroyed.
Kryzanowski asked  10 days ago

Composting sites and landfills in BC are regulated and overseen by the Ministry of Environment. The composting site being
considered would be built above ground and placed on an impermeable layer. All liquids would be collected and recirculated onsite
or transported off site for treatment. The Regional District currently monitors the groundwater in the area due to the landfill. The
Regional District will review options to establish additional monitoring sites to test any changes in groundwater chemistry. Leaching
of materials is strictly prohibited.

Composting sites in BC are not required to have a buffer zone. Landfills in BC are required to have a buffer zone that considers
proximity to other uses such as housing and parks. The buffer zone for the Campbell Mountain Landfill is 300 metres from existing
or future refuse. This buffer has been mapped and a copy of this map is available by request. This 300-metre buffer is included in the
City of Penticton Official Community Plan which is available on the City of Penticton website.

The Regional District has completed several feasibility studies to place the composting site within the existing landfill property.
These studies point to a location along Spiller Road. Some area residents voiced concerns about having the composting site in this
location as it would be visible from the road. 

The property located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road offers advantages over building within the current Campbell Mountain
property. Any composting site would be further from most existing and planned homes. The property would be somewhat hidden
from Spiller Road. 1313 Greyback Mountain Road has flat areas that would allow for more cost-effective construction. These
benefits are why the Regional District is considering placing the composting site at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road, and not along
Spiller Road within the existing landfill property.

Please set up a food waste composting facility ASAP. PUSH hard and get it going. RDOS citizens have to
join the 21 century to reduce waste in all forms. Thank you!
Goldman asked  11 days ago

Thank you for your comment.

How can you collect leachate when there is no membrane under the landfill and it has 4 springs under
or surrounding it?
Willis asked  27 days ago

The compost sites being considered will be placed on impermeable surfaces allowing for the collection and use of all liquids onsite,
or offsite treatment of excess liquids. The compost sites being considered are not permitted to generate any leachate. 

When the Campbell Mountain Landfill was opened in 1972, it was designed to be a self-attenuating landfill. This is a landfill design
that does not use a liner. 

In 2016, leachate was detected outside the Campbell Mountain Landfill. Since 2016 the RDOS has undertaken multiple projects to
reduce leachate including new drainage works that divert water around the landfill, a new leachate collection pond and multiple
wells along the base of the property collecting impacted ground water. 

Monitoring below the landfill continues in an effort to determine whether additional wells are needed to remove groundwater from
the property. The City of Penticton is also starting to collect some leachate generated at their compost site at Campbell Mountain. 



   

   

Why did protest about the Marron Valley site result in the protested Campbell MT. Site being chosen?
The current dump was slated to close in the 1990's. All people purchasing land in the area were told
that. Is it reasonable to expand a leaking and outdated facility?- on a sidehill as well.
Willis asked  27 days ago

Multiple properties were considered for the development of a Regional Compost site including one in the Marron Valley area. This
property was brought forward for lease by a willing title holder. The RDOS Board voted against continuing to consider entering into
a lease for the Marron Valley property in 2018.

The City of Penticton has completed studies and community engagement involving options to upgrade the wastewater treatment
composting facility at the Campbell Mountain Landfill property. Feedback gathered in 2018 indicated strong support from residents
for establishing an organics composting facility for food waste. A 2019 study recommended introducing in-vessel composting, an
enclosed environment which minimizes noise and odours for local residents. 

Without purchasing a new property, a new compost site at the Campbell Mountain landfill would be built along Spiller Rd; either
below or above the road, on land already owned by the City of Penticton. 

In 2017, the RDOS held an open house with local residents. Many residents indicated they did not want to look at a compost site
along Spiller Rd. The 1313 Greyback Mountain Rd property will help screen the composting facility by trees and the slope.

The 1313 Greyback Mountain Rd property is flat, allowing for easier development of the compost sites than the existing Campbell
Mountain property. The 1313 Greyback Mountain Rd property is large enough to allow for food waste composting and wastewater
solids composting, whereas the existing Campbell Mountain property would be constrained along Spiller Rd. 

The Campbell Mountain Landfill was not slated by the RDOS to close in the 1990’s. Presently, the Campbell Mountain Landfill is
expected to close between 2103 and 2107. Significant upgrades are in progress to ensure all leachate is collected and the landfill
meets the highest standards for landfills in BC. Further public consultation on the Campbell Mountain Landfill is anticipated in 2021
as part of an update to the RDOS Solid Waste Management Plan. 

You state that "Compost sites do not need to obtain an industrial waste discharge permit or air
emissions permit in BC." However, as one example, the Greater Vancouver Regional District is issuing
air permits to indoor and outdoor compost operations pursuant to Greater Vancouver Regional District Air
Quality Management Bylaw No. 1082, 2008 and the BC Environmental Management Act, S.B.C 2003, c.53. Could
you please clarify your statement? You also state that "The proposed compost site at Campbell Mountain will be
‘invessel’ which means the drop off of materials and active composting will be done inside a building. Nuisance
odours from a compost site are attributed to fresh materials being dropped off and the active composting process.
Being inside, all nuisance odours can be captured and treated." However, there are several indoor compost
facilities for which $1000 penalties have been assessed for "Failure to keep door closed." What enforcement
mechanisms do you have in place to ensure that there are not just penalties for violations that result in odours but
will prevent noncompliance so that there are no odours? You also state that "In terms of a feasibility study done
on building a new compost site, odour control consisted of a membrane sheet over the compost, negative pressure
in the building to capture odours and bio-filters to treat the air collected. This methodology estimated a 70%
reduction in odour..." Does this mean that 30% odour is already determined to be acceptable? What modelling or
analysis will be done to determine the impacts of 30% odour on the surrounding community?
Salamone asked  29 days ago

Thank you for your follow up questions. Please note that the present consultation is not on whether a compost site will be built in the
Campbell Mountain area. If the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) cannot find a suitable property, a compost site
will be built within the present Campbell Mountain Landfill most likely along Spiller Rd (above and/or below it). This land is



   

already owned by the City of Penticton and leased by the RDOS. The present consultation is regarding the potential for the 1313
Greyback Mtn Road property to site the compost sites instead. The 1313 Greyback Mtn Road property would be much flatter and
easier to develop and be screened by trees and the slope.

In terms of your questions, the RDOS can only speak for RDOS facilities. If no options are found, the City of Penticton has stated
they will upgrade their current compost site on the existing Campbell Mountain property along Spiller Rd.

The RDOS has not considered issuing air permits and has not brought the idea of issuing air permits to public consultation. It may be
considered. 

The RDOS has considered facility licensing in keeping with the Local Government Act and the RDOS Solid Waste Management
Plan. A draft bylaw to allow the RDOS to license private compost facilities dealing with food waste and waste water treatment
sludge was brought to public consultation in January 2014. The RDOS did not adopt a facility license bylaw at that time as no
private compost sites dealing with food or wastewater sludge were active in the RDOS. There are now two private compost sites
slated for development south west of Princeton and the RDOS will again be considering private sector compost facility licensing.

The project page for prior consultation on organic management facilities is here: https://www.rdos.bc.ca/public-works/solid-
waste/organic-management-facilities/.  Unfortunately, due to a ransomware attack, the linked historic documents are not presently
available for the time being on the RDOS website. If you e-mail publicworks@rdos.bc.ca we will do our best to make historic
documents available.

Please note, as this facility is intended to be owned by the RDOS, local governments would be exempted from facility licensing as
the draft bylaw stands now.

Any odour nuisance issue complaints would need to be addressed following a specific odour management plan. Compost sites
should have a clear system for the public to register complaints including how their complaints will be responded to. The elected
Board of the RDOS, including representatives of the City of Penticton, ultimately oversee any issues related to RDOS owned
facilities. The Province of BC also oversees the operation of compost sites under the Ministry of Environment.  

In terms of what constitutes acceptable odours, that is a key goal of ongoing public consultation. The present City of Penticton
Wastewater Treatment Sludge compost site has no odour control. Our feasibility study showed a significant reduction in odour,
estimated at 70% reduction, if a properly run invessel compost system is constructed. Placing the facility at 1313 Greyback Mtn Rd
further limits nusiance odours by moving the facility away from the majority of existing and planned homes in the area. Other capital
and operational upgrades can decrease nuisance odours and these will need to be considered in the design phase once a location is
determined. 

Examples of compost sites that have created problems are very easy to find on the internet as they make the news. There are many
more examples of compost sites in BC that do not have problems. Compost sites that were designed to handle the volume of
materials received, treat potential odour and are located well away from homes (often near landfills) are operating successfully
across BC.

The example technology used for the RDOS feasibility study is in use at Net Zero Waste
Abbotsford http://www.netzerowasteabbotsford.com/. To our knowledge, including discussions with the City of Abbotsford, this
site has not received any odour complaints.

Does containing leachate mean collecting it. If so, what do you do with it?
Simpson asked  about 1 month ago

All liquids on the site must be collected to meet Provincial regulations. This is to ensure that no liquids can enter the ground to
become leachate. This includes rainwater that may come in contact with fresh materials, materials actively composting or finished
compost stored onsite. All compost sites must have a leachate management plan that would include impermeable surfaces and basins
to collect all liquids.  

Liquids will either be recirculated onto fresh compost or be transported to a wastewater treatment plant. Recirculating the liquids is
preferred as less water is then needed for the facility.

https://www.rdos.bc.ca/public-works/solid-waste/organic-management-facilities/
http://www.netzerowasteabbotsford.com/


   

The compost site proposed for the Campbell Mountain area will be ‘invessel’ which means the drop off of materials and active
composting will be done inside a building. This will mean less liquids to manage from rain and snow. Capturing clean rainwater
from buildings is proposed. This clean water can be used at the compost site.

What are the specific odour control mechanisms that will be implemented at the facility ? Will any
composting operations take place out of doors? What are the operational requirements imposed to
ensure odour control? Will this facility receive an air emissions permit? A solid waste permit? Will groundwater
monitoring be required? Under what regulatory programs will this compost facility operate?
Salamone asked  about 1 month ago

Larger scale compost sites in BC are regulated under the Organic Matter Recycling Regulation (OMRR). This regulation determines
the process a new or existing composting site must follow in BC.

Compost sites must have a leachate management plan and an odour management plan. Leachate management plans are used to
ensure no liquids are allowed to escape into the environment. This includes rainwater that comes in contact with fresh materials,
active compost or finished compost stored onsite. Ground water monitoring stations set up around a compost site are used to ensure
that liquids have not escaped.

The odour management plan looks at ensuring nuisance odours are limited. It must take into consideration the homes and other uses
around the facility.

Compost sites do not need to obtain an industrial waste discharge permit or air emissions permit in BC.

The proposed compost site at Campbell Mountain will be ‘invessel’ which means the drop off of materials and active composting
will be done inside a building. Nuisance odours from a compost site are attributed to fresh materials being dropped off and the active
composting process. Being inside, all nuisance odours can be captured and treated.

Finished compost stored onsite is not a concern for odour. Finished compost must be stored inside or outside on an impermeable
surface where any liquids must be collected.

Final design of the compost site has not been developed. At this time the RDOS is applying to the Agricultural Landfill Commission
(ALC) for use of 1313 Greyback Mountain Rd as a compost site. The RDOS will also have to rezone the property to allow for a
compost site to be constructed. If approvals through the ALC and rezoning are received for the property then a final design can take
place.

In terms of a feasibility study done on building a new compost site, odour control consisted of a membrane sheet over the compost,
negative pressure in the building to capture odours and bio-filters to treat the air collected. This methodology estimated a 70%
reduction in odour as compared to the present City of Penticton Wastewater Sludge compost site at Campbell Mountain which has no
odour control. This 70% reduction of current odour includes the additional composting of food waste at the 1313 Greyback Mtn Rd
site.

1

https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/compost?tool=qanda#!


September 30, 2020

RDOS Organics Composting Facility



Background Information

2015 

Organic Management 
Facility Siting 
Feasibility Study

2018

Nuisance Study for 
operational activities 
at CMLF

2019 – 2020

CMLF composting 
facility siting study

2



In-Vessel Composting
• Composting Overview

• In-Vessel Technology

• Technology Spectrum

3



Slide 3

RJ [2]3 JR/Wilbert to find a better picture
Reid, Jeremy, 2019-12-18



Technology/Cost Spectrum

Passive Static 
Piles/Windrows

Turned 
Windrows

Passive 
Aerated Static 
Pile/Windrow

Actively 
Aerated 

Pile/Windrow

Membrane 
Covered 
Aerated 

Pile/Windrow

In-Vessel 
Composting

Anaerobic 
Digesting

4

Low Cost High Cost



Comparison of Sites

5

Site
Land 

Ownership
Grading 

Requirements
Odour

Nuisance
Mobile Equipment Space for Facility

Campbell
Mountain
Landfill

Bench Area 

City of 
Penticton

Substantial 
grading 

Closer to 
residents

Could share mobile 
equipment with 

Landfill Operations

More challenging to 
meet facility space 

requirements

Proposed Property
Private 

Property
Minimal 
grading

Further from 
residents

Could require 
purchasing of 

additional equipment

Less 

Challenging to meet 
facility space 
requirements



Benefits of a Compost Facility Near CMLF

6

• Cost of composting is less than landfilling wastes

• Helps trap carbon that would otherwise be released into the 
atmosphere

• Can extend the life of the landfill

• Strict odour control in the new facility will reduce nuisance

• Opportunity to share landfill operations



Benefits of Combining Biosolids with 
Other Organics

7

• Combining biosolids, food waste and yard waste composting in 
the same facility results in savings per tonne

• Biosolids composting alone not eligible for grant funding



Key Findings – Economic and Social Benefits

8

• Moving existing composting facility offsite will create 
$11M to $16M worth of airspace for the landfill

• Proposed property is further from neighbours



Key Findings – Operational Improvements

9

• Proposed property offers more space for expansion and 
future improvements (i.e. anaerobic digesters)

• More area for storage of compost and bulking agents

• More opportunity to manage the following materials on the 
proposed property to retain more landfill airspace:

- Aggregate and concrete management

- Metal collection, storage, and transfer

- Mattress stockpiling and management

- Commercial wood waste

- Building related construction and demolition materials



• Combine biosolids and food waste composting into one facility
▪ Reduces unit processing costs per tonne

▪ Ability to produce a saleable compost product for local markets

• Site composting facility on the proposed property
▪ Reduced grading requirements

▪ Operational benefits related to landfill design, operations, and 
closure

▪ Additional revenue ($11M - $16M) and disposal capacity

▪ Reduced odour nuisance impacts on residential properties

• Apply for Grant to reduce capital costs and unit processing cost 
for organic materials

Recommendations

10



Next Steps

11

• Receive public feedback on property located 
at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road 

• Present public feedback to RDOS Board of 
Directors



Questions from Sept 30th 2020 Organics Compost Facility Electronic Open House 

What amount of methane is expected from the compost site? 

Properly operated composting sites do not generate methane. Composting uses oxygen to speed up the 

decomposition process. Composting does not allow for the creation of methane by aerating the 

materials being composted.  

Methane is created naturally when organic matter is stored in water without access to oxygen. This 

happens in landfills where food waste is buried underground and no oxygen is available. There are also 

specially designed digesters that can create methane. Digesters trap the methane, allowing it to be used 

like natural gas for heating or electrical production.  

Methane is a powerful greenhouse gas. Landfills are a major source of methane in Canada. The 

Campbell Mountain Landfill is estimated to generate more than 1,000 tonnes of methane each year. 

This makes it one of the largest point sources of methane in the RDOS. The development of a food waste 

composting site at the Campbell Mountain Landfill will significantly reduce methane emissions in the 

RDOS by removing food waste from the landfill and composting it. 

What is the amount of material being currently being processed at the City of Penticton Wastewater 

Solids Composting facility? What are the expected annual amounts of materials to be composted at 

the facility?  

Table 3-5 below explains the estimated current and future feedstocks that are available for the 

composting sites. The ‘Biosolids’ estimate below is ‘dry tonnes’ of wastewater treatment solids. This is 

the estimated weight of solids without water. The ‘wet tonnes’, meaning the solids mixed with water 

brought to the compost site, is estimated at ~8000 tonnes. Wet tonnes refers to the weight at the scale 

when the solids are still wet.  

  

Is there a provincial or local requirement to have an odour or discharge permit? 

Composting sites in BC are regulated under the Organic Matter Recycling Regulation (OMRR) and BC 

does not require an additional odour or discharge permit. OMRR requires a compost site have an odour 

management plan to ensure nuisances are minimized. The RDOS does not issue Air Discharge Permits. 



 ORGANICS FEASIBILITY ASSESSMENT – PRELIMINARY DESIGN REPORT 
 FILE: 704-SWM.PLAN03138-01 |  
 
 

 1 
 
 
20200902_Composting_Facility_Executive_Summary_TetraTech 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Penticton has committed to replacing their existing wastewater solids composting facility at Campbell 
Mountain. The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) is partnering with the City of Penticton for an 
opportunity to build a facility that can compost the wastewater solids as well as food organics. 

The proposed composting operation would have separate streams for composting solids and organic food waste 
and would be located east of the Campbell Mountain Landfill (CMLF). It would be designed to accommodate up to 
35,000 tonnes of organic materials per year. The current CMLF service area includes all or parts of Electoral Areas 
B, D, E, F, G, and I, City of Penticton and Village of Keremeos. 

Improved Composting Process 

The proposed composting process uses 
Gore-Tex (a waterproof, windproof and 
breathable material) that covers the 
decomposing organic material to contain 
odourous emissions and moisture under the 
covers. Air is injected from under the 
compost pile to stimulate aerobic 
decomposition of organic matter to produce 
a peat-like humus. Channels under the pile 
also collect leachate which is later 
reincorporated into the organic materials.  

Most of the composting activities would also be conducted inside a building that will act as a secondary level of 
containment so that any residual emissions from the composting process would be captured and treated using a 
biofilter. This type of composting process called in-vessel composting.  

Odour Controls 

The first level of defense is the GORE cover membrane that will be used for Step 2 and Step 3 of the composting 
process. The membrane serves as a waterproof yet breathable material that maintains pile moisture by trapping 
water molecules along the underside of the membrane, preventing evaporation. The membrane also reduces direct 
odour emissions, as it creates a “bubble” around the pile, allowing minimal air flow between the pile and the 
environment. The moisture layer on the underside of the membrane also captures any generated odour molecules, 
trapping them inside the water droplets. 

The second level of defense is the biofilters that industry best practices recommend controlling odours from organic 
processing facilities. Biofilters are generally comprised of wood chips and mulch and are replaced periodically to 
maintain optimal odour control capabilities. These features are designed to capture and treat odours, mitigating 
them from entering the environment. Two large biofilters will be installed to ensure strict odour control. 

The combined treatment from these two odour control improvements is calculated to reduce odour emissions from 
the existing composting operation by nearly 70%. 

Leachate Controls 

The entire composting operation would be paved so that any leachate generated would be collected and 
prevented from entering the environment.  

Figure 1 - System dynamics of the GORE Cover System. 



ORGANICS FEASIBILITY ASSESSMENT – PRELIMINARY DESIGN REPORT 
FILE: 704-SWM.PLAN03138-01 |  
 

 

 2 
 
 
20200902_Composting_Facility_Executive_Summary_TetraTech 

Leachate from inside the in-vessel composting process and from the rest of the paved areas will be contained into 
a large storage tank or stormwater pond. The stored leachate would be recirculated or aerated before being 
reused in the active composting process to maintain moisture and nutrient levels. 

Material Handling and Process Flow 

As shown in Figure 2, the upgraded composting facility will work in the following manner. Table A describes the 
various steps in the handling and processing of the organic materials received. 

 

Table A: Summary of Material Handling and Composting Process 

Step Step Description Summary of Activity 

1 Receiving & 
Feedstock Preparation 

 Receipt of organic feedstocks (food/yard waste and solids in separate streams)  
 Organic material is ground-up and mixed to the desired compost recipe. 

2 Phase 1 (Active 
Composting Phase) 

 Mixed organic materials loaded into bunkers  
 Gore-Tex covers placed and secure over the bunkers.  
 Aeration system activated to maintain optimal operating conditions such as 

temperature, oxygen, and moisture levels  
 Active composting phase occurs for at least four (4) weeks 

3 Phase 2 (Stabilization 
Phase) 

 Post active composting phase, the organic materials are moved to bunkers outside.  
 Gore-Tex covers are placed and secured on the organic materials and the aeration 

system is activated again to stabilization of the organic materials.  
 Stabilization phase occurs for another two (2) weeks. 

Figure 2 - Illustration of the material handling and process flow of the proposed in-vessel 

composting operation. 



 ORGANICS FEASIBILITY ASSESSMENT – PRELIMINARY DESIGN REPORT 
 FILE: 704-SWM.PLAN03138-01 | 
 

 

 3 
 
 
20200902_Composting_Facility_Executive_Summary_TetraTech 

4 Phase 3 (Curing 
Phase) 

 The mostly composted organic materials moved to the curing bunkers to complete 
the composting process. 

 At this point, the amount of decomposition activity should be minimalized, resulting in 
very little decomposition and odourous emission being released. 

 Aeration is continued (without covers) to cure the compost and prepare the soil 
amendment for market. 

 Curing takes another two (2) weeks. 

5 Screening and 
Finished Product 

 Cured compost is screened to remove contaminants and “oversized” materials from 
the finished compost.  

 Finished compost is stored in large piles to be distributed to end-markets. 
 Oversized materials are used in the feedstock preparation to stimulate 

decomposition of fresh organic material.  

 

Socio-Environmental Benefits  

The proposed improvements would change the existing composting operation from an open-air system with minimal 
odour controls, to a two-stream in-vessel system that has extensive odour mitigation measures (enclosed buildings, 
biofilters, GORE covers) resulting in a 70% decrease of odour release to the environment. 

The composting operation is proposed to be located on the adjacent property that is east of the CMLF. This will 
increase the disposal capacity at the landfill and move the composting operation farther away from most residents 
thereby reducing potential nuisance impacts. 

Besides the operational benefits, the organics composting facility also promotes a circular economy for the organic 
waste stream. The end product is compost which can be re-used within the region to grow food, hold nutrients in 
the soil and support local demand from residents and the agricultural sector for high-quality soil, thus completing 
the circular economy. 

Diverting organic materials from the landfill also reduces potential greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Landfilled 
organic waste results in methane, a powerful GHG. Reducing or diverting organic materials away from the landfill 
reduces decomposing organic waste which can reduce methane production and the Regional District’s 
environmental or carbon footprint. 

Economic Benefits 

In addition to the socio-environmental benefits listed above, the proposed improvements will save in the operational 
costs of the landfill as the cost to compost is less expensive than that of landfilling. The cost of creating a joint, two-
stream composting facility for food, yard and waste solids will reduce capital costs by nearly $2.5M and processing 
cost by $26 per tonne (without the grant) or $66 per tonne (with the grant). 

The property located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road is the most fiscally responsible option for the facility as it is 
anticipated to save capital costs, create approximately $11 to $16M worth of additional landfill airspace, and easily 
facilitate sharing staff and equipment between the two sites. Relocating the current solids composting facility and 
reduction or organics will extend the life of the landfill, deferring future costs that will save taxpayer dollars. 



     

                                                                                                                

RDOS Solid Waste Department: 250-490-4129 
 

 
Organics Composting Facility Town Hall FEEDBACK 
 

 
Wednesday, September 30, 2020 - 6:00 to 7:00 pm 

 
Thank you for contacting the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS). 
 
If you would like to take part in the Organics Composting Facility Electronic Town Hall meeting on 
September 30, 2020 from 6:00 to 7:00 pm, please follow the instructions below: 
 
Click here to join meeting   
Event password: RD@S 
 
Or, click this link https://rdos.webex.com and enter the event number: 146 281 0284 
 
If you log in to Webex, you can ask questions using electronic messaging.  
 
Join the audio conference only: 
1-844-992-4726 Canada and United States Toll Free 
[To get in the queue to ask a question, select: *3 ] 
 
You can also send questions via email to publicworks@rdos.bc.ca 
 
After the September 30th meeting, you can send questions via regular mail, email or telephone: 
 
RDOS Office: 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A 5J9 
 
RDOS Solid Waste Department:  
Toll Free: 1-877-610-3737 ext. 4129 Direct: 250-490-4129 
 
 
Organics composting facility public engagement – Information Release: 
https://cms.rdos.bc.ca/assets/Information-Releases/20200925-Composting-Facility-Information-
Release.pdf 
 
Organics composting facility public engagement website: RDOS Regional Connections  
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/compost 
 
 

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__rdos.webex.com_rdos_onstage_g.php-3FMTID-3De31fc09706697b6109caebec997e51b66&d=DwMFAw&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=2OSSbGidK3krmiiBWEzdSAQKnUQDkdqbNdKRse2VSfU&m=9tzMEA7hXIcSBUOMIHxWK_1woiHbDqntw6hUMkucf5o&s=AL7DSQLo5xoY6_n_YQUXU37yvgSQU4uXEEXhm2RbLzc&e=
https://rdos.webex.com/
mailto:publicworks@rdos.bc.ca
https://cms.rdos.bc.ca/assets/Information-Releases/20200925-Composting-Facility-Information-Release.pdf
https://cms.rdos.bc.ca/assets/Information-Releases/20200925-Composting-Facility-Information-Release.pdf
https://rdosregionalconnections.ca/compost


/;.)~~~.1191 ~~ llJ Thursday, Oct 8 

Penticton 

Feedback for new compost 
Virtual town hall meeting on Sept. 30 for the organics composting 
facility 
Casey Richardson - Sep 29, 2020 / 8:00 pm 

Photo: Contributed 
Site of the Proposed Organics Composting Site 

The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen is asking for public feedback about grogosed 
Qiganics comgosting faciliW. at Campbell Mountain. 

Residents within the Campbell Mountain Service Area (includes all or parts of Electoral Areas B, D, 
E, F, G, and I, City of Penticton and Village of Keremeos) will be able to provide feedback until Oct. 
2. 

An electronic town hall will be held Sept. 30 from 6 p.m. to 7 p.m. with ROOS and City of Penticton 
members along with a consulting and engineering firm to answer questions and provide 
information on the organic composting facility. 

Currently the ROOS is working with the City to build a facility that can compost the wastewater 
solids as well as food and yard waste organics. The new operation would be designed to hold up 
to 35,000 tonnes of organic materials per year and the plan would implement odour controls and 
paving the site to contain leachate. 

In their findings, the ROOS reported 40 per cent of waste entering landfills comes from food waste 
and other organic materials in the Regional District by weight. 

Composting is the best way to help divert waste from going to landfills, according to the Solid 
Waste Management Plan. 

The submitted feedback will be shared with the Board at a future meeting and help make a 
decision on whether to support submitting the ALR Exclusion application to the Agricultural Land 
Commission for the purpose of constructing the compost facility. 

Information on how to sign up and join the meeting can be found online here. 

Back to Homeruig~ 



d-)~~~..,-,,,1 ~~ l!l Thursday. Oct 8 

< c 1t y > Kelowna"s Homepage Q Castanet Q 

Home MMM W#M 11Mffi=M AM@N C 
s~yg:,s_ 
I Oliver 

Penticton 

Movement on compost site 
Compost facility would facilitate curb side pickup 
Colin Oacre . Jan 9, 2020 15:25 pm 

~ Compost site. moving forward 
Watch later Share 

_., ~,s• 

The Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen believes it has finally found a location for a 
regional compost and biosolids facility. 

The board Thursday voted to apply for a grant to construct an in-vessel composting plant near the 
Campbell Mountain Landfill. It would handle organic food/yard waste - paving the way for a curb 
side collection program - and the sludge from Penticton's wastewater treatment plant. 

The grant could cover up to 83 per cent of the expected $ 17.2-million price tag for the facility. The 
ROOS would be required to pay for the land. with the board authorizing purchase 
negotiations during a closed session earlier Thursday. 

After years of struggling to find a location for a regional compost facility. board members were 
overwhelmingly enthusiastic. 

-When you look at communities like Nanaimo that has had this in place for years and years. it's 
good that we're catching up; said Penticton Coun. Katie Robinson. 

The current outdoor compost facility at Campbell Mountain is not-compliant with regulations and 
has drawn complaints from neighbours over odour. Previous studies estimate a curb side food 
collection program could potentially divert 26 per cent of the total waste stream. 

"Let's face it we're growing in population and that compost material is going to be growing in 
volumes." Pentlcton Coun. Jake Kimberley said. "Hopefully we can educate the population to start 
separating garbage [from compost]." 

The board also voted Thursday to request the Agricultural Land Commission to remove the lands 
required for the fadlity from the ALR. 

Andrew Reeder. manager of operations. said that if all goes as expected with the ALC. they could 
have a grant by this fall. and six months to a year later. implementation of a curb side compost 
pickup program. 

The ROOS says It can save $1. 7 million by purchasing new land for the facility. rather than building 
on the Campbell Mountain Landfill site, due to geotechnical considerations. Moving composting 
off the site will also free up between $11 million and $16 million worth of landfill space. 

The proposed in-vessel composting method will minimize odours and leachate. something that 
delights Gil Szabo, who owns property adjacent to the dump. 

·11 is of fundamental importance that this building is constructed immediately. with a proper 
barrier under the concrete slab to prevent the leachate from continuing to enter our water 
supply. It is also welcome news that the intent to construct this building with proper ventilation to 
prevent the noxious fumes from continuing to pollute neighbouring properties. and ultimately the 
lake." he said in an email to Castanet. 

The RODS has been trying to find a location for such a facility for years. It initially selected a 
property in Marron Valley in 2017. but reversed course after outcry from neighbours and~ 
MLA. The District of Summerland also refused to host the facility at its own landfill later that year. 

-with files from Chelsea Powrie 



http://www.pentictonherald.ca/news/article_ 179a3436-ed73-11ea-8259-0b0cc133e32e.html 

I FEATURED I 
ROOS uses expropriation to secure compost site 
JOE FRIES 
Sep 2, 2020 

A portion of the Sather Ranch property where the ROOS is considering building a composting facility. 

After learning last month of a competing offer on an 80-acre property it's eyeing for a composting 

facility, the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen began the little-used process of expropriating 

the land to chase off the other potential buyers. 

"We don't like expropriation because typically you're trying to yank some grandmother's house away 

from her," ROOS chief administrative officer Bill Newell said in an interview Thursday. 

"But in this case, because it was a court-ordered sale, we recommended the board go ahead with it." 



Court documents show an Alberta couple on July 4 offered to purchase 1313 Greyback Mountain Rd 

for $1.6 million. 

The offer for the Sather Ranch property, which had been the subject of acrimonious bankruptcy 

proceedings between its formers owners, was accepted July 9 by a receiver. The offer was then 

scheduled to be presented to a B.C. Supreme Court judge for approval on Aug. 13. 

But back in the spring, the ROOS struck its own deal with the receiver to allow the ROOS to begin the 

regulatory work associated with permitting a compost facility at the site while the property was still tied 

up in court. 

As part of that earlier deal, the ROOS put forward an informal offer to purchase the property for 

$950,000, which Newell said was the value placed on the land by an appraiser in 2019. 

The land is directly across from the Campbell Mountain Landfill, which is operated by the ROOS, 

making it an ideal location for the new compost facility. 

Once the former owners finally settled their court matters and the property's sale was ordered by a 

judge, the receiver hired a real estate agent and put the property on the market June 23 with an asking 

price of $1.595 million. 

"We were surprised at the value," said Newell, who doesn't begrudge the receiver for seeking more 

offers because receivers are obliged to get top dollar for assets under their control. 

So, faced with the threat of losing the property to the Alberta couple or getting into a bidding war, the 

ROOS board met behind closed doors on Aug. 6 and voted to expropriate the land. 

"The property was going to move anyway," said Newell. And "then at least we have certainty we're 

going to get the property, we're going to have certainty on price." 

The B.C. Local Government Act allows regional districts to take ownership of private property "for the 

purpose of exercising or performing its powers, duties and functions," and also requires the former 

owners be fairly compensated. 

Shortly after the decision to go ahead with the expropriation -- a process so rare Newell has never gone 

through with one in his decades-long career in municipal government -- the ROOS began serving 

notice to the other parties. 



In discussions with the receiver, said Newell, the ROOS learned the Alberta couple had walked away 

from the deal after hearing the ROOS intended to take the land. 

The couple, Kim and Dennis Brodersen, didn't respond to a request for comment Wednesday. The 

receiver declined comment. 

The property purchase isn't finalized just yet, though, because it still needs to be approved by a B.C. 

Supreme Court judge at a hearing set for Sept. 9. 

ROOS consultants expect a new composting facility will result in as much as a 70% reduction in odour 

from composting operations, because the existing outdoor piles at Campbell Mountain will be 

eliminated and all organic material trucked to the new facility, which would be enclosed. 

Some neighbours have larger concerns about removing the site from the Agricultural Land Reserve. 

As of January, the cost of building the composting facility, not including land acquisition, was estimated 

by ROOS staff at $17.2 million. 

A regional composting facility, along with curbside pickup of organic waste, has been on the books 

since 2013, but the concept hit a few snags in recent years after proposed sites in Marron Valley and 

Summerland were shot down due to local opposition. 

The ROOS says organics and food waste account for about 40% of what's currently going into local 

landfills, the lives of which would be extended by diverting that material to a composting facility, which 

would crank out high-quality products for agricultural use. 

The ROOS non-farm-use application to the Agricultural Land Commission to dedicate part of the site to 

a composting facility is on hold pending public consultation, which is expected to start this week, 

according to Newell. The land will also have to be rezoned by the ROOS itself. 

If the composting facility doesn't go ahead, said Newell, the ROOS will consider other uses for the 

property or may put it back on the market. 



http://www.pentictonherald.ca/news/article _ c9b942ae-f905-11 ea-829a-2b 7 d3d423d82 .html 

I FEATURED I 
City backs non-farm-use application for compost site 
JOE FRIES 
Sep 17, 2020 

A composting operation in Moncton, N.B. 

Contributed/TransAqua 

City backs non-farm-use application for compost site 

Recognizing the potential benefit for Penticton residents, city council this week gave its unanimous 

blessing to a plan to remove from the Agricultural Land Reserve a property near the Campbell 

Mountain Landfill in order to build a regional compost facility. 



The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen is spending $1.6 million on the property at 1313 

Greyback Mountain Rd., which is directly across from the landfill, and is therefore viewed as an ideal 

place for a new composting facility. 

The 80-acre site was most recently used as a cattle ranch, and building a compost facility will require 

removing a section from the ALR. 

As the neighbouring local government, the city's blessing was sought to bolster a non-farm-use 

application to the Agricultural Land Commission. Besides taking city residents' organic waste, the 

facility would also handle sludge from the city's sewage treatment plant. 

The ROOS is in the midst of public consultation on the compost project and expects to complete its 

application to the ALC this fall. An electronic town hall is set for Sept. 30, 6-7 p.m. on the ROOS 

YouTube Channel. For more information, call 250-490-4129. 



The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen has identified the site for an 
organics facility. (ROOS photo) 

Land purchase considered 
for organics facility in South 
Okanagan 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen has 
identified 32-hectare site 
JOHN ARENDT / Aug. 21, 2020 11 :49 a.m. / NEWS 

The Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen is considering 
the purchase of a property at Greyback Mountain Road for an 
organics treatment and processing facility. 

"Purchasing this parcel of land will allow the ROOS to move 
forward on the landfill expansion," said Karla Kozakevich, chair 
of the regional district board. "This will reduce leachate and 
odour at the site, as well as the amount of waste entering the 
landfill." 

READ ALSO: ROOS to study sites for composting facility 

READ ALSO: Stay away from landfills, Regional District of 
Okanagan Similkameen urges 



The regional district's board of directors authorized the 

purchase of the property on Aug. 6. 

Location studies have been conducted to develop an organics 

treatment and processing facility. The facility is identified in the 

regional district's solid waste management plan as the best 

means of reducing waste entering the waste stream. 

The property is 32 hectares in size. Roughly two-thirds of the 

land is within the Agricultural Land Reserve. 

The regional district will have public engagement before 

completing an application to the Agricultural Land Commission 

for exclusion. A public hearing will be held prior to a zoning 

amendment. 

To report a typo, email: 
news@summerlandreview.com. 

news@summerlandreview.com 
Like us on Facebook and follow us on Twitter. 

I OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN REGIONAL DISTRICT I 

Get local stories you won't find anywhere else right to 
your inbox. 

Sign up here 



REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

INFORMATION RELEASE OKANAGAN• 
SIMILKAMEEN 

September 30, 2020 

Federation of Canadian Municipalities Recognizes RDOS Compost Feasibility Project 

The Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) has recently recognized the Regional District of Okanagan 
Similkameen (ROOS) for environmental leadership. A feasibility study conducted to determine how to 
manage compost in the ROOS has been included in a compendium of 20 exceptional projects in the last 20 
years funded by FCM. The FCM has supported over 1360 sustainability projects. 

About 40% of materials going into ROOS landfills, including food waste, could potentially be composted. A 
comprehensive feasibility study conducted by the ROOS considered the social, economic and environmental 
factors of composting. Different compost technologies were considered and costed out. Innovative odour 
modelling was developed to compare the risks of placing facilities in various locations. Transportation costs, 
means of collection, sale of compost and greenhouse gas emissions were also estimated. 

The feasibility study showed that one large-scale compost site, located near Penticton, would be a viable 
solution for the Region to deal with commercial food waste, wastewater sludge and urban food waste. 
Having one large site allowed for the best odour control while lowering overall costs. The feasibility study 
also showed that smaller compost sites made sense in rural areas for residential food waste and agricultural 
organics. The odour from these rural sites was found to be manageable if kept small enough. The FCM 
provided $175,000 in grant funding through the Green Municipal Fund towards the feasibility study project. 

Karla Kozakevich, ROOS Chair, was one of the elected officials that oversaw the development of the 
feasibility study. "It is an honour to be recognized as having conducted one of the most outstanding 
environmental leadership projects in Canada," states Kozakevich. "Siting a compost site has the potential to 
be controversial. Doing it right from the beginning is incredibly important. Our feasibility study helped inform 
elected officials and the public of the benefits of moving forward and ways to mitigate potential concerns." 

Currently the District of Summerland and the ROOS are designing small-scale residential food waste and 
agricultural compost sites at the Summerland and Oliver Landfills. These facilities will allow for residential 
food waste collection by 2022 for the Summerland, Oliver and Osoyoos areas. 

On Wednesday September 30th the ROOS will be hosting an Organics Composting Facility Electronic Town 
Hall to discuss whether residents support applying to the Agricultural Land Commission for an Agricultural 
Land Reserve exclusion for the purpose of a large scale compost site at the Campbell Mountain Landfill near 
Penticton. This on line event will provide an opportunity to learn more about the proposed composting 
facility and ask questions. Representatives from the ROOS, City of Penticton and a consulting and 
engineering firm will be available to answer questions. 

For more information on the online Town Hall meeting, please visit www.rdos.bc.ca 

#### 

Serving the citizens of the Okanagan-Similkameen since 1966. 
www.rdos.bc.ca 



Federation of Canadian Municipalities Compendium of 20 Outstanding Projects in last 20 Years: 
https ://fem .ca/en/programs/green-mun ici pa 1-fu nd/ compendium/ compendium-case-studies/study 
hel ps-set-d i rection-new-com posting-faci I ity 

For further information, please call 250-490-0237 or email info@rdos.bc.ca 

Karla Kozakevich, Chair 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

Campbell Mountain Landfill 

2 



Compost Facility 
The City of Penticton is working with the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) on a proposal to 
upgrade our community's composting processes at the Campbell Mountain Landfill. 

About the Proposal 

Project Summary 

The City's wastewater treatment compost facility at the Campbell Mountain Landfill no longer meets 
updated Provincial requirements. 

Recently, an opportunity has arisen to combine resources with the Regional District of Okanagan 
Similkameen (RDOS), which seeks to build an organic composting facility. This proposal involves working 
together to improve the existing site. 

The RDOS is purchasing the property adjacent to the existing wastewater treatment compost site to build 
an in-vessel (indoor) facility to compost both wastewater solids and organics separately. 

The RDOS is applying for a grant that would fund a large portion of the project's capital costs. This project 
would also streamline operating costs through consolidating equipment and personnel resources. 

Feedback gathered by the City of Penticton in 2018 indicated strong support from local residents to 
establish an organics composting facility. Also, a 2019 study recommended introducing in-vessel 
composting (an enclosed environment), which minimizes nuisances such as noise and odours. 

This new composting facility would make it possible for residents, commercial retailers and farmers to 
dispose of their food and agricultural waste in a sustainable way. 

This proposal requires amending the Solid Waste Management Plan. Also, it involves legislative 
requirements to determine the location, including Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) and rezoning 
applications. Citizens are invited to provide feedback by visiting the RDOS community engagement 
website at rdosregionalconnections.ca. 

Benefits of the Proposed Facility 
Advantages of building an organics composting facility at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road include: 

• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions 

• Reduce wait times at the landfill by diverting yard waste to the new property 

• Reduce the need for the agricultural community to burn trees and prunings 

• Create food waste compost. a valuable soil additive for the agricultural community 

• Offer commercial retailers another means to dispose offood waste 

• Extend the life of the landfill by diverting food waste 



Frequently Asked Questions 

Do We Need to UP-grade this Facilil)'1 

The upgrades to Penticton's wastewater treatment compost facility at Campbell Mountain Landfill have 
been flagged as an immediate need. This location no longer meets updated Provincial requirements and 
this issue must be addressed so that the City can continue to process our wastewater solids. 

Whether the City chooses to partner with the ROOS, the facility must be upgraded and wil I remain at this 
location. 

What Feedback has been Collected from Penticton Residents? 

Feedback gathered from Penticton citizens in 2018 indicated strong support for establishing an organics 
composting facility. Also, a 2019 study recommended introducing in-vessel composting (an enclosed 
environment), which minimizes nuisances including noise and odours. 

The ROOS is gathering feedback about the proposed organics composting facility at 
rdosregionalconnections.ca until Oct. 2, 2020. The results will be submitted to the ROOS board for 
consideration as part of an application to the ALC. 

WhY. is Penticton Partnering with the ROOS? 

Penticton needs to upgrade its wastewater treatment compost facility. By combining resources with the 
ROOS, which seeks to build an organics composting facility, it's anticipated the City can gain efficiencies. 
This al I-in-one facility would combine resources to meet the needs of both parties. 

The ROOS is applying for a government grant which would cover a large portion of the capital costs. Also, 
operational costs would be streamlined through consolidating equipment and staff. 



WhY. is the City/ROOS Considering Adding ComRosting to this Site? 

Composting is environmentally friendly, providing a means to convert food waste into a beneficial, useable 
top soi I. Accardi ng to the ROOS, food waste and other organic materials account for approximately 40 
percent of waste entering our landfill by weight 

Advantages of building an organics composting facility at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road include: 

• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions 

• Reduce wait times at the landfill by diverting yard waste to the new property 

• Reduce the need for the agricultural community to burn trees and prunings 

• Create food waste compost, a valuable soil additive for the agricultural community 

• Offer commercial retailers another means to dispose of food waste 

• Extend the life of the landfill by diverting food waste 

Would ComRosting Benefit Farmers? 

Yes. Currently local agriculture industries are limited to burn piles, composting on site, or chipping these 
piles to eliminate their pruning and other organic brown waste. 

During burning bans, these materials can't be burned and chipping programs and on site and composting 
may not be possible if these organic wastes have pests or blight. The proposed composting facility would 
provide a more environmentally friendly option to facilitate these needs, while eliminating pests and blight 

The final compost product can be reused on local crops as a method of water and nutrient conservation. 

What Does this Progosal Involve? 

The ROOS is proposing to build an in-vessel organics composting facility located east of the Campbell 
Mountain Landfill (CMLF). The ROOS is purchasing the property located east of the landfill to build an in 
vessel facility to compost both wastewater solids and organics (in separate areas). The ROOS and City 
would manage the facility. 

This proposal would require amending the Solid Waste Management Plan. Also, it involves legislative 
requirements to determine the location, including Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) and rezoning 
applications. 



WhY. is the Progosed ComQosting Facility on Agricultural Land? 

The property located at 1313 Greyback Mountain Road is the most fiscally responsible option for 
constructing the facility. The property is ideally located adjacent the existing landfill. There will be no 
increase in traffic on local roads and it will be possible to share equipment and staff resources between the 
two sites. 

What Hannens if the ALC Turns Down the ALR Airnlication? 

The facility could be sited on the existing CMLF property with a portion on ALR land. This presents options 
that are still viable but more costly to develop. 

The proposals require amending the Solid Waste Management Plan (SWMP) and involve legislative 
requirements to determine the location, including Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) and rezoning 
applications. 

Would this Facility Mix Food Waste and Wastewater Sludge? 

No. There will be separate areas for food waste compost and wastewater solids treatment composting. 

Separating the two compost streams will allow for diversity in the final compost products and their 
respective uses. The food waste compost would create a topsoil amendment available to residents to use 
on their vegetable patches or for farmers to use on orchards and vineyards. 

The wastewater compost is also suitable for landscaping. 

If AQgroved, When is this FacilitY. ExQected to be Built? 

If the proposed composting facility is approved, construction would take more than a year to complete. 

Would this Facility Affect Groundwater? 

The proposed composting facility will be designed to meet the latest standards and regulations. 

Design standards will include liners and impermeable surfaces to trap any possible leachate, preventing 
ground water pollution. Liquids will be recirculated on-site, which will also reduce water consumption. 



What about Traffic? 

The organics composting facility wil I also alleviate the current traffic congestion and wait times at the 
landfill. 

Vehicles with yard waste will go to the organics compost facility - not to the landfill. This will reduce lineups 
at the landfill scale, especially in the spring and fall when traffic volumes are much higher. 

Will there be any Increased Noise or Odours? 

Even with more materials being composted, studies have indicated that odours will be reduced by 
approximately 70 percent over the current City of Penticton compost site. 

Mixing and primary composting will take place inside buildings designed with state of the art odour control. 
Any equipment operating outdoors would be done in the daytime during regular business hours. 

Will Residents have Curbside PickuR of Food Waste? 

The City and the RDOS will conduct additional public engagement to consult with residents about 
developing a curbside collection program including appropriate organics waste bins. These costs have yet 
to be determined. 

Contact Us 

How to Provide Feedback 

The RDOS will be collecting feedback at rdosregionalconnections.ca until Oct. 2, 2020. The results will be 
submitted to the RDOS board for consideration as part of an application to the ALC. 

To contact the RDOS regarding this project, phone 250-490-4129 or email info@rdos.bc.ca. 

Also don't miss the electronic town hall meeting on Wednesday, Sept. 30, 2020 from 6-7 pm (more 
information below). 



Contact Us 

How to Provide Feedback + 
Electronic Town Hall Meeting 

Due to the COVID-19 crisis, an electronic town hall will be scheduled to provide residents with an 
opportunity to learn more about the composting facility. The meeting will take place Wednesday, Sept. 30, 
2020 from 6- 7 p.m. 

Representatives from the ROOS, City of Penticton and a consulting and engineering flrm will be available to 
answer questions. 

Watch the meeting on the ROOS YouTube channel or ROOS Regional Connections. 

To learn more about how you can participate in the electronic town hall, please visit the ROOS Regional 
Connections website or contact the RDOS ( phone 250-490-4129 or email info@rdos.bc.ca). 

G- ➔ Compost Facility 

Connect With Us 

Sitemap 

Feedback 

Disclaimer 

Staff 

© 2020 City of Penticton 

Privacy Policy 

171 Main Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5A9 

250-490-2400 (fm 250-490-2402 

After hours emergencies: 250-490-2324 

Website by Upanup 



 
 

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 1 of 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 15, 2020 
 
RE: Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “H” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a third time 
and be adopted. 
 

Purpose:  To rezone the subject property to allow for a 2-lot subdivision. 

Owners:   Madelaine McGrath & Carolann Brewer  Agent: ALLTerra Land Surveying Folio: H-00632.100 

Legal:  Lot A, Plan KAP69501, District Lot 101 151 391, YDYD         Civic: 2390 Coalmont Road 

OCP:  Large Holdings (LH) Proposed OCP: Large Holdings (LH) 

Zone:  Large Holdings Two (LH2) Proposed Zoning: Large Holdings One (LH1) 
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking to amend the zoning of the subject property in order to create two 4.0 ha 
parcels.  In order to accomplish this, the applicant is proposing to amend the zoning of the property 
from Large Holdings Two (LH2) to Large Holdings One (LH1). 

In support of the rezoning, the applicant has stated that “the OCP designates this property and the 
adjacent parcels as Large Holdings (LH), so no changes to the OCP will be required. They (owners) 
have identified several potential building site locations at the top and bottom of the hill.” 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 8.0 ha in area and is situated approximately 1 km east of 
Tulameen on the north side of Coalmont Road. It is understood that the parcel is currently vacant. 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by similarly sized Large Holdings 
Two zoned parcels on either sides of subject parcel. To the north is the Otter Mountain which is 
largely undeveloped. To the south, across Coalmont Road, is farmlands. 
 
Background:  
On August 10, 2020, a Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held electronically and was attended by 
no members of the public (RDOS staff and both owners were present). 

Due to COVID-19, an Area “H” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) meeting was not held. Area “H” 
APC members were provided the opportunity to comment individually on this application. 



  

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 2 of 4 

Attachments:   
No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Plan 
No. 2 – Site Photo 

At its meeting of September 17, 2020, the Regional District Board resolved to approve first and 
second reading of the amendment bylaws and directed that a public hearing occur at the Board 
meeting of October 15, 2020. 

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board Agenda. 

Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) is not required prior to 
adoption as the proposed amendments involve lands beyond 800 metres of a controlled access 
highway (i.e. Highway 3). 
 
Analysis:  
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the proposed zoning designation change from 
LH2 to LH1 is generally consistent with the LH designation under the OCP Bylaw. 

While the proposal is to create two parcels (each of size 4.0 ha), no significant impact is anticipated on 
the neighbouring properties as the subject property is located in proximity to SH4 zoned lots with 
parcels ranging from 0.5 ha to 1.0 ha.  

Regarding servicing of lots, each parcel will have to be serviced by a ground water well and septic 
system that meets the Regional District’s Subdivision Servicing Bylaw requirements 

The eastern lot is proposed to be accessed through existing driveway, and a new driveway will be 
constructed to service the proposed western lot from Coalmont Road. 

Further, an environmental assessment was submitted in support of proposed rezoning, which 
indicated that the proposal will not result in either new parcel having restrictions that would preclude 
development and that the construction of a new house on the western half (proposed new lot) will 
not require any clearing or blasting. 

Conversely, Administration recognises that the topography is challenging and that the current 7.8 ha 
parcel size may be the most appropriate for this particular location. 

In summary, Administration supports the proposed zoning amendment bylaw, to allow creation of 
two parcels of size not less than 4.0 ha as it is seen to have no significant impact on surrounding 
properties or the environment and generally fits with the existing rural character of the 
neighbourhood. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT third reading of Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be 
deferred; or 

2. THAT first and second readings of Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw be rescinded and the bylaws abandoned. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:  

R. Gadoya _______________________ 
R. Gadoya, Planning Technician C. Garrish, Planning Manager 



  

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 3 of 4 

Attachment No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Plan    

 



  

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 4 of 4 

 Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo 

      



Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020 
(H2020.007-ZONE) 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2498.22 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2498.22, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2020 
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020.” 

 
2. The Official Zoning Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No. 

2498, 2012, is amended by: 

i) changing the land use designation on the land described as Lot A, Plan 69501, District 
Lot 101 151 391, YDYD, and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of 
this Bylaw, from Large Holdings Two (LH2) to Large Holdings One (LH1). 

 
 
 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 17th day of September, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this 15th day of October, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020 
(H2020.007-ZONE) 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020 File No.  H2020.007-ZONE 

Schedule ‘A’ 

NN

TULAMEEN 

Subject 
Parcel 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2012: 
from:  Large Holdings Two (LH2) 
to:  Large Holdings One (LH1) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

 



1

Rushi Gadoya

From: Ip Brew <ipbrew@hotmail.com>
Sent: July 17, 2020 5:20 PM
To: Rushi Gadoya
Subject: Project Number: H2020.007-ZONE

Dear Rushi Gadoya, 
I am writing in regards to the subdivision at 2390 Coalmont Road, Tulameen, B.C.. I foresee no problems with 
the subdividing of this property and hope the process can proceed in a timely manner.  
Sincerely yours, 
Ian Brewer 
2379 Coalmont Rd. 
Tulameen, B.C. 
 V0X 2L0 



1

Rushi Gadoya

From: Loretta <tulameentours@nethop.net>
Sent: July 19, 2020 9:38 PM
To: Rushi Gadoya
Subject: subdivision 2390 hearing

 
July 19, 2020 
 
RE: Project #H2020.007-Zone Subdivision 2390 
       Coalmont Rd., Tulameen 
 
Dear Mr. Gadoya, 
 
As the neighbouring land owners, Loretta & Neil McDiarmid, 2380 Coalmont Rd., we would like to show our support for 
this subdivision to go forward and see no valid reason why it should not. My husband and I have lived on this parcel of 
land for the last 28 years and look forward to having this small development go through. 
We do hope this show of support helps. 
 
Your truly, 
 
 
Loretta and Neil McDiarmid 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
 



1

Rushi Gadoya

From: Tulameen Adventure Tours <tulameentours@nethop.net>
Sent: July 20, 2020 4:40 PM
To: Rushi Gadoya
Subject: subdivision 2390

 
 
 
July 20, 2020 
 
RE: Project #H2020.007-zone Subdivision 2390 
    Coalmont Rd. Tulameen 
 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
We are sending our approval and support for the above mentioned subdivision. As landowners adjacent to the 
proposed land we see no reason why this should not be considered. 
Thank you for your consideration of our positive approval. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
Loretta & Neil McDiarmid 



1

Rushi Gadoya

From: Cooper, Diana FLNR:EX <Diana.Cooper@gov.bc.ca>
Sent: April 16, 2020 2:35 PM
To: Planning
Cc: Lauri Feindell
Subject: RE: Bylaw Referral Project H2020.007-ZONE

Hello Planning Gurus at RDOS!   
 
Hope everyone is healthy and safe. 
 
Thank you for your referral regarding the proposed subdivision of 2390 Coalmont Road, PID 025101901, LOT A DISTRICT 
LOTS 101, 151 AND 391 YALE DIVISION YALE DISTRICT PLAN KAP69501. Please review the screenshot of the property 
below (outlined in yellow) and notify me immediately if it does not represent the property listed in your referral. 
 
Results of Provincial Archaeological Inventory Search 
 
According to Provincial records, there are no known archaeological sites recorded on the subject property. 
 
However, archaeological potential modelling for the area indicates the property has high to moderate potential for 
unknown/unrecorded archaeological deposits, as indicated by the brown (high potential) and beige (moderate 
potential) areas shown in the screenshot below.  
 
Archaeological potential modelling is compiled using existing knowledge about archaeological sites, past indigenous 
land use, and environmental variables. Models are a tool to help predict the presence of archaeological sites but their 
results may be refined through further assessment.   
 
Archaeology Branch Advice 
 
If land-altering activities (e.g., home renovations, property redevelopment, landscaping, service installation) are planned 
for the subject property, a Provincial heritage permit is not required prior to commencement of those activities.  
 
However, a Provincial heritage permit will be required if archaeological materials are exposed and/or impacted during 
land-altering activities. Unpermitted damage or alteration of a protected archaeological site is a contravention of the 
Heritage Conservation Act and requires that land-altering activities be halted until the contravention has been 
investigated and permit requirements have been established. This can result in significant project delays.  
 
Therefore, the Archaeology Branch strongly recommends engaging an eligible consulting archaeologist prior to any land-
altering activities. The archaeologist will review the proposed activities, verify archaeological records, and possibly 
conduct a walk-over and/or an archaeological impact assessment (AIA) of the project area to determine whether the 
proposed activities are likely to damage or alter any previously unidentified archaeological sites.   
 
Please notify all individuals involved in land-altering activities (e.g., owners, developers, equipment operators) that if 
archaeological material is encountered during development, they must stop all activities immediately and contact the 
Archaeology Branch for direction at 250-953-3334.  
 
Rationale and Supplemental Information 
 

 There is high to moderate potential for previously unidentified archaeological deposits to exist on the property. 



2

 Archaeological sites are protected under the Heritage Conservation Act and must not be damaged or altered 
without a Provincial heritage permit issued by the Archaeology Branch. This protection applies even when 
archaeological sites are previously unidentified or disturbed.  

 If a permit is required, be advised that the permit application and issuance process takes approximately 8-12 
weeks; the permit application process includes referral to First Nations and subsequent engagement. 

 The Archaeology Branch must consider numerous factors (e.g., proposed activities and potential impacts to the 
archaeological site[s]) when determining whether to issue a permit and under what terms and conditions. 

 The Archaeology Branch has the authority to require a person to obtain an archaeological impact assessment, at 
the person’s expense, in certain circumstances, as set out in the Heritage Conservation Act. 

 Occupying an existing dwelling or building without any land alteration does not require a Provincial heritage 
permit. 

 
How to Find an Eligible Consulting Archaeologist 
 
An eligible consulting archaeologist is one who can hold a Provincial heritage permit to conduct archaeological studies. 
To verify an archaeologist’s eligibility, ask an archaeologist if he or she can hold a permit in your area, or contact the 
Archaeology Branch (250-953-3334) to verify an archaeologist’s eligibility. Consulting archaeologists are listed on the BC 
Association of Professional Archaeologists website (www.bcapa.ca) and in local directories. 
 
Questions? 
 
For questions about the archaeological permitting and assessment process, please contact the Archaeology Branch at 
250-953-3334 or archaeology@gov.bc.ca.    
 
For more general information, visit the Archaeology Branch website at www.gov.bc.ca/archaeology.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions regarding this information. 
 
Kind regards, 
 

 
 



3

 
 
Please note that subject lot boundaries (yellow) and areas of archaeological potential (brown = high and beige = 
moderate) indicated on the enclosed screenshot are based on information obtained by the Archaeology Branch on the 
date of this communication and may be subject to error or change.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

From: Lauri Feindell <lfeindell@rdos.bc.ca>  
Sent: April 15, 2020 5:10 PM 
To: HBE@interiorhealth.ca; 'fbclands@fortisbc.com' <fbclands@fortisbc.com>; Poole, Kathryn ENV:EX 
<Kathryn.Poole@gov.bc.ca>; Referral Apps REG8 FLNR:EX <ReferralAppsREG8@gov.bc.ca>; Arch Data Request FLNR:EX 
<ArchDataRequest@gov.bc.ca> 
Cc: Rushi Gadoya <rgadoya@rdos.bc.ca> 
Subject: Bylaw Referral Project H2020.007-ZONE 

 

Diana Cooper  
Archaeologist/Archaeological Site Inventory Information & Data Administrator 
Archaeology Branch|Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development  
Phone: (250) 953-3343|Email: diana.cooper@gov.bc.ca |Website www.gov.bc.ca/archaeology 
 



4

 
Re:                        Bylaw Amendment 2498.22 
                              Projct No. H2020.007-ZONE 
                              2390 Coalmont Road 
 
Please find attached a Bylaw Referral, and a link to direct you to documents in relation to the amendment. 
 
https://www.rdos.bc.ca/development-services/planning/current-applications-decisions/electoral-area-h/h2020007-zone/  
 
Please review and if you have any concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the file manager, Rushi Gadoya.  Once 
reviewed, please forward any comments/concerns you may have to planning@rdos.bc.ca by May 13, 2020. 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
 
 

Lauri Feindell, Administrative Assistant, 
Planning Services 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9  
p. 250.490.4107 ● tf. 1.877.610.3737 ● f. 250.492.0063 
www.rdos.bc.ca ● lfeindell@rdos.bc.ca 

FACEBOOK ● YOUTUBE ● Sign up for REGIONAL CONNECTIONS 
 
This Communication is intended for the use of the recipient to which it is addressed, and may contain confidential, personal and/ or privileged information. Please 
contact the sender immediately if you are not the intended recipient of this communication and do not copy, distribute or take action relying on it. Any communication 
received in error, or subsequent reply, should be deleted or destroyed. 
 
 
 



1

Rushi Gadoya

From: Leathem, Jamie FLNR:EX <Jamie.Leathem@gov.bc.ca>
Sent: May 13, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Planning
Cc: Lacey, Cathy M FLNR:EX
Subject: FW: Bylaw Referral Project H2020.007-ZONE (2020035)

The above noted referral (our file 2020035) has been reviewed by the Ecosystems Section of the Ministry of Forests, 
Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development.  
 
There are no concerns with the rezoning as proposed. 
 
Thank you, 
Jamie Leathem, M.Sc. 
Ecosystems Biologist | BC Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations and Rural Development 
102 Industrial Place, Penticton, BC V2A 7C8 | 778-622-6834| Jamie.Leathem@gov.bc.ca  
_____________________________________________________  

 

From: Referral Apps REG8 FLNR:EX <ReferralAppsREG8@gov.bc.ca>  
Sent: April 16, 2020 1:22 PM 
To: Leathem, Jamie FLNR:EX <Jamie.Leathem@gov.bc.ca> 
Subject: FW: Bylaw Referral Project H2020.007-ZONE 
 
Hi Jamie, 
 
A new referral for you.  Our file number is 2020035 and the due date is May 13, 2020. 
 
Thanks 
Cathy 
 
From: Lauri Feindell <lfeindell@rdos.bc.ca>  
Sent: April 15, 2020 5:10 PM 
To: HBE@interiorhealth.ca; 'fbclands@fortisbc.com' <fbclands@fortisbc.com>; Poole, Kathryn ENV:EX 
<Kathryn.Poole@gov.bc.ca>; Referral Apps REG8 FLNR:EX <ReferralAppsREG8@gov.bc.ca>; Arch Data Request FLNR:EX 
<ArchDataRequest@gov.bc.ca> 
Cc: Rushi Gadoya <rgadoya@rdos.bc.ca> 
Subject: Bylaw Referral Project H2020.007-ZONE 
 
Re:                        Bylaw Amendment 2498.22 
                              Projct No. H2020.007-ZONE 
                              2390 Coalmont Road 
 
Please find attached a Bylaw Referral, and a link to direct you to documents in relation to the amendment. 
 
https://www.rdos.bc.ca/development-services/planning/current-applications-decisions/electoral-area-h/h2020007-zone/  
 



2

Please review and if you have any concerns, please do not hesitate to contact the file manager, Rushi Gadoya.  Once 
reviewed, please forward any comments/concerns you may have to planning@rdos.bc.ca by May 13, 2020. 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
 
 

Lauri Feindell, Administrative Assistant, 
Planning Services 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9  
p. 250.490.4107 ● tf. 1.877.610.3737 ● f. 250.492.0063 
www.rdos.bc.ca ● lfeindell@rdos.bc.ca 

FACEBOOK ● YOUTUBE ● Sign up for REGIONAL CONNECTIONS 
 
This Communication is intended for the use of the recipient to which it is addressed, and may contain confidential, personal and/ or privileged information. Please 
contact the sender immediately if you are not the intended recipient of this communication and do not copy, distribute or take action relying on it. Any communication 
received in error, or subsequent reply, should be deleted or destroyed. 
 
 
 



1

Rushi Gadoya

From: Danielson, Steven <Steven.Danielson@fortisbc.com>
Sent: May 15, 2020 3:39 PM
To: Planning
Subject: Coalmont Rd, 2390 RDOS (H2020_007-ZONE)

With respect to the above noted file,  
 
There are FortisBC Inc. (Electric) (“FBC(E)”)  primary distribution facilities along Coalmont Road.  Further extension work 
may be required depending on the building site location.       
 
To proceed with further servicing, the applicant should contact an FBC(E) designer as noted below for more details 
regarding design, servicing solutions, and land right requirements.  All costs and land right requirements associated 
with servicing the proposed lots are the responsibility of the applicant.  
 
In order to initiate the design process, the customer must call 1-866-4FORTIS (1-866-436-7847).  Please have the 
following information available in order for FBC(E) to set up the file when you call. 

• Electrician’s Name and Phone number 
• FortisBC Total Connected Load Form 
• Other technical information relative to electrical servicing 

 
For more information, please refer to FBC(E)’s overhead and underground design requirements: 

FortisBC Overhead Design Requirements 
http://fortisbc.com/ServiceMeterGuide 

 
FortisBC Underground Design Specification  
http://www.fortisbc.com/InstallGuide 
 

Otherwise, FBC(E) has no concerns with this circulation. 
 
It should be noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but can be dealt with at that 
time, prior to construction.   
If you have any questions or comments, please contact me at your convenience. 
                       
Best Regards,  
 
 
 
Steve Danielson, AACI, SR/WA 
Contract Land Agent | Property Services | FortisBC Inc. 
2850 Benvoulin Rd 
Kelowna, BC  V1W 2E3 
Mobile:  250.681.3365 
Fax:  1.866.636.6171 
FBCLands@fortisbc.com 
 

 
 



2

 
This email and any files transmitted with it, are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to 
whom they are addressed. If you are not the original recipient or the person responsible for delivering the email to the 
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this email in error, and that any use, dissemination, forwarding, 
printing, or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you receive this email in error, please notify the sender 
immediately. 
 
 
 

 
This email was sent to you by FortisBC*. The contact information to reach an authorized representative of FortisBC is 16705 Fraser Highway, Surrey, British 
Columbia, V4N 0E8, Attention: Communications Department. You can unsubscribe from receiving further emails from FortisBC by emailing 
unsubscribe@fortisbc.com. 
 
*”FortisBC” refers to the FortisBC group of companies which includes FortisBC Holdings. Inc., FortisBC Energy Inc., FortisBC Inc., FortisBC Alternative Energy 
Services Inc. and Fortis Generation Inc.  
 
This e-mail is the property of FortisBC and may contain confidential material for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). Any review, use, distribution or disclosure 
by others is strictly prohibited. FortisBC does not accept liability for any errors or omissions which arise as a result of e-mail transmission. If you are not the 
intended recipient, please contact the sender immediately and delete all copies of the message including removal from your hard drive. Thank you. 



1

Rushi Gadoya

From: HBE <HBE@interiorhealth.ca>
Sent: April 16, 2020 11:01 AM
To: Planning
Subject: IH Response: H2020.007-ZONE
Attachments: Interests Unaffected - Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen- H2020.007-

ZONE.pdf

Good morning,  
 
Please see the attached Interior Health response letter. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Kura Bailey 
Health Protection Clerk 
Interior Health Authority 
519 Columbia Street 
Kamloops, BC V2C  2T8 
Ph: 1-855-744-6328 Option 1 (toll free) 
 
 
 



 
 

                                                         File No: X2020.006-ZONE 
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: October 15, 2020 
 
RE: Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F” & “I” 
 Regulation of Metal Storage Containers 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 2895, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Metal Storage Container 
Regulations Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and second time and proceed to public 
hearing; 

AND THAT the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
November 19, 2020; 

AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
 

Proposed Development: 
The purpose of Amendment Bylaw No. 2895 is to introduce zoning regulations governing the use and 
placement of metal storage containers within the Okanagan Electoral Area zoning bylaws. 
 
Background: 
At its meeting of February 20, 2020, the P&D Committee considered a Draft of the 2020 Corporate 
Action Plan.  This Plan included, as an action, a “review the Area I Zoning Bylaw to establish controls 
for tiny homes, shipping containers and B&B at Apex Mountain Resort” to be completed by Q4 2020. 

At its meeting March 5, 2020, the P&D Committee of the Board resolved that the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen Storage Container Regulations Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, be 
initiated. 

At its meeting of October 1, 2020, the P&D Committee of the Board considered public feedback 
received in relation to Amendment Bylaw No. 2895 and resolved that the following amendments to 
the bylaw be made: 

1. a minimum parcel size requirement of 0.5 ha 

2. the replacement of the cladding and roofing requirement with a requirement to paint the 
container the same colour as the principal dwelling in Low Density Residential and Small Holdings 
zones; 

3. a definition of “metal shipping container”; 

4. a regulation that metal shipping containers not be located between the front parcel line of a 
property and the principal dwelling unit in Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones; and 



  

                                                         File No: X2020.006-ZONE 
Page 2 of 2 

5. a regulation permitting one (1) metal storage container to be used for temporary storage of 
household goods for a period not exceeding one (1) month. 

 
Referrals: 
Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) is required prior to adoption 
as the proposed amendments involve lands within 800 metres of a controlled access highway (i.e. 
Highway 97 & 3). 
 
Public Process: 
As part of the initiation of Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, the following consultation was undertaken:  

· referral to individual members of the Electoral Area Advisory Planning Commissions; 

· notification of external agencies (April 15, 2020); 

· documentation added to Regional District web-page (March 10, 2020); 

· notification posted to the Regional District’s Facebook page (April 16, 2020); and 

· notification on CivicReady to approximately 450 persons (June 9, 2020). 

In response to this notification, approximately 50 representations were received from the public and 
approximately 20 representations were received from APC members. 

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2895 contains regulations to govern the placement of shipping containers 
within the Okanagan Electoral Areas in accordance with the direction previously provided by the 
Board at committee. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT Bylaw No. 2895, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Metal Storage Container 
Regulations Zoning Amendment Bylaw be deferred; or 

2. THAT Bylaw No. 2895, 2020, Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Metal Storage Container 
Regulations Zoning Amendment Bylaw, be denied. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  

_____________________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Manager 

 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020 
(X2020.006-ZONE) 

  Page 1 of 7 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2895 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2895, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F” & “I” Zoning Bylaws 
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Metal Storage Container Regulations Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020.” 

 
2. The “Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new definition of “metal storage container” under Section 4.0 (Definitions) 
to read as follows: 

“metal storage container” means a purpose-designed metal cargo container for 
holding of goods, which is intended to be placed on a ship, truck or railcar; 

 
ii) adding a new sub-section 7.27 (Metal Storage Containers) under Section 7.0 

(General Regulations) to read as follows: 

7.27 Metal Storage Containers 

.1 The use of Metal Storage Containers as accessory buildings or 
structures is permitted in accordance with the following criteria: 

a) in the Resource Area, Agriculture, Large Holdings and Industrial 
zones metal storage containers may only be stacked vertically to a 
maximum of two (2) containers and subject to the prior issuance 
of a building permit. 

b) in the Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones only one 
(1) metal storage container may be used as an accessory building 
or structure on a parcel, and only if: 

i) a parcel is greater than 0.5 ha in area;  



Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020 
(X2020.006-ZONE) 

  Page 2 of 7 

ii) the metal storage container is painted in a colour consistent 
with the principal building; and  

iii) the metal storage container is not sited between the front 
parcel line and a principal building. 

c) Despite sub-section 7.27.1(a) and (b), one (1) metal storage 
container may be used for temporary storage: 

i) during construction in any zone, provided that a valid building 
permit has been issued authorizing construction of a building 
or structure. The metal storage container must be removed 
upon completion of the construction, and for this purpose 
construction is deemed to be complete on the earlier of the 
date on which an occupancy permit for the construction is 
issued, or the building or structure is used or occupied; or 

ii) for a period not exceeding 30 days for the purpose of loading 
or unloading goods related to a relocation of a residential or 
commercial use. 

 
3. The “Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new definition of “metal storage container” under Section 4.0 (Definitions) 
to read as follows: 

“metal storage container” means a purpose-designed metal cargo container for 
holding of goods, which is intended to be placed on a ship, truck or railcar; 

 
ii) adding a new sub-section 7.28 (Metal Storage Containers) under Section 7.0 

(General Regulations) to read as follows: 

7.28 Metal Storage Containers 

.1 The use of Metal Storage Containers as accessory buildings or 
structures is permitted in accordance with the following criteria: 

a) in the Resource Area, Agriculture, Large Holdings and Industrial 
zones metal storage containers may only be stacked vertically to a 
maximum of two (2) containers and subject to the prior issuance 
of a building permit. 

b) in the Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones only one 
(1) metal storage container may be used as an accessory building 
or structure on a parcel, and only if: 

i) the parcel is greater than 0.5 ha in area;  

ii) the metal storage container is painted in a colour consistent 
with the principal building; and  



Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020 
(X2020.006-ZONE) 

  Page 3 of 7 

iii) the metal storage container is not sited between the front 
parcel line and a principal dwelling. 

c) Despite sub-section 7.28.1(a) and (b), one (1) metal storage 
container may be used for temporary storage: 

i) during construction in any zone, provided that a valid building 
permit has been issued authorizing construction of a building 
or structure. The metal storage container must be removed 
upon completion of the construction, and for this purpose 
construction is deemed to be complete on the earlier of the 
date on which an occupancy permit for the construction is 
issued, or the building or structure is used or occupied; or 

ii) for a period not exceeding 30 days for the purpose of loading 
or unloading goods related to a relocation of a residential or 
commercial use. 

 
4. The “Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw No. 2455, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new definition of “metal storage container” under Section 4.0 (Definitions) 
to read as follows: 

“metal storage container” means a purpose-designed metal cargo container for 
holding of goods, which is intended to be placed on a ship, truck or railcar; 

 
ii) adding a new sub-section 7.28 (Metal Storage Containers) under Section 7.0 

(General Regulations) to read as follows: 

7.28 Metal Storage Containers 

.1 The use of Metal Storage Containers as accessory buildings or 
structures is permitted in accordance with the following criteria: 

a) in the Resource Area, Agriculture, Large Holdings and Industrial 
zones metal storage containers may only be stacked vertically to a 
maximum of two (2) containers and subject to the prior issuance 
of a building permit. 

b) in the Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones only one 
(1) metal storage container may be used as an accessory building 
or structure on a parcel, and only if: 

i) the parcel is greater than 0.5 ha in area;  

ii) the metal storage container is painted in a colour consistent 
with the principal building; and  

iii) the metal storage container is not sited between the front 
parcel line and a principal dwelling. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020 
(X2020.006-ZONE) 

  Page 4 of 7 

c) Despite sub-section 7.28.1(a) and (b), one (1) metal storage 
container may be used for temporary storage: 

i) during construction in any zone, provided that a valid building 
permit has been issued authorizing construction of a building 
or structure. The metal storage container must be removed 
upon completion of the construction, and for this purpose 
construction is deemed to be complete on the earlier of the 
date on which an occupancy permit for the construction is 
issued, or the building or structure is used or occupied; or 

ii) for a period not exceeding 30 days for the purpose of loading 
or unloading goods related to a relocation of a residential or 
commercial use. 

 
5. The “Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new definition of “metal storage container” under Section 4.0 (Definitions) 
to read as follows: 

“metal storage container” means a purpose-designed metal cargo container for 
holding of goods, which is intended to be placed on a ship, truck or railcar; 

 
ii) adding a new sub-section 7.28 (Metal Storage Containers) under Section 7.0 

(General Regulations) to read as follows: 

7.28 Metal Storage Containers 

.1 The use of Metal Storage Containers as accessory buildings or 
structures is permitted in accordance with the following criteria: 

a) in the Resource Area, Agriculture, Large Holdings and Industrial 
zones metal storage containers may only be stacked vertically to a 
maximum of two (2) containers and subject to the prior issuance 
of a building permit. 

b) in the Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones only one 
(1) metal storage container may be used as an accessory building 
or structure on a parcel, and only if: 

i) the parcel is greater than 0.5 ha in area;  

ii) the metal storage container is painted in a colour consistent 
with the principal building; and  

iii) the metal storage container is not sited between the front 
parcel line and a principal dwelling. 

c) Despite sub-section 7.28.1(a) and (b), one (1) metal storage 
container may be used for temporary storage: 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020 
(X2020.006-ZONE) 

  Page 5 of 7 

i) during construction in any zone, provided that a valid building 
permit has been issued authorizing construction of a building 
or structure. The metal storage container must be removed 
upon completion of the construction, and for this purpose 
construction is deemed to be complete on the earlier of the 
date on which an occupancy permit for the construction is 
issued, or the building or structure is used or occupied; or 

ii) for a period not exceeding 30 days for the purpose of loading 
or unloading goods related to a relocation of a residential or 
commercial use. 

 
6. The “Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new definition of “metal storage container” under Section 4.0 (Definitions) 
to read as follows: 

“metal storage container” means a purpose-designed metal cargo container for 
holding of goods, which is intended to be placed on a ship, truck or railcar; 

 
ii) adding a new sub-section 7.29 (Metal Storage Containers) under Section 7.0 

(General Regulations) to read as follows: 

7.29 Metal Storage Containers 

.1 The use of Metal Storage Containers as accessory buildings or 
structures is permitted in accordance with the following criteria: 

a) in the Resource Area, Agriculture, Large Holdings and Industrial 
zones metal storage containers may only be stacked vertically to a 
maximum of two (2) containers and subject to the prior issuance 
of a building permit. 

b) in the Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones only one 
(1) metal storage container may be used as an accessory building 
or structure on a parcel, and only if: 

i) the parcel is greater than 0.5 ha in area;  

ii) the metal storage container is painted in a colour consistent 
with the principal building; and  

iii) the metal storage container is not sited between the front 
parcel line and a principal dwelling. 

c) Despite sub-section 7.29.1(a) and (b), one (1) metal storage 
container may be used for temporary storage: 

i) during construction in any zone, provided that a valid building 
permit has been issued authorizing construction of a building 
or structure. The metal storage container must be removed 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020 
(X2020.006-ZONE) 

  Page 6 of 7 

upon completion of the construction, and for this purpose 
construction is deemed to be complete on the earlier of the 
date on which an occupancy permit for the construction is 
issued, or the building or structure is used or occupied; or 

ii) for a period not exceeding 30 days for the purpose of loading 
or unloading goods related to a relocation of a residential or 
commercial use. 

 
7. The “Electoral Area “I” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new definition of “metal storage container” under Section 4.0 (Definitions) 
to read as follows: 

“metal storage container” means a purpose-designed metal cargo container for 
holding of goods, which is intended to be placed on a ship, truck or railcar; 

 
ii) adding a new sub-section 7.31 (Metal Storage Containers) under Section 7.0 

(General Regulations) to read as follows: 

7.31 Metal Storage Containers 

.1 The use of Metal Storage Containers as accessory buildings or 
structures is permitted in accordance with the following criteria: 

a) in the Resource Area, Agriculture, Large Holdings and Industrial 
zones metal storage containers may only be stacked vertically to a 
maximum of two (2) containers and subject to the prior issuance 
of a building permit. 

b) in the Low Density Residential and Small Holdings zones only one 
(1) metal storage container may be used as an accessory building 
or structure on a parcel, and only if: 

i) the parcel is greater than 0.5 ha in area;  

ii) the metal storage container is painted in a colour consistent 
with the principal building; and  

iii) the metal storage container is not sited between the front 
parcel line and a principal dwelling. 

c) Despite sub-section 7.31.1(a) and (b), one (1) metal storage 
container may be used for temporary storage: 

i) during construction in any zone, provided that a valid building 
permit has been issued authorizing construction of a building 
or structure. The metal storage container must be removed 
upon completion of the construction, and for this purpose 
construction is deemed to be complete on the earlier of the 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020 
(X2020.006-ZONE) 

  Page 7 of 7 

date on which an occupancy permit for the construction is 
issued, or the building or structure is used or occupied; or 

ii) for a period not exceeding 30 days for the purpose of loading 
or unloading goods related to a relocation of a residential or 
commercial use. 

 
 
 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of the “Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen Storage Container Regulations Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2895, 2020” as read 
a Third time by the Regional Board on this ____ day of __________, 2020. 
 
Dated at Penticton, BC this ____ day of __________, 2020. 
 
____________________________ 
Corporate Officer 
 
Approved pursuant to Section 52(3) of the Transportation Act this ____ day of __________, 2020. 
 
______________________________________ 
For the Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/D.1. ICIP Grant 
Resolution.Docx  Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Required Resolution for Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program – Rural 

and Northern Communities Grant Applications  

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Regional District support the following applications to the Investing in Canada 
Infrastructure Program – Rural and Northern Communities for the following projects, given in 
priority order: 

1. Naramata Water System Infrastructure Upgrades  

2. Sun Valley Water Treatment and Generator Upgrade  

AND THAT the Regional District commits to its share of each project for staff time, potential cost 
overruns or other ineligible expenses. 
 
Purpose: 
To update the projects for the grant applications and provide required resolution. 

Reference: 
Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program – Rural and Northern Communities Program Guide 
 
Background: 
On June 25, 2020, the second intake of Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) grants was 
announced. On July 16, 2020 in the Corporate Services Committee, two projects were put forward 
for application to the Rural and Northern Communities Program (RNC): 

· Okanagan Falls WWTP Solids Dewatering Facility  
· Naramata Water System Infrastructure Upgrade 

Subsequent discussions with the provincial ministry and UBCM indicate that the Okanagan Falls 
WWTP Solids Dewatering Facility project would not receive additional funding through the ICIP 
program.  The project currently has a $2M grant through the Strategic Priorities Fund distributed by 
UBCM that covers 100% of the eligible costs.  
 
One alternative project has sufficient detail to be prepared before the application deadline of 
October 22, 2020 for the ICIP-RNC program.  
 
Alternatives: 

1. Approve the identified projects and recommendation  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/D.1. ICIP Grant 
Resolution.Docx  Page 2 of 2 

2. Proceed with only the Naramata Water System Infrastructure Upgrade project with 
adjustment to resolution accordingly. 

3. Cancel both funding applications. 
 
Analysis: 
The alternative project suggested is for the Sun Valley Water System. It includes the installation of a 
treatment system for iron and manganese and addition of a back-up generator. Other potential 
projects with small water systems have not been developed with sufficient details and costs to 
meet grant expectations.  
 
The originally approved project is for the Naramata water system and will include both a watermain 
replacement and reservoir upgrades. Preliminary design work is underway for completing the grant 
application.  
 
The population served by both of these water systems is less than 5000 people and are therefore 
able to apply for funding up to 100% of the eligible expenses. Given the short timeline, Sun Valley 
water system project is the suggested substitute project for this grant program.  
 
These projects both are able to receive 100% funding for eligible costs, however some costs would 
not be covered by the grant should they proceed. These ineligible costs include any staff wages or 
benefits or legal work related to right of way acquisition. For the Sun Valley project, the total 
ineligible costs is estimated at approximately $8-10k for staff wages. For the Naramata project, the 
estimated staff wages are about $20-25k. Both of these expenses could be recovered through user 
fees or reserves.  
 
A requirement of the grant program application is to include a Board resolution that accepts the 
funding responsibility of cost overruns and ineligible costs.   
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Liisa Bloomfield” 
____________________________________ 
L. Bloomfield, Engineering Manager 

 

 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/E.1. 20201015 RPT 
Administrative Report - CERIP Grant.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 3 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Community Economic Recovery Infrastructure Grant Program 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
THAT the Board endorse two applications to the Community Economic Recovery Infrastructure 
Program (CERIP) grant for: 

- Keremeos Outdoor Pool Restoration and Accessibility Improvements 
- Kaleden Hotel Structural Rehabilitation 

 
Purpose: 
To secure a grant which will provide 100% funding towards the development, restoration or 
improvement of an RDOS community facility.  
 
Business Plan Objective:  
KSD 2: Building a sustainable region  
Goal 2.1 To develop a high level of customer service 
Objective 2.1.1: By promoting regional district facilities and services  
 
Background: 
The CERIP grant is administered by the Province of British Columbia to provide stimulus funding for 
infrastructure projects that will assist communities with economic recovery from the impacts of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. The program aims to provide funding for capital projects that will improve a 
community’s economic resiliency through the enhancement, restoration or development of public 
facing facilities. The program funds small-scale infrastructure projects which contribute to 
sustainable communities, promote destination development, support urban and rural economic 
diversification and strengthen cultural heritage.  
 
The grant provides funding up to a maximum of $1 million. Projects which will be awarded funding 
must be open for public use. Projects must begin construction in 2021 and be completed no later 
than March 31, 2023. The Regional District is able to apply for two grants with the deadline for 
submission being Thursday October 29, 2020. 
 
Analysis: 
Keremeos Community Pool 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/E.1. 20201015 RPT 
Administrative Report - CERIP Grant.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 3 
 

The condition of the Keremeos Community Pool has deteriorated to the degree that it no longer 
meets applicable standards. The outdoor pool has been in operation since 1971, with the RDOS 
having the responsibility over management of the pool since 1987. A Recreational Needs Assessment 
was conducted in 2017 by RDOS staff and a consultant for Similkameen recreational facilities, which 
included the rehabilitation of the outdoor pool within its scope. While the antiquated state of the 
facility does cause some concern, the potential to pursue the funding opportunity presented by this 
grant program will allow the Regional District to complete works to improve the condition of the 
pool, as well as making improvements to the accessibility and universal design of the facility.  
 
The scope of the project will include the addition of a commercial pool liner, an improved pump 
house structure, new pool pump, a sloped entrance into the pool to accommodate mobility 
challenges, refurbishment of the change room for accessibility and universal design. The scope of 
work will bring the facility to contemporary standards while also improving a valuable public 
recreational amenity. The improvements will also extend the pools lifecycle by approximately fifteen 
to twenty years.  
 
The Regional District was unsuccessful with its grant application for the Keremeos pool for the 
‘Investing in Canadian Infrastructure’ program in January 2019. However, the application for this 
project will align with the “Community Economic Resilience” stream of the current grant program. 
 
Kaleden Hotel Park and Community Building 
The Kaleden Hotel was first constructed in 1911 and closed due to the war a few years later. The 
building sat idle until the late 1930s when the hotel was sold and stripped of a significant portion of 
its construction materials and furnishings. The RDOS bought the property in 1979 for the purpose of 
developing the Kaleden Hotel Park, which currently serves as a regional park. The hotel structure 
requires significant restoration work due to weather erosion and the lack of a roof structure which 
has only expedited weather deterioration over time. The current structure is not sound from an 
engineering perspective for visitors to safely enter the building, the scope of work of the project will 
address this in order to make the building structurally sound.  
 
Recently, Regional District staff submitted a grant application for the Kaleden Hotel restoration 
project to the Investing in Canadian Infrastructure program in September 2020, and is awaiting a 
response. The application for this project would align with the “Unique Heritage Infrastructure” 
stream of the grant program which provides funding for the rehabilitation of heritage places.  
 
Alternatives: 
THAT the Board does not endorse the applications to the Community Economic Recovery 
Infrastructure Program Grant at this time.  
 
Respectfully submitted: 
Apollo Figueiredo 
____________________________________ 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/E.1. 20201015 RPT 
Administrative Report - CERIP Grant.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 3 of 3 
 

A. Figueiredo, Planner, Community Services 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/E.2. 20201015adminrpt 
- Manitou Park Washroom Construction Award.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Award of Manitou Park Public Washroom Construction Project 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the Regional Board award the construction of a new Public Washroom and septic system at 
Manitou Park to Plan B Contractors Inc up to the amount of $282,110.00 exclusive of GST. 
 
Purpose: 
To construct a public washroom facility at Manitou Park in Naramata. 

Reference: 
Manitou Park Location Plan & Washroom Design 

Business Plan Objective: 
Key Success Driver 3.0: To Build a Sustainable Region 
 
Background: 
Manitou Park is located on the east side of Okanagan Lake at 550 Dorothy Avenue in the Naramata 
village.  The existing park washrooms and septic field are near the end of their serviceable life. 
 
Design of the new washrooms was completed by Landform Architecture, and has been done in 
consultation with the Naramata Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
Analysis: 
The project Request for Proposals (RFP) invited submissions for the construction of a public 
washroom with six accessible washrooms, a family change room, a mechanical room and a new septic 
field. 
 
We received six submissions from qualified contractors.  A committee comprised of Community 
Services staff evaluated the proposals based on the criteria outlined within the advertisement.   
Evaluations were weighted 45% on price, with the remaining weighting based on proponent 
attributes (20%) and proposal content (35%).  A summary of the evaluation scoring is below.  Plan B’s 
price of $282,110 was the lowest we received, and they scored well on both attributes and content. 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/E.2. 20201015adminrpt 
- Manitou Park Washroom Construction Award.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Contractor Evaluation Score/100 
Plan B Contractors 94.0 
Team Construction 89.0 
Greyback Construction 88.7 
Wildstone Construction 84.6 
Duffy Baker Construction 82.2 
BPR Construction 69.2 

 
Funding for the project is from Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program grant ($227k), along with 
funds from the 2020 Area E Parks & Recreation budget. Total funding available for the project is 
$335,000.  The Plan B Contracting proposal meets all mandatory requirements and is within the 
proposed budget.  
 
 
Alternatives: 
That the Board does not choose to award the project to the recommended proponent.  

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
Doug Reeve 
 
D. Reeve, Project Coordinator 

 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/F.1. BL1388.03 
Willowbrook Fire SE Amend Rpt.Docx      
Page 1 of 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw 

Administrative Recommendation: 
THAT Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw No. 1388.03, 2020, 
being a bylaw to change reference to Electoral Area “D” to Electoral Area “I”, be adopted. 

 
Reference: 
Order in Council No. 216, dated April 27, 2018 
Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Establishment Bylaw No. 1388, 1993 

 
Business Plan Objective:  
KSD 2  Meet public needs through the continuous improvement of key services by improving bylaws, 

policy and process within the organization 
 
History: 
The Order in Council creating Electoral Area “I” directed that the local area services that were provided 
to Electoral Area “D” must be provided to Electoral Area “D” and Electoral Area “I”, as applicable.  In 
addition, the Regional District must, as soon as practicable, amend or repeal its bylaws in respect of 
services to Electoral Areas “D” and “I”. 
 
Analysis: 
The Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Area straddles the boundary of Electoral Area “C” and 
what is now Electoral Area “I”, previously Electoral Area “D”.  Bylaw No. 1388.03 updates references in 
Bylaw No. 1388 that had previously referred to Electoral Area “D” to now refer to Electoral Area “I”.  
There is no change to which parcels are affected by the bylaw or receiving service from the fire 
department.   
 
Bylaw No. 1388.03, 2020 received three readings on June 4, 2020.  The bylaw has now received 
Statutory Approval and may be adopted. 
 
Alternatives: 
THAT first, second and third readings of Bylaw No. 1388.03 be rescinded and the bylaw abandoned. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 

“Gillian Cramm” 
____________________________________ 
G. Cramm, Legislative Services Coordinator 

Endorsed by: 
 

 
____________________________________ 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/F.1. BL1388.03 
Willowbrook Fire SE Amend Rpt.Docx      
Page 2 of 2 

  



Page 1 of 2 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN  
BYLAW NO. 1388.03, 2020 

 
A bylaw to amend the Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Establishment Bylaw 

 

WHEREAS the Board of Directors of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen wish 
to proceed under the Local Government Act, to amend the Willowbrook Fire Protection 
Local Service Establishment Bylaw No. 1388, 1993; 

AND WHEREAS the Order in Council No. 216 dated April 27, 2018 amended the Letters 
Patent for the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen to create Electoral Area “I”; 

AND WHEREAS the Order in Council No. 216 directed that the services that were provided 
to Electoral Area “D” on the date of the Order in Council came into force are continued 
and must be provided to Electoral Area “D” and Electoral Area “I”; 

NOW THEREFORE the Board of Directors of the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen in open meeting assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

CITATION 

1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Willowbrook Fire Protection Local 
Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw No. 1388.03, 2020”. 

 

AMENDMENT OF SERVICE 

2. Bylaw No. 1388 is amended by: 

(a) deleting its long title in its entirety and substituting the following: 

“A bylaw to convert the fire protection service within a specified area of 
Electoral Areas ‘C’ and ‘I’ to a local service”; 

(b) deleting the second WHEREAS clause in its entirety and substituting the 
following: 

“AND WHEREAS the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Bylaw No. 
875 cited as the C3 D3 Specified Area Establishment and Loan 
Authorization Bylaw No. 875, 1985 established the fire protection specified 
area in the community of Willowbrook within Electoral Areas ‘C’ and ‘I’”; 



Page 2 of 2 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Establishment Amendment Bylaw 

(c) deleting the third WHEREAS clause in its entirety and substituting the 
following: 

“AND WHEREAS the Regional Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen wishes to convert the aforesaid C3 D3 Specified Area, within 
Electoral Areas ‘C’ and ‘I’ to a local service for the purpose of providing fire 
protection services”;  

(d) deleting section 3 in its entirety and substituting the following: 

“The Willowbrook Fire Protection Local Service Area is located entirely 
within the boundaries of Electoral Areas ‘C’ and ‘I’”. 

 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this 4th day of June, 2020. 
 
Electoral Area “C” DIRECTOR CONSENT OBTAINED this 6th day of June, 2020. 
Electoral Area “I” DIRECTOR CONSENT OBTAINED this 4th day of June, 2020. 
 
APPROVED BY THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this 30th day of September, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _____________________, 20__. 
 
 
 
 
 
         _______   
RDOS Board Chair    Corporate Officer 
 
 
FILED WITH THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this ____ day of ___________, 20__.  



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/F.2. New Municipal 
Directors RPT.Docx  Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: October 15, 2020 
  
RE: Update on Municipal Directors  

For information 
 
Purpose: 
To advise the Board of changes to municipal appointments to the Board of Directors. 
 
Reference: 
Local Government Act sections 198 and 202 
 
Background: 
The term of office for municipal directors begins when the person takes office in accordance with 
section 202 [oath or affirmation of office] of the Local Government Act, and continues until the 
earliest of another director taking office in the original dirctor’s place; the director ceasing to be a 
member of the council before the next general local election; or November 30 in the year of a 
general local election. 
 
Analysis: 
2020-2021 Board of Directors 
Three municipalities, Oliver, Summerland and Penticton, have made changes to their appointments 
to the RDOS Board. 
 
For the 2020-2021 year, for which the inaugural meeting is November 5, 2020, the RDOS Board of 
Directors is comprised of the following members: 
 

Oliver Martin Johansen (new) 
Summerland Doug Holmes 
 Erin Trainer (new) 
Penticton John Vassilaki 
 Katie Robinson (new) 
 Judy Sentes (new) 
 Campbell Watt (new) 
Osoyoos Sue McKortoff 
Keremeos Manfred Bauer 
Princeton Spencer Coyne 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/Board Reports/20201015/Board Reports/F.2. New Municipal 
Directors RPT.Docx  Page 2 of 2 

Electoral Area “A” Mark Pendergraft 
Electoral Area “B” George Bush 
Electoral Area “C” Rick Knodel 
Electoral Area “D” Ron Obirek 
Electoral Area “E” Karla Kozakevich 
Electoral Area “F” Riley Gettens 
Electoral Area “G” Tim Roberts 
Electoral Area “H”  Bob Coyne 
Electoral Area “I” Subrina Monteith 

 
 
Communication Strategy:  
The names of all RDOS Directors, both elected Electoral Area Directors and municipally appointed 
Directors, are posted on the RDOS website. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Gillian Cramm” 
____________________________________ 
G. Cramm, Legislative Services Coordinator 

Endorsed by: 
 
“Christy Malden” 
____________________________________ 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 



C:\Users\Cozaraci\Desktop\E.3.A. Oliver ICIP Grant Administrtive Report Late Item.Docx 
Page 1 of 3 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer

DATE: October 15, 2020 

RE: Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) – Community, Culture and 
Recreation and Rural Northern Community Streams – Oliver Parks and 
Recreation Society 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors support the Oliver Parks and Recreation Society application for the 
Oliver & District Arena through the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program for a total project 
value of $3,145,350 with the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen share of Community, 
Culture and Recreation stream being $838,865 and the Rural Northern Community stream with 
the Regional District share to be $0.00; and further 

THAT third reading of Oliver and District Arena Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 2844, 2019 be 
rescinded to amend the amount to be borrowed from $2,600,000 to $900,000; and further, 

THAT third reading of Oliver and District Arena Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 2844, 2019 be re-
read as amended.  

Purpose: 
To secure up to 100% funding for the Oliver & District Arena Rehabiliation and Energy Recovery 
project from a joint provincial and federal infrastructure grant.  

Reference: 
· Oliver Parks and Recreation Society Letter of Request
· Oliver Arena Feasibility Phase 1 Concept Panel

Business Plan Objective: (Tie to current RDOS Business Plan) 
Key Success Driver 3.0: Build a Sustainable Community. 

Background: 
Through a service agreement Oliver Parks and Recreation operates the Oliver and District Arena on 
behalf of Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen which owns the asset. Residents from the 
Town of Oliver and Electoral Area “C” fund the operations and maintenance of this facilty through 
the Oliver Parks and Recreation Service Area.  

                              LATE ITEMS



C:\Users\Cozaraci\Desktop\E.3.A. Oliver ICIP Grant Administrtive Report Late Item.Docx 
Page 2 of 3 

Built in 1969, the arena building structure itself has a serviceable life of 75 years. Many of the key 
components such as doors, looped cooling system and concrete slab floor have reached the end of 
service life and are prematurely failing.  In order to maximize the efficiency and life span of the 
facility these other components should be replaced. The estimated cost for these replacements is 
up to 3 million dollars over the next 5 years.  

In addition, the facility overall is not barrier-free compliant, and several upgrades to washrooms, 
dressing rooms, entrances and viewing areas are required to meet accessibility standards. Initial 
investigations have determined that the bleachers, stairs and handrails are still in their original 
wood frame construction state and do not meet current safety and fire regulations.  

Concept design options and Class “C” estimates were prepared for the purpose of the infrastructure 
grant application by Carscadden, Stokes and MacDonald Architects Ltd.  The project was broken 
down into two phases to reduce financial impact and to maximize eligibility in this cycle of 
infrastructure funding.  Phase 1 option includes the priority improvements needed for ice making 
operations, washroom/dressing room accessibility, life safety, and a new energy recovery system to 
significantly reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) in the short term.  
Phase 2 (future option) addresses overall accessibility through the modernization of the whole 
facility:  universal dressing rooms and new administration spaces, new metal clad spectator seating, 
and a walking track connected to the upper concourse to provide a no-cost year round indoor 
physical activity opportunity.  Each phase would result in a built environment that will better serve 
the needs of Oliver and Area C residents.         

Analysis: 
The ICIP Grant for this intake is funded through both the federal and provincial government and 
administered through UBCM.  For local goverments applying through the Community Culture and 
Recreation (CCR) stream the grant will fund up to 73.33% of eligible for approved projects. For local 
goverments applying through the Rural Northern Community (RNC) stream the grant will fund up to 
100.00% of eligible approved projects. 

The total project value for the Oliver and District Arena Phase 1 is $3,145,350. 
· If successful in the ICIP grant application CCR stream (maximum amount) the RDOS share

will be $838,865 funded through a borrowing request.
· If successful in the ICIP grant application RNC stream (maximum amount) the RDOS share

will be nil.

Part of the criteria for submission to the grant program requires a loan authorization bylaw at third 
reading.  In 2019, Oliver Parks and Recreation applied for a grant for the arena project in the 
amount of $2,600,000 and as a result the Board gave three readings to Bylaw No. 2844, which was 
submitted along with an application which was ultimately not approved.  As Oliver Parks and 
Recreation is now requesting only $900,000, the Loan Authorization bylaw currently sitting at third 
reading must now be amended to reflect the lesser amount. 

LATE ITEMS



C:\Users\Cozaraci\Desktop\E.3.A. Oliver ICIP Grant Administrtive Report Late Item.Docx 
Page 3 of 3 

Alternatives: 
· The Board of Directors could choose not to support the application.
· The Board of Directors could choose to support the application under a specific program

stream.

Respectfully submitted: 

Justin Shuttleworth 
____________________________________ 
J. Shuttleworth, Parks & Facilities Manager

LATE ITEMS



REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

BYLAW NO. 2844, 2019 

A bylaw to authorize the long term borrowing for the capital costs associated with the 
upgrades to the Oliver and District Arena. 

WHEREAS the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen has authority 
through supplementary letters patent dated July 9, 1968, to construct, operate and 
maintain a skating arena in the Town of Oliver; 

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Local Government Act and the Community Charter, the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen may, by loan authorization bylaw, borrow 
money for capital purposes; 

AND WHEREAS the estimated cost of capital upgrades to the Oliver and District Arena 
including expenses incidental thereto is the sum of three million, one hundred and forty 
five thousand, three hundred and fifty dollars ($3,145,350) of which the sum of nine 
hundred thousand dollars ($900,000) is the amount of debt intended to be borrowed by 
this bylaw; 

AND WHEREAS the authority to borrow under this bylaw expires five (5) years from the 
date on which this bylaw is adopted; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 

1.0 LOAN AUTHORIZATION 

1.1 To borrow upon the credit of the Regional District a sum not exceeding nine hundred 
thousand ($900,000) dollars for the capital upgrades required for the Oliver and 
District Arena. 

2.0 TERM OF DEBENTURE.  

2.1 The maximum term for which debentures may be issued to secure debt created by 
this bylaw is twenty (20) years. 

LATE ITEMS



3.0 CITATION 

3.1 This bylaw may be cited as Oliver and District Arena Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 2844, 
2019 

READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME this 7th day of February, 2019 

THIRD READING RESCINDED AND RE-READ A THIRD TIME AS AMENDED this ___ day of ___, 2020 

APPROVED BY THE INSPECTOR OF MUNICIPALITIES this xx day of xx 

RECEIVED THE APPROVAL OF THE ELECTORS this __ day of ___, 20__ 

ADOPTED this xx day of xx 

________________________________ ___________________________________ 
RDOS Board Chair  Corporate Officer 

LATE ITEMS



LATE ITEMS



LATE ITEMS


	Schedule of Meetings
	PH - McGrath-Brewer
	Planning and Development Committee
	B. Q3 Activity Report - Planning and Development
	C. X2020.002-DPB (Report - Park Land Dedication Procedures)
	C.1. X2020.002-DPB (Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.16)

	D. X2020.009-ZONE (Report - ESDP Area Update)
	D.1. X2020.009-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2500.17)
	D.2. X2020.009-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2912)

	E. X2020.014-ZONE (Report - ALR Exclusion Policies)
	E.1. X2020.014-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2913)

	F. Report - Secondary Suite Floor Area

	Protective Services Committee
	Q3 Activity Report - Protective Services

	Community Services Committee
	Q3 Activity Report - Community Services

	Environment and Infrastructure Committee
	B. Q3 Activity Report - Environment
	C. 20201001_MCP_Final report

	Corporate Services Committee
	B.1. Q3 Activity Report - Corporate Services
	B.2. Q3 Communications Update
	C. Q3 - 2020 Corporate Action Plan
	D. Q3 2020 MDA
	E. Policy Review Rpt
	E.a. Draft Revised Fleet Acquisition Policy
	E.b. Draft Exempt_Employee_Performance_Planning_and_Review_Policy
	E.c. Draft Public Complaint Resolution Policy
	E.d. Draft RecognitionPolicy
	E.e. Bylaw_Enforcement_Preexisting_Noncompliant_Buildings policy
	E.f. AntiIdling_For_RDOS_Fleet_Vehicles Policy
	E.g. Proclamation_Policy


	RDOS Board
	A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	A.1.a. 20200929 MIN SimilkameenRecMinutes
	A.1.b. 20201006 RPT Administrative Report OK Falls P and R New Commission Member
	A.1.c. SOCF TAC Appts
	A.1.d. 20201001MINPlanning
	A.1.e. 20200917MINBD
	A.1.f. 20201001MINBD
	A.2.a. E2020.008-TUP (Report - Ryll)
	A.2.a.i. E2020.008-TUP (Permit - Ryll)
	A.2.a.ii. E2020.008-TUP (Representations - Ryll)


	B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Building Inspection
	B.1. 20201015 RPT  Board Building Enforcement F07213.000 Baron
	B.2. 20201015 RPT  BRD Building Infraction Magdalena
	B.2.a. 20201005 LTR Magdalena owner response


	C. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters
	C.1. C2020.010-ZONE (Report - Reschedule PH - Loose Bay)
	C.2. E2020.001-SAP (Report - Service Area Extension - Solid Waste and Street Lighting)
	C.2.a. E2020.001-SAP (Amendment Bylaw No. 1618.02, 2020)
	C.2.b. E2020.001-SAP (Amendment Bylaw No. 2190.08, 2020)

	C.3. E2020.001-SAP (Report - Service Area Extension - Water)
	C.3.a. E2020.001-SAP (Amendment Bylaw No. 2896, 2020)

	C.4. E2020.002-ALC (Report - RDOS Exclusion)
	C.4.b. E2020.002-ALC (Representations)

	C.5. H2020.007-ZONE (3rd and Adopt - Report)
	C.5.a. H2020.007-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22)
	C.5.b. H2020.007-ZONE (Representations)

	C.6. X2020.006-ZONE (Report - 1st2nd - Shipping Containers)
	C.6.a. X2020.006-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2895)


	D. PUBLIC WORKS
	D.1. ICIP grant resolution

	E. COMMUNITY SERVICES
	E.1. 20201015 RPT Administrative Report - CERIP Grant
	E.2. 20201015AdminRpt - Manitou Park Washroom Construction Award

	F. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES
	F.1. BL1388.03 Willowbrook Fire SE Amend Rpt
	F.1.a. BL1388.03 @3rd

	F.2. New Municipal Directors RPT

	G. CAO REPORTS
	H. OTHER BUSINESS
	I. ADJOURNMENT

	20201015 Board Late Items.pdf
	E.3.a. Oliver ICIP Grant Administrtive Report Late Item
	E.3.b. BL2844 at 3rd Oliver Arena Late Item
	REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN BYLAW NO. 2844, 2019
	1.0 LOAN AUTHORIZATION
	2.0 TERM OF DEBENTURE.

	E.3.c. OPRS ICIP Request for Support from RDOS




